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Chairman’s Statement

ESRYH

Dear Shareholders,

The global economy maintained moderate growth in 2014. Despite
weak momentum, economic activities generally increased in 2014
compared with 2013. Under the impact of the global economic
environment, the China’s economy was in a transitional stage
from rapid to slowing growth. In the global infrastructure building
industry, investments in projects around the world were mainly
focused on developing countries, and the amount still increased
steadily. As for the infrastructure building industry in China, the
proposal of “One Belt and One Road” and supportive policies on
overseas economic expansion by the central bank in the PRC have
provided unprecedented opportunities to the industry in the China.

The Group strongly developed throughout 2014 and delivered
satisfactory operating results. The revenue of the Group amounted
to RMB23,008 million, representing an increase of 7.4% over the
corresponding period of the previous year; gross profit amounted
to RMB3,750 million, representing an increase of 0.2% over the
corresponding period of the previous year; profit attributable
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to shareholders amounted to RMB2,097 million, representing a
year-on-year increase of 7.0%. As an acknowledgement to the
enduring support from the Shareholders, the Board recommended
a final dividend of RMB0.2033 per share (pre-tax) for 2014,
representing a total amount of RMB838,754,810 (pre-tax). On
top of its steady financing activities in 2014, the Group leveraged
the favorable national strategic planning of “One Belt and One
Road” to the highest extent, aggressively expanded to emerging
markets whilst maintaining its fine brand. In terms of business
organization, the Group progressively proceeded with its investment
and financing activities whilst consolidating its existing business
organization.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2014, the Group maintained its leadership in the industry
of international engineering contracting. The Group continued
to focus on contracting and services for EPC projects, among
which coordinated development was maintained on the sectors
of power, transportation and telecommunications. The power
sector was the largest contributor to the results of the Group and
continued to be the Core Sector of the International Engineering
Contracting Business. The Group delivered satisfactory progress in
the performance of its projects whilst exploring new markets and
pursuing further development.

As at the end of 2014, the engineering contracting projects of the
Group were undertaken in nearly 50 countries and regions over
the world, with a primary focus in Asia and Africa. In addition, the
Group successfully completed several projects in South America
and Europe whilst some are ongoing in the regions. In 2014,
the Group accomplished satisfactory project performance with
more than 70 ongoing projects. The advanced technology and
outstanding construction standards of the Company has enabled
its steady execution of projects. Our completed projects were
widely recognized by the project owners. In particular, the problems
encountered in connecting the technical standards in the projects
of Lukoml 400MW combined cycle power plant and Brest 400MW
combined cycle power plant projects in Belarus were overcome
by our project teams. As a result, the construction periods of the
projects were met and the Company was highly recognized by the
owners. In addition, IZDEMIR1x350MW supercritical power plant in
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Chairman’s Statement

ESRYH

Turkey and Phase Il of Puttalam coal power plant project in Sri Lanka
were successfully completed in 2014. The Group further proceeded
its project development and explored new markets in leveraging
the national strategic planning of “One Belt and One Road”. In
the second half of 2014, the Group successfully signed the Thar
coal-electric integration project in Pakistan in a bold attempt to drive
EPC projects with investments and respond to the new competition
environment in the international market. The project was included
and ranked the first among the “China-Pakistan Economic Corridor”
projects. From July to September 2014, Chinese President Xi
Jinping attended the ceremonies of the international projects
undertaken by CMEC for a consecutive three times, and Premier
Li Kegiang witnessed the signing ceremony of the loan agreement
for phase Il of the Kostolac-B power plant in Serbia in December,
marked the high recognition of the PRC government on the years
of effort of CMEC in its overcoming of difficulties and aggressive
exploration in the area of international engineering contracting
business. CMEC captured opportunities in entering into the railway
projects in Argentina, executing phase Il of the residential project
in Maldives and phase Il of the Kostolac-B power plant in Serbia.

In capitalizing the global sales network established in over 150
countries and regions and the active innovation and adjustment in
operation model for the full year of 2014, the Group initially solved
the problems of single business model and weak product control
of the Trading Business and achieved remarkable progress in
new market, new model and new sector of construction. In 2014,
the Company successfully explored and established the Thailand
markets by contributing to a Thailand telecommunication project
when the Company expanded in fertilizer raw materials supplying
business in Thailand. The Group explored the new markets and at
the same time, further advanced regionalization and localization
of development and enhanced the efforts in establishing overseas
entities. With the successful registration of Singapore regional
center and the actively preparation of the establishment of Dubai
regional center, the Company will be able to consolidate the local
business and push forward its development.
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In 2014, the Other Businesses continued its steady development
and harmonious progress, among which logistics services and
exhibition services continued to maintain industrial advantages.
In addition, under the guidance of “integration of investment and
financing development” during the year, the Company explored
diversified financing through multi-channels, actively established
investment and financing platform and dedicated to achieve
breakthrough in investment and financing business in both domestic
and overseas markets with more than 30 investment projects
followed up for the year 2014. Among them, the Turkish OEDAS
and OEPSAS grid acquisition and Pakistan Thar coal-fired power
project have been listed as the Company’s key projects to be
promoted.

OUTLOOK

In 2015, the mid-to-high growth rate of the China economy will
remain unchanged with the positive outlook for the long-term
macro fundamentals also remain unchanged. Asia infrastructure
investment banks with China taking the lead are in the process
of active preparation. At present, western countries including
United Kingdom, France, Germany, ltaly will become the founding
members. The operation is expected to be commenced at the
end of 2015. Meanwhile, the supporting policies for going aboard
implemented by the central banks to stimulate the economy will
also enhance the drives of the China enterprises going aboard.

Today, with the train of new economy coming towards us at a
high speed and facing the new normal China economy and the
new pattern of reform, in 2015, the Company will further adjust
its business portfolio and enhance the efforts and degrees in
related diversification. A rational business layout for both growth
and profitability will be formed with the focus in establishing the
three large segments of the International Engineering Contracting
Business, trading and services business and investment and
financing business. Unique competitive advantages in the market
will be established in the future.
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Chairman’s Statement

ESRYH

The Company carried out extensive analysis on external
environment changes and its own business structure, and executed
astute assessments on future market trends according to the
actual market environment, the Company actively responded to
the “Lighting Africa” program launched by the World Bank and
developed Africa’s electricity market together with co-operative
partners such as U.S. General Electric International, Inc. In
addition, China government has already launched relevant policies
to support the development of the China’s overseas projects.
The Company actively pushed forward the major development of
various investments and financing business which was the crucial
step for implementation of development strategies and enabled the
Company to further enhance its core competiveness in the market
and to pursue diversified development along the industry value
chain at the same time. The Company envisaged a developmental
vision to pave its way to becoming the world’s leading international
engineering contractor and service provider, by achieving business
breakthrough and by dedicating itself to establishing a synergistic
developmental layout among the three sectors, namely International
Engineering Contracting Business, trading and services business
and investment and financing business.

In the future, the Company shall focus on establishing a diversified
business layout with the International Engineering Contracting
Business as the core focus, trading and services business as the
major focus and investment and financing business as the new
strategy, and boost the Company’s integrated strength by fully
utilizing the synergistic advantage derived from each sector. The
Company will continue to strengthen procedural control over the
engineering contracting projects and enhance the ability to provide
one-stop services. It will also pay high attention to after-sales
services including the operation and maintenance of engineering
contracting projects and further excavate the potential value of such
after-sales services in order to gradually form a management and
service mode featured by the characteristics of CMEC. In respect
of trading and service business, the Company will further improve
its internal management mechanism to promote management
efficiency, thus laying the foundation for further transformation and
upgrade of such businesses and providing support for it. In respect
of investment and financing business, the Company will consistently
invest in the industries and markets with which it is familiar mainly
by way of equity investment. The Company will also continue to
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improve the supporting system, by introducing a standardized
investment system, to establish a fast track for the projects selected
under the principle of “investment driven EPC”. The Company will
build diversified financing channels through the construction of
diversified domestic and overseas financing platforms, to seek
various financing modes and to actively facilitate the development
of investment and financing business.

Looking into the future, as the world’s economy starts to
recuperate, the demand for global infrastructure construction also
increases rapidly. The China economy development enters into
new normal stage. The Company will follow the major strategic
layout of the China’s “One Belt and One Road” and closely
combine with its strategy of “investment driven EPC” and enhance
the efforts in related market development. The Company will
enhance the management of overseas entities and talents training,
establish comprehensive budget system, enhance finance and
audit management, optimize the management system of social
responsibility. At the same time, the Company will continue to stride
towards a leading multinational company in the world by adhering
to strategic guiding principle, consolidating foundation, rebuilding its
brand and driving transformation. The Company will progressively
explore various commercial opportunities from both domestic and
overseas markets, thus bringing exceedingly good results to mass
of the Shareholders in return. Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would
like to take this opportunity to express our sincere gratitude to the
Shareholders and people from various sectors for their concern
and support, and to all of the Company’s staff who joined us in
our endeavors!

SUN Bai
Chairman

Beijing, China
April 22, 2015
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Company Profile
RAEEN

The Company was established in 1978 and was the first state-
owned industrial and trading enterprise in the PRC. The Company
is a subsidiary controlled by SINOMACH. The Company was
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on December
21, 2012. As at December 31, 2014, the Company had a total of
908,270,000 H Shares and 3,217,430,000 non-tradable Domestic
Shares issued. The Company has a primary focus on EPC
projects and particular expertise in the power sector, capable
of providing one-stop customized and integrated engineering
contracting solutions and services. The Company also conducts
the Trading Business and Other Businesses.

Prospects for Enterprise Development: Becoming the world’s
leading international engineering contractor and service provider
and transforming itself into a first class conglomerate in the world
through cutting-edge innovation and value creation.

Competitive Strengths: Brand reputation, operational model,
business network, professional team, business operation, financial
planning.

International Engineering Contracting Business: With
over 30 years of experience in the International Engineering
Contracting Business, the Company is able to provide project
owners with one-stop customized and integrated turnkey
solutions and services to manage and implement engineering
contracting projects, especially in developing countries, and
also undertake engineering contracting projects in more than 48
countries, primarily in Asia, Africa, Europe and South America.
Power, transportation and telecommunications sectors are the
Company’s Core Sectors. The Company is also engaged in the
non-Core Sectors, such as water supply and treatment projects,
building and construction projects, manufacturing and processing
plant projects and mining and resources exploitation projects.

Trading Business: The Company conducts the Trading Business
through its sales and marketing network which covers over
150 countries and regions. The sales and marketing network is
established through years of international engineering contracting
and trading experiences and business transactions involving
export and import of products and services to and from these
countries and regions.

Other Businesses: To a lesser extent, the Company is involved
in the Other Businesses that provide logistics services, exhibition
services, tendering agency services and other services (including
design services and export-import agency services).
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Company Profile
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Corporate Structure: As at December 31, 2014, the Company’s R PN20145F12A318 - AR AR
corporate structure was as follows: N -
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Key Operating and Financial Data
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Key Operating and Financial Data
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1. Revenue
A
Unit: RMB million
B AREBET

23,007.7

21,426.3 I

2013 2014
20134 20144

3. Basic Earnings per Share

SRERRF
Unit: RMB
B AR
0.51
0.7 |||
2013 2014
20134 201445

5. Backlog for the International Engineering
Contracting Business
BMRIBREBEBATRERAE
Unit: US$ million
B BEET

8,216.9 8,122.6

As at December 31, 2013 As at December 31, 2014
M2013F12831H H2014F12831H

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margins

EMNREFER

Unit: RMB million
B AREEHETT

3,742.5

3,750.4

M Gross profit
EH

A Gross profit margin
ESIES

2013 2014
20134 20144
Net Asset Per Share

BREFEE
Unit: RMB
B ARE
3.16
2.85
2013 2014
20134 20144

Newly Effective Contract Value for the
International Engineering Contracting

Business

B IRAGEBNFIERSRESHE

Unit: US$ million
B BEET

3,367.3

4,070.7

2013
20135

2014
201445
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Key Operating and Financial Data
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7. Signed Contracts Pending to be Effective for the International Engineering Contracting Business

B IRABEBENEZENFERER

As at December 31, 2014
201412431 H

Unit: US$ million
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Total 485
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8. Gross Profit Margin for the International Engineering Contracting Business (“IEC”)
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Financial Highlights
MBREE

Year ended December 31,

HZ12ANALEE

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

20145 201345 20124 20114 20106

RMB’000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

ARETT ANREFT AREFT AREFT AREFIL

Revenue WA 23,007,745 21426272 21,296,063 20,517,769 19,077,015

Gross profit eS| 3,750,380 3,742,458 3,731,510 3,659,031 2,942,373
Other revenue and other income/ Hipl AREMBBA /

(expenses), net (%) ¥8 (78,515) 365,826 22,115 6,637 9,166
Operating expenses BERR (1,600,863)  (1,780,132)  (1,690,383)  (1,521,026)  (1,416,200)
Profit from operations Syl 2,071,002 2,328,152 2063242 2,144,642 1,535,339
Profit before taxation BH AT 2,738,144 2,664,105 2615878 1,987,369 1,561,417
Income tax it (641,909)  (703,864) (687,716) (515,026) (429,248)
Profit for the year ERER 2,096,235 1,960,241 1928162 1,472,343 1,132,169
Total other comprehensive income FREMEGE K (16,250) 14,745 (8,720) 1,235 3,042
Total comprehensive income for the year FRN4A W25 2,079,985 1,974,986 1,924,442 1,473,578 1,135,211
Profit attribute to: RAEER -

- Shareholders of the Company - ADARR 2,096,918 1,959,257 1,927,689 1,474,893 1,136,475

- Non-controlling interests - RS (683) 984 473 (2,550) (4,306)
Total comprehensive income BANGEBRER

attributable to:

- Shareholders of the Company YIS 2,079,740 1,974,823 1,925,325 1,475,096 1,137,945

- Non-controlling interests — JEiE R 245 163 (883) (1,518) (2,734)
Basic and diluted earnings per share BREAREERF

(expressed in RMB per share) (NEET) 0.51 047 0.58 0.45 0.34
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 5775931 6,049,264 6,833,778  7.277,172 6,768,437
Total current assets THEELE 31,447,411 25903900 27,936,051 19,331,069 18,619,812
Total assets BERE 37,223,342 31,953,164 34,760,829 26,608,241 25,388,249
Total non-current liabilities FnBAGLE 690,055 407,162 581,888 737,109 1,976,772
Total current liabilities THEEEE 23,479,699 10,780,041 24,270,518 20,497,237 19,446,465
Total liabilities BREeHE 24,169,754 20,197,108 24,852,406 21,234,346 21,423,237
Equity attributable to shareholders of R ERE

the Company 13,035,482 11,739,625 9,920,341  5379,736 3,969,407
Non-controlling interests FrkER 18,106 16,436 (2,918) (5,841) (4,395)
Total equity Enad 13,053,588 11,756,061 9,917,423 5373895 3,965,012
Total equity and liabilities Bahafes 37,223,342 31,953,164 34,769,829 26,608,241 25,388,249
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERENWED

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

A.

“One Belt and One Road” Strategy of China

The “Silk Road Economic Belt” and “21st Century
Maritime Silk Road,” or “One Belt and One Road” (—
#—p&) for short, were concepts put forward by the
Chinese government in 2013, which received extensive
and intense attention from the international community.
The strategic concepts were highly appreciated by
the international community as rich in significance
and depth, showing the innovation of China’s global
strategy. It could promote the economic development
of countries, regional economic cooperation as well as
the development of Chinese engineering contractors
who engage in international engineering contracting
businesses.

After the announcement of the “One Belt and One
Road” initiative, China has provided a lot of support to
drive the development, including the Silk Road Fund
and Asia Infrastructure Investment Bank. In particular,
the country will put about US$40 billion into the Silk
Road Fund, which would be used to provide investment
and financing for infrastructure and resources, and to
boost industrial and financial cooperation to forge better
links between countries along the “new Silk Road”.

In fact, many of the countries covered by the “One Belt
and One Road” proposal have traditionally had close
trade and investment relations with China. The Chinese
government wishes to deepen cooperation with them,
especially in terms of building infrastructure and other
development projects. Chinese companies that own or
are involved in international infrastructure development
projects, including engineering contractors, are set to
benefit from the greater financing support in funding
their business operations abroad.

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In 2013, China’s trade with the 65 countries along the
Silk Road economic belt as well as the 21st Century
Maritime Silk Road exceeded US$1 trillion, accounting
for a quarter of China’s total external trade. In 2013, the
total value of contracts for construction projects in these
65 countries secured by Chinese contractors amounted
to about US$70.9 billion, accounting for 40% of the
total contract value of all overseas contracting projects
undertaken by Chinese engineering contractors.

Under the ambitious “One Belt and One Road” strategy,
a large number of overseas infrastructure projects are
expected to be commenced in the upcoming years.
In addition, the Chinese government has pledged
the stronger financing support to Chinese companies
owning or taking part in overseas projects. It is
estimated that the total credit amount set aside for
Chinese engineering contractors engaged in overseas
infrastructure projects will reach about US$50 billion
in 2015, and grow to about US$55 billion and US$60
billion in 2016 and 2017, respectively, according to the
Ipsos Report.

International Engineering Contracting Industry

Global infrastructure engineering investment value
increased at a CAGR of an estimated 5.5% from
2009 to 2014. Given that infrastructure engineering
projects were mostly funded by governments,
infrastructure engineering investment value was not
greatly impacted by the economic recession in 2011
resulted from the European sovereign debt crisis, and
still maintained a positive growth of approximately
5.3%, from approximately US$3,770 billion in 2010
to approximately US$3,971 billion in 2011. The global
infrastructure engineering investment value was mainly
driven by developing countries from 2009 to 2014, at an
estimated US$4,722 billion in 2014.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEWED N

Total new contract value of infrastructure engineering
projects in the global market was an estimated
US$1,024.2 billion in 2014; whilst the total new
contract value of infrastructure engineering projects in
developing countries reached an estimated US$926.1
billion in 2014, accounting for an estimated 90.4%
of the total new contract value of infrastructure
engineering projects in global market. The new
contract value of power-related, transportation and
telecommunications sectors in developing countries
together contributed an estimated 80.2% to the total
new contract value of infrastructure engineering projects
in developing countries in 2014, of which power-related,
transportation and telecommunications sector each
accounted for an estimated 36.6%, 26.9% and 16.8%,
respectively, of the said value.

New Contract Value of Infrastructure Engineering
Projects by Infrastructure Types in Developing Countries
from 2006 to 2014

USS billion
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Sources: China International Contractors Association;, ENR; Ipsos Report

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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Management Discussion and Analysis

According to Ipsos Report, the new contract value
of power-related infrastructure engineering projects
grew the fastest among the three types (power-related
(electricity), transportation, telecommunications) of
projects at CAGR of an estimated 21.4% from 2006 to
2014, reaching an estimated to reach about US$339
billion in 2014; stable growth was witnessed for
transportation infrastructure engineering projects in
developing countries at CAGR of an estimated 2.5%
from 2006 to 2014 to US$249 billion in 2014.

The top 10 Chinese contractors contributed
approximately 47.4%, or approximately US$13,419
million, to the total revenue generated from international
projects in the power sector in the global market in
2014. Amongst these top 10 Chinese contractors,
CMEC ranked 2" with about 7.7% share, according to
the Ipsos Report.

Trading Industry

China’s international trade value grew dramatically from
2001 to 2014. Import value of China grew at a CAGR
of approximately 17.4% while export value grew at a
CAGR of approximately 18.2% from 2001 to 2014.
With China’s accession to the World Trade Organization
in December 2001, the country has committed itself
to further reforms. Continue to implement these
commitments will further deepen the extent of China’s
internationalization.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEET e

Import and Export Value of China from 2001 to 2014
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Sources: China Customs, Ipsos Report

Trends and Developments of China Trade

1. The PRC government has sought to improve the foreign
trade value across different regions in China

. As stated in China’s “Twelfth Five-Year Plan”, the PRC
government aims to have more balanced foreign trade
from 2011 to 2015, with an annual growth rate of about
10.0% and a total of US$4,800 billion by 2015. The
goals are consistent with China’s plan to promote trade
liberalization and balance international and domestic
trade accounts.

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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Management Discussion and Analysis

e Given the PRC government’s plan to promote trade
liberalization, goals to improve foreign trade across
different Chinese regions have been set. For example,
the PRC government aims to increase the annual
growth rate of Central and Western China’s share of
foreign trade value to approximately 5.0% from 2011 to
2015, which accounts for approximately 15.0% of the
total trade value in China by 2015.

2. China’s focus on enhancing the development of trading
electromechanical products is expected to support the
country’s foreign trade.

e According to the “Twelfth Five-Year Plan”, the PRC
government aims to maintain the annual growth rate
of import and export of electromechanical products
to about 10% from 2011 to 2015, to approximately
US$2,500 billion by 2015. China’s foreign trade
development will focus on electromechanical products,
which is expected to account for approximately 52.1%
of the total foreign trade value in China by 2015.

3. The PRC government has taken effort to promote foreign
trade by reducing interest rates.

e According to Premier Li Kegiang’s speech at the
National People’s Congress in March 2015, the PRC
government aims to increase its imports and exports by
about 6%, a target that is lower than the one set in the
previous year of about 7.5%. To make the goal more
achievable by increasing exports and supporting local
businesses, the People’s Bank of China cut benchmark
interest rates and interest rates for businesses for the
second time in less than five months at the beginning of
March 2015.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERENWED

Il. BUSINESS OVERVIEW
A. International Engineering Contracting Business

The Company is a leading international engineering
contracting and service provider with a primary focus
on EPC projects and particular expertise in the power
sector. Our International Engineering Contracting
Business is one of the traditional core businesses of
the Company, representing approximately 67.2% of the
Company’s total revenue in 2014.

The following table sets forth the details of the
International Engineering Contracting Business for the
year ended December 31, 2014 and the comparative
figures for the year ended December 31, 2013:

Il. EKEE
A BERERIBARGLH®

BP9 2 BB St B BR T AR
BHERSE  TEHINEPCHE
B BREENENERITE -
BAWEEIRABERALRA
REGZLEREZ—  £9152014
R FHERARIBT.2% °

T & & 5 £2014F12 831 H
HFERBEIRABERFES
LA K B £2013F12A318 1IF F
ERLLEE T

Unit: RMB million
By ARMEET

Year-on-year

2014 % of Total 2013 Growth
20144 BEN % 20134 RERR
Revenue Power
LON B EEIR 11,277.7 72.9% 12,265.6 -8.1%
Transportation
RimER 1,859.2 12.0% 829.9 124.0%
Telecommunications
Ema i 408.5 2.6% 800.4 -49.0%
Non-Core Sectors
FERZTE 1,915.4 12.5% 1,489.7 28.6%
Total
wmst 15,460.8 100% 15,385.6 0.5%
Gross profit Power
ER B R 2,641.3 85.3% 2,850.2 -7.3%
Transportation
RimiEE 238.4 7.7% 93.9 153.9%
Telecommunications
Emat 40.0 1.3% 87.3 -54.2%
Non-Core Sectors
FERZMTE 175.0 5.7% 116.0 50.9%
Total
#ct 3,094.7 100% 3,147.4 -1.7%
20 China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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As at December 31, 2014, our engineering contracting
projects were undertaken in more than 48 countries and
regions over the world, with a primary focus in Asia and
Africa. There were a number of successful completed
projects and ongoing projects in South America and
Europe. The following map indicates the locations of our
engineering contracting projects from 2009 to 2014.
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The following table sets forth a breakdown of the T & & % 8 £2014F12A31H
revenue from the Group’s International Engineering I EEERBABE DA ER
Contracting Business by geographic locations for the B[S T A2 A 2 78U A BR 4R

year ended December 31, 2014:

% of
2014 Total
201445 HEE %
RMB million
AR¥EET

Asia M 6,685.6 43.3%
Africa FEM 3,963.4 25.6%
Europe BN 1,472.6 9.5%
South America [EEJ) 3,029.5 19.6%
North America JEEM 309.7 2.0%
Total et 15,460.8 100%
In 2014, the International Engineering Contracting 2014%F - B TR A B EBKR
Business kept growing, making it prominent as the BIEE - ZOMARE - AFIE
core business. The Company adopted the targeted and HER TREABEBRFERNRM
systematic management measures which are aimed BRI T AN REMR
at the shortcomings emerging in the International EREERE RENE AR
Engineering Contracting Business, to stabilize growth, o REEA - WG T BB
adjust structure and promote transformation, which R EIEEBEHRFEFEBE
have achieved positive results. The Company has BRUTHER - RINEERATN

achieved satisfactory progress in contract performance w5 REREDEMS -

and project development, while continuing to develop
new markets and further developing the existing
markets.

22 China Machinery Engineering Corporation
PEEWREIEZROERAT



Management Discussion and Analysis

Satisfactory Project Performance and
Promoted Brand ldentity

The Company had more than 70 ongoing projects
which were implemented smoothly in 2014. The
projects of which the Company have received the
hand-over certificates mainly include Phase IV of
Luanda urban electricity reconstruction project in
Angola, Lukoml 400MW combined cycle power
plant and Brest 400MW combined cycle power plant
projects in Belarus, I[ZDEMIR1 x 350MW supercritical
power plant in Turkey, Phase Il of Puttalam coal
power plant project in Sri Lanka and etc., among
which Thaukyegat (2) hydropower project in Myanmar
has successfully obtained the final acceptance
certificate issued by the project owners; Lukoml
and Brest power plant projects in Belarus have
completed the project hand-over in advance, which
established a good reputation and brand identity for
the Company in Eastern Europe.

BEERWED T

HEBEYNBRRE  mER
KRA
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Further Promotion of Project Development and
Continuing to Explore New Markets

In 2014, newly signed contract value of the
International Engineering Contracting Business was
approximately US$3.8 billion, mainly distributed
in Africa and Asia, and still dominated by power
sector. The newly effective contract value was
approximately US$4.1 billion, mainly distributed in
South America, and of which the higher proportion
was contributed by transportation sector.

In response to China’s “One Belt and One Road”
principal strategy, and in close connection with its
investment strategy, the Company has increased
efforts to develop relevant markets. In September
2014, the Company has successfully contributed
to the signing and immediate effectiveness of Thar
coal-electric integration project in Pakistan. This
project is the Company’s bold attempt responding
to the competition situation in the international
market, innovating marketing exploring model and
driving EPC projects with investments. Meanwhile,
based on CMEC’s brand effect in Pakistan
electricity market, Thar coal-electric integration
project could stand out from lots of “China-
Pakistan Economic Corridor” projects, and was
allowed to be included into the “China-Pakistan
Economic Corridor” projects and ranked No.1.

The Company actively responded to the “Lighting
Africa” program launched by the World Bank to
develop Africa’s electricity market together with
U.S. General Electric International, Inc. (“GE”) and
other partners. Among them, the contract of SOYO
combined cycle power plant project in Angola to
be developed by the Company and GE has been
successfully signed. The two parties treated it as
an opportunity to play their respective advantages,
and are expected to make all-round cooperation
in a number of African countries such as Nigeria,
Ghana and Mozambique.

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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The following table sets forth the details of the
International Engineering Contracting Business
for the year ended December 31, 2014 and
the comparative figures for the year ended
December 31, 2013:

T % # 5 # £2014F12 A
STHEFEREIREABE
BEE - KRB E2013F
12H318 IEF & B L 8 &

=

=

Unit: US$ million
By - FEZFET

Year-
% of on-year
2014 Total 2013 Growth
2014F  HBEN% 2013F  REFER
Newly HEX Power BEER 806.7 19.8% 1,444.8 -44.2%
effective ~ AFEEHE Transportation RiBEH 2,470.6 60.7% 7211 >100%
contract Telecommunications & F@:f 120.0 3.0% 366.0 -67.2%
value Non-Core Sectors IR TE 673.4 16.5% 835.4 -19.4%
Total st 4,070.7 100% 3,367.3 20.9%
Unit: US$ million
iy BEZET

As at As at
December % of  December Increase/
31, 2014 Total 31,2013 (decrease)
720144 BEN  H2013F R/
12A31R % 12A318 (R2)
Backlog KT Power ENEER 4,091.1 50.4% 5,869.1 -30.3%
ERE Transportation RBEH 2,619.6 32.3% 875.5 >100%
Telecommunications — EFiE 392.2 4.8% 340.6 15.1%
Non-Core Sectors FZOTE 1,019.7 12.5% 1,131.7 -9.9%
Total st 8,122.6 100.0% 8,216.9 -1.1%
Signed SENE  Power BNER 7,695.4 59.8% 5,798.9 32.7%
contracts £¥AE  Transportation TRER 1,054.0 8.2% 3,519.0 -70.0%
pending to Telecommunications & F i@l 100.0 0.8% 100.0 -%
be effective Non-Core Sectors ERTE 4,008.9 31.2% 4,058.0 -1.2%
Total Faby 12,858.3 100% 13,475.9 -4.6%
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Strengthening Department Management and
System Construction

The Company further improved two-level
management system, and gradually established
a project dynamic regulatory system. Research in
respect of core market development and planning,
current operation status and existing problems
has been completed. Technical management
capacity was strengthened. Meaningful attempts
were engaged in improving the industrial chain and
specialization of project management. Meanwhile,
in order to ensure the integrity and effectiveness of
project management, the Company has completed
the construction plan of the life cycle system for
the engineering contracting project, revised and
issued more than ten rules and regulations relating
to project management.

Further Intensifying Regionalized and
Localized Developing Strategies

The Company further intensified regionalized
strategy and increased efforts to establish overseas
entities. Among them, Singapore regional center
aiming at regional operation has been successfully
registered, while Dubai regional center is actively
preparing for establishment. The establishment
of these regional centers effectively promoted
the local business development of the Company.
With the launch of the Company’s regionalizing
policy, each relevant department implemented
active research of the regional markets, and made
considerable achievements in deeply operating the
regional markets. Last year, approximately 80% or
more of the new projects signed by the Company
came from the regional markets.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

5. Strengthening Cooperation with Local
Enterprises, Achieving a Breakthrough in
Industry Investment

Allying with Wuxi Guolian Environmental
Energy Group Co., Ltd., the Company jointly
invested and set up CMEC Guolian Wuxi New
Energy Development Co., Ltd., for investment,
development, construction and operation of
domestic distributed photovoltaic power plant
projects. This is not only a mechanism innovation
that the Company implemented in cooperation with
local enterprises, but also marks the Company’s
industrial investment has got material progress.

Trading Business

Leveraging our broad sales and marketing networks
established in more than 150 countries and regions
around the globe, we also engaged in overseas and
domestic trading business. Our Trading Business
bridged the demands of domestic and overseas
purchasers and suppliers who wished to source or
sell a wide range of products outside or in the PRC.
We primarily exported and, to a lesser extent imported
and domestically traded, complete sets of plants and
equipment and various machinery, electrical, and
instrumental products including mining equipment, ship
components, automobile parts, medical instrument,
household appliances, office equipment, electrical
hardware and construction materials, for customers
in the PRC and overseas. We conducted our Trading
Business through our Company as well as subsidiaries
in the PRC and other countries and regions (including
Germany, the United States, Australia, Japan and Hong
Kong) and overseas representative offices.
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The Company strived in 2014 to change the status quo
of the Trading Business featured with single model,
weak product control as well as unbalanced domestic
and international markets, and actively developed
towards product R&D and quality control, providing
solutions and innovating operation model. Through a
whole year’s efforts, the Company has initially curbed
the declining trend existing in the Trading Business, and
has made some breakthroughs in the construction of
new markets, new models and new areas.

The following table sets forth the details of the Trading
Business for the year ended December 31, 2014,
together with the comparative figures for the year ended
December 31, 2013:
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20145 - RRAENHNEEH %
HIREENE — - EmiEfl g
55 - ENAMNRETT SN FEFR
M BHBRERFEME ST
Hl - REERTRE - AR
XNAREE - RRBAB—FNE
7 BREOFBIERBE S ER
TERE: X WAEHMH - HiE
N FEFHRZFTERET —F
R o

T & & 5 # £2014F12A31H
tFEEZEBFBEREE
2013F12A31B EFE M &
HT

Unit: RMB million
Ef7  ARBHET

Year-

% of on-year

2014 Total 2013 Growth

20145F #EMN% 2013F EFEER

Revenue A International trade EIRE 5 4,488.2 69.7%  3,997.0 12.3%
Domestic trade HAE S 1,954.7 30.3% 910.8 114.6%

Total #st 6,442.9 100%  4,907.8 31.3%

Gross profit EF International trade RE 5 257.7 85.3% 247.9 4.0%
Domestic trade NE 5 44.4 14.7% 32.7 35.6%

Total et 302.1 100% 280.6 7.7%
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Exploring Core Markets and Building Core
Brand

The Company actively explored new core markets
in 2014. The team of the International Engineering
Contracting Business expanded in fertilizer raw
materials supplying business in Thailand, and
contributed to a telecommunication project
amounting to US$120 million into effect, so as to
successfully cultivated core markets in Thailand.
Meanwhile, the Company was actively trying to invest
in the construction of a rubber factory in Thailand
to explore entity-led trade. The team of the Trading
Business actively developed high-end forgings
business. It has overcome difficulties of production
technology, developed and successfully trial-
produced high-tech “high-speed rail brakes”, which
are currently used for pilot run on the CRH (China
railway highspeed). The Company also committed
to the development of new energy products and
projects, focused on the development of distributed
PV power plant project, PV modules and energy-
efficient lighting products, so as to actively build
“CMEC New Energy” brand. The successful grid
connection and power generation from its first
distributed PV power plant in Wuxi, marked the
Company'’s big step into the new energy (solar power
plant) field.
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2. Completion of Institutional Reorganization
and Highlighting the Advantage of Regional
Integration

Currently, the Company has fully completed the
reorganization of China Machinery Industrial Products
Co., Ltd. (“CMEC Machinery”) and eastern China
business department of the Company (‘Eastern China
Business Department”), and initially set up three
sub-sectors of the Trade Business, namely CMEC
Machinery, Eastern China Business Division and China-
East Resources Import & Expert Co., Ltd., all of which
showed a positive development trend and relied on their
respective core products and businesses. At the same
time, the Company has formulated a preliminary plan to
actively create Guangdong-Hong Kong investment and
financing center.

C. Other Businesses C.

Other than the International Engineering Contracting
Business and the Trading Business, we also engaged in
the Other Businesses, ranging from logistics service to
exhibition service, tendering agency services and other
services (including export-import agency and design
services) and undertook strategic investment.

___J.;mfiilﬁ_'_f;l'.'.'.'.'.'.’.‘ et
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In 2014, the Company’s other business such as
logistics services and exhibition services continued
to play the role as industry leaders. In response to
the changes in domestic and international operating
environment, CMEC Comtrans began to change from
relying on original single domestic platform into relying
on both home and abroad platforms to carry out project
logistics business. CMEC Expo has actively expanded
the service chain, and implemented large customer
strategy plus customized services to enhance the
quality of the exhibition business. Meanwhile, relying on
the advantages of its exhibition platform and synergistic
effect with the Company’s primary business, CMEC
Expo successfully hosted the second session of the
CMEC brand exhibition, a press conference for CMEC
first social responsibility report and other activities in
order to actively spread the brand identity of CMEC.

The following table sets forth the details of the
Company’s Other Businesses for the year ended
December 31, 2014, together with the comparative
figures for the year ended December 31, 2013:
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2014F - RAIEMEBFHNY
RIS RERBEERISITE
BIHNL o R ERIER AN
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iz

T & & 5 # £2014F12A31H
IEFERREMEBFBERE
F2013F12A831H IEF E At
BT -

Unit: RMB million
BT ARMEET

Year-
% of on-year
2014 Total 2013 Growth
2014%F #EM%  2013F HFHEE
Revenue WA Logistics services ¥/ ARFS 392.5 35.6% 399.4 -1.7%
Exhibition services B & Ri% 190.8 17.3% 198.2 -3.7%
Tendering agency  1B1ER IR AR

services 15.3 1.4% 12.3 24.4%

Export-import I ORIERS
agency services 30.1 2.7% 69.7 -56.7%
Design services BT IR 358.7 32.5% 401.2 -10.6%
Other Hi 116.6 10.6% 52.1 123.8%
Total et 1,104.0 100% 1,132.9 -2.6%
Gross profit EF Total Fe 353.6 100% 314.5 12.4%
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D. Significant Events and Business Achievements

Successfully Dealt with Overseas Security
Incidents

In June 2014, the political instability in Iraq
directly threatened the safety of the project on the
construction of Salah Al-din 2 x 630MW Power
Plant of the Company. Knowing this, the Company
attached great importance and immediately
initiated the emergency mechanism by setting
up a Salah Al-din emergency leadership team
and dispatching the divisional general manager
to our Baghdad office as the team leader. Under
the close communications, mediation and overall
command of the Embassy of the PRC in Iraq, the
Iraqi government and army forces created the
conditions and took various active and reliable
protective measures. By the careful arrangement
and elaborate organization of the leadership
and frontline command group of the Company,
as of the evening of June 27, 2014 (lraqg local
time), all personnel on site of the project had
been transferred to safe area. At present, the
civil engineering construction of the project has
been suspended. The Company will continue to
pay close attention to the progress of the Iraqi
situation to determine the future arrangements of
the project. For more information, please refer to
the announcements published by the Company on
June 19 and June 30, 2014 at the website of the
Stock Exchange and the Company, respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In August 2014, the project site for the Company’s
Silopi 2 x 135MW asphaltite fired by CFB boiler
power plant project in Turkey (the “Project”), in
which the Company acted as the main contractor,
was suffered attacking by militants. As a result,
there were three Chinese workers missed.
The Project is located in Sirnak province at
southeastern Turkish. After the incident occurred,
the Company paid high attention to it, immediately
launched an emergency mechanism, set up
a leading team of emergency and dispatched
heads of the business division for directing on
site. Relying on the rescue operation conducted
by the Company and the relevant parties through
various channels, three missing workers were
found safely on October 10, 2014 (local time in
Turkey). For more information, please refer to the
announcements published by the Company on
August 26 and October 14, 2014 at the website of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Successful resolution of the above incidents
demonstrated the Company’s full range of security
prevention and control system as well as excellent
emergency processing capability. Moreover,
such successful experience was accumulated for
Chinese foreign engineering contracting enterprises
to cope with overseas security incidents.
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Argentina Belgrano Cargo Railway
Rehabilitation Having Become Effective

In December 2014, the Argentina Belgrano cargo
railway rehabilitation project, which was undertaken
by the Company as a general contractor, has
become effective and its construction work
has commenced. The contract for this project
was entered into between the Company and
the Argentinean government in July 2010. The
Company is responsible for the renovation of about
1,5600km-long railroads of the Belgrano cargo
railway and equipment supply. The total contract
value amounts to approximately US$2.4705
billion. On July 18, 2014 (Argentina local time),
under the witness of the Chinese President
Mr. Xi Jinping and the President of Argentina,
Madam Cristina Kirchner, a supplemental loan
agreement for this project was jointly signed by
a syndicate comprising the China Development
Bank and the Industrial and Commercial Bank
of China, and Argentina’s Ministry of Economy
and Public Finance, and the project-launching
ceremony was held. For details, please refer to the
announcements of the Company published on the
respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company on July 21, and December 12, 2014.
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Acquisition of 75% Equity Interest in
Osmangazi Elektrik Dagitim A.S. (“OEDAS”)
and Osmangazi Elektrik Perakende Satis A.S.
(“OEPSAS”)

On February 3, 2015, the Company entered into
a share purchase agreement with Dedeli Yatirim
Insaat TaahhUt Elektrik Dagitim Sanayi Ve Ticaret
A.S., a joint stock company incorporated in Turkey,
the individual sellers and the guarantor, pursuant
to which the Company, together with GUOXIN
International Investment Corporation Limited (E¥
AR E AR A A, will indirectly through a
Hong Kong joint venture company (including its
subsidiaries) to be established, acquire 75% equity
interest in each of the OEDAS and the OEPSAS
(the “Acquisition”) for an aggregate purchase
price of US$384,603,597. The Acquisition presents
an attractive opportunity for the Company to invest
in a sector expected to generate stable cash flows
supported by strong electricity demand growth in
a fast growing economy. In addition, the power
sector is one of the Company’s core industries
and the Acquisition would allow the Company to
further strengthen its capabilities in this sector
while pursuing diversified development along the
industry value chain. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company published on the
respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company on February 3, 2015.
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E. Investment and Financing Business Made a E.
Breakthrough in Exploration

Under the guidance of “integration of investment
and financing development”, the Company actively
promoted its investment and financing business and
made satisfactory progress in 2014.

1. Reallocating Resources and Actively Building
Investment and Financing Platform

In order to ensure the implement of the
Company’s investment and financing business,
the Company has neatened and established the
rules and regulations for investment business to
lay the foundation for the operation of all types of
investment business. Meanwhile, the Company
has formulated and issued guidance for carrying
out export seller’'s credit business, promoted
diversification in corporate finance, and constantly
improved the management mechanism of capital
budgeting.

2. Investment Business Made Great
Breakthrough in Domestic and Overseas
Markets

The successful registration and operation of CMEC
Guolian Wuxi New Energy Development Co., Ltd.
marked the Company’s great breakthrough in the
field of domestic new energy investment business.
Meanwhile, in connection with specific project
information, the Company actively followed up
more than 30 projects in various types of foreign
investment and acquisition business, which was
dominated by the power sector. Among them,
the Turkish OEDAS and OEPSAS grid acquisition
and Pakistan Thar coal-fired power project have
been listed as the Company’s key projects to be
promoted.

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
FEIEMRE IRROERAT

BRRERBERRPIMERK
MIER

2014 - RAIE[IEME — 88
bl ERFMIESIT  BEREE
BIELBMEXEN BB TRUHE
Eo

1. SBER HEEERRE

Fa

RRBEAREBEXRGHH
R’ REMEFERRRE
BEBREHE RARS
BREXBITTER - F
- ARGIEL B ARRE
HWOBESEEXBEER
R EERRRERAZ T
o TH=EEeREERE
WIS o

2. REXBEEANITHSER

EERK

PEREBESHERERE
RARIBKIEMEES -
BERTAREBRRHEERE
IR EEB EHERRE o
R - ARIEEABIERRE
B UEHERITERSE
B R B NS RIS A OF B
MEK  RERERREES
=t&M@- Eh T FH
OEDAS M OEPSASE 4 U %
HE  EBEREEEEREEIRE
BEESEWI ABRAREZHE
HE -



Management Discussion and Analysis

Muti-channel Exploration of Diversified
Financing

The Company strengthened research on the
new model of financing, expanded new financing
channels, and restarted the usage of export seller’s
credit, and expanded new mode of financing
such as overseas financing, special risk financing,
project financing, lease financing, and debt and
insurance policy financing on the basis of stable
development of traditional financing mode such as
export buyer’s credit, “two preferential facilities (/3
BER)” and mutual loans, and actively explored
different financing models other than bank
financing.

Enhancing Corporate Governance and
Improving Management Efficiency

Professional Compliance Management and
Characteristic Maintenance of Investor
Relations

In 2014, the Company continued to advance
professional compliance management at system
and process levels, forming a good three-in-one
interaction relationship among Shareholders’ level,
governance level and operating level. A systemic
structure featured by CMEC characteristics
has been gradually developed in respect of the
maintenance of investor relations. In last December,
the Company won “China Securities Golden
Bauhinia Award (FE & % & % #159)”, which was
assessed and selected by Hong Kong Ta Kung Pao
together with domestic and overseas associations
of securities industry, regulators, financial experts
and financial media, which was highly recognized
at home and abroad.
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2. Promoting Refining Management and
Institution Building to Provide Protection for
Business Development

In order to meet the needs of business development
under new situation, the Company further
strengthened refining management, fully neatened
current rules and regulations, and edited and released
“Rules and Regulations Compilation (2014) (3% =
XS (2014))”. By the end of last December,
the amendment and improvement to a total of 163
rules and regulations have been completed by the
Company, and 24 new rules and regulations have
been formulated and promulgated. In response to
the new risks under new situation, the Company
has developed a series of compliance management
systems, which laid the foundation for prevention
and punishment of violation and fraud, as well as
establishment and safeguarding the lawful and
compliant operation.

Deepening Corporate Social Responsibility and
Improving Brand Building

In September 2014, the Company successfully held a
press conference for its first social responsibility report,
which had a great impact at home and abroad, and in
the community, and further deepened the corporate
responsibility identity of CMEC. The report was awarded
“2014 Outstanding Award for the First Corporate Social
Responsibility Report 2014FEF N EHSETRES
254%)” by WTO Guide. In respect of brand building, the
Company developed a brand strategy planning, and
actively participated in the brand valuation organized
by the General Administration of Quality Supervision,
Inspection and Quarantine of the PRC, ranking among
top ten in the relevant industry.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL POSITION AND OPERATING
RESULTS

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with
the financial statements of the Group together with the
accompanying notes included in this results announcement
and other sections therein.

1. Overview

The Group’s profitability improved in 2014. Profit for
the year increased by 6.9% to RMB2,096.2 million
in 2014 compared to RMB1,960.2 million in 2013.
Profit attributable to the Shareholders amounted to
RMB2,096.9 million in 2014.

2. Revenue

The Group generated its revenue from the International
Engineering Contracting Business, Trading Business
and Other Businesses.
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The following table sets out, for the periods indicated, the TREIRAT BB =ZEES DS
amount and percentage of our total revenue by each of our BN MEBIRARNE DL
three business segments:

Year ended December 31,

BZ12A31ALEE
2014 2013
20144 20134
(RMB million) (%) (RMB million) (%)

(AE# (AR

BET) (%) H27T) (%)
International Engineering B TR

Contracting Business

Power BEHER 11,277.7 49.0% 12,265.6 57.2%
Transportation B 1,859.2 8.1% 829.9 3.9%
Telecommunications BTG 408.5 1.8% 800.4 3.7%
Non-Core Sectors IERZOITEE 1,915.4 8.3% 1,489.7 7.0%
Trading Business BH¥EK
International trade BIfRE 5 4,488.2 19.5% 3,997.0 18.6%
Domestic trade NE 5 1,954.7 8.5% 910.8 4.3%
Other Businesses Hih#ik 1,104.0 4.8% 1,132.9 5.3%
Total @et 23,007.7 100% 21,426.3 100%
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International Engineering Contracting
Business

The Group’s revenue generated from the
International Engineering Contracting Business
increased by 0.5% to RMB15,460.8 million in
2014 compared to RMB15,385.6 million in 2013,
keeping stable compared with the previous year.

The revenue generated from the power sector
decreased by 8.1% to RMB11,277.7 million in
2014 as compared to RMB12,265.6 million in
2013, primarily due to the significant progress of
the power station projects in Europe in 2013 with
higher revenue as compared with 2014.

The revenue generated from the transportation
sector increased by 124% to RMB1,859.2 million
in 2014 as compared to RMB829.9 million in
2013, primarily due to the commencement of
the construction of the railway projects in South
America in the second half of 2014.

The revenue generated from the
telecommunications sector decreased by 49.0%
to RMB408.5 million in 2014, as compared to
RMB800.4 million in 2013, primarily due to the
significant progress of the telecommunications
projects in Asia in 2013 with higher revenue as
compared with 2014,

The revenue generated from the non-Core Sectors
increased by 28.6% to RMB1,915.4 million in
2014 as compared to RMB1,489.7 million in
2013, primarily due to the significant progress of
the construction of apartment projects in North
America and the medical and educational projects
in Africa.

1)

HIFf TRABRK

2014 - AEEBEMHEBKE T
BERBEBBABARKE
15,460.88 & T ' 2013
FRIAAR®K15,385.68 8
JC + 818 A0.5% ¢ 1 EF iR
HREFERE

2014F B e RITEWA R
AR 277 7TEE L '
2013F AR™12,265.68 &
T RFE8.1% » £ Z R EUM
HIEE U518 B R 2013F 58k
KER - EH2014FHLLEE
WAERZ -

014F R MERITEMA B
AR#1,8502H8 T 1t
2013%F A R#829.98 &L
EI124% - FEHRAREE
IMEYEIBEIE B 7020144 T ¥
FHBER ©

20145 & F@AMITERA
BARB408.55E T M
2013F A AR MB00.48 8
JC 0 A49.0% 0 EBRAL
REMNHEFBAEE RN
2013F E E & & - #2014
FHREBRFBRARS -

2014F FEZLITHERA R
ARB191548 8T
2013F AR #1,489.76H &
TLIEN28.6% c EFERMER
EEMOAFEREFZIER - 3
MBI B BN A IEE BRER
RERE o
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2) Trading Business

The Group’s revenue generated from the Trading
Business increased by 31.3% to RMB6,442.9 million
in 2014 compared to RMB4,907.8 million in 2013,
primarily due to the increase in the revenue from
both international trade and domestic trade.

The revenue generated from international trade
increased by 12.3% to RMB4,488.2 million in
2014 as compared to RMB3,997.0 million in 2013,
primarily due to the increase in the trading volume
exported to the United States and Asia.

The revenue generated from domestic trade
increased by 114.6% to RMB1,954.7 million in
2014 as compared to RMB910.8 million in 20183,
primarily due to the increase in sales of metal
products.

3) Other Businesses

The Group’s revenue generated from the Other
Businesses decreased by 2.6% to RMB1,104.0
million in 2014 compared to RMB1,132.9 million in
2013, primarily due to the combined effect of the
decrease in revenue generated from export and
import agency business and design services of
the Group and the increase in revenue from other
services.

3. Cost of sales 3.

The Group’s cost of sales increased by 8.9%
to RMB19,257.4 million in 2014 compared to
RMB17,683.8 million in 2013, primarily due to the
increase in trading volume, as well as the increase in
both revenue and costs from trading business.

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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4. Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin 4. EFRERE
() Gross profit of the Group in 2014 consists of () 20145 AEEEFNEBRER
the following: mE

Year ended December 31,

HZ12A31ALEE
2014 2013
20144 20134
(RMB million) (%)  (RMB million) (%)

(AR#¥ (AR

BETT) (%) BET) (%)
International Engineering B TIRREER

Contracting Business
Power EWIED 2,641.3 70.4% 2,850.2 76.2%
Transportation RBEH 238.4 6.3% 93.9 2.5%
Telecommunications ETEA 40.0 1.1% 87.3 2.3%
Non-Core Sectors EROITE 175.0 4.7% 116.0 3.1%
Trading Business O RS
International trade BERES 257.7 6.9% 247.9 6.6%
Domestic trade NE 5 44.4 1.2% 32.7 0.9%
Other Businesses Hih ¥R 353.6 9.4% 314.5 8.4%
Total Mt 3,750.4 100% 3,742.5 100%
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(i)

Gross profit margins of the Group in 2014 are

set out in the following table:

(i) 2014FAEEEFNERHRT
*®:

Year ended December 31,

HBZ12A31HLEE

2014 2013
20144 20134
(%) (%)

International Engineering BRIEREER
Contracting Business 20.0% 20.5%
Power BNEEIR 23.4% 23.2%
Transportation REIES 12.8% 11.3%
Telecommunications B 9.8% 10.9%
Non-Core Sectors FERZOTTEE 9.1% 7.8%
Trading Business BESEK 4.7% 5.7%
International trade Bl 5= 5.7% 6.2%
Domestic trade NE S 2.3% 3.6%
Other Businesses HihZik 32.0% 27.8%
Total At 16.3% 17.5%

The Group’s gross profit increased by 0.2%
to RMB3,750.4 million in 2014 compared to
RMB3,742.5 million in 2013. This increase is mainly
attributable to the increase in gross profit from the

transportation sector.
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1) International Engineering Contracting Business

(@)

Gross Profit

The gross profit generated from the
International Engineering Contracting Business
decreased by 1.7% to RMB3,094.7 million in
2014 as compared to RMB3,147.4 million in
2013, primarily due to the decrease in gross
profit from the power sector.

The gross profit generated from the power
sector decreased by 7.3% to RMB2,641.3
million in 2014 as compared to RMB2,850.2
million in 2013, primarily due to the significant
progress of the power station projects in
Europe in 2013 with higher revenue as
compared with 2014.

The gross profit generated from the
transportation sector increased by 153.9%
to RMB238.4 million in 2014 as compared
to RMB93.9 million in 2013, primarily due to
the commencement of the construction of the
railway projects in South America in the second
half of 2014.

The gross profit generated from the
telecommunications sector decreased by 54.2%
to RMB40.0 million in 2014 as compared to
RMB87.3 million in 2013, primarily due to the
significant progress of the telecommunications
projects in Asia in 2013.

1) BRTEAGEE

(@)

EH

20144 » HBR T 12 &
BEBENBARE
3,00478H & ot m
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2014% » RBEH T
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#90153.9% @ £ E
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014F T FHBE

20144 | T EATT
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The gross profit generated from the non-Core
Sectors increased by 50.9% to RMB175.0
million in 2014 as compared to RMB116.0
million in 2013, primarily due to the significant
progress of the construction of apartment
projects in North America and the medical and
educational projects in Africa.

Gross Profit Margin

The gross profit margin generated from the
International Engineering Contracting Business
slightly decreased to 20.0% in 2014 as
compared to 20.5% in 2013, primarily due to
the decrease in gross profit from the power
sector.

The gross profit margin generated from
the power sector was 23.4% in 2014 as
compared to 23.2% in 2013, remaining largely
stable.

The gross profit margin generated from the
transportation sector increased to 12.8% in
2014 as compared to 11.3% in 2013, primarily
due to the higher gross profit margin of the
road projects in Africa, which commenced
construction in 2014, as compared to that in
2018.

The gross profit margin generated from the
telecommunications sector slightly decreased
to 9.8% in 2014 as compared to 10.9% in
2013, primarily due to the completion of the
construction of a telecommunications project
in Africa in 2013 which had a relatively higher
gross profit margin.
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The gross profit margin generated from the
non-Core Sectors increased to 9.1% in 2014
as compared to 7.8% in 2013, primarily due
to the significant progress of the education
facilities in Africa with relatively higher gross
profit margin, as well as the urban water
supply and sewage treatment projects in
2014.

2) Trading Business

(@)

Gross Profit

The gross profit generated from the Trading
Business increased by 7.7% to RMB302.1
million in 2014 as compared to RMB280.6
million in 2013, primarily due to the increase in
gross profit from both international trade and
domestic trade.

The gross profit generated from international
trade increased by 4.0% to RMB257.7 million
in 2014 as compared to RMB247.9 million in
2013, primarily due to the increase in trading
volume in Asia.

The gross profit generated from domestic
trade increased by 35.8% to RMB44.4 million
in 2014 as compared to RMB32.7 million in
2013, primarily due to the increase in metal
products trading volume.

201445 » FERZ D TT %
EHEEZEI1% - M
20134 Bl A7.8% ' *
ZHAEERREME
RIFEMEE X EIER
PR TR OK 5K R ERTE
B 20145 8 & K
E °
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(@)
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(0)

Gross Profit Margin

The gross profit margin generated from the
Trading Business decreased to 4.7% in 2014
as compared to 5.7% in 2013, primarily
due to the lower gross profit margin of both
international trade and domestic trade.

The gross profit margin generated from
international trade decreased to 5.7% in
2014 as compared to 6.2% in 2013, primarily
due to the lower gross profit margin of
international trade as a result of weak demand
for international trade.

The gross profit margin generated from
domestic trade decreased to 2.3% in 2014
as compared to 3.6% in 2013, primarily
due to the decrease in gross profit margin
from domestic trade as a result of fierce
competition in China.

3) Other Businesses

(@)

Gross Profit

The gross profit generated from the Other
Businesses increased by 12.4% to RMB353.6
million in 2014 as compared to RMB314.5
million in 2013, primarily due to the increase in
revenue from advisory services as compared
to that in 2013.

Gross Profit Margin

The gross profit margin generated from the
Other Businesses increased to 32.0% in 2014
as compared to 27.8% in 2013, primarily due
to the increase in advisory service business
with relatively higher gross profit margin.
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Other revenue

The Group’s other revenue increased by 19.4% to
RMB14.8 million in 2014 as compared to RMB12.4
million in 2013. This category of revenue remained
relatively stable.

Other income and expenses, net

The Group’s other income and expenses, net decreased
by 126.4% to RMB(93.4) million in 2014 as compared
to income of RMB353.5 million in 2013. This decrease
is mainly attributable to the increase in net losses
from changes in fair value of foreign currency forward
contracts.

Selling and marketing expenses

The Group’s selling and marketing expenses decreased
by 3.6% to RMB1,115.9 million in 2014 as compared to
RMB1,157.7 million in 2013, primarily due to the slight
decrease in transportation costs, operating and other
expenses.

Administrative expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses decreased by
4.2% to RMB533.6 million in 2014 compared to
RMB557.0 million in 2013. Travel expenses, office and
other expenditures were slightly decreased.

Other operating expenses

The Group’s other operating expenses decreased by
174.0% to RMB(48.5) million in 2014 as compared
to RMB65.5 million in 2013. This decrease is mainly
attributable to the decrease in impairment losses on
receivables as compared to that in 2013.
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10.

11.

12,

Profit from operations

The Group’s profit from operations decreased by
11.0% to RMB2,071.0 million in 2014 as compared
to RMB2,328.1 million in 2013, primarily due to the
increase in net losses from changes in fair value of the
foreign currency forward exchange contracts.

Finance income/finance expenses

The Group’s finance income decreased by 2.7% to
RMB717.7 million in 2014 as compared to RMB737.9
million in 2013, primarily due to the decrease in interest
income.

The Group’s finance expenses decreased by 87.4% to
RMB50.6 million in 2014 as compared to RMB401.7
million in 2013, primarily due to the decrease in foreign
exchange losses.

As a result, the Group’s net finance income increased
by 98.4%, amounting to RMB667.1 million in 2014
as compared to the net finance income of RMB336.2
million in 2013.

Income tax

The Group’s income tax decreased by 8.8% to
RMB641.9 million in 2014 as compared to RMB703.9
million in 2013. This decrease is mainly due to tax
effects of the utilization in the year of unused taxation
losses and deductible temporary differences not
recognized in the previous year.
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13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.
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Profit for the year

As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s net profit for
the year increased by 6.9% to RMB2,096.2 million in
2014 as compared to RMB1,960.2 million in 2013 and
its net profit margin was 9.11% in 2014 as compared to
9.15% in 2013.

Profit attributable to the Shareholders

The profit attributable to the Shareholders increased

by 7.0% to RMB2,096.9 million in 2014 compared to
RMB1,959.3 million in 2013.

Profit attributable to the holders of non-
controlling interests

The profit attributable to the holders of non-controlling
interests of the Group decreased by 170% to RMB(0.7)
million in 2014 as compared to profit of RMB1.0 million
in 2013.

Major investment

The Group made no major investment during the year of
2014.

Major acquisition and disposals

The Group made no major acquisition during the year of
2014.

Significant Events
Please see the paragraphs headed “ll. BUSINESS

OVERVIEW - D. Significant Events and Business
Achievements” on pages 32 to 35 of this annual report.
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IV. LIQUIDITY

Our principal sources of funds have been cash generated
from operations and various short-term and long-term bank
borrowings and lines of credit, as well as equity contributions
from Shareholders. Our liquidity requirements derive primarily
from our working capital needs, purchases of fixed assets
and the servicing of our indebtedness.

We have historically met our working capital and other
liquidity requirements principally from cash generated from
operations, while financing the remainder primarily through
bank borrowings and proceeds from the Listing.

1. Cash Flows
The following table sets forth a summary of our cash

flows for the year ended December 31, 2014, with the
comparing figures for the year ended December 31,

REBEE

BPNEST2RELLEMEENR
T ZEREHLRPRITEERER
BENRBRRIE - BRANARBES
BREIBEREEEESNTE - BE
Bl EEREERPNER

—EUX BAXTEELLITBHME
ReRmeeEiehEtRsES
FR MABEREIBRBRITEER
MEmERE -

1. BERE
™ & E 5 EH £2014F12A31H

FFEERMNBRETEER - K
& 8 E20135F 128310 L F &

2013: HILLERET
For the year ended December 31,
BZ12A31ALEE
2014 20183
2014 2013F
RMB million RMB million
AREEET AR EET
Net cash generated from/(used in) REEHEL /(TR 8
operating activities B R5 4,110.8 (499.9)
Net cash (used in)/generated from WEEE (FrH),/ ELH
investing activities REFR (290.5) 3,228.9
Net cash used in financing activities B EEANIRE F5E (536.8) (131.9)
Net increase in cash and cash BekBReEEY
equivalents BnFEE 3,283.5 2,597 .1
Cash and cash equivalents at the FONREMREEEY
beginning of the year 14,550.2 12,089.4
Effect of foreign exchange EREEHHTLE
rate changes (41.2) (136.3)
Cash and cash equivalents FROBSRRSEED
at the end of the year 17,792.5 14,550.2
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As at December 31, 2014, the Group’s cash and
cash equivalents amounted to RMB17,792.5 million,
compared to RMB14,550.2 million as at December 31,
2013, representing an increase of 22.28%. The main
source of the Group’s operating capital is the increase
in receipts in advance for engineering projects.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

For the year ended December 31, 2014, we had net
cash generated from operating activities of RMB4,110.8
million. Net cash inflow generated from operating
activities was mainly attributable to changes in working
capital, which resulted in a cash inflow of RMB2,386.6
million in 2014. The changes in working capital mainly
included (i) an increase in receipts in advance of
RMB2,148.5 million, (ii) an increase in trade and other
payables of RMB1,520.9 million, (i) an increase in trade
and other receivables of RMB1,371.7 million, and (iv)
a decrease in receivables for construction contracts of
RMB135.2 million. In 2014, cash generated from profit
from operations amounted to RMB2,421.8 million, cash
inflow from changes in working capital was RMB2,386.6
million and income tax paid was RMB697.6 million,
which resulted in net cash inflow generated from
operating activities of RMB4,110.8 million.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

For the year ended December 31, 2014, our net cash
used in investing activities was RMB(290.5) million. Our
cash outflow from investing activities mainly consisted
of (i) payments for acquisition of property, plant and
equipment of RMB295.6 million, (i) an increase in cash
investment in time deposits of RMB548.0 million. Such
amount was partially offset by interest income received
of RMB520.0 million.
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Cash Flows from Financing Activities

For the year ended December 31, 2014, our net cash
used in financing activities was RMB(536.8)million. Our
cash inflow from financing activities primarily consisted
of proceeds from borrowings of RMB653.4 million.
Such amount was partially offset by (i) repayment of
borrowings from banks of RMB401.9 million and (ii)
dividends paid to Shareholders of RMB783.9 million.

Capital Expenditures and Capital Commitments

Our capital expenditures consisted primarily of the
purchase of buildings, certain equipments, investment
properties, lease prepayments and intangible assets. In
2014, the Group’s capital expenditure was RMB251.6
million, representing an increase of 262.5% as
compared to RMB69.4 million in 2013, mainly due
to satisfactory progress made in the construction of
infrastructure projects of fixed assets.

Our capital commitments mainly include the value of
contracts signed but not yet completed and the value of
contracts not yet signed but the budget of which have
been authorized. In 2014, the capital commitments of
the Group was RMB1,987.6 million, representing an
increase of approximately 15.4% as compared with
RMB1,721.9 million in 2013. It was mainly attributed
to certain adjustment to the budget of the Group’s
infrastructure projects of fixed assets in China.
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6. Working Capital

(@) Trade and other receivables

Our trade and other receivables primarily consist of
trade and bill receivables, advances to suppliers,
other receivables related to agency services
and amount due from or advances to fellow
subsidiaries.

The following table sets forth the turnover days
of the average trade receivables for Trading
Business and the turnover days of the average
trade payables of the Company for the year ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013.

B W DA

EEES

(a) BEZRHEMEBRRKE

BB 5 N H b e YRR
TEBREZREFIANE
WERE - AEEHENK
IR AR 755 48 8 RO L A 8 IR
TR Ko JE W sk B [R) X BT /B &
BIFUA e

T R &5 R B £2014F &
2013%F12A31H It F E K
REIBHEBFEHESHER
B KT E 5 ERMFRIER
AERE -

For the year ended December 31,
BZ12A31ALEE

2014 2013

201445 2013%F

days days

XE K&
The turnover days of the BHEBKFHIEHE
average trade receivables WK IR B R 85 K B

for Trading Business (Note 1) (H1at1) 56 89
The turnover days of the FHE ZENRIER
average trade payables AR (Kit2)

(Note 2) 216 207

Note 1: The average trade receivables for the Trading M1 BHEBFHESE

Note 2:

Business are the sum of opening balance
and the closing balance of trade receivables
for the Trading Business divided by two. The
turnover days of the average trade receivables
for the Trading Business are the average trade
receivables for the Trading Business divided by
revenue of the Trading Business and multiplied
by 360.

The average trade payables are the sum of
opening balance and the closing balance of
trade payables divided by two. The turnover
days of the average trade payables are the
average trade payables divided by cost of sales
and multiplied by 360.
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The following table sets forth the aging analysis
of trade and bills receivables (net of allowance of
doubtful debts) based on the invoice date as at
December 31, 2014 and 2013.

T 5 # 5] 720144 2013
F12A31H & 5 E W KA
MIEWEE (MR RERE)
REZEHBMERDT o

As at December 31,

A12A831H
2014 2013
2014%F 20134
(RMB million) (RMB million)
(AR¥EET) (AREFET)
Within 3 months 3ME A AR 1,938.3 1,306.5
3 months to 6 months 31& A z=61E A 511.7 218.5
6 months to 1 year 6l A=1F 554.8 301.8
Over 1 year 1F M 873.7 532.4
3,878.5 2,359.2

The Group’s credit policies with its customers for
the year ended December 31, 2014 remained
consistent as that for the year ended December 31,
2013. We continually enhanced our management of
trade and bills receivables to reduce the exposure
to doubtful debts. In addition, we made allowance
for doubtful debts after fully considering the nature
of trade and bills receivables and their collectability.
As at December 31, 2014, allowance provided for
doubtful debts for our trade and bills receivables
amounted to RMB543.3 million, accounting for
12.3% of our trade and bills receivables, as
compared to RMB461.3 million, accounting for
16.4% of our trade and bills receivables as at
December 31, 2013. The increase in allowance for
doubtful debt from 2013 to 2014 was primarily due
to the provision we made in connection with certain
trade and bills receivables from our International
Engineering Contracting Business and Trading
Business as a result of evidences of significant
financial difficulties of debtors that came into our
attention.
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(b) Trade and other payables

Our trade and other payables primarily consist of
trade and bills payables, other payables related
to agency services, accrued salaries, wages and
benefits and amounts due to fellow subsidiaries.

The following table sets forth the aging analysis of
our trade and bills payables based on the invoice
date as at December 31, 2014 and 2013:

(b)

B REMENRE

BN E 5 M H e IR
TERREFRNFIANE
RRE - IR IRTSAE#E &) H
fEMNRIE  EatFE - T
ORI YNEESIIE VNG
A e

T 5 # 5 720144 2013
F12HA31BHEME ZENK
HRE BN ERIEEE RN
BRER AT -

As at December 31,

M12A31H
2014 2013
201445 20134
(RMB million) (RMB million)

(AR¥EET) (ANREEHET)

Within 3 months 3MEA A

3 months to 6 months 31E A =6 A
6 months to 1 year 61E A ZE1F
Over 1 year 1F A+

The Group’s credit policies with its suppliers for
the year ended December 31, 2014 remained the
same as that for the year ended December 31,
2013.

3,886.2 4,707.0
1,323.6 761.4
3,168.0 534.1
4,011.9 4,770.4
12,389.7 10,772.9

#H £2014%F12831H I F
B AEEEAHRERNE
B E EEH £2013F 124
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V. INDEBTEDNESS &%
Borrowings -t
Our consolidated borrowings as at December 31, A2013F &2014F12A31H » &
2013 and 2014 for the purpose of calculating the MANGTEREBBSNAE GHE
indebtedness of our Group were as follows: B
As at December 31,
MB12H318
2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB million RMB million
AR¥EETT AR HET
Current: meEp
Short-term borrowings HHEE
Bank loans RITE
unsecured HEHEIR 4.3 16.9
secured BER 129.2 145.7
Subtotal T 133.5 162.6
Add: current portion of m: REEE®
long-term borrowings ENEB D 72.2 71.7
Subtotal 2513 205.7 234.3
Non-current: FEMED ¢
Long-term borrowings RAEEE
Bank loans IRITE
unsecured (R 106.0 2.7
secured BER 326.0 148.6
Subtotal INEE 432.0 151.3
Less: current portion of W RHABER
long-term borrowings mehEln 72.2 71.7
Subtotal INEF 359.8 79.6
Total et 565.5 313.9
58 China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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Our short-term borrowings primarily include credit
borrowings, mortgage borrowings and guarantee
borrowings from commercial banks and other financial
institutions. As at December 31, 2014, our short-term
borrowings (including the current portion of long-term
borrowings) amounted to RMB205.7 million, accounting
for 36.4% of our total borrowings.

Our long-term borrowings primarily included pledge
borrowings from commercial banks and other financial
institutions. These included bank borrowings related
to projects financed by export seller’'s credit, with
the total balance of such borrowings (including the
current portion) amounting to approximately RMB432.0
million as at December 31, 2014. As at December 31,
2014, our long-term borrowings (excluding the current
portion) amounted to RMB359.8 million, accounting
for 63.6% of our total borrowings. The increase in our
interest-bearing borrowings to RMB565.5 million as at
December 31, 2014 was primarily due to the increase in
bank borrowings as a result of undertaking the projects
financed by export seller’s credit by China Everbest
Development International Limited, a subsidiary of the
Company.

As at December 31, 2014, certain of the Group’s borrowings
were secured by certain of the Group’s buildings with
an aggregate net book value of RMB4,332,728.20 and
bank deposits of RMB222,078,442.86.

As at December 31, 2013, certain of the Group’s borrowings
were secured by certain of the Group’s buildings with
an aggregate net book value of RMB4,697,617.05 and
bank deposits of RMB154,029,930.46.

All borrowings were denominated in RMB and were
subject to interest rates ranged from 1.25% to 6.72%
per annum.
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There had been no material defaults in payment of our

bank borrowings and breaches of the finance covenants
during the year ended December 31, 2014.

The maturity profile of our interest-bearing borrowings

as at December 31, 2014 and 2013 is as follows:

Management Discussion and Analysis
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RN E E2014F12 8318 FF &
BMEEEETEE I AMES
REXNBR  TEBREERBE
LHEER -

A2014F 2013128318 » #
st EBEERHBINT

As at December 31,

A12831H
2014 2013
20144 20134
(RMB million) (RMB million)

(AR¥EET) (ARFHET)

Within 1 year or on demand
After 1 year but within 2 years
After 2 years but within 5 years
After 5 years

Total

Gearing Ratio

1F LA B ER
1FZE2F
2ERBE

5%

wast

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio. Gearing ratio is derived by dividing total
borrowings by total assets multiplied by 100%. In 2014,
the Group’s gearing ratio (total borrowings divided by

total assets) was 1.5%, representing an increase of 50%
as compared to 1% as recorded in 2013, mainly due to

the increase in long-term borrowings.
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3. Contingent Liabilities

We were involved in a number of legal proceedings
and claims against either our Company or a subsidiary
of our Company in the ordinary course of business.
While the outcomes of such contingencies, lawsuits or
other proceedings cannot be determined at present,
the Directors believe that any resulting liabilities will not
have a material adverse impact on the financial position,
liquidity, or operating results of the Group.

VI. RISK FACTORS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

We are exposed to various types of risks, including currency
risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, competition
risk and investment risk, etc., in the normal course of our
business. Our management monitors our exposure to these
risks to ensure appropriate measures are in place and are
implemented in a timely and effective manner.

1. Currency Risk

We are exposed to currency risk primarily through
sales and purchases and our International Engineering
Contracting Business overseas and overseas
financing which give rise to receivables, payables
and cash balances that are denominated in foreign
currencies other than the functional currency of our
operations, RMB, to which these transactions relate.
The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily US
dollars and Euros. We entered into foreign currency
forward contracts to lock in the value in RMB of some
of our future cash receipts, primarily in respect of the
proceeds of our international engineering contracting
projects in order to reduce our currency risk and to
obtain certainty of forecasted income generated from
the deferred payments to be received from the project
owners under such projects. As a matter of policy and
in compliance with the PRC laws and regulations, we
are not allowed to widely engage in hedging activities.
Hence, our foreign currency hedging activities were
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limited to these foreign currency forward contracts. Our
foreign currency forward contracts corresponded to
our business volume, i.e. the amounts and the terms
of such contracts corresponded to the amounts of the
foreign currency expected to be received. Under these
contracts, we agree to buy RMB from and sell foreign
currencies to the counter-party in a given quantity at a
pre-determined exchange rate at a maturity date in the
future. As at December 31, 2014, we had 105 foreign
currency forward contracts outstanding (2013: 288). We
entered into more foreign currency forward contracts in
smaller amounts in 2013 to better accommodate our
business needs and to better manage our cash flow in
light of the forecasted high volatility of exchange rates.
We recognize the foreign currency forward contracts
initially at fair value. At the end of each reporting period,
the fair value is re-measured and the difference is
recognized immediately as profit or loss. The net fair
values of our foreign currency forward contracts were
recognized as derivative financial instruments recorded
in “trade and other receivables” and “trade and other
payables”. As at December 31, 2014, the net fair value
liabilities of our foreign currency forward contracts were
RMB27.7 million, representing gross fair value assets
and liabilities of such contracts of nil and RMB27.7
million, respectively, which represent our exposure
under the foreign currency forward contracts estimated
as at December 31, 2014. We maintain and follow our
internal policies and controls for managing our Group’s
use of derivative financial instruments.

Interest Rate Risk

Our interest rate risk arises primarily from borrowings
and bank deposits. Borrowings bearing interests at
variable rates and at fixed rates expose us to cash
flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk,
respectively. We regularly review and monitor the mix
of our fixed and variable rate borrowings, only either
through managing the contractual terms of interest-
bearing financial assets and liabilities or through the use
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of interest rate swaps in order to manage our interest
rate risks. Like our currency risk hedging activities, our
use of interest rate swaps is also subject to our internal
control policy of derivative financial instruments. We
utilized one interest rate swap arrangement to hedge
interest rate risk against a US$50.0 million LIBOR-based
variable rate bank loan which will expire in January
2016. Under the interest rate swap arrangement, which
became effective on March 20, 2009 and expires on
January 31, 2016, we pay interest at a fixed interest
rate of 6.28% per annum to the swapping bank on the
principal amount of US$50.0 million, who in exchange
pays us interest at a LIBOR-based interest rate on
the same principal amount, which are used to satisfy
our LIBOR-based interest rate payments under the
original bank loan. The LIBOR-based interest rate under
the interest rate swap arrangement is determined by
the 6-month LIBOR rate plus 2.0% per annum. As
at December 31, 2014, the remaining balance of the
loan is US$20.5 million. We recognize the interest rate
swap initially at fair value. At the end of each reporting
period, the fair value is re-measured and the difference
is recognized immediately as profit or loss. The net
fair values of our interest rate swap contract were
recognized as derivative financial instruments recorded
in “trade and other payables”. As at December 31,
2014, the net and gross fair value liabilities of our
interest rate swap contract were RMB1.8 million, which
represent our exposure under the interest rate swap
estimated as at December 31, 2014.

Credit Risk

Our credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables. We have a credit policy in place and
our exposure to these credit risks is monitored on an
ongoing basis. Credit terms extended to our customers
are determined on a case-by-case basis, depending
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on credit assessment carried out by our management.
Our credit terms granted to customers of our Trading
Business are normally about three to six months. With
respect to our International Engineering Contracting
Business, credit terms granted are negotiated
individually on a case-by-case basis and are set forth
in the relevant engineering contracting contracts. We
conduct monthly reviews of our credit risk as an internal
control measure, and we also conduct end-of-term
period reviews to determine if we need to make any
necessary provisions for credit that we have extended.
As to credit risk for trade and other receivables, we
first evaluate the customer’s credit status and its ability
to guarantee the payment through establishing an
appropriate business evaluation system. Meanwhile, in
order to establish our risk control mechanism on trade
and other receivables, we implemented the policy to
buy export credit insurance. For the Trading Business,
we and our trading subsidiaries are required to buy
unified export credit insurance from Sinosure; for the
International Engineering Contracting Business financed
by export seller’s credit, we typically buy export credit
insurance from Sinosure for our projects in order to
meet financing needs as well as to control credit risk for
trade and other receivables. Our concentration of credit
risk stems from trade and other receivables due from
certain individual customers. As at December 31, 2014,
7.5% of the total trade and other receivables was due
from our largest customer (2013: 9.3%), and 25.5% of
the total trade and other receivables was due from the
five largest customers (2013: 26.0%).

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that we have net current
liabilities at the balance sheet date. We are exposed
to liquidity risk if we are unable to raise sufficient funds
to meet our financial obligations when they fall due.
To manage liquidity risk, we prepare both annual and
quarterly financial budgets which include budgeting
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for capital and utilization of credit facilities to plan and
consolidate various financial resources in meeting the
needs of our business, operations and development.
Furthermore, we monitor and maintain a level of cash
and cash equivalents considered adequate by our
management to finance our operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flow. As at December
31, 2013 and 2014, our net current assets amounted
to RMB6,113.9 million and RMB7,967.7 million,
respectively.

Competition Risk

We compete with both domestic and foreign
contractors for our International Engineering Contracting
Business. Competition generally stems from price,
design, variety of the services provided, service quality,
financial solutions, business models and environmental
standards. Similar to other Chinese contractors in
the industry, we face competition from engineering
contractors with advanced technology from the
developed countries such as the U.S., Japan and
various European countries as the latter have relatively
large competitive advantages in global branch networks,
information collection, management and construction
capabilities, adaptability and brand name recognition,
among other areas. We will continue to leverage our
competitive advantage in pricing, especially for projects
in the developing countries, benefiting from lower labor
cost and equipment price. We will also continue to
leverage the cooperation between the PRC government
and foreign governments (especially those of the
developing countries) to compete with both domestic
and foreign contractors.

We compete with both Chinese and foreign companies
for our international trading business. Competition with
Chinese companies engaged in the international trading
business focuses on price, range of products, suppliers
and purchasers, whereas competition with foreign
companies focuses on the price and quality of products
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manufactured by Chinese and foreign suppliers.
While competition in the international trading market
is intense, given this market is considerably vast, we
will continue to compete with the Chinese and foreign
companies by capitalizing on our financing capabilities
and value-adding services. With more than 30 years of
operating history in the international trading business,
we believe we have an edge over our PRC competitors
within the industry in terms of our extensive sales and
marketing networks, long established experiences in the
international trading market, well-trained commercial
capabilities, strong capabilities in providing financing
solutions and good reputation.

Investment Risk

Investment risks mainly represent any discrepancy
between actual return from investment and anticipated
return caused by factors which are out of our control
or contingent factors which cannot be ascertained
when making an investment decision. In addition, it also
associates with relevant advance payments for certain
projects, decrease of investment in infrastructure by
non-governmental investment institutions resulting from
changes in policies, and significant outlay of working
capital over extended period of time. Governmental
approvals from and regulatory compliance with
various governmental departments may also increase
uncertainties when implementing investment projects.
We have set up an investment review committee
and engaged independent third parties such as
financial advisor, taxation advisor and lawyer during
the investment process to carry out comprehensive
due diligence, analysis and deliberation with a view to
improving the level of decision-making in investment
and managing investment risks.

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
FEEBREIRROERAT

BEH BEBEREZIMEHRT
B AMBRZTEHEIEEER
R BHPIBFEBESNRERED
KB B AR 75 A A A B eh S R B 3
F o BREEBRE S EHI0ZF
MEEES - BFIFABRANERZ
HERMBEHEBE  EERE
S REEINER  JIkEe
ENEERES  RERETRD
BABENRRFNVBE - SR
MERPLRMANFBERITES
EEAEBY -

RE R

RERREZEHNEMIES
BASNEZHEEEAZHF
g RENBERDHRIIEHLDR
ZHEEESR o WINFEBNET
HENBRRIA - BREEEK
FERFREREE EWREER
HRER D RERR SR AE A
REZEESTAM - BTRAR
BB PIES R AT L B T B
BMOITNAI BRI TIRE TR B B
MAEERE - RAISKLEE
BELZRE UHEREBIETE
BYBER  RIEER - #EE
FEZTRBETRONERS
L ofimE  MERRERE
KFE - EEERERR



Management Discussion and Analysis

Overseas Management Risk

Currently, most of the projects of our International
Engineering Contracting Business are conducted
overseas, especially in developing countries or less-
developed regions including some countries and
regions in constant social or political turbulence. Our
International Engineering Contracting Business is
therefore subject to constantly changing economic,
regulatory, social and political conditions in the overseas
jurisdictions in which we conduct business or operate
our projects.

To the extent that our overseas business or operations
is affected by unexpected and adverse foreign
economic, regulatory, social and political conditions, we
may experience project disruptions, losses of assets
and personnel, and other indirect losses. In some of
the high-risk locations where we have employees,
business or operations, we may incur additional costs
in safeguarding our personnel and assets. We typically
seek to manage potential losses through contractual
arrangement which protects us against liabilities due to
force majeure and provides for indemnities from project
owners, subcontractors and suppliers, as well as
purchase of construction, installation and engineering
all-risks insurance and third-party liability insurance.

Project Risk

Project risk relates to risk associated with the
projects for our International Engineering Contracting
Business. While we consider power, transportation and
telecommunications sectors to be our Core Sectors,
demand for our International Engineering Contracting
Business which is principally international in nature
depends on the general level of activity and growth
in the industries in which we operate and serve. The
actual portfolio of our engineering contracting projects
differs year from year due to many factors not within our
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control, including but not limited to, general economic
conditions, government investment plans, demographic
trends, political stability, consumer confidence and
requirements for industries or markets access. Any
fluctuations in these macroscopic factors will have an
impact on the demand for our International Engineering
Contracting Business. They may lead to an increase
or a decrease of investment in and number of new
projects available to us, the type of projects that we
can undertake and delays in or cancellations of our
ongoing projects. While we take into consideration
projected costs and target profit margin during the
pricing process of our engineering contracting projects,
profitability of our International Engineering Contracting
Business may still be affected and our revenue may
experience fluctuation.

Safety and Quality Risk

Due to the nature of construction work involved in
our International Engineering Contracting Business,
our projects may involve certain inherently dangerous
activities, including operations on aerial platform,
underground construction, use of heavy machinery
and working with flammable and explosive materials.
Despite that we ensure compliance with the requisite
safety requirements and standards, we are subject
to the inherent risks of geological catastrophes, fire,
toxic gas, equipment failure and explosion and so on.
Besides, our employees are subject to the personal
risks caused by unstable security environment. Any
personal injury or loss of life our employees may
suffer, damage to or destruction of properties and
equipment and other losses caused by force majeure
in the situations mentioned above would result in the
delay in our engineering contracting projects, extended
occupation of the time and efforts of our management,
suspension of our operations or even imposition of
legal liabilities. We endeavor to lower our exposure to
the abovementioned potential risks associated with our
International Engineering Contracting Business by taking
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B W DA

measures including making contractual arrangements
with the project owners in the event of disruption to
the projects due to force majeure, seeking indemnities
from the project owners, subcontractors and suppliers,
purchasing construction, installation and engineering
all-risks insurance, third-party liability insurance
and personal accident insurance, strengthening our
internal control system on ensuring a safe and high
quality working environment for our projects, as well
as maintaining close communications with the project
owners and local governmental authorities.

Post-project Transfer Risk

Our international engineering contracting projects
are contractually completed after the warranty period
expires and the project owner issues a final acceptance
certificate. During the course of use and operation by
the project owner, operational or quality issues may
arise due to natural factors such as hurricanes and
tsunamis or improper operation or maintenance by
the project owner’s operational staff. According to the
contracts, we are then no longer liable for any warranty
obligations or other liabilities. However, since some
projects are associated with national interests and
people’s livelihood or bear significant influences in the
local areas, any flaws or defects in quality that occur
after the project transfer may adversely compromise
our reputation, as well as having a negative impact
on customers’ overall evaluation on us. Some of
the project owners may require us to bear costs for
continuous maintenances or the change of relevant
parts, causing us losses not foreseeable under the
contracts. Since corporate reputation is the cornerstone
for our expansion of markets, we will step up the
training for the project owner’s operational staff and
endeavor to enter into operational maintenance guiding
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11.

contracts with the project owners, so as to enhance
the operational and maintenance capability of the
project owners’ operational staff and avoid or reduce
the quality issues caused by improper manual handling
as far as possible. At the same time, we emphasize
on the cultivation of core markets and the sustainable
development of our business while attaching importance
to collecting opinions and comments from customers,
actively communicating with customers, as well as
being committed to maintaining good social benefits
and corporate interests.

Corruption Risk

Currently, the PRC government is strengthening its
anti-corruption efforts and governments of various
countries for which we have undertaken works are also
enhancing their regulatory efforts in anti-commercial
bribery. Personal non-compliance or embezzlement
of any employee will bring material adverse effects to
the reputation of our Company. Being an international
engineering contractor and service provider, we
cannot avoid carrying out necessary normal and work-
related communications with the PRC government,
governments of countries where our works are
conducted, Chinese financial institutions and project
owners. During this process, we may be exposed to
the risks associated with personal non-compliance of
employees or even corruption risks. We will continuously
strengthen our internal control and further improve the
establishment of anti-corruption regime of the Company
as well as strengthening accountabilities. We will, at
the same time, actively embark on staff's compliance
trainings, so as to enhance the compliance awareness
of staff and increase their compliance consciousness.

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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Management Discussion and Analysis

VII. PROSPECTS

In 2015, the Company’s primary guiding principle for

operation is to continue to stride towards a leading

multinational company in the world by adhering to strategic

guiding principle, consolidating foundation, rebuilding its

brand and driving transformation.

A.

Business Development Strategy

Since 2014, the Company has made restruction and
adjustment to its three existing business sectors, namely
the International Engineering Contracting Business,
Trading Business and Other Businesses, and explored
a new business sector for investment and financing
business. In 2015, the Company will further improve the
new three business sectors, namely the International
Engineering Contracting Business, trading and services
business and investment and financing business.

Consolidating the foundation of the International
Engineering Contracting Business, rebuilding
the brand of the Company, and further
advancing regionalization and localization of
development

The Company will strengthen procedural control
over the engineering contracting projects and
enhance the ability to provide one-stop services.
It will also pay high attention to after-sales
services including the operation and maintenance
of engineering contracting projects and further
excavate the potential value of such after-sales
services in order to gradually form a management
and service mode featured by the characteristics
of CMEC. The Company will continue to improve
the supporting system for the management of the
full lifecycle of a project, ensuring complete and
effective project management by the Company and
the business divisions.
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The Company will conduct market and project
selection by taking full advantage of the
development strategies in China, such as “One
Belt and One Road”. The Company will further
explore market policies for the identified regional
markets and core markets to develop appropriate
projects depending on local conditions. In addition,
the Company will take further measures to promote
the localization of the business divisions, and
to enhance the ability of project management.
Meanwhile, the Company will, by leveraging on
the overall advantage, optimize the allocation of its
resources, taking due consideration to the regional
reorganization among the business divisions.

Accelerating the transformation of trading and
services business

The Company will further improve its internal
management mechanism to promote management
efficiency, thus laying the foundation for further
transformation and upgrade of trading and services
business and providing support for it. The Company
will also integrate the businesses, cultures and
resources from various subsidiaries in a fast and
effective manner to ensure its trading subsidiaries are
able to display integration and industrial advantages
and improve their performance significantly after the
reorganization. In addition, the Company will continue
to explore core businesses, core products and core
markets for trading and services sector and further
clarify the development direction of trading business,
in order to promote business transformation and
upgrade. It will also introduce the overall planning
policy in respect of industrial investment to ensure
an orderly progress of industrialization. Subject to
the ensurance of risk controllable, the Company will
develop large-sized trading business appropriately.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Accelerating the development of investment
and financing business

The Company will continue to explore the inbound
and outbound investment business with adherence
to the principle of “investment driven EPC” and
focus on the projects located in the countries and
regions as stated in the strategic plan of “One Belt
and One Road”. The Company will consistently
invest in the industries and markets with which
it is familiar mainly by way of equity investment,
and focus on the power sector to penetrate
from the field of power generation into relevant
fields of power sector gradually, strengthening
the management of infrastructure investment.
The Company will also continue to improve the
supporting system, by introducing a standardized
investment system, to establish a fast track for the
projects selected under the principle of “investment
driven EPC”.

The Company will build diversified financing
channels through the construction of diversified
domestic and foreign financing platforms, to
seek various financing modes and to actively
facilitate the signing and coming into effective of
various financing projects of the Company. The
Company will continue to strengthen the business
cooperation with policy-based financial institutions
in China such as Export-Import Bank of China and
Sinosure, to consolidate its fundamental financing
channels. In addition, the Company will strengthen
the cooperation with commercial financial
institutions in China, including the state-owned
commercial banks, the joint-stock banks and the
branches of the foreign banks in China, to broaden
domestic financing channels. Furthermore, the
Company will continue to expand the cooperation
scope with foreign financial institutions, to
strengthen its international financing capacity and
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to broaden its overseas financing channels by
relying on its business operations. The Company
will develop the optimal portfolio of multiple

B FEARE REMES R
BRE HIEZMEREW

REAETE -

financing channels by flexibly allocating policy and
commercial financing channels as well as domestic
and overseas financing channels.

B. Corporate Management Strategy B. QREEER

In 2015, the Company will promote the change of 20154 » NEIBAIF B IR
BEE ERERELEE B

advanced and efficient management mode. BIEER o

&
management using innovative ideas to form a more £
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1. Classifying functional departments of the
Company in a scientific manner and enhancing
the management of overseas entities

The Company will make a scientific classification of
its functional departments, form a core department
to effectively support and manage the business, and
explore an efficient and rational organic structure
of the core departments. The Company will re-
organize the layout of overseas entities in a full range
to further improve resources allocation and, based
on its development strategy, carry out the upgrade
and integration in respect of its existing overseas
entities according to business demands. In addition,
the Company will introduce a series of rules and
regulations to manage the assets, funds, legal affairs
and tax of its overseas entities effectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Company will enhance the synergies of overseas
entities to further improve its ability to operate
internationally. The establishment of overseas
entities is necessary for the overall development
of CMEC. The Company intends to develop the
overseas entities as overseas interconnected
platforms for the International Engineering
Contracting Business, trading and services business
and investment and financing business, by taking
advantage of their supporting role, in order to lay
a foundation for all businesses to seek for local
development opportunities and to further enhance
the level of international operation, and thus for the
transformation to a multinational company.

Establishing a fair and effective incentive and
restraint system, and enhancing the talents
training

The Company will further improve its performance
management system and establish a performance
and compensation management system for the
senior management which is suitable for the new
situation. The Company will also promote the
performance management for all of its employees
to enhance the ability and personnel quality of
its employees and enable the Company and its
employees to grow together. In addition, it will
develop a more rational, open and scientific
employing system by constantly consolidating the
fruits of talents introduction and enhancing the
exchanges between the cadre and the talents.
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Establishing a comprehensive budget
management system

The Company will deepen its comprehensive
management of budget, to improve the accuracy
of budget, optimize resources allocation, and
strengthen budget management on the investment
business to accelerate a breakthrough in the
investment and financing business.

Enhancing financial and audit management

The Company will enhance the management of
financial information and improve the finance
informationization continuously, and continue
to amend and improve the relevant rules and
regulations. The Company will introduce the
implementation rules in addition to the existing
audit management measures, inclining the audit
management to the difficulties of operational
management, key projects, engineering projects
which are in difficulties and major business
activities of the Company, so as to effectively
improve the efficiency and quality of audit
management.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Enhancing the capability of compliance
management

The Company will continue to further promote the
construction of the systems in relation to corporate
legal risk prevention, legal advisors and legal affairs,
to further enhance its capabilities of compliance
management and corporate governance according
to the law and provide more solid legal support and
protection for CMEC to carry out further reform and
development and to become stronger and better.
The Company will effectively play a regulatory role in
managing legal risks, by enhancing the compliance
review and the measures of risk prevention and
control, to ensure the compliance with laws,
regulations and due procedures.

Enhancing social responsibility management
and brand building

The Company will further enhance its sense
of responsibility, and develop a unique
competitiveness in the field of social responsibility.
The Company will further improve the social
responsibility management system and carry out
social responsibility work throughout the daily
management practice. In addition, it will also
strengthen the publicity of social responsibility
to increase its corporate awareness by, among
other opportunities, publishing annual social
responsibility reports, carrying out welfare activities
and holding conferences and exchanges which
will help to create a good external environment
beneficial to the development of the Company.
The Company will further formulate CMEC brand
development plan, standardize brand model and
diversify the ways of disseminates.
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Major Events for the Year

REELEKRER

January — B

The grand ribbon cutting ceremony for the prototype of the low-
temperature waste heat power generation system based on ORC (the
first of its kind in China) as a result of the joint research and
development of Henan Machinery & Electric Import & Export Co., Ltd.
and 712 Research Institute, China Shipbuilding Industry Corporation
(the “CSIC”) was held on January 10. ZHANG CHUN, President of
CMEC, and ZHOU Zongzi, Party Secretary of 712 Research Institute,
CSIC, jointly cut the ribbon for the power generation prototype.

1A108 B EAKERABREFAAFTEAPEMMEIER QT
(THMETI]) 712EMERAEHBEAN G & ER GRS EIR(ORC)H
RBRRODKBERFEEROTEEXETRT  REEFENPMET
T1I2IREFAR TEZER AR AFHE TR -

February — A

On February 21, Chairman SUN Bai paid a visit to the President of
the Republic of Senegal.

2R21R BHERERFSEANNBAMBELS -

On February 26, Chairman SUN Bai paid a visit to the Prime Minister
of the Republic of Montenegro.

2A26H ' ZIHESEFSE IAFMBEIRE -
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Major Events for the Year

REELEKRSET

March = H

On March 3, President ZHANG Chun on behalf of CMEC signed the
strategic cooperation agreement with Shangqgiu Municipal
Government in Henan Province.

3A3H  FFMHAKRCMECE/IFMEBEMBIARE T B A (Fif

March 4, CMEC and Wuxi Kipor Power Co., Ltd. signed the official
strategic cooperation agreement on the complementation of the
products of both parties to provide further support for CMEC to
develop all-weather non-stop new energy power generation projects
with the technology and the product.

3A4B £ - CMECHEHMEBH N ERARIEARZERIA FiHE -
EHERTKER  /RCMECE —FHREEXIR T HEFaLREEER
HR (R RO A E O S FF o

President ZHANG Chun and President Andre of Peter World
Company in Russia signed the memorandum of understanding for
cooperation on behalf of both parties for the Project of Russian St.
Petersburg Warehouse Storage Logistics Center on March 20.

3A20H @ RFEHAMBEMBEER R AERLENRKRETRZZM
RITERSEDRFEYRTLIAR S IFREAERE

Annual Report 2014
20145 F 3

79



80

Major Events for the Year

REELEKRER

April @ A

On April 8, President ZHANG Chun paid a visit to the president of the
Republic of Angola.

4A8H  RERHEFE LN HAMBELLLS -

L L L
wr iR
-

From April 28 to April 29, the 6th General Meeting of Members’
Representatives of China Chamber of Commerce for Import and
Export of Machinery and Electronic Products was convened in
Beijing. President ZHANG Chun was elected to be the new Vice
Chairman of the Chamber (Machinery and Electronic Products) and
CMEC was once again elected the Vice Chairman Unit of the
Chamber (Machinery and Electronic Products) for a term of five years.

4828H —29H FEMEEMELNOFEE A ERRXTRSHEILR
AR - RBEHEEN —EHERLRETR CMECEXREEMERS
Bl& KRB - FHI54F -
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On May 15, President ZHANG Chun on behalf of CMEC signed the
cooperation agreement between both parties with President Wan
Guan Qing of Wuxi Guolian Development (Group) Co., Ltd. (the “Wuxi
Guolian”).

5A16H @ RIFHEBRKRCMECHESEB R (KFH) ARARA ([
GEB) RRETERELNEIERE -
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Major Events for the Year

REELEKRER

On May 16, the grand official operation ceremony for CMEC’s first
distributed power generation project was held at Wuxi Victor Group
Co., Ltd. Weike 3.3 MW distributed photovoltaic power generation
project was the starting point for CMEC to carry on with the
construction of new energy. It not only had the good demonstration
effect of providing the complete solution for the power generation of
clean energy from design and construction to operation but also

obtained good outcome and pleasing results.

58168 ' CMECE— AN A EERBEEEHH R EEBERAFEESR
TERESER » B33k R A M A SR EIR R (ERCMECETHAE
RERITENEER  TNMERBREREENRT EREEL2ERR
HEROEHRME T RFFREBYE - RFHIE T RFVBRMAZH

On May 26, President ZHANG Chun and his personnel paid a visit to
the president of Turkey.

5A26R @ KFRE TR EHAN -

On May 27, Chairman SUN Bai attended the strategic cooperation

—m

symposium for the material projects in Wuxi and Beijing, and signed
Tl — k= an investment agreement on the project of distributed photovoltaic
W H A R%

| Wuxi New District Management Committee and Wuxi Guolian. The

power generation investment platform with the representatives of

= - execution of the investment agreement indicated that CMEC entered

into new development phase in new energy industry with Wuxi, both
of which strive to achieve win-win cooperation in deeper level.

5A27TH  BIOEERZNMEHNILRERABER BB ERAE
VERESTHEEEZEGMESEBAORKRE T DA A RLRKREER
BV eBEBEREWS  HWAREHENEERNRCMECEEH ™ EHHE
RERAEEATHNBERER  EHNFERERBEROAIELS °
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Major Events for the Year

REELEKRER

June X A

On June 7, President ZHANG Chun and Mr. Shamsuddin A. Shaikh,
President of Sindh Engro Coal Mining Company Limited signed the
acceptance letter for the project of 3.8 Mt/a open cast lignite mine in
Thar Block Il and 2X330 MW Thar Block Il power project. The total
contract amount has exceeded US$1 billion. This project as the major
project implemented in 2014 was included in the list for the first
batch of harvest projects in respect of “China-Pakistan Economic
Corridor”.

6H7H  REFHYAEELEBERAFEIShamsuddin A. Shaikh
FEZEZETEANAGCEEERERHIRRFEISOB MR KRB EER
2XB3OMWEHL A ERERIER F1F N - & RES M BB/IOEBET - K
BHEEATREMBEBA2014FHEMELTEB 5 AR [ H 48 E
BHKEBEEEH -
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As at the evening of June 27, 2014 (local time in Iraq), on the spot of
CMEC’s Salahuddin power station project in Irag, 1,258 staff
members were all transferred to the safe area. As at the afternoon of
June 30, 2014 (local time in Iraq), all 1,258 staff members left
Baghdad safe and sound.

HIEF20145F6 8278 (FRRZEMER) - CMECHRAuRENWBT S
VEIEE IR IEM1,258 B A B2 HERELT 2R - HIFEI6A308 T
(FRIFEHER) - 1,258 A B K2 B2 BRDRE
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Major Events for the Year

REELEKRER

= P = = i — il

On July 15, the new construction works (Phase Il) under Jili water plant project in Congo (Brazzaville), of
which CMEC was the contractor, smoothly passed the owner’s final acceptance test to perfectly fulfill the
goal of “Delivering Potable Water to the Residents in Brazzaville”.

7RA168 - ACMECHZMMIR (f7) SFKBEBEE T M2 TRIBFMEBX T &R BRI - BERERT (4
RS EREEZFRMAK] OBESBIE -

On July 18, Chinese President Xi Jinping and Argentine President
Cristina Fernandez de Kirchner jointly witnessed the signing ceremony
of the supplementary loan agreement for the Belgrano cargo railway
reform project in Argentina, of which CMEC was the general
contractor, as well as the opening ceremony of the video project.

7TR188  FEBEREEENTRABEQLSE RIS HLRRSE
CMEC# % & MFTRIE B 14 3% & B M35 s A B 1 T Bk 7
T AIRIAE B MEES -
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Major Events for the Year

REELEKRER

August \ A

On August 4, in Maputo, Capital of Mozambique, CMEC signed the
project of caia (chimuara) — Namialo — Nacala a Velha power transmission
work (400KV power distribution project). The contract value was
approximately US$606 million. The period for the works of the project
was approximately 36 months upon commencement of construction.

8H4H HEEEZLHEHHMELIE  CMECEEZHBENARZEETE
b5 (Rap) PR — AR Kn & — AR H400KVE & IEE c ARE
KEX)6.06183E 70 - BHMBEREZ THL A36MEA -

In August, National Copyright Administration issued the registration certificates for six copyrights of
computer software, namely, the software of the ingate equalized water intake distribution system, the
automatic calculation software for liquid metal de-oxygen and gas removal, the auxiliary design system
software of thermal treatment technique, the software for calculating the air entrapment quantity of the
gating system, the software of reasonable casting time calculation system, and the software for calculating
the flow rate of the ingate liquid steel to China Machinery Industrial Products Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of
CMEC. The above six software copyrights were initially obtained by China Machinery Industrial Products
Co., Ltd. by means of its independent research and development.

8AM » BRREBMCMECF ARIFREBREERERR D Tﬁﬂé‘?/\Iﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁgfﬂ%ﬁ‘ﬂﬁ% ey
%‘J)?%M(Wf%ﬁi’ﬂ?%%;?k YERGERM) (EBABEAKRREDAERGEMS) (REETEHY R ZHGN
) (EBEREREFELT) (FEEIRFEFERSRRMN) (REOHKRSHEEFTE $}\1¢>> e LA
B E R BT R %I”ﬂﬁ%ﬁ_ﬁﬁﬁ RIBEWTE - RIGEUS -

On August 22, CMEC and the Ministry of Energy and Water
Conservation of the Republic of Angola signed a contract for the
construction and installation project of Soyo combined cycle power
plant in Angola. The scope of the project included the general
contract for constructing a 750MW combined cycle power plant. The
contract value was approximately US$985 million. The period for the

works of the project was approximately 36 months upon
commencement of construction.

8H22E| , CMEC&%?EHL#%H‘aﬁ;ﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁ%—@?ﬁ?%ﬁ%ﬁ,%@
BERRERMERALKBEAR BEHEREBAERRER—
750MWE’J BMARBRRER  AR$3NE.85EFL  BEMKERE
TH# A36MEA -
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Major Events for the Year

REELEKRSET

September 11 H

On September 9, CMEC signed the memorandum of understanding

- -
- -

for the Astana 2 X 160MW Thermal power station in Kazakhstan.

9H9H ' CMEC% Z W 1 5o H 18 fif BT £2 45 2x160MWEAE U4 T8 B 57 7 (&

—
SEK ©

N K

On September 10, President Zhang Chun and Sindh Engro Coal
Mining Company Limited jointly signed the EPC contract for the
project of 3.8Mt/a open cast lignite mine in Thar Block Il and
2X330MW Thar Block Il power project with a total amount of US$1.3
billion.

9A10H @ RIEAHNECENMBLZHREEEARXREE 7EEEE
6 IR 2R 4F 2 3808 A 52 K /& 12 18 B A12x330MWIT A B Uk I8 B EPC
AR @BEHA13EET -

On September 10, the president of the Republic of Mali witnessed
the signing of a framework agreement for the project of the
construction of 24000 houses in Mali.

9A108 r BEERANBAR R ESE24000EFXEEREBEEBER
4 o

On September 15, Chinese President Xi Jinping and President Yameen of Maldives attended the unveiling
ceremony of Maldives housing project (phase Il) which CMEC constructed as the contractor.

9A16H B FEXEMBEBARRARERHFECMECAZNFRES (ZH) BEER -
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Major Events for the Year

REELEKRER

On September 16, Chinese President Xi Jinping and President Mahinda Rajapaksa of Sri Lanka attended

the complete opening ceremony of Puttalam coal fired power station which CMEC constructed as the

contractor. The two presidents jointly pressed the button for the opening ceremony and witnessed the

signing ceremony of the memorandum of understanding for the inspection and repair, supply of spare parts,

operation and maintenance of Puttalam coal fired power station.

9A16R B FEFMATEM FRARFME WERRELFCMECAZNHNBEH REFNENREU2E
REEN  HERT TRERG  YRET EFUERETIRE  HBHHE  ELNERSERBETEER

TR

i

On September 25, CMEC's press conference to announce its first social responsibility report was convened

in Beijing.

9A25H - CMECEMH @B EMEEMEERAR °

October T+ A

On October 16, the innovative product — the solar energy home
system of “SOLAR POWER BANK" series of CMEC Guolian Wuxi
New Energy Development Co., Ltd. (the “CMEC New Energy’ ) was
granted the Canton Fair Export Product Design Gold Award (EX €
O E mEREr & 52).

107168 - P REEESFHERERAR AR ([HRIFEEIR]) Bl E
an [SOLAR POWER BANK] RIIKBGEERBEMKRERER G L HER
Rt o
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Major Events for the Year

REELEKRER

On October 19, the 6th International Charity Bazaar of “Great Love
without Borders” was held in Chaoyang Park in Beijing. Chairman
SUN Bai led the staff of the Company to take part in this activity. As
the major sponsor of this activity, CMEC was awarded the Certificate
of Commendation for recognition by the Ministry of Foreign Affairs.

10A198 » FREXEEER | BREZEEDHEILRABRELET -
FHEEFREXEAQRFMNEIZMTHRES - CMECIERILESN TR

EpEN IR MBREALBEREZE -

On October 22, President ZHANG Chun had a meeting with GE’s
Global Vice President Mark Hutchinson.

10220 - sRFHEE S BRGEREREI4E £ Mark Hutchinson ©

On October 28, CMEC New Energy, a joint venture of new energy
jointly set up by CMEC and Wuxi Guolian Environmental Protection
Energy Group Co., Ltd. which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Wuxi
Guolian, convened its first Board meeting to substantiate the matters
for the joint venture of both parties. On the same day, CMEC New
Energy was officially opened in Sensing Network Innovation Park ({&
LA AIFTE), Wuxi New District.

10A28H ' CMECHEH BN 2 EMB AR EHREBIRREREER
AR (EGEE) MARINFTERELERE —PRIEREH TS
—REEEEE REEHAEET -2 BERIERENEFED
R ERERFER -
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Major Events for the Year

REELEKRER

November +—H

On November 8, witnessed by Chinese Premier Mr. Li Kegiang from the State Council and Pakistan Prime
Minister, Mr. Sharif, President Zhang Chun and Punjab Energy Department Chief Secretary, Mr. Mohammad
Jehanzeb Khan, signed a development and promotion agreement for the Muzaffergarh project, which
indicated that CMEC’s Muzaffergarh project entered the China-Pakistan cooperation “expressway”. It would
vigorously promote the implementation of the project. Furthermore, China Development Bank and Sindh
Engro Coal Mining Company Limited also signed a financing framework agreement for the project of 3.8
Mt/a open cast lignite mine in Thar Block Il and 2X330MW Thar Block Il power project at the meeting. The

project was the material substantiation of CMEC’s strategy of “Investment — Driven EPC”.

11888 - Ei‘“ﬁ%ﬁiﬁiﬁﬁﬁuE%Hﬁﬁé@fi%ﬁ@?&%iﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁ? R ECEINASEEAENER
MEBERE -FETEEH - THEETALEREE (AHERERZR) LR EFECMECAKILEXREEEAFRE
AfEIhEE] Hﬁ*ﬁ?‘]fﬂtﬁilﬁﬁ BN o UhAD  BIRFEBEBPITNEEMAEELTRBERA TN (B AR
E R MRS FEISOB MR A MIEE B M2X330MWT D BV E B @B IELHR#) hEe t—REE - %8
B 2CMEC [ &N FEPC | BB ERIEE -

AR

On November 12, at the 32nd “ASEAN Federation Of Engineering Contractors” held in Yangon, the project
of Thaukyegat (2) hydropower plant in Myanmar constructed by CMEC was granted the “ASEAN Excellence
Award for Engineering Achievement”, which is the first overseas project of CMEC have been granted such
award.

118128 > AL ERE [EEEETREAE ]| I CMECEENA@EN RQ/KEWLIERLETRBEES
TRRRHLEE - 5 R2CMECEINA R BN BEIEZIEIE -
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Major Events for the Year

REELEKRSET

On November 14, Chairman SUN Bai paid a visit to Ukraine’s Prime
Minister Arseniy Petrovych Yatsenyuk.

11148 BHEERASRRWAEERAR -

The 8000kW power generator test station works of Shanghai Electric Machinery Co., Ltd., a subsidiary
of Shanghai Electric Group Co., Ltd., under EPC general contracting by China Machinery International
Engineering Design & Research Institute Co., Ltd. smoothly passed the acceptance test on November 20,
which indicated the successful trial of China’s current biggest electric motor testing system of the highest
technical standard, which was officially delivered for use.

HCMECH! B~ Rl R AEPCHAA BN LEEREERM AR D E TE LSEHE A IR 2 F18000kW
REHSRIE TEN1TA20RIEM@EERYK - FHEBMBEARREX Rk FREHESHAREZRH
A - ERRER o

December + — H

The ground-breaking ceremony of the biggest Gampaha, Attanagalla and Minuwangoda Integrated Water
Supply Scheme (P 5 #97K &) in Sri Lanka constructed by CMEC was held on December 5.

HCMECEZMHTEM REABERMKIER — FEMKEERER12AEETTHITEN -

On December 3, CMEC 2013 Social Responsibility Report was elected for the
“Golden Bee 2014 Excellent Enterprise Social Responsibility Report — First-issue
Report Award” (‘& Z#2014EFPELHEEERE — BEMER).

12A3H " (CMEC2013 5 H @ B ERE) Bl R 2 EB204BF XL EE W
- BEWER] -
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Major Events for the Year

REELEKRER
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On December 4, the 4th China Listed Company Overseas Summit Forum cum China Securities Golden
Bauhinia Award Presentation Ceremony was held at Banquet Hall of InterContinental Hong Kong. By virtue
of its excellent performance in 2014, CMEC was granted the “Best Corporate Governance Award for Listed
Company (&EABDAE EMARLE) "

12848 FNEFE T RAREIINSERBETHESSEARBARARCREBENRBEEEGRESET -
CMECB{E20145FBRERR - KEKELQFRIE LT AR -
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At the 5th Board Meeting of the 6th Anniversary China International Contractors Association cum 2014
Industry Annual Meeting convened during December 11 and 12, CMEC was granted the “2014 Enterprise
Award for Enterprise of AAA Credit Rating (20145 1> 22 A S T BAAAR 1> 2 48)”.

128118 —12HBHNFTEEIINVARTEREFE NERNEETEB20141TEFE L - CMECHE2014FE %
RS EAAR D ESE -

On December 9, President of Maldives attended the foundation stone
laying ceremony for Maldives housing project (phase Il) constructed

by CMEC.
12790 SERXAKRTEECMECEENSHBRKAERFER (ZH) &
HiE o

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
FEEBREIRROERAT



Major Events for the Year

REELEKRER

All the prepayment for the Belgrano cargo railway reform project in
Argentina, of which CMEC was the general contractor, was received
on September 19, 2014 and China Export & Credit Insurance
Corporation issued the insurance policy on December 12. This
project has been commenced upon the satisfaction of the conditions
precedent. The total value of the project contract (the “Contract”)
was approximately US$2.4705 billion. As required by the Contract,

the period of works for the project was approximately 48 months.

CMEC# % £ 3R MPARE B ME A 78 B E B s 18 B 12014698
198 B 2 2B K - WHR2014F 128128 ESFEE O HRRA
AL EMRE - LIBEENMERGHRARES - HEEEAR ([&
Bl #EELNA24.705EFT - ILBARMEE - HE THK A48EA -

On December 22, CMEC signed with WINWIN Net Corporation Company Limited of Thailand a contract for
equipment supply and installation in respect of the Thailand broadband network construction project. The
contract value was approximately US$120 million. Upon the completion of the project construction, it would
provide the services for 0.6 million users with the broadband cable intake and 2.50 million users with the
wireless broadband intake.

12A220 ' CMECEZEZmABENFERHFHBERAARBTRBHELLEKER - AREEMN1.2(EX
T MERKIRRIRHEOB P ARETE AR0B P EREHE AR - B BRRIHO12(EA -

On December 24, the Egypt Embassy in China organized the China-
Egypt Commerce and Trade Cooperation Conference. Witnessed by
Egyptian President Sisi, Chairman SUN Bai and Mohamed Shaker,
Minister of Electricity and Energy, signed a memorandum of
understanding for an electricity and energy project.

12A248 RRBEEFCEIRTRBECESE  ERMBEEAN
RET ARESRASNHRIERE DRBRFTENHIRAR
B AR R T B o

|
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" = 1 On December 28, CMEC, by virtue of its 2011-2013 excellent
ENRRETEE i performance, obtained 5A rating of faith excellence for the tendering
2013 ' agencies.
12528H * CMEC/&R{&2011-2013F MER R - LEFBZRIBEIED
ZRBEAS M -
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Major Events for the Year

REELEKRER

The celebration ceremony for the completion of the CACUACO VILAB0/15KV transformer station
construction project in Angola was held on December 29.

12 A290 » CMECHEEZ M L SR CACUACO VILABO/15KVE T uh i 418 B 2175w TR HMER o

On December 29, upon the boiler ignition of the power station project constructed by
CMEC in Serbia, the grid-connected power generation was successful right away.

12 A29HCMECHE R EMMEIBULIE B REE AN « — A WHEEKI -

On December 30, HE Thein Sein, President of Myanmar, attended the
ribbon-cutting ceremony to celebrate the opening of the project of
Thaukyegat (2) hydropower plant in Myanmar constructed by CMEC.

12A300 - A #AHE R E R T F HCMECH S &) 4 &) 58 BF R(2)7K E vk
HBWRBEEERERN

On December 30, the Amgalan heating station in Mongolia
constructed by CMEC was acclaimed during the “last show time” at
the annual commendation meeting held by the Ministry of Energy of
Mongolia and granted the “Mongolian 2014 Most Excellent Energy
Infrastructure Project”.

12A30R ' A HBERBFERE L £ CMECRAEBHNE HM KRS
BRAEE b 3X116MWIE B 1E AR EHTEE - LR [XHBH2014FERE
REIR BRI 82 ] o
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The Board is pleased to present its report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group prepared
in accordance with IFRS for the year ended December 31, 2014.

GLOBAL OFFERING

The Company was incorporated as a part of the reorganization
undergone by the Group in preparations for the Listing by
converting its predecessor into a joint stock company with
limited liability under the Companies Law in the PRC on January
18, 2011. The Company’s H Shares were listed on the Stock
Exchange on the Listing Date.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is a leading international engineering contracting
and services provider with a primary focus on EPC projects and
particular expertise in the power sector, capable of providing one-
stop customized and integrated engineering contracting solutions
and services. The Company also conducts the Trading Business
and Other Businesses.

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 18 to
the audited consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The audited results of the Group for the year ended December
31, 2014 are set out in consolidated statement of profit or
loss and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
of this annual report. The financial position of the Group and
the Company as at December 31, 2014 are set out in the
consolidated statement of financial position and the statement of
financial position of this annual report, respectively. The cash flows
of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2014 is set out in
the consolidated statement of cash flow of this annual report.

A discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance during the
year and the key factors affecting its results and financial position
are set out in the section “Management Discussion and Analysis”
of this annual report.

Report of Directors
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Report of Directors

EEEWRE

FINAL DIVIDENDS

The Board recommended the distribution of a final dividend of
RMBO0.2033 per Share (pre-tax) for 4,125,700,000 Shares for the
year ended December 31, 2014, representing a total amount of
RMB838,754,810 (pre-tax).

According to the Articles of Association, dividends will be
denominated and declared in Renminbi. Dividends on Domestic
Shares will be paid in Renminbi and dividends on H Shares will
be paid in Hong Kong dollars.

The proposed final dividend is subject to Shareholders’ approval
at the upcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the
“AGM”). The Company will issue a separate announcement
regarding the date of the upcoming AGM, the record date for the
payment of H Share dividends and the dates of closure of register
of members of the Company.

In accordance with tax law and relevant requirements under
taxation regulatory institutions of the PRC, the Company
is required to withhold 10% enterprise income tax when it
distributes the final dividend for the year ended December 31,
2014 to all non-resident enterprise shareholders (including
HKSCC Nominees Limited, other nominees, trustees or other
entities and organizations, who will be deemed as non-resident
enterprise shareholders) whose names appear on the H share
register of members of the Company on the dividend record
date™.

Pursuant to the PRC Individual Income Tax Law ({(FFZFE AR
HAMBEAFTERIE)), the Implementation Regulations of the
Individual Income Tax Law ({#F#E ARKLFBEEAMSHEETE
1&51)), the Tentative Measures on Withholding and Payment
of Individual Income Tax ({EAFBHAMKRBALITIE)) and
other relevant laws and regulations and based on the Company’s
consultation with the relevant PRC tax authorities, the Company
is required to withhold and pay 20% individual income tax for
the Company’s individual H shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of H shares of the Company (the
“Individual H Shareholders”). Pursuant to the Notice on Matters
concerning the Levy and Administration of Individual Income Tax

* The Company will make an announcement on the period of closure
of register of members of H Shares (for dividend entitlement) and
the dividend record date in the circular and the notice of AGM in
due course.
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after the Repeal of Guo Shui Fa [1993] No.045 ((BARAEIRE
[1993]0455% X M EE I8 BB A PRSI EE BB HEBAN) ) issued
by the State Administration of Tax of the PRC and the letter titled
“Tax arrangements on dividends paid to Hong Kong residents
by Mainland companies” issued by the Stock Exchange, the
overseas resident individual shareholders of the shares issued
by domestic non-foreign invested enterprises in Hong Kong are
entitled to the relevant preferential tax treatment pursuant to the
provisions in the tax arrangements between the countries where
they reside and China and the tax arrangements between China
mainland and Hong Kong (Macau). The Company will identify the
country of domicile of the Individual H Shareholders according
to their registered address on the H share register of members
of the Company on the dividend record date* (the “Registered
Address”). The Company assumes no responsibility and
disclaims all liabilities whatsoever in relation to the tax status or
tax treatment of the Individual H Shareholders and for any claims
arising from or in connection with any delay in or inaccurate
determination of the tax status or tax treatment of the Individual
H Shareholders or any disputes over the withholding mechanism
or arrangements. Details of arrangements are as follows:

° For Individual H Shareholders who are Hong Kong or Macau
residents or those whose country of domicile is a country
which has entered into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating
a dividend tax rate of 10%, the Company will withhold and
pay individual income tax at the rate of 10% on behalf of the
Individual H Shareholders.

° For Individual H Shareholders whose country of domicile
is a country which has entered into a tax treaty with the
PRC stipulating a dividend tax rate of less than 10%, the
Company will withhold and pay individual income tax at the
rate of 10% on behalf of the Individual H Shareholders. If
relevant Individual H Shareholders would like to apply for a
refund of the additional amount of tax withheld and paid,
the Company can assist the relevant shareholder to handle
the application for the underlying preferential tax benefits
pursuant to the tax treaties, provided that the relevant
shareholder shall submit to the Company the information
required under the “Notice of the State Administration

The Company will make an announcement on the period of closure
of register of members of H Shares (for dividend entitlement) and the
dividend record date in the circular and the notice of AGM in due
course.
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of Taxation in relation to the Administrative Measures on
Preferential Treatment Entitled by Non-residents under Tax
Treaties (Tentative)” (Guo Shui Fa [2009] No.124) ({EZRF
BREBANINEEERZXIF B EFEEEIEHT) >N
BAN) (FFE3£[2009]1245%)) (the “Tax Treaties Notice”) on
or before the commencement date of the closure of register
of members.” Upon examination and approval by competent
tax authorities, the Company will assist in refunding the
additional amount of tax withheld and paid.

e  For Individual H Shareholders whose country of domicile
is a country which has entered into a tax treaty with the
PRC stipulating a dividend tax rate of more than 10% but
less than 20%, the Company will finally withhold and pay
individual income tax at the actual tax rate stipulated in the
relevant tax treaty.

e  For Individual H Shareholders whose country of domicile is
a country which has entered into a tax treaty with the PRC
stipulating a dividend tax rate of 20%, or a country which
has not entered into any tax treaties with the PRC, or under
any other circumstances, the Company will finally withhold
and pay individual income tax at the rate of 20% on behalf
of the Individual H Shareholders.

If the domicile of an Individual H Shareholder is not the same as
the Registered Address or if the Individual H Shareholder would
like to apply for a refund of the additional amount of tax finally
withheld and paid, the Individual H Shareholder shall notify and
provide relevant supporting documents to the Company on or
before the commencement date of the closure of register of
members.* Upon examination of the supporting documents by
the relevant tax authorities, the Company will follow the guidance
given by the tax authorities to implement relevant tax withholding
provisions and arrangements. Individual H Shareholders may
either personally or appoint a representative to attend to the
procedures in accordance with the requirements under the Tax
Treaties Notices if they do not provide the relevant supporting
documents to the Company within the time period stated above.

The Company will make an announcement on the period of closure
of register of members of H Shares (for dividend entitlement) and
the dividend record date in the circular and the notice of AGM in
due course.
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Shareholders are recommended to consult their tax advisers
regarding the PRC, Hong Kong and other tax implications arising
from or in connection with their holding and disposal of the H
Shares of the Company.

AGM AND CLOSURE OF REGISTER

The circular and the notice of the forthcoming AGM will be
published and dispatched to the Shareholders in accordance
with the requirements of the Listing Rules and the Articles of
Association. The Company will make an announcement on the
period of closure of register of members of H Shares in the
circular and the notice of the AGM in due course.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s results, assets and liabilities for the last
five financial years are set out in the section “Financial Highlights”
of this annual report. This summary does not form part of the
audited consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended December 31, 2014, the Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for 14.17% (2013: 11.0%) of the Group’s
total purchases. The Group’s largest supplier accounted for
4.89% (2013: 3.2%) of the Group’s total purchases.

For the year ended December 31, 2014, the Group’s sales to its
five largest customers accounted for 34.31% (2013: 30.0%) of
the Group’s total sales. The Group’s sales to its largest customer
accounted for 14.93% (2013: 9.7%) of the Group’s total sales.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their close
associates or any Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of
the Directors, owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had any interest in the Group'’s five largest customers and
suppliers.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Company and the Group during the year ended December 31,
2014 are set out in note 14 to the audited consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 29 to the audited consolidated
financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during the
year are set out in note 30 to the audited consolidated financial
statements, and details of movements in the reserves of the
Group during the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at December 31, 2014, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions
of Companies Law, amounted to approximately RMB4,383.74
million (as at December 31, 2013: 3,468.8 million).

BANK LOAN AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Company
and the Group as at December 31, 2014 are set out in note 25 to
the audited consolidated financial statements.

BOARD

The Directors during the year ended December 31, 2014 and up
to the date of this report were:
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Executive Directors:

Mr. SUN Bai (Chairman) (appointed on April 19, 2013
and re-appointed on February 20, 2014)

Ms. LI Taifang (Vice Chairperson) (appointed on July 29, 2011
and appointment ceased effective on February 20, 2014)
Mr. ZHANG Chun (President) (appointed on March 16, 2012

and re-appointed on February 20, 2014)

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. PAN Chongyi (appointed on January 13, 2011
and appointment ceased effective on February 20, 2014)
Mr. WANG Zhian (appointed on January 13, 2011
and re-appointed on February 20, 2014)
Mr. YU Benli (appointed on February 20, 2014)
Mr. ZHANG Fusheng (appointed on February 20, 2014)

INEDs:

Mr. LIU Li (appointed on January 13, 2011 and
re-appointed on February 20, 2014)

Ms. LIU Hongyu (appointed on January 13, 2011 and
re-appointed on February 20, 2014)

Mr. FANG Yongzhong (appointed on July 29, 2011 and
re-appointed on February 20, 2014)

Mr. CHAN Kin Ho Philip (appointed on December 30, 2011 and

appointment ceased effective on February 20, 2014)
Mr. WU Tak Lung (appointed on February 20, 2014)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the current Directors and senior
management of the Group are set out in the section “Directors,
Supervisors, Senior Management and Employees” of this annual

report.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from
each of the INEDs and the Company considers such Directors to
be independent for the year ended December 31, 2014.

SERVICE CONTACT AND LETTER OF
APPOINTMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS

As approved at the extraordinary general meeting on February
20, 2014, Ms. LI Taifang, Mr. PAN Chongyi and Mr. CHAN Kin
Ho Philip have ceased to be Directors due to expiration of their
service term. Their term of office ended upon the conclusion of
the extraordinary general meeting. Meanwhile, as approved at
the same extraordinary general meeting, () Mr. SUN Bai and Mr.
ZHANG Chun have been re-appointed as executive Directors of
the second session of the Board, (i) Mr. WANG Zhian has been
re-appointed and Mr. YU Benli and Mr. ZHANG Fusheng have
been appointed as non-executive Directors of the second session
of the Board, (i) Mr. LIU Li, Ms. LIU Hongyu and Mr. FANG
Yongzhong have been re-appointed and Mr. WU Tak Lung has
been appointed as INEDs of the second session of the Board,
whose term of service commenced on February 20, 2014 until
the expiration of the term of second session of the Board, and
(iv) Mr. QUAN Huagiang and Mr. QIAN Xiangdong have been re-
appointed as shareholder representative Supervisors for the
second session of the Supervisory Board. Mr. BAl Ming has been
re-appointed as the staff representative Supervisor for the second
session of the Supervisory Board on January 24, 2014 and he
together with Mr. QUAN Huagiang and Mr. QIAN Xiangdong
formed the second session of the Supervisory Board. Their term
of service commenced on February 20, 2014 until the expiration
of the term of second session of the Supervisory Board. Details
for the above changes of Directors and Supervisors may refer to
the Company’s annual report for the year of 2013 published on
April 28, 2013.

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
PEEWREIEZROERAT

BUFHTESNELMRIE

RAAREEESBEIIIFNTESRELD
RAIES KA EFEHEFE B I
FERRE  BARARBZIEEEZTNE
FE2014F12A31MBEFERNERBILA
i o

EERESNRBEVIREER

#2014F2 A20H RITH R IR R A& #HE
B FERAFLLT BRERERBRERT
AERABENTHERMTBLEEES -
FENTHRBRRERNSERFRIE -
RIEF - RE—FERRERAE EIE0E - ()R
MEERRZEAECEEFETAE R
EEEHTES (\TALALCEEY
ZF RRABEERKRBELECESR
ERAE_BEEFGIFNTESE (RN
£ BIIFZTRAKABEECEENZ
T RREELECEZAAE _EES
EBUIERTES  BEMNTHBE20145F
CH20HREZZF_EEFEERRL R
(VEEREERBAREEERENEZT
RE_EEFERRARES - ORALAE
BER2014F1A24B EEFZTAE =B
EFEBRIARES  FHI2FRIAER
BRAREEANF _EESE - #ENT
HE2014F2A200HEEEE —_EES=S
EmAL - BELEXESERESE TN
BRI 2B A QA R2013F4 288 HI& K
2013F FEHE -



After their appointment, all members of the second session of the
Board have entered into service contracts and/or appointment
letters with the Company for a term of 3 years, commencing
from February 20, 2014 and ending on February 19, 2017 or
on the date when the third session of the Board is elected by
the shareholders. The Company shall have power to enter into
service contracts and/or appointment letters with the members of
the second session of the Supervisory Board.

For the year ended December 31, 2014, none of the Directors
or Supervisors had entered or proposed to enter into a service
contract with any member of the Group which will not expire
or is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No Director or Supervisor had a material interest, either directly
or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of
the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party during the year ended December 31, 2014.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year ended December 31,
2014.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

A remuneration committee was set up for reviewing the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the
directors and senior management of the Group, having regard
to the Group’s operating results, individual performance of the
Directors and senior management and comparable market
practices.

The Company does not adopt any pre- or post-IPO share
award scheme and share option scheme as incentive to eligible
employees.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the directors and five highest
paid individuals are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the audited
consolidated financial statements.

CHANGES TO INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF
DIRECTORS DURING THE YEAR

On October 20, 2014, Mr. SUN Bai, an executive Director and
Chairman, has ceased to be a member of the remuneration
committee of the Company.

Mr. ZHANG Chun, an executive Director and president of the
Company, has been appointed as the chairman of China National
Electric Engineering Co., Ltd. (FEREH TEBFRAF]), in March
2014.

On October 20, 2014, Mr. WANG Zhian, a non-executive Director,
has been appointed as a member of remuneration committee of
the Company.

Mr. YU Benli, a non-executive Director, has resigned as the
chairman of China Machine Tool Sales and Technology Services
Co., Ltd. ( BI# /K $H & E BT RSB R A 7)), a subsidiary of
SINOMACH, in February 2014.

Mr. LIU Li, the INED, has resigned as an independent director of
Bohai Ferry Co. Ltd. (#/&#ERNDBR AR, a company listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 603167), in March
2014. On October 27, 2014, Mr. LIU has been appointed as
independent non-executive director of Bank of Communications
Co., Ltd. (RBIRITARND BMR A7) (stock code: 3328).

On March 4, 2014, Mr. WU Tak Lung, the INED, has been
appointed as an independent non-executive director of Sinomax
Group Limited (B #SE AR A R]), a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1418). On July 22,
2014, Mr. WU has resigned as an independent non-executive
director of Valuetronics Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Singapore Exchange.
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Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this annual report,
there were no other changes to the Director’s, Supervisor’s or
senior management’s information as required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

INTERESTS, SHORT POSITIONS AND SHARE
OPTION SCHEME OF THE DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at December 31, 2014, none of the Directors, Supervisors
or senior management of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO which would have to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein, or
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

No time during the year ended December 31, 2014 were rights
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any Director, Supervisor
or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or
were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company
and any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors, the Supervisors, or their respective spouse or
children under 18 years of age, to acquire such rights in any
other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER

PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS

IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at December 31, 2014, so far as it was known by or otherwise
notified to any Directors or the chief executive of the Company,
the particulars of the corporations or persons (other than a
Director, Supervisors or the chief executive of the Company)
which had 5% or more interests and short positions in the Shares
and the underlying Shares as recorded in the register kept under

section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long positions in the Shares

FERRRHEMALRRG - HE

R EFE

Number of Issued

Approximate
Percentage of
Shareholding
in the Relevant

RO REFNERRXR

MR2014F12A318 » IBEMEEKAQF]
BETBRABMMKAEMERNEMNS -
RIEFE S KB RAIEI86HEFENELM
FEc sk A IR D RABBAR (D 5% 3 A L%
KABRZEBMHEAL (BEE - EERARQA]
BE{TBABRRIN) FBEAT

Approximate
Percentage of
Shareholding in

Name of Class of Capacity/Nature Shares/Underlying Class of Share the Total Share
Shareholders Shares of interest Shares Held (Note 1) (Note 1)
FHERT (HEBROESR ERGAE
R HE  RESSEIE RESHEIL
RER A R4 &5l 51 ERME RGEEE (Hizt1) (Hizt1)
(Share) (%) (%)
(&)
SINOMACH Domestic Interests of beneficial 3,217,430,000 100% 77.99%
Shares owner and controlled (Note 2)
corporation (Long position)
Bl NE MR BB A NERR (Hii22) (55 8)
R EEER
NSSF H Shares Interests of beneficial 81,352,000 8.96% 1.97%
owner (Long position)
HRESEZS HE&% BB AER (F8)
BNP Paribas Jersey Nominee H Shares Nominee for another 65,130,000 717% 1.58%
Company Limited person (Note 3)
(Long position)
BNP Paribas Jersey Nominee ~ Hj& S—HATZREA (f1:23) (33 8)

Company Limited
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Number of Issued

Approximate
Percentage of
Shareholding
in the Relevant

Approximate
Percentage of

Shareholding in

Name of Class of Capacity/Nature Shares/Underlying Class of Share the Total Share
Shareholders Shares of interest Shares Held (Note 1) (Note 1)
RERT (HEBROESR ERG AR
BB, HE RESAEIL RESAESK
RER A R 43 38 5 513 ERME RO HEE (Hiat1) (Hizt1)
(Share) (%) (%)
(&)
BNP Paribas Jerse Trust H Shares Trustee 65,130,000 717% 1.58%
Corporation Limited (Note 3)
(Long position)
BNP Paribas Jerse Trust HE& XEEA (H7:23) (35 &)
Corporation Limited
Cheah Capital Management H Shares Interests of controlled 65,130,000 717% 1.58%
Limited corporation (Note 3)
(Long position)
NDEAERERAF HE&% RiprEER (Hiz3) (418
Cheah Company Limited H Shares Interests of controlled 65,130,000 717% 1.58%
corporation (Note 3)
(Long position)
PIEER 1IN HE% RimrE s (Hiz3) (112
Value Partners Group Limited H Shares Interests of controlled 65,130,000 717% 1.58%
corporation (Note 3)
(Long position)
EREERARAA HE% RiErEER (H7:23) (55 8)
Cheah Cheng Hye H Shares Person who set up a 65,130,000 717% 1.58%
discretionary trust (Note 3)
(Long position)
#E 8 HE% FREFEIA (Hiz3) (418
To Hau Yin H Shares Interests of spouse 65,130,000 717% 1.58%
(Note 3)
(Long position)
"I E HE% o8 (Hiz3) (112
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Number of Issued

Approximate
Percentage of
Shareholding
in the Relevant

Approximate
Percentage of

Shareholding in

Name of Class of Capacity/Nature Shares/Underlying Class of Share the Total Share
Shareholders Shares of interest Shares Held (Note 1) (Note 1)
FHERT (HEBROESR BB AE
BB, HE RESAEIL RESLNES K
RER A R 4338 5 51 ERtE RO HEE (Hizt1) (Hizt1)
(Share) (%) (%)
(&)
CSR (Hong Kong) Company H Shares Interests of beneficial 63,000,000 6.94% 1.53%
Limited owner (Note 4)
(Long position)
REIfE (B8) BRAA HE& BB AER (Hizt4) (418
China South Locomotive & H Shares Interests of controlled 63,000,000 6.94% 1.53%
Rolling Stock Corporation corporation (Note 4)
Limited (Long position)
REEERAARLDA HE% Rimr s (Hizta) (417
CSR Group H Shares Interests of controlled 63,000,000 6.94% 1.53%
corporation (Note 4)
(Long position)
PEREEEAF HE% i EER (Hiit4) (55 8)
Notes: Mt -

0

This percentage is calculated on the basis of the number of
underlying Shares/total Shares that had been issued by the
Company as of December 31, 2014.

SINOMACH was beneficially interested in 3,185,260,000 Domestic
Shares, representing approximately 77.21% of our total share
capital. China United was beneficially interested in 32,170,000
Domestic Shares, representing approximately 0.78% of our total
share capital. Since China United is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
SINOMACH, SINOMACH is, therefore, deemed to be interested in
the Domestic Shares held by China United.

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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The following shares referred to in notes above represent the same block
of shares in which all the relevant parties are deemed under the SFO to
be interested.

(3) The 65,130,000 Shares as referred to in note 3 above.

BNP Paribas Jersey Trust Corporation Limited, as trustee of The C
H Cheah Family Trust, has 100% interest over BNP Paribas Jersey
Nominee Company Limited. BNP Paribas Jersey Nominee Company
Limited has 100% interest over Cheah Company Limited which in
turn has 100% interest over Cheah Capital Management Limited.
Cheah Capital Management Limited has 27.21% interest over Value
Partners Group Limited which in turn has 100% interest over Value
Partners Hong Kong Limited. Value Partners Hong Kong Limited has
100% interest over Value Partners Limited.

The C H Cheah Family Trust was set up by Mr. Cheah Cheng Hye.
Madam To Hau Yin is the spouse of Mr. Cheah Cheng Hye and
accordingly is deemed to be interested in the 65,130,000 Shares.

(4)  The 63,000,000 shares as referred to in note 4 above.

CSR Group has 55% interest over China South Locomotive & Rolling
Stock Corporation Limited which in turn has 100% interest over
CSR (Hong Kong) Company Limited.

Save as disclosed above, and as at December 31, 2014, the
Directors were not aware of any persons (who were not Directors,
Supervisors or chief executive of the Company) who had an
interest or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed under Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which would be required, pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended December 31, 2014, the Company did not
redeem any of its H Shares listed on the Stock Exchange nor did
the Company or any of its subsidiaries purchase or sell any of
such shares.
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(3) _EXBIFESATHLAY65,130,0008% %15 -

BNP Paribas Jersey Trust Corporation
Limited (#£AC H Cheah Family Trustfys?
FEA) #HABBNP Paribas Jersey Nominee
Company Limited & &f#%5 ° BNP Paribas
Jersey Nominee Company Limited# & 1))
DERARZE R - MY DAERAD A%
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ERERAERARHEEREEEFRAA
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The C H Cheah Family Trust/ #5858 4
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association or the Companies Law, which would oblige the
Company to offer new Shares on a pro rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

SINOMACH entered into a non-competition agreement dated
July 12, 2011 as supplemented by a supplemental agreement
dated December 10, 2012 (together as “Non-Competition
Agreement”) with the Company. Pursuant to the agreement,
SINOMACH provided certain non-competition undertakings to
the Company and granted the option to acquire certain retained
business which overlaps with the Company’s International
Engineering Contracting Business in the Core Sectors (the
“Relevant Sectors”) and right of first refusal for any new
business opportunities in relation to the Relevant Sectors.
Pursuant to the Non-competition Agreement, the INEDs are
responsible for reviewing the implementation of the undertakings
under the agreement on an annual basis. During the year, the
INEDs have reviewed the implementation of the Non-Competition
Agreement and confirmed that SINOMACH has been in full
compliance with the agreement and there was no breach by
SINOMACH.

SINOMACH has confirmed in writing to the Company of its
compliance with the Non-competition Agreement for disclosure in
this annual report during the year ended December 31, 2014.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTEREST IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

As at December 31, 2014, none of the Directors, the Supervisors
or their respective close associates had engaged in or had any
interest in any business which competes or may compete with
the businesses of the Group.

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Connected Transaction

The Company has on December 27, 2013 entered in
the capital injection agreement (the “Capital Injection
Agreement”) with SINOMACH, a controlling shareholder
of the Company and China National Electric Apparatus
Research Institute Co., Ltd. (the “Apparatus Institute”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of SINOMACH, pursuant to which
the Company injected a total of RMB105,400,722 into
Apparatus Institute by way of capital increase in cash. The
parties have entered into a rescission agreement on June
18, 2014 to rescind the Agreement in its entirety. Pursuant
to the rescission agreement, the Apparatus Institute had
refunded RMB105,400,722 (representing the capital increase
paid pursuant to the Capital Injection Agreement) to the
Company. Details for the transaction and the rescission may
refer to the Company’s announcements made on December
27, 2013 and June 18, 2014, respectively.

Non-Exempt Continuing Connected Transaction

The connected transactions of the Company are also related
party transactions, which are disclosed in note 34 to the
audited consolidated financial statements in accordance
with International Accounting Standard 24 “Related Party
Disclosure”.

In terms of the non-exempt continuing connected
transactions of category 1 to category 4 as stated below,
the Company obtained approval from the Stock Exchange
in respect of the annual caps of such continuing connected
transactions when the Company’s H Shares were listed,
and was granted a waiver from strict compliance with the
announcement and independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements.
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The table below set out the annual caps and the actual
transaction amount of such connected transactions for

2014:

TREIZFBEIHN2014F N F
BELERERERRZEH

Actual
Transaction

Annual cap Amount
Connected Transactions Connected Person for 2014 for 2014
201451 201451
HERXS BEAL FELR EBEBRRZLH
1 Provision of engineering services ~ N/A RMB573.0 RMB NIL
and products by our Group to  INEH million
SINOMACH Group (note(i))
AEEREKEERM AR ARE
TRRERER 573.0B&T v
(W)
2 Receipt of engineering services China Machinery Industry Construction Group INC.  RMB1,500.0 RMB1,236.54
and products from SINOMACH ~ dEl# T ¥ 2 REB AR LT million million
Group by our Group (note(i))
AEEEZEREED China National General Machinery Engineering AR AR
TRRBRER Corporation 1,500.0B87T 1,236.545 %
REBAKMIEERAR (W) 7T

China Machinery Engineering Corporation

FEEMRE IRROERAT

China JK Institute of Engineering Investigation and
Design Institute
BRI EHERFHRR

Harbin Power System Engineering and Research
Institute Co., Ltd.
REEEURENERIRABRAF

China Construction Machinery Co., Ltd.
PITREBKERRLA

China Machine-Build International Corporation

PR IMEER TR (FR R A
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Actual
Transaction

Annual cap Amount
Connected Person for 2014 for 2014
20145 1 20141
REAL FELR EBRRZLE
SINOMACH Chinaperfect (HK) Co., Ltd.
BgHE (58) BRAA

Shenyang Academy of Instrumentation Science
Co., Ltd.
BHERNEMERER DT

Shenyang Academy of Instrumentation Science
EHERTEM R

China Machinery TIDI Geotechnical Engineering
Co., Ltd.
FH=HELTTEERAR

China Ocean Aviation Group Limited
PEEFMERERRAA

Beijing Scientech International Project Management
Co., Ltd.
TR EEERTIRERERAA

Erzhong Group (Deyang) Heavy Equipment Wanlu
Transport Ltd.
FRE_SMRREEEGEKRESR
ARRE

IPPR Engineering International Co., Ltd.
RERRIRERERAA

Shanghai Hualong Import & Export Corporation
FEERERONT

Dingsheng Tiangong Construction Machinery
Trading Co., Ltd.
REXTTREMHERRLA
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Actual
Transaction

Annual cap Amount
Connected Transactions Connected Person for 2014 for 2014
201451 201451
BEXS BEAL FELR EBRRXZLE
COAG International Shipping Co., Ltd.
T EEREAE
China National Automation Control System Corp.
FEEB(EHRERAD
CMCU Engineering Co.,Ltd
R TRARD A
Guangzhou Kinte Industrial Co., Ltd.
BMEXREXBRAA
Zhengzhou Zhongxing Project Supervision Co., Ltd.
B ETRERER AT
China Ocean Engineering Construction General
Bureau
FBTIREERLR
China SANAN Construction Corporation
PE=ZERARL
3 Trading procurement by our Group  N/A RMB21.0 RMB NIL
from SINOMACH Group NEH million
AEERERERETEIRE (note(i))
AR ARE
21.0887T ey
(W)

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
PEEWREIEZROERAT
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Actual
Transaction

Annual cap Amount
Connected Transactions Connected Person for 2014 for 2014
201451 201451
BEXS BEAL FELR EBRR5LE
Provision of integrated services SINOMACH RMB53.0 RMB19.92
by our Group to SINOMACH Bk million million
Group (note(i))
AEEREEEBRRMESE RS SUMEC Group Corporation AR AR
TG EEEARAA 53.088m 19.92BET
(Hizt0))

China Ocean Aviation Group Incorporation
FEEFMERE AT

YTO (LUOYANG) DIESEL ENGINE CO., LTD.
—f (&15) KARERAF

China - Africa Machinery Corp.
FHEETREBRAA

Shanghai Lanbin Petrochemical Equipment Co.,
Ltd.
PREERRERRAELERA

YTO (LUOYANG) TRANSPORTATION MACHINERY
CO., LTD
—1 (865 ) MERHMARAF

China Machine-Building International Corporation

PEEHEIMEERI A (EE R A

China Yangtze Grinding Machine Import & Export
Corporation

FRERTERELOERAA

YTO (LUOYANG) AXLE CO., LTD
—# (8F5) BRARAF]

CHANGCHUN RESEARCH INSITITUTE FOR
MECHANCAL SCIENCE CO., LTD.
ERHHBRARAF

CHINA FOMA (GROUP) CO., LTD.
FEESEAEERRAA]

Beijing SNL Trading Co., Ltd.
TREMNESEBREEAT
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Actual
Transaction

Annual cap Amount

Connected Transactions Connected Person for 2014 for 2014
201451 201451

HERS BEAL FELR EBRRXZLE

Wuxi Drilling Tools Factory
ESERTARBRAR

YTO International, Ltd.
—HEREEEZERAA

LUOYANG BEARING RESEARCH INSTITUTE
RERARERARAR

Chinese Academy of Agricultural Mechanization
Sciences

hER R R B

CHINA AUTO CAIEC LTD.
PEAETREHNOBRAR

China National Automotive Industry International
Cooperation
PEAETERRAERRAR

Sinomach Exhibition Co., Ltd
IRk (b)) REBRAA

SUMEC Machinery & Electric Co., Ltd
I EERBERAA

CHINA NATIONAL ELECTRIC ENGINEERING LTD
PRENIRARAF

SUMEC Texitle & Light Industry Co., Ltd
IHHEEENERESBRAF

SUMEC Hardware & Tools Co., Ltd
TEEEERS TAERAR

China Machinery Industry Construction Group INC.
PREHIZEREEFRAF

China Sinogy Electric Engineering Co., Ltd.
FEBIEENERAR

Gongdong CMIC Import & Export Co., Ltd
BRXFERMEINEIEBRAT

1 14 China Machinery Engineering Corporation
PEEWREIEZROERAT
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Actual

Transaction

Annual cap Amount

Connected Person for 2014 for 2014
20145 1 20141

REAL FELR EBRRZLE

5

Financing services to our Group
from SINOMACH Group
E#EERARERE SRS

(1) deposit services
BHR%

China Machine-Building International Hebei Co., Ltd.
AR EEERRAR

Xiamen Hualong Import & Export Corporation
EFERENORE

Jiangsu LINHAI Group
LEHNED NEREELNR

SUMEC International Technology Co., Ltd
IHHEEZERRMESBRAF

JIANGSU WALLONG - HSIN IMPORT & EXPORT
CORPORATION LTD.
IBERRELOAF]

FIRST TRACTOR COMPANY LIMITED
FBAEBRNERA R

CMIC HEILONGUJIANG IMPORT & EXPORT CO., LTD.
RETIHEELOARAR

China Abrasives Import & Export Corporation
REERELENOATF

Guangzhou Kinte Industrial Co., Ltd
BMNEREEERAT

Sinomach Finance Co., Ltd.
B BERETEAR

RMB750.0 RMB740
million million
(note(ii)) (notefiii))
AR¥750.0 ARE740

BET BET
(H1izi) (H1ez (i)

Annual Report 2014
2014 F 3}

115




116

Report of Directors

EEEWRE

Actual
Transaction

Annual cap Amount
Connected Transactions Connected Person for 2014 for 2014
2014FH 20145FH
HRERS BEAL FELR EBEBRXZLHE
(2) entrusted deposit services RMB750.0 RMB NIL
B Y milion  ARBEL
(note(iv))
AR¥750.0
BET
(Br:z(v)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(i)

(v)

The annual cap is disclosed in the Prospectus of the Company
dated December 11, 2012.

The cap is disclosed in the announcement of the Company
published on June 20, 2013 and represents the cap of the
highest daily deposit balance.

The actual transaction amount represents the highest daily
deposit balance.

The annual cap is disclosed in the announcement of the
Company published on June 20, 2013.

Provision of engineering services and products by
our Group to SINOMACH Group

The Company entered into a framework agreement
on provision of engineering services and products
with SINOMACH on July 12, 2011 as supplemented
by the supplemental agreement dated December 10,
2012 (the “Provision of Engineering Services and
Products Agreement”). Pursuant to the agreement,
the Group provides engineering services and products,
including but not limited to, undertaking turnkey project
and provision of general contracting services in the
power and energy sector and procurement services
and products to SINOMACH Group for the engineering
contracting projects undertaken by SINOMACH Group,
in particular those engineering contracting projects

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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subcontracted to our Group by SINOMACH Group.
As the Provision of Engineering Services and Products
Agreement was expired on December 31, 2014, a
renewed provision of engineering services and products
agreement (the “Renewed Provision of Engineering
Services and Products Agreement”) was entered
into on November 14, 2014 by and between the
Company and SINOMACH, details of which were
disclosed in the Company’s announcement and circular
published on November 14 and 17, 2014, respectively.
The Renewed Provision of Engineering Services and
Products Agreement and the proposed annual caps for
the years ending December 31, 2015, 2016 and 2017
for the continuing connected transactions contemplated
thereunder have been approved by the 2014 third
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on
December 31, 2014 (the “2014 Third EGM”).

The Provision of Engineering Services and Products
Agreement is able to allow us to participate in certain
large-scale engineering contracting projects undertaken
by SINOMACH Group in situations where the relevant
engineering contracting projects have been undertaken
by SINOMACH Group and it has been impracticable to
transfer such engineering contracting projects to the
Group.

Please refer to relevant disclosure below for principal
terms and conditions of the Provision of Engineering
Services and Products Agreement.

SINOMACH is the controlling shareholder of the
Company and is, together with its subsidiaries, a
connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules.

During the reporting period, the annual cap of this
continuing connected transaction for 2014 was
RMB573.0 million and the actual transaction amount
was RMBnil.
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Receipt of engineering services and products from
SINOMACH Group by our Group

The Company entered into a framework agreement
on receipt of engineering services and products with
SINOMACH Group on July 12, 2011 as supplemented
by the supplemental agreement dated December 10,
2012 (the “Receipt of Engineering Services and
Products Agreement”). Pursuant to the agreement,
our Group receives engineering services and products
from SINOMACH Group, including but not limited
to, design, installation, construction, building,
subcontracting and procurement services and products
relating to its engineering contracting projects. As
the Receipt of Engineering Services and Products
Agreement was expired on December 31, 2014, a
renewed receipt of engineering services and products
agreement (the “Renewed Receipt of Engineering
Services and Products Agreement”) was entered into
on November 14, 2014 by and between the Company
and SINOMACH, details of which were disclosed in
the Company’s announcement and circular published
on November 14 and 17, 2014, respectively. The
Renewed Receipt of Engineering Services and Products
Agreement and the proposed annual caps for the
years ending December 31, 2015, 2016 and 2017 for
the continuing connected transactions contemplated
thereunder have been approved by the 2014 Third
EGM.

The Receipt of Engineering Services and Products
Agreement is able to allow the Group to subcontract
part of our construction works in line with the
common practice of participants in the international
engineering contracting market. In view of the fact that
SINOMACH Group is a well-established participant with
good reputation within the international engineering
contracting market which possesses strong capacity
and experience in the manufacturing, design, research
and development of various engineering products, the
Group has preference in sourcing relevant engineering
services and products from SINOMACH Group to gain
benefits from such technical strengths of them.
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Please refer to relevant disclosure below for principal
terms and conditions of the Receipt of Engineering
Services and Products Agreement.

SINOMACH is the controlling shareholder of the
Company and is, together with its subsidiaries, a
connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules.

During the reporting period, the annual cap of this
continuing connected transaction for 2014 was
RMB1,500.0 million and the actual transaction amount
was RMB1,236.54 million.

Trading procurement by our Group from
SINOMACH Group

The Company entered into a framework agreement
on the provision of trading products by SINOMACH
Group to our Group on July 12, 2011 as supplemented
by the supplemental agreement dated December 10,
2012 (the “Trading Procurement Agreement”).
Pursuant to the agreement, our Group sources various
trading products from SINOMACH Group to support
our Trading Business, which consist of, but not limited
to, agriculture machinery and equipment, agriculture
transportation vehicles, logging equipment and mining
equipment. As the Trading Procurement Agreement
was expired on December 31, 2014, a renewed trading
procurement agreement (the “Renewed Trading
Procurement Agreement”) was entered into on
November 14, 2014 by and between the Company
and SINOMACH, details of which were disclosed in
the Company’s announcement and circular published
on November 14 and 17, 2014, respectively. The
Renewed Trading Procurement Agreement and the
proposed annual caps for the years ending December
31, 2015, 2016 and 2017 for the continuing connected
transactions contemplated thereunder have been
approved by the 2014 Third EGM.
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In the view of the strong manufacturing capacity of
SINOMACH Group, the Trading Procurement Agreement
is able to facilitate the Trading Business.

Please refer to relevant disclosure below for principal
terms and conditions of the Trading Procurement
Agreement.

SINOMACH is the controlling shareholder of the
Company and is, together with its subsidiaries, a
connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules.

During the reporting period, the annual cap of this
continuing connected transaction for 2014 was
RMB21.0 million and the actual transaction amount was
RMBnil.

Provision of integrated services by our Group to
SINOMACH Group

The Company entered into a framework agreement on
the provision of integrated services by our Group to
SINOMACH Group on July 12, 2011 as supplemented
by the supplemental agreement dated December
10, 2012 (the “Integrated Services Agreement”).
Pursuant to the agreement, our Group provides
integrated services such as exhibition and conference
services, storage and logistics services, tendering
agency services, import and export agency services
and real estate leasing and management services
to SINOMACH Group in respect of the business
undertaken by SINOMACH Group. As the Integrated
Services Agreement was expired on December 31,
2014, a renewed integrated services agreement (the
“Renewed Integrated Services Agreement”) was
entered into on November 14, 2014 by and between
the Company and SINOMACH, details of which were
disclosed in the Company’s announcement and circular
published on November 14 and 17, 2014, respectively.
The Renewed Integrated Services Agreement and the
proposed annual caps for the years ending December
31, 2015, 2016 and 2017 for the continuing connected
transactions contemplated thereunder have been
approved by the 2014 Third EGM.
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SINOMACH Group has engaged the Group to provide
them with certain integrated services which the Group
is qualified in providing. The Integrated Services
Agreement is able to increase the revenue and profits of
the Group.

Please refer to relevant disclosure below for principal
terms and conditions of the Integrated Services
Agreement.

SINOMACH is the controlling shareholder of the
Company and is, together with its subsidiaries, a
connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules.

During the reporting period, the annual cap of this
continuing connected transaction for 2014 was
RMB53.0 million and the actual transaction amount was
RMB19.92 million.

Principal terms of the agreement

Each of the Provision of Engineering Services and Products
Agreement, Receipt of Engineering Services and Products
Agreement, Trading Procurement Agreement and Integrated
Services Agreement is a framework agreement that comprises
the general terms and conditions upon which the Group
and SINOMACH Group shall carry out the particular type of
transactions contemplated thereunder. Members of SINOMACH
Group and members of the Group may from time to time enter
into detailed agreements in respect of the specific services and/or
products to be provided or received by the Group, provided that
the terms of such detailed agreements shall not be inconsistent
with the terms of the respective framework agreement. The
actual services and/or products to be provided or received by
our Group shall be subject to such detailed agreements entered
into between the relevant member of SINOMACH Group and the
relevant member of the Group from time to time.
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Each of the Provision of Engineering Services and Products
Agreement, Receipt of Engineering Services and Products
Agreement, Trading Procurement Agreement and Integrated
Services Agreement is of a term commencing from the Listing
Date and ending on December 31, 2014 and may be renewed
on terms to be agreed upon by SINOMACH and the Company.
Each of such framework agreements (i) may be terminated by
a non-defaulting party by serving a written default notice to the
defaulting party stipulating the relevant breach and the defaulting
party having failed to remedy such breach within a reasonable
period after its receipt of the default notice; and (ii) shall be
terminated automatically if the performance of the transactions
contemplated thereunder will be in breach of the requirements
under the Listing Rules or the necessary approvals required under
the Listing Rules or relevant waivers from the Stock Exchange
cannot be obtained.

Pursuant to each of the Provision of Engineering Services and
Products Agreement, Receipt of Engineering Services and
Products Agreement, Trading Procurement Agreement and
Integrated Services Agreement, the price payable for the subject
services and/or products thereunder shall be determined in
accordance with the prevailing market price of the relevant
services and/or products, unless there is a guidance price
range determined by the relevant governmental authorities.
The prevailing market price shall be the price asked for by
independent third parties for the relevant services and/or products
under normal commercial terms at the relevant time in their place
of supply or a place in close proximity to such place of supply,
or the price asked for by independent third parties for supplying
the relevant services and/or products under normal commercial
terms at the relevant time. Where there are no available prevailing
market prices or where it is impracticable to obtain such market
prices, the Company and SINOMACH shall mutually agree on
a price determined based on reasonable costs of the provision
of the relevant service and/or product, and a reasonable profit
margin.
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Financing services to our Group from SINOMACH
Group

The Company entered into a framework agreement
on receipt of financial services with Sinomach Finance
Co., Ltd. (the “Finance Company”), a subsidiary of
SINOMACH Group, on June 20, 2013 (the “Financial
Services Agreement”). Pursuant to the agreement,
our Group sources various financial services from the
Finance Company, including but not limited to deposit,
general loan, entrusted loan and general financial
services. Under the Financial Services Agreement, the
fees charged by the Finance Company for its services
to be provided to the Group are comparable to those
charged by the PRC commercial banks or other
financial institutions in the PRC for similar services.
The Finance Services Agreement is for a fixed term
of three years, commencing from June 20, 2013. A
new financial service agreement dated November 14,
2014 (the “New Financial Services Agreement”)
entered into by and between the Company and the
Finance Company to replace the Financial Services
Agreement which will be automatically terminated
once the New Financial Services Agreement becomes
effective. The New Financial Services Agreement has
become effective upon approved by the 2014 Third
EGM, thus the Financial Services Agreement has been
automatically terminated. The proposed annual caps for
the years ending December 31, 2015, 2016 and 2017
for the continuing connected transactions contemplated
under the New Financial Services Agreement have been
approved by the 2014 Third EGM.

Details for the New Financial Services Agreement may
refer to the Company’s announcement and circular
published on November 14 and 17, 2014, respectively.
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Financial services and major terms

Pursuant to the Financial Services Agreement, the
Finance Company agrees to provide to the Group the
following financial services:

Type 1 — Deposit Services

The Finance Company will provide deposit taking
services for current deposits, call deposits, 7-day
deposits and time deposits (3-month, 6-month and
1-year). The Finance Company offers interest rates
for the Group’s deposits according to the rates to be
published by People’s Bank of China (the “PBOC”) and
no lower than those offered by commercial banks in the
PRC for provision of similar services to the Group.

Type 2 — General Loan Services

The Finance Company will provide various types of
loans to the Group (including working capital loans,
fixed assets loans, finance leases and purchaser’s credit
business). The Finance Company may also provide
integrated credit facilities to the Group according to the
needs of the Group, which include letters of guarantee,
letters of credit, bill acceptance and discounting.
In connection with the provision of the general loan
services, the Finance Company will charge interests
according to the rates published by the PBOC and
shall not charge interest rates higher than those set
by commercial banks in the PRC for similar loans or
credit facilities, and that no security over assets will be
required from the Group.
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Type 3 — Entrusted Loan Services

It is a standalone transaction not relating to any
other types of services under the Financial Services
Agreement. Under this type of service, the Group will
provide entrusted deposits (the “Entrusted Deposits”)
to the Finance Company, and the Finance Company
will then lend the full amount of the Entrusted Deposits
to the relevant members of the Group designated by
the Group on the same day (the “Entrusted Loan
Services”). The Finance Company commits that no
security over assets will be required from the Group. In
relation to the provision of Entrusted Loan Services to
the Group, the Finance Company shall not charge fees
which are higher than those set by commercial banks in
the PRC for similar services.

Type 4 — General Financial Services

The general financial services to be provided by the
Finance Company to the Group include collection,
payment and settlement services, handling issuance
of letters of guarantee and letters of credit, handling of
bill acceptance and discounting, financial and financing
consultation, arrangement of credit certification and
related consultation and agency services, underwriting
of corporate bonds and other businesses which the
Finance Company are approved by China Banking
Regulatory Commission to carry out. The Finance
Company will charge service fees for the provision of
the aforesaid services. Such service fees shall not be
higher than those charged by commercial banks in the
PRC for similar services.

The Finance Company is a subsidiary of SINOMACH
which is the controlling shareholder of the Company
and is a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules.
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During the reporting period, the cap for the maximum
daily deposit balance (including any interest accrued
thereon) with the Finance Company was RMB750.0
million and the actual amount was RMB740 million. The
annual cap for the Entrusted Deposits with the Finance
Company was RMB750.0 million (including any interest
accrued thereon) and the actual amount was nil.

The INEDs have reviewed each of the above mentioned
continuing connected transactions and confirmed that the
transactions have been conducted:

(1)

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company;

on normal commercial terms or, if there are no sufficient
comparable transactions to determine whether they are
on normal commercial terms, from the perspective of
the Company, on terms no less favorable than the terms
available to or from independent third parties; and

in accordance with relevant agreements governing the
relevant transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged
the auditor of the Company to conduct a limited assurance
engagement on the above continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits
or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has reported
their conclusion to the Board stating that:

nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the non-exempt continuing connected
transactions have not been approved by the Board;

for transactions involving the provision of goods or services
by the Group, nothing has come to the auditors’ attention
that causes the auditor to believe that the transactions were
not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Company;
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c. nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the transactions were not entered
into, in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing such transactions; and

d. with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the non-
exempt continuing connected transactions set out above,
nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the non-exempt continuing connected
transactions have exceeded the maximum aggregate annual
value disclosed above.

The auditor has issued their unqualified letter containing their
findings and conclusions in respect of the abovementioned
transactions in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.
The Company has provided a copy of the said letter to the Stock
Exchange.

In respect of the above-mentioned non-exempt connected
transactions, the Directors also confirmed that the Company was
in compliance with the disclosure requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

The material post balance sheet events are disclosed in note 37
to the audited consolidated financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee had reviewed together with the management
and external auditor the accounting principles and policies
adopted by the Group and the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2014.
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CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING EMPLOYEES’
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company also adopted its own code of conduct regarding
employees’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting
than the standard set out in the Model Code for the compliance
by its relevant employees who are likely to be in possession
of unpublished price-sensitive information of the Company in
respect of their dealings in the Company’s securities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance to safeguard the interests of the
Shareholders and to enhance corporate value and accountability.
The Company has adopted the CG Code as its own code of
corporate governance. The Company has complied with the
code provisions as set out in the CG Code during the year
ended December 31, 2014 and up to the date of this report.
The Company will continue to review and enhance its corporate
governance practices to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Stock Exchange granted to the Company a waiver from
strict compliance with Rule 8.08(1) of the Listing Rules (the
“Public Float Waiver”). Pursuant to the Public Float Waiver, the
Company’s prescribed minimum percentage of Shares which
must be in public hands must not be less than 22.01% of the
total issued share capital of the Company. Based on information
publicly available to the Company and to the knowledge of the
Directors, at least 22.01% of the Company’s total issued share
capital, the prescribed minimum percentage of public float
approved by the waiver and permitted under the Listing Rules,
are held by the public at all times as of the date of this report.
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AUDITORS

At the 2014 second extraordinary general meeting of the
Company held on October 20, 2014, Ernst & Young (&K & &tEl
E7%F7) was appointed as the Company’s external international
auditor in place of KPMG (5@ st = #F7) and Ernst &
Young Hua Ming LLP (Special General Partnership) (%7K ZRH
SHAIEBEATERERA ) was appointed as the Company’s
domestic auditor. The 2014 consolidated financial statements
of the Company prepared in accordance with IFRS have been
audited by Ernst & Young.

A resolution for the reappointment of Ernst & Young as auditors
of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

USE OF PROCEEDS

As disclosed in the announcement dated August 4, 2014 of the
Company, the actual net proceeds from the Global Offering (the
“IPO Proceeds”) amounted to approximately HK$4,358.9 million
(based on the final offer price of HK$5.4, and after deducting the
underwriting fees and related expenses and the exercise of the
over-allotment option).

It was disclosed in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of
Proceeds” in the Prospectus and further disclosed pursuant to
the announcement dated June 20, 2013 of the Company relating
to the adjustment in use of proceeds that the Company intended
to use the IPO Proceeds for the following purposes:

e approximately 90% of the IPO Proceeds will be applied
towards financing the Group’s international engineering
contracting projects; and

e approximately 10% of the IPO Proceeds will be used for
working capital and other general corporate purposes
(collectively, the “Proposed Uses”).
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The following table sets forth the amount of IPO Proceeds already

TREFIN2014FE12 831 B E BIERTE B

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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applied to the Proposed Uses as of December 31, 2014: BRBERAFBEEMEHIESE -
(Unit: HK$)
(&f7 : BT)
The amount of % of
IPO Proceeds IPO Proceeds % of
already applied  already applied IPO Proceeds
to the Proposed  to the Proposed dedicated
Uses as of Uses as of  to be applied to
December 31, December 31, each of the
2014 2014 Proposed Uses
R2014512A318 R2014F12A8317 HHARE
ERfREREZ CRERTRE BERZMN
MERDRRE L EPENGE EONE
FENESE MENENEIL FERENEIR
To finance the international engineering BNBERIREARIEE
contracting projects
a. 16 projects in the Core Sectors a. 16 RZOITEEE
i. 14 projects in the power sector . 14ERENTEEE  2,535,466,038.84 58% 58%
ii. 1 project in the transportation sector i 1EARBERNTEER - - 18%
iii. 1 project in the telecommunications i. 1EASTFRATEEE
sector 130,765,825.53 3% 3%
b. 1 project in the non-Core Sector b. 1ERFFZLITEER 373,608,115.47 9% 1%
To use as working capital and other B EE S REM—R
general corporate purposes Pr¥R% 436,503,515.43 10% 10%
Total st 3,476,343,495.27 80% 100%




COMPLIANCE WITH SANCTIONS
UNDERTAKINGS

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the Company and the Directors
have covenanted to the Stock Exchange that they will not, directly
or indirectly, (1) use any of the proceeds from the Global Offering,
or make such proceeds available to any individual or entity, to
fund any activities in or business of or with (i) any individual or
entity or (i) in any country or territory, that at the time of such
funding, is the target of any sanctions administered by OFAC, or
(2) engage in any activity that is sanctionable under the ISA (as
amended by the Comprehensive Iran Sanctions, Accountability,
and Divestment Act of 2010) or the Executive Order 13590 (the
“Executive Order”) for so long as the ISA and Executive Order
remain in effect (the “Sanctions Undertakings”). The Directors
confirmed that both the Company and the Directors were in
compliance with the Sanctions Undertakings as at the date of
this report. In particular, the Company has taken the following
measures to ensure compliance with the Sanctions Undertakings:

1. Proceeds Account — The Company has opened and
maintained separate designated banks account for the
proceeds from the Listing in Hong Kong as at the date
of this report (the “Proceeds Accounts”). The Proceeds
Account is segregated from other normal bank accounts of
our Company and designated for the sole use of deposit
and deployment of the proceeds from Listing. With such
segregation and designation, the Proceeds Account records
all transactions and activities within these bank accounts and
trace the flow of funds in and out of the Proceeds Account.

Report of Directors

EEEHE

& <F B BAGE

BINBRERAEE > ARRREFER
B PTEGE - WERB T ERKERMND
FRERZREERFHIEA » RAEAEA
S ERIEHZFEIE - UAENEFE
ARBERBH(NEMERHEL (RER T
BEZE  BINBEEEEHBMERMNE
AHENBR) AROEMESREELS
FEFEFETHERNEBREES - Q)
PR BAHIEE (4820104 2 T 7 BA #l £0%
fE&]) 1T <13590%% ([#ATS ) R
BERHEA2BZFRABIEERRITSM
BIEHEADE S (THIRARE]) - ER(EH
R BEAREEH  ARAFARERY
BT HIE AR - LEZ  AABEHERT
SIEHE - DAREORIE ST BREE

1. FE3AKRE - RACHRBEARS
BHEIREE LM MERERL L
FEBNETRITERS ([FIERER
Bl FIEARE EARF HM—
RRIRTTARP D BEFI 2K - Y8 E 1EME—
ik IEARBE ETASHIE -
ENEAREDRENRKEFIEE - AT
RERBECHEXSRITRPAE
THMBERZ KA WRAEHME
FIERENESRELER

Annual Report 2014
2014 F 3}

131




132

Report of Directors

EEEWRE

Accounting measures — The Company has ensured that
separate books and records are in place to monitor the
activities, including deposits and disbursements, of the
Proceeds Accounts.

Internal control policies — We have formulated a dedicated
set of internal control policies particularly in respect of the
Proceeds Account to regulate various aspects of operating
the Proceeds Account, such as the designated use, record
keeping (e.g. the underlying documents for projects or
transactions towards which the proceeds will be applied),
regular review, responsible personnel to be appointed,
accountability and reporting line and other necessary
operational procedures.

Internal compliance program on export control (the “ICP”)
— With the Company’s existing ICP platform, the export
control office has continued to be responsible for project
screening, evaluation and approval from an export control
perspective to ensure the nature and location of the activities
or business, as well as the identity of the counterparties
and products involved, etc., would not violate the Sanctions
Undertakings.

By Order of the Board
SUN Bai
Chairman

Beijing, PRC, April 22, 2015
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report
in the annual report of the Company for year ended December
31, 2014 (the “Year”). In addition, certain information regarding
the Directors and the board committees has been updated as at
the date of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance to safeguard the interests of Shareholders
and to enhance corporate value and accountability. The CG Code
has been adopted as the Company’s own code of corporate
governance. The Company had applied the principles and
complied with all applicable code provisions as set out in the CG
Code during the Year. The Company will continue to review and
enhance its corporate governance practices to ensure compliance
with the CG Code.

Chairman and President

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
performed by different individuals. Under the current organization
structure of the Company, Mr. SUN Bai is the Chairman of the
Board and Mr. ZHANG Chun is the President. The balance of
power and authority is ensured by the operation of the senior
management and the Board, which comprise experienced and
high caliber individuals. Pursuant to the Articles of Association,
the primary duties and responsibilities of the chairman of the
Board include:

a) presiding over the shareholders’ general meetings and
convening and presiding over meetings of the Board,
examining the implementation of the resolutions of the
Board;

b) organizing the formulation of regulations on the operation of
the Board, and coordinating the operation of the Board;
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receiving regular or non-regular performance reports on the
Company’s senior management; and

giving opinions guiding the execution of board resolutions
and signing the Company’s share certificates, debentures

and other important documents.

major responsibilities of the president of the Company

include:

a)

leading the production, operation and management of the
Company, and reporting his works to the Board;

organizing the implementation of the resolutions of the
Board, the Company’s annual business plans and investment
plans;

preparing the Company’s annual budgets and final accounts,
and providing recommendations to the Board;

formulating the plans for merger, division or reorganization of
the wholly-owned subsidiaries and controlled subsidiaries of
the Company;

preparing plans for the establishment of the Company’s
basic management system and the internal management
structure, preparing plans for the establishment of domestic
and overseas branches of the Company, formulating specific
rules and regulations of the Company;

appointing or removing the management personnel, except
for those that shall be appointed or removed by the Board;

formulating the remunerations, benefits and incentive
programs, as well as the appointment and removal of the
Company’s employees;

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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h)  proposing to convene an extraordinary board meeting when
emergency arises; and

i) determining on investment, financing, contracts and
transactions of the Company within the scope of
authorization of the Board.

The chairman of the Company held a meeting with the non-
executive Directors (including the INEDs) without the presence of
the executive Directors during the Year.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS
AND SUPERVISORS

The Company adopted the Model Code as its own code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Upon
specific enquiry of all the Directors and Supervisors of the
Company, all the Directors and Supervisors confirmed that
they had complied with the Model Code during the year ended
December 31, 2014.

The Company also adopted its own code of conduct regarding
employees’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting
than the standard set out in the Model Code for the compliance
by its relevant employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished price-sensitive information or inside information
of the Company in respect of their dealings in the Company’s
securities.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is primarily responsible for overseeing and supervising
the management of the business affairs and the overall
performance of the Group. The Board sets the Group’s values
and standards and ensures that the requisite financial and human
resources support are in place for the Group to achieve its
objectives. The functions performed by the Board include but not
limited to formulating the Group’s business plans and strategies,
reviewing the Company’s financial results and performance and
approving its interim and annual results; approving appointment,
removal or re-appointment of the Board members upon the
recommendation of the Nomination Committee of the Board;
approving the remuneration package of directors and senior
management of the Company upon the recommendation of the
Remuneration Committee established by the Board, deciding
all significant financial (including major capital expenditure) and
operational issues, developing, monitoring and reviewing the
Group’s corporate governance, and all other functions reserved
to the Board under the Company’s Articles and Association. The
Board may from time to time delegate certain functions to senior
management of the Group if and when considered appropriate.
The senior management is mainly responsible for the execution of
the business plans, strategies and policies adopted by the Board
and assigned to it from time to time.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out their duties in good
faith, in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in
the interests of the Company and its Shareholders at all times.

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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Currently, the Board comprises the following nine Directors:

Executive Directors
SUN Bai (Chairman)
ZHANG Chun (President)

Non-Executive Directors
WANG Zhian

YU Benli

ZHANG Fusheng

INEDs

LIU Li

LIU Hongyu
FANG Yongzhong
WU Tak Lung

The biographical details of each of the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Directors, Supervisors, Senior Management and
Employees” of this annual report.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no financial,
business, family or other material relationship among the
Directors.

The two Executive Directors are responsible for the leadership
and control of the Company and overseeing the Group’s
businesses, strategic decisions and performances and are
collectively responsible for promoting the success of the
Company by directing and supervising its affairs.

The four INEDs are responsible for ensuring a high standard of
financial and other mandatory reporting of the Board as well as
providing a balance in the Board in order to effectively exercise
independent judgment on the corporate actions of the Company
so as to protect shareholders’ interest and overall interest of the
Group.
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Throughout the Year, the Company had at all times met the
requirement of the Listing Rules that the number of INEDs must
represent at-least one-third of the Board members and at least
one of the INEDs had appropriate professional qualifications
of accounting or related financial management expertise. The
Company has four INEDs currently representing four-ninths of the
Board and therefore the Company has complied with the Listing
Rules.

All Directors, including the INEDs, have brought a wide spectrum
of valuable business experience, knowledge and professionalism
to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning. The
INEDs were invited to serve on the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee, the
Strategy and Development Committee and the Operation and
Risk Management Committee.

As regards the CG Code provision requiring directors to disclose
the number and nature of offices held in public companies or
organizations and other significant commitments as well as
their identity and the time involved to the issuer, the Directors
agreed to disclose their commitments to the Company in a timely
manner.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage on
the liabilities of the Directors and officers in respect of any legal
actions taken against the Directors and senior management
arising out of corporate activities. The insurance coverage is
reviewed on an annual basis.

Confirmation of Independence

Each of the INEDs has made an annual confirmation of
independence by reference to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
the Board is satisfied that all INEDs were independent and met
the independent guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules, up to the date of this annual report.
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Directors’ Induction and Continuous Professional
Development

Each newly appointed Director has received formal,
comprehensive and tailored induction on the first occasion of
his/her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of the
business and operations of the Company and full awareness of
Director’s responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules
and relevant statutory requirements.

The Company has from time to time provided briefings to all
Directors to develop and refresh the Directors’ duties and
responsibilities. Continuing briefing and professional development
for Directors will be arranged whenever necessary. The
Directors are provided with monthly updates on the Company’s
performance, position and prospects to enable the Board as
a whole and each Director to discharge his or her duties. All
Directors are also encouraged to attend relevant training courses
at the Company’s expense. They have been required to provide
the Company with their training records.

During the Year, all Directors had participated in continuous
professional development (“CPD”) to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills by reading materials and/or attending
briefings by legal counsels or seminars organised by professional
bodies on corporate governance or updates on laws, rules and
regulations relating to the roles, functions and duties of a director.
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Individual record of each Director who received training for the

AEE RTINS EFNEA YR

Year is summarised as follows: mr
Directors Type of CPD
Ex FESEBRRNESR
(Notes)
(Kist)
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. SUN Bai Baks Aand B
AKB
Ms. LI Taifang (appointment ceased effective ERF L (RAER2014F2 82084 11)
on February 20, 2014) A
Mr. ZHANG Chun REEE Aand B
AKB
Non-executive Directors EHTES
Mr. PAN Chongyi (appointment ceased effective BERELE (ZER2014F2 5208 4 1E)
on February 20, 2014) A
Mr. WANG Zhian FRREE Aand B
AKB
Mr. YU Benli (appointed on February 20, 2014) RAGLAE (R2014F2A20H ) Aand B
AKB
Mr. ZHANG Fusheng (appointed on February 20, 2014) R84 %4 (R2014F2 A20 8 EEF) Aand B
AKB
INEDs BUKHITES
Mr. LIU Li ghkHsE Aand B
AKB
Ms. LIU Hongyu B Ft Aand B
AKB
Mr. FANG Yongzhong FKBEE Aand B
AKB
Mr. CHAN Kin Ho Philip (appointment ceased effective  FBREzZ %4 (ZER201452 4208 4&1F)
on February 20, 2014) A
Mr. WU Tak Lung (appointed on February 20, 2014) REEEL L (R201452 A20 B EEE) Aand B
AKB

Notes:

A:  attending seminars/forums/workshops/conferences relevant to the A:

business or directors’ duties

B:  studying regulatory updates on laws, rules and regulations relating

to directors’ roles and functions

All Directors had provided the Company with their training records

for the Year.
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Meetings of Board and Board Committees and Directors’
Attendance Records

The Company adopts the practice of holding board meetings
regularly, at least four times a year. Notices of not less than
fourteen days are given for all regular board meetings to provide
all Directors with an opportunity to attend and include matters in
the agenda for a regular meeting. For other Board and committee
meetings, reasonable notice is generally given. The agenda and
accompanying board papers are dispatched to the Directors or
committee members at least fourteen days before the regular
meetings and at least five days before the extraordinary meetings
to ensure that they have sufficient time to review the papers and
be adequately prepared for the meetings. When the Directors or
committee members are unable to attend a meeting, he or she
may appoint in writing another Director to attend the meeting on
his or her behalf. The power of attorney shall specify the scope of
authorization. The proxy shall exercise the rights of the Director
within the scope of the authorization. A Director failing to attend
the board meeting in person or by proxy shall be deemed as
having waived his or her voting rights at such meeting.

The Joint Company Secretaries or his/her delegate are
responsible for keeping all minutes of the Board meetings and
the Board committees. Draft minutes are normally circulated
to Directors for comments within a reasonable time after each
meeting and the final version is open for Directors’ inspection.
According to the Listing Rules, any directors and their close
associates with a material interest in the transactions to be
discussed at the Board meetings will abstain from voting on
resolutions approving such transactions and will not be counted
in the quorum at meetings.

Any Director wishing to do so in the furtherance of his or
her duties may take independent professional advice at the
Company’s expense. Directors get familiar with the Group’s
principal activities through initial induction, ongoing participation
at the Board and committee meetings, and meeting with key
members of management. The Directors are encouraged to
update their skills and knowledge.
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In 2014 and as of March 29, 2015, the Company held 18 Board
meetings (including written resolutions), three extraordinary
general meetings, one annual general meeting and four class
meetings (collectively, the “Shareholders’ Meetings”). Details of

attendance of the Directors are as follows:

© &k
= = A

RITIBRES

20144 R H £20153H290 © ARIT
(BIEEmRZ) =
KBREFRRE - —RBRRAFAE LD
RERIRERE (6B BREAE]) -EF

HESMZESHCHABHRIIMT -

Board  Shareholders’
Directors meetings Meetings
Es Exgez BRRAE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. SUN Bai Y isp it 18/18 8/8
Ms. LI Taifang (appointment ceased effective EXRFL (RER
on February 20, 2014) 20142 A20H 4 1k) 2/2 0N
Mr. ZHANG Chun REEE 18/18 8/8
Non-Executive Directors FHTES
Mr. PAN Chongyi (appointment ceased effective BEERE (RER
on February 20, 2014) 201452 A20B & 1F) 2/2 0/1
Mr. WANG Zhian TRERE 18/18 8/8
Mr. YU Benli (appointed on February 20, 2014) RARALLE (R2014%F
2R20AEZAT) 16/16 5/5
Mr. ZHANG Fusheng (appointed on February 20, 2014)  RE4ES% 4 (R20144
2A20HEZ1E) 16/16 5/5
INEDs BUFHTES
Mr. LIU Li 2NkE 18/18 8/8
Ms. LIU Hongyu ATFL L 18/18 5/8
Mr. FANG Yongzhong FKEBEE 18/18 8/8
Mr. CHAN Kin Ho Philip (appointment ceased effective on [R5 54 (ZER
February 20, 2014) 201452 A20H#K1E) 2/2 1/1
Mr. WU Tak Lung (appointed on February 20, 2014) RERELE (20145
2RA20BEZEE) 16/16 4/5
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy and discussed all
measurable objectives set for implementing the policy.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity
of Board members. It endeavours to ensure that the Board has
a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business.
All Board appointments will continue to be made on a merit
basis with due regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board
members. Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, experience (professional
or otherwise), skills and knowledge. The ultimate decision will
be made upon the merits and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established, with written terms of reference,
five Board committees, namely the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”), the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”), the nomination Committee (the “Nomination
Committee”), the strategy and development committee
(the “Strategy and Development Committee”) and the
operation and risk management committee (the “Operation
and Risk Management Committee”) (together, the “Board
Committees”), to oversee particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. The Board Committees are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties.

The written terms of reference for each Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee are in line
with the Listing Rules and they are posted on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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Audit Committee

The Board established the Audit Committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. The Audit Committee
comprises two INEDs and one non-executive Director, namely
Mr. LIU Li, Ms. LIU Hongyu and Mr. WANG Zhian, the majority
of them are INEDs. Mr. LIU Li is the chairman of the Audit
Committee.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include, among
others:

a) To review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the internal audit
division or external auditor before submission to the Board;

b) To review the relationship with the external auditor by
reference to the work performed by the auditor, their fees
and terms of engagement, and make recommendations to
the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal
of external auditor; and

c) To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures, including
the adequacy of the resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programs and budget of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function.

In 2014 and as of March 29, 2015, the Audit Committee held six
meetings to review and supervise the financial reporting process
and internal control review. It had in conjunction with KPMG, the
original external auditor of the Company, reviewed the Group’s
audited results for the year ended December 31, 2013 and
unaudited interim results for 2014 and recommended the same
to the Board for their consideration and approval. It had also in
conjunction with Ernst & Young, the existing external auditor of
the Company, reviewed the Group’s audited results for the year
ended December 31, 2014 and recommended the same to the
Board for their consideration and approval. The Audit Committee
was of the opinion that the preparation of such results complied
with the applicable accounting standards and requirements and
that adequate disclosures have been made. The Audit Committee
made recommendation to the Board on the change of external
auditor of the Company for 2014 and the engagement of Ernst
& Young and Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP (Special General
Partnership) as the international auditor and domestic auditor
of the Company. The Audit Committee also carried out and
discharged its other duties as set out in the CG Code.
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Details of attendance of the Audit Committee meetings are as EHLEBEeezNHREEBOT

follows:

Directors Attendance
BE=E HE RS
Mr. LIU Li (Chairman) BIHkAE (/) 6/6
Ms. LIU Hongyu BT F 4 6/6
Mr. WANG Zhian TARTRE 6/6
Remuneration Committee FHNEEE

The Board established the Remuneration Committee with EFeRBECEXERATANIENEZE
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The g UWLEEHEHBESRE - FWES
Remuneration Committee comprises two INEDs and one non- EHMABELIERNTEER —BIIFNITE
executive Director, namely Mr. FANG Yongzhong, Mr. WANG BHEK - DRIRFKARE  TRREE
Zhian and Mr. LIU Li, the majority of them are INEDs. Mr. FANG RENFE  REBHOKERBEIIERNITE

Yongzhong is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee. FopkBEERTMEERER -
The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include, FTNEEerFERERE (B4 eE) -

among others:

a) To make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s a) BARANEZFTLREREEABH

policy and structure for remuneration of the Directors and HERBE  RRBLIERMEER
senior management and on the establishment of a formal ERREFHTEHIMNBER  MEZgIR
and transparent procedure for developing the remuneration R

policy;

b) To review and approve the management’s remuneration b) AEZEFEMICENSHLBEM
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and e ML EE IR E A B R
objectives; and

c) To determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration o) UEREBEECENHTEERAER

packages of individual executive Directors and senior ERABRF S S ERBHT
management, or to make recommendations to the Board on EENERERBAEBNTMHSGERAE
the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors EERHES -

and senior management.
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In 2014 and as of March 29, 2015, the Remuneration Committee
made the following recommendations to the Board with respect
to the existing remuneration policies: to evaluate the performance
of each Director and approve the execution of terms of the
service contracts or letter of appointments of the Directors of the
second session of the Board, and to make recommendation to
the Board with respect to the remuneration packages of individual
Director and senior management member.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held three meetings
to review and make recommendation on the remuneration
packages of the executive Directors, chairman of the Board and
senior management and the director’s fee of the INEDs.

Details of attendance of the Remuneration Committee meetings
are as follows:

20144 R E £201543H290 © HM =
BepBTNTMBERnESeRLOT
B IS ESHRBARIERITE
EEFSEENRBEEOKNEFRGR
Rt EERaAETEA BN NGE
mMEFROLEE -

RAFE HFHEZESR
EHTRZANTES &
ABBF B A R B IEH
=BT -

FHZBeRRNLFEFBLOT

Directors Attendance
S HERE
Mr. FANG Yongzhong (Chairman) FKBIEE () 3/3
Mr. SUN Bai (ceased on October 20, 2014) (note) H%E (2014510 A20 8 R E) (A7:7) 2/2
Mr. WANG Zhian PRkt

(appointed on October 20, 2014) (note) (F2014F10 208 EERT) (K1it) 1/1
Mr. LIU Li BlhkE 3/3

Note: Details for the change of members of the Remuneration
Committee may refer to the Company’s announcement published
on October 20, 2014.
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Remuneration Policy of Directors

Each Director has entered into service contract or letter of
appointment with the Company. Each executive Director is
entitled to an annual fixed fee (tax included) pursuant to the
service contract entered into with the Company. The fee includes,
among others, salaries, benefits, duty subsidies and pension
contribution as determined in accordance with the laws and
regulations of the PRC and the policy guidance issued by the
senior regulatory authorities as well as the duties, performance
and working experience of the executive Director. Meanwhile,
the executive Director is also entitled to management bonus as
determined by the Board or the Remuneration Committee with
reference to the overall operating results and performance of
the Company. The decision to grant such management bonus
was made by the general meeting or the Board under the
authorization of the general meeting. Each non-executive Director
and each INED is entitled to fixed subsidy, which is determined
with reference to the prevailing market price, pursuant to the
service contract or letter of appointment entered into with the
Company. Reasonable fees incurred by the Directors during their
services in the Company shall be borne by the Company.

Nomination Committee

The Board established the Nomination Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The
Nomination Committee comprises two INEDs and one Executive
Director, namely Ms. LIU Hongyu, Mr. SUN Bai and Mr. FANG
Yongzhong, the majority of them are INEDs. Mr. SUN Bai is the
chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include, among
others:

a) To review the structure, size and composition of the Board
on a regular basis according to the operating activities,
asset size and equity structure of the Company and make
recommendations regarding any proposed changes;

AN\ Al e
(1= 'Eq/niﬁ%
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b) To make recommendations to the Board on appointment or
re-appointment of and succession planning for Directors;

c) To identify candidates who are qualified/suitable to join the
Board and to select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of candidates nominated for directorships;

d) To assess the candidates for the senior management of the
Company and its wholly-owned and controlled subsidiaries,
and provide appraisal opinions to the Board; and

e) To assess the independence of the INEDs.

During the Year, the nomination and recommendation policies
and procedures of the Directors of the Company implemented
by the Nomination Committee rule that candidates of Directors
(excluding INEDs) shall be nominated and recommended by
the Controlling Shareholder, while candidates of INEDs shall
be selected by the Nomination Committee. Such candidates
of Directors (including INEDs) shall at least comply with the
relevant requirements of Chapter 6 of the Company Law, Chapter
3 and 13 of the Listing Rules and Chapter 14 of the Articles
of Association. Candidates of INEDs shall also comply with
the requirement on independence of Chapter 3 of the Listing
Rules. The Board is responsible for providing information on the
candidates to the shareholders and the appointment of Directors
shall be determined by the general meeting.

In 2014 and as of March 29, 2015, the Nomination Committee
held one meeting to make recommendation on senior
management members of the Company and candidates for
Directors of the second session of the Board.
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Details of attendance of the Nomination Committee meetings are REZEeexNEESBEOT -

as follows:

Directors Attendance
BE=E H IR E
Mr. SUN Bai (Chairman) BmkE (£E) 1/1
Ms. LIU Hongyu BT F 4 1/1
Mr. FANG Yongzhong AL 1/1
Strategy and Development Committee BHRERXEZES

The Strategy and Development Committee comprises two HEEERZESHMEBRTES  — R
Executive Directors, one Non-Executive Director and one INED, HFPTESR —BREUENTES - D7
namely Mr. SUN Bai, Mr. ZHANG Chun, Mr. YU Benli and Mr. LIU REBEMEE  REZEE RAEBEERS
LI. Mr. SUN Bai is the chairman of Strategy and Development NG EAK - BRIASTEABBHEERES
Committee. BEE o

The primary duties of the Strategy and Development Committee HIKEERZEG 2 IERELE (Hha
include, among others: =)

a) To conduct research in respect of, and formulating the a) MARAIMEREEREE (B1EFF

strategy and business development of our Company, REAGE]) ET R RS T B - I
including the medium to long term plans, and supervising EEBARREEERE 2 E

the implementation of our Company’s strategic planning;

b) To present assessment reports on the implementation of our b) FARNREERE @ FIEREBKER

Company’s strategic planning, management and business Z BBV EmE &
development; and
c) To research and analyze major issues encountered by our o) MRAESWARTRERBEFS L

Company in the course of its development. MEKREIE -

In 2014 and as of March 29, 2015, no Strategy and Development R20145F R E E201543 298 » BiRs &R
Committee meeting was held. BREZESUBEITIE -

Annual Report 2014
2014 F 3} 149



150

Corporate Governance Report
EERRE

Operation and Risk Management Committee

The Operation and Risk Management Committee comprises one
Executive Director, two Non-Executive Directors and one INED,
namely Mr. ZHANG Chun, Mr. WANG Zhian, Mr. ZHANG Fusheng
and Mr. FANG Yongzhong. Mr. ZHANG Chun is the chairman of
Operation and Risk Management Committee.

The primary duties of the Operation and Risk Management
Committee include, among others:

a) To review and evaluate the progress of major investments,
operations, and major business;

b) To review and evaluate the decision making standards and
mechanisms as regards major operational decisions, major
risks, major events, and major business processes; and

c) To establish sound and comprehensive risk management
and internal control procedures in respect of the risk
management and internal control system with a view to
ensuring the effective and efficient operation of such system.

In 2014 and as of March 29, 2015, the Operation and Risk
Management Committee held one meeting to discuss and
consider the “Overall Risk Management Report for 2014 (2014%
R EIEFRE)” of the Company.
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Details of attendance of the Operation and Risk Management
Committee meetings are as follows:

DA
EREBHRE

RenERERREeRRNHERBN

Directors Attendance
2= IR
Ms. LI Taifang (appointment ceased effective FARF L+ (ZER2014F2 8208 & 11) N/A

on February 20, 2014) TE A
Mr. PAN Chongyi (appointment ceased effective EERERE (ZATR2014F2 820K 1E) N/A

on February 20, 2014) AN B
Mr. ZHANG Chun (Chairman) RERAE () 1/1
Mr. WANG Zhian FRREE 1/1
Mr. ZHANG Fusheng (appointed on February 20, 2014) sR{E4 L4 (R2014F2 A20 8 EET) 1/1
Mr. FANG Yongzhong J KB 1/1

Note: N/A means not applicable as the relevant Director had ceased to
be a Director at the relevant time.

Delegation by the Board

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the
Company, including approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management systems, material transactions (in particular those
that may involve conflict of interests), financial information and
other significant financial and operational matters. Directors
could have recourse to seek independent professional advice
in performing their duties at the Company’s expense and are
encouraged to access and to consult with the Company’s senior
management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of the Group
are delegated to the senior management. The delegated functions
and responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the Board.
Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to significant
transactions entered into by the management as defined under
the relevant Working Rules for the President (424832 T {58 81)).
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i

REAHE

Corporate Governance Functions of the Board

The

Board recognizes that corporate governance should be the

collective responsibility of the Directors which include:

To develop, review and implement the Company’s policy and
practices on corporate governance;

To review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors;

To review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report; and

To develop, review and monitor the implementation of
the Shareholders’ communication policy to ensure its
effectiveness, and make recommendation to the Board
where appropriate to enhance Shareholders’ relationship
with the Company.

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
PEEWREIEZROERAT

5=

SRREEERNERTZHAREL

EREHE

BE - MERETARAZEEER
BER KRB

R REREFRARERA RO
HRFETEERE -
B RERARARTERET R
EZBERER

HE B RERERANEERES
ZIRTRAIRARFM (E)

BAARRETERERTAHRERE
ERBEZEBENEGRER &

HIE R RERERBABRKNE
e ARER LR - W REE B T A
BEEgRMER  AMERRERR
AIHIRAR -



Corporate Governance Report

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors has
entered into a service contract with the Company on February
20, 2014 for a term commencing from the date of the general
meeting in which the respective executive Directors or non-
executive Directors were appointed, until the end of the term
of the second session of the Board and may be terminated in
accordance with the respective terms of the service agreements.

Each of the INEDs has signed a letter of appointment with the
Company on February 20, 2014 for a term commencing from the
date of the general meeting in which the respective INEDs were
appointed until the end of the term of the second session of the
Board.

None of the Directors has a service agreement which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

In accordance with the Articles of Association, all Directors shall
be elected or replaced at the Shareholders’ general meetings with
a term of office of three years. Upon expiry of the term of office,
a director shall be eligible to offer himself for re-election and
reappointment. Any person appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall hold office until the
Company’s next AGM and that person shall then be eligible for
re-election and reappointment.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of Directors are set out in the Articles of Association.
The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the
Board composition, monitoring the appointment, re-election and
succession planning of Directors.

P IR YN
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Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration for the Year are set out
in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

There were seven employees being classified as senior
management during the Year. Pursuant to code provision of B.1.5
of the CG Code, the annual remuneration of the members of the
senior management (other than the Directors) for the Year by
band is set out below:

Remuneration bands (RMB)

HFHER (AR®)

ESREREERE ZFMH

AEENESHMFBERN A HPBERE
BIEES

RAFEE  EE7T2EERSPEASHRE

BE - RBEEEATAIEB.1.5&5F A

X RBREEEBKE (EBRN) NEEH
ERFHINT -

Number of
individuals

A

1,000,000 to 1,200,000

1,200,000 to 1,400,000
1,400,000 to 1,600,000
1,600,000 to 1,800,000
1,800,000 to 2,000,000

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements for the Year, which give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the
Group’s results and cash flows for the year then ended and are
properly prepared on a going concern basis in accordance with
the applicable statutory requirements and accounting standards.

Pursuant to code provision C.1.1 of the CG Code, the
management provides such explanation and information to the
Board enables the Board to make an informed assessment of the
financial and other information put before the Board for approval.
The Company also provides all members of the Board with
monthly updates on the Company’s performance, positions and
prospects.
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The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties which
may affect the Company’s business or cast significant doubt
upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Ernst & Young has also stated its reporting responsibility in
the independent auditor’s report of the consolidated financial
statements for the Year.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board executes the decision-making right on operation. It
endeavors to establish and improve the internal control policies
and plans and supervise the implementation of the internal
control system to safeguard shareholder investments and
Company assets, thus being responsible for the establishment
and supervision of the internal control system of the Company. It
is the responsibility of the Board to establish, improve, review and
effectively implement the internal control system.

In terms of management structure, the Company has optimized
the organizational structure and implemented a flat management.
The relevant functional departments are sufficiently staffed,
respectively taking charge of financial operations and monitoring,
risk management, internal audit and anti-corruption. In addition,
the Company arranges reasonable budgets to provide regular
trainings for the staff of the Company and its subsidiaries
performing functions such as finance, risk management and
internal audit so as to ensure that they are fully qualified and
experienced.

All departments are under direct leadership of the President of
the Company, who is thereby enable to report instantly to the
Board on the operations of each department and problems
received. Accordingly, any significant matter (if subject to
disclosure to the market) identified by the staff could be reported
to the management in a timely, accurate and effective manner.
The management of the Company assessed such significant
matter in accordance with internal management requirements
and procedures in a timely manner and made corresponding
decisions. The decisions of the management of the Company
could be implemented accurately and timely under supervision.

P IR YN
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In order to meet the needs of business development under new
situation, the Company further strengthened and refined its
management and released the edited “Rules and Regulations
Compilation (2014) (FREHIEXHFELR(2014))”, having reviewed
the current rules and regulations. By the end of last December,
the amendment and improvement to a total of 163 rules and
regulations have been completed, and 24 new rules and
regulations have been formulated and promulgated.

In 2014, the Company have formulated certain policies in relation
to the encouragement of business development, including the
“Measures for Managing the Market Development Fund (Trial
Implementation) (T35 5% E 4 BB IHAEITT))”, “Interim Measures
for Managing Technology and Research Fund (RHRAZE &
TEBYER)” and “Measures for Managing Reimbursement of
Business Development Expenses (¥(75F% 8 ARETIEINE).
In response to the new risks under new situation, the Company
has developed a series of compliance management systems,
including the “Measures on Accountability for Violation and Fraud
of CMEC’s Employees (CMEC 8 T & #f 1 2 ¥ 5 (TIB 5 98)%)” and
“Measures for Commission of CMEC (CMEC{E4 B2 ##X)” which
laid the foundation for prevention and punishment of violation and
fraud, as well as establishment and safeguarding the lawful and
compliant operation.

In response to financial risk prevention, the Company will
continue to hold the reporting procedures for material financial
issues, develop reporting procedures for material financial issues
of business divisions and propose financial management systems
of overseas branches. In addition, the Company provides actively
relevant financial supports upon financial management based on
business development and implementation.
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During the Year, the Board assessed the internal control systems
of the Company and its subsidiaries such as financial control,
operation control, compliance control and risk management
systems and was not aware of any material problems or any
material mistakes. The Board believes that the current monitoring
system of the Company is effective and that the qualifications
and experience of the staff performing accounting and financial
reporting functions and the training programs of the Company as
well as the experiences and resources for setting the budget of
the Company are adequate.

The Group’s internal control system will be reviewed and
assessed on an on-going basis by the Audit Committee which will
report the same to the Board, and will be further reviewed and
assessed at least once each year by the Board.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The audit department of the Company will conduct independent
review and assessment on the appropriateness, rationality and
effectiveness of the governance, risk management and internal
control system. The audit department is under the supervision
and guidance of the Audit Committee, and will provide analysis
and recommendation for the Board and the senior management.
It is responsible for all material control, including financial,
operational, compliance and risk management. In 2014, the audit
department did not discover any circumstances involving fault,
non-compliance or violation against laws, regulations and rules or
severe insufficient control.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended December 31, 2014, the remunerations paid
or payable to the external auditors in respect of audit services
and non-auditing services amounted to RMB3.13 million and
RMB3 million, respectively. The amount for 2014 non-audit
services mainly comprised the services fee on review of interim
financial statements. The Audit Committee was satisfied that the
non-audit services in 2014 did not affect the independence of the
auditor.
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. ZHOU Yamin (“Mr. Zhou”) was appointed by the Board to
succeed Mr. CHEN Minjian act as one of the joint company
secretaries of the Company, the secretary of the Board and an
authorised representative of the Company on June 26, 2014. He
is responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance
matters and ensuring that the Board policies and procedures, and
the applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed. Details
for the above change may refer to the Company’s announcement
published on June 26, 2014.

In order to uphold good corporate governance and ensure
compliance with the Listing Rules and applicable Hong Kong
laws, the Company also engages Ms. TSANG Fung Chu (“Ms.
Tsang”), as its joint company secretary to assist Mr. Zhou to
discharge his duties as company secretary of the Company. For
the purpose of Code F.1.1 of the CG Code, Ms. Tsang keeps
close contact with Mr. Zhou, being the person with sufficient
seniority at the Company.

For the Year under review, Mr. Zhou and Ms. Tsang have
undertaken 15 hours of relevant professional training respectively
in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, when the
Company convenes an AGM, Shareholders holding 3% or more
of the total voting shares of the Company shall be entitled to
propose new resolutions to the Company in writing which should
be submitted to the convener 10 days prior to the convening
of the general meeting. The convener of the general meeting
shall issue a supplemental notice of general meeting to other
Shareholders within 2 days of the receipt of such proposal and
incorporate such newly proposed matters falling within the scope
of duties of the general meeting into the agenda of such meeting.
The new agenda shall be tabled to the general meeting for
consideration.
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Shareholders can submit their written recommendations through
the following facsimile, e-mail or postal address:

Facsimile: 86 10 6332 1086

E-mail: ir@mail.cmec.com

Postal address: No. 178 Guang’anmenwai Street, Beijing, PRC
(Postal Code: 100055)

Pursuant to article 57 of the Articles of Association, general
meetings shall be convened where Shareholders who individually
or jointly hold 10% or more of the Company’s Shares make a
request to convene an extraordinary general meeting in writing.
The matter for consideration proposed by the party requesting
the holding of the extraordinary general meeting shall be included
in the agenda of such meeting.

As regards proposing a person for election as a director, the
procedures are set out in the Articles of Association which is
available on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company.

All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be voted
on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be
posted on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company in a timely manner after each shareholder meeting.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries about the
Company to the Board could send their enquiries to Room 804,
8/F, Tower 1, South Sea Centre, 75 Mody Road, Tsimshatsui
East, Kowloon, Hong Kong, and provide sufficient contact
information for the timely and proper handling and record keeping
of the relevant enquiries.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

In 2012, the Company successfully completed its Listing in
Hong Kong. Through roadshow presentations around the globe,
its investor relations website, investor enquiry hotline, investor
mailbox and other communication channels, the Company
maintains close liaisons with investors worldwide in a timely
and efficient manner. Moreover, through investment forums,
corporate visits, teleconferences and various other channels, the
Company maintains proactive and frank exchanges with investors
and analyses. The Company has attached great importance to
listening and accepting reasonable suggestions and opinions from
Shareholders and investors. It strives to continuously enhance
its operating results, present a true picture of the Company’s
financial and operational status to Shareholders and investors,
actively facilitate the internal communications in respect of the
feedback from the capital market, and continuously perfect
and enrich the system aiming to canvass information in relation
to investor relations. The management over investor relations
involves an all-faceted interactive communication process.

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
understanding of the Group’s business, performance and
strategies. The Company also recognizes the importance of timely
and non-selective disclosure of information, which will enable
shareholders and investors to make the informed investment
decisions. In 2015, the Company will gradually develop a
systematic structure of investor relations featured by its own
characteristics. The Company aims at actively participating in all
kinds of summits in capital market and strengthen communication
with investors, as well as strive to achieve timely and transparent
information disclosures.
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The AGM provides opportunity for shareholders to communicate
directly with the Directors. The chairman of the Board, the
president of the Company, the chairman of each of the Board
Committees and the external auditor of the Company, Ernst &
Young, will attend the AGM to answer Shareholders’ questions.

To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a
shareholders’ communication policy which aims at establishing a
two-way relationship and communication between the Company
and its Shareholders and maintains a website at www.cmec.com,
where up-to-date information on the Company’s business
operations and developments, financial information, corporate
governance practices and other information are available for
public access. The Company also maintained frequent contacts
with Shareholders and investors through various channels such
as meetings, telephone and emails. For example, we will convene
telephone meetings to answer enquiries from Shareholders and
investors, as well as arrange one-on-one conversation with
investors. In addition, we arranged on-site visits to the Group’s
projects and non-deal roadshows for investors and research
analysts.

The Company has adopted a shareholders’ communication
policy with the objective of ensuring that the Shareholders, both
individual and institutional (collectively, the “Shareholder(s)”) of
the Company and, in appropriate circumstances, the investment
community at large, are provided with ready, equal and timely
access to balanced and understandable information about the
Company (including its financial performance, strategic goals and
plans, material developments and governance), for the purpose of
enabling the Shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed
manner, and to allow them and the investment community to
engage actively with the Company.

Information about the Company will be communicated to the
Shareholders and the investment community mainly through
the Company’s financial reports (interim and annual reports),
annual general meetings and other general meetings that
may be convened, as well as by making available all the
disclosures submitted to the Stock Exchange and its corporate
communications on the respective websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.
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INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

The Company discloses information in compliance with the Listing
Rules, and publishes periodic reports and announcements to the
public in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations. The
primary focus of the Company is to ensure information disclosure
is timely, fair, accurate, truthful and complete, thereby enabling
Shareholders, investors as well as the public to make rational and
informed decisions regarding the Company.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

At the annual general meeting held on June 26, 2014,
the amendments to the Articles of Association with a few
housekeeping amendments were made were approved by the
Shareholders. There is no material change in the amendments to
the Articles of Association. An updated version of the Articles and
Association is available on the respective websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

2014 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

All Shareholders are encouraged to attend the forthcoming AGM
and exercise their right to vote. Further details of business to be
conducted at the general meeting will be set out in the circular
and notice to the Shareholders to be sent and posted on the
respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company in
due course.
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Report of the Supervisory Board

The Supervisory Board is pleased to present this report of the
Supervisory Board in the annual report of the Company for the
year ended December 31, 2014 (the “Year”).

In 2014, all members of the Supervisory Board have earnestly
performed their supervisory functions to safeguard the rights
and interests of the Group and the Shareholders in accordance
with the Companies Law, the Articles of Associations, the
Rules of Procedures of the Supervisory Board and the relevant
provisions in the Listing Rules. Members of the Supervisory
Board carried out examination of the Company’s financial
accounts and supervision of the Directors, the president and
other senior management officers for their compliance with the
laws, administrative regulations and the Articles of Association in
executing their respective duties.

I. RE-APPOINTMENTS OF THE SUPERVISORS

According to the Articles of Association, the term of office
for the first session of the Supervisory Board has expired on
January 12, 2014.

Pursuant to the relevant provisions of the Company Law
and the Articles of Association, all Supervisors for the first
session of the Supervisory Board continued to perform their
duties as Supervisors in accordance with applicable laws
and regulations until the re-appointments of the Supervisors
for the second session of the Supervisory Board becoming
effective.

In accordance with the relevant requirements of the Articles
of Association and the Company Law, the second session
of the Supervisory Board shall consist of three Supervisors,
including two Shareholder representative Supervisors and
one staff representative Supervisor. And according to
the Articles of Association, the appointments of the two
Shareholder representative Supervisors are subject to the
approval by the Shareholders at a general meeting, and
the staff representative Supervisor shall be appointed by
the employees of the Company in the employees’ general
meetings. The term of office of Supervisors shall be three
years.
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As announced by the Company on January 24, 2014, Mr.
BAI Ming has been re-appointed as the staff representative
Supervisor for the second session of the Supervisory Board
at the employees’ general meeting. And at the extraordinary
general meeting held on February 20, 2014, Mr. QUAN
Huagiang and Mr. QIAN Xiangdong have been re-appointed
as the Shareholder representative Supervisors for the second
session of the Supervisory Board.

Mr. QUAN Huagiang, Mr. QIAN Xiangdong and Mr. BAI Ming
have formed the second session of the Supervisory Board.
Their term of service commenced on February 20, 2014
until the expiration of the term of second session of the
Supervisory Board.

MEETINGS OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, five
meetings of the Supervisory Board were held.

On January 6, 2014, the Company held the fifth meeting of
the first session of the Supervisory Board to consider the
resolution in relation to the recommendation of candidates
for shareholder representative Supervisors for the second
session of the Supervisory Board at the general meeting.

On February 20, 2014, the Company held the first meeting
of the second session of the Supervisory Board to re-elect
Mr. QUAN Huagiang as the chairman for the second session
of the Supervisory Board for the same term of the second
session of the Supervisory Board.

On March 24, 2014, the Company held the second meeting
of the second session of the Supervisory Board to consider
the 2013 audited financial report of the Company and the
report of the Supervisory Board for 2013 and to receive the
report on the 2013 results announcement of the Company.
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Report of the Supervisory Board

On August 28, 2014, the Company held the third meeting of
the second session of the Supervisory Board to consider the
2014 unaudited interim financial report of the Company and
the 2014 interim results announcement of the Company.

On March 29, 2015, the Company held the fourth meeting
of the second session of the Supervisory Board to consider
the 2014 audited financial report of the Company, the 2014
results announcement of the Company and the 2014 report
of the Supervisory Board.

INDEPENDENT OPINION ISSUED BY THE
SUPERVISORY BOARD ON RELEVANT
MATTERS

1. Management of the Company

The management of the Company faithfully fulfilled
their duties and responsibilities as stipulated in the
laws, regulations and the Articles of Association, and
earnestly implemented the resolutions approved by
the Board. Till now, the Supervisory Board did not
discover that the Board and senior management had
abused their rights and functions or any of their actions
that were prejudicial to the interests of the Company,
Shareholders and staff of the Company, or in any
way violated the laws, regulations and the Articles of
Association.

2. Operation of the Company

During the Year, the Company strictly complied with
the laws and regulations, operated in accordance with
the Listing Rules. The Company managed to achieve
satisfying results in areas of operation, cost control,
project origination, implementation and management,
internal management, work safety and market
expansion, resulting in a strong and excellent company
which laid a solid foundation for the smooth and faster
development. The Company further strengthened
the systems of internal controls, and enhanced, in
particular, the system of business processes and
responsibility assignment of all functional departments
of the Company, making further progress in corporate
governance.
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Implementation of the resolutions of General
Meetings

During the Year and up to the date of this annual
report, the member of the Supervisory Board attended
eight General Meetings and sit in on nine meetings
of the Board, exercising supervision in respect of the
lawfulness and compliance of the procedures of the
matters considered by the Board meetings.

The Supervisory Board made no objection to the
reports and motions tabled at the general meetings and
considered that the Board earnestly implemented the
resolutions approved by the general meetings.

Financial matters of the Company

Members of the Supervisory Board monitored and
examined the financial management system and the
financial condition and reviewed relevant financial
information of the Company. Upon examination, the
Supervisory Board concluded that the Company
had strictly complied with the relevant financial laws,
regulations and financial policies, and that the financial
system has an integrated structure; the financial
management system was sound and implemented
effectively; the accounting treatment was in line with
the consistency principles; and the Company’s financial
reports gave an objective and fair view of the financial
position and operating results of the Company.

The Supervisory Board reviewed the unqualified audit
opinions issued by Ernst & Young (% 7k & &t ff = 7§
Ffr) and Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP (Special General
Partnership) (ZKERSFHAIEFEMEFHLBEEE) in
respect of the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2014
prepared in accordance with IFRS and Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises of the PRC
respectively, and raised no objection to such reports.
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Report of the Supervisory Board

Connected Transactions

The Supervisory Board reviewed the connected
transactions between the Group and SINOMACH and its
subsidiaries (including Sinomach Finance Co., Ltd.) and
its respective connected persons during the reporting
period, and was of the opinion that all the connected
transactions complied with the relevant requirements
of the Stock Exchange, and that the pricing of the
connected transactions was reasonable, open and fair
and there was not any matter prejudicial to the interests
of the Company or Shareholders.

In 2015, the Supervisory Board will continue to
carry out its fiduciary duties to implement effective
supervision on the Company, its Directors and senior
management in accordance with the relevant provisions
of the Companies Law, the Articles of Association, the
Terms of Reference for the Supervisory Board and the
Listing Rules; and pay close attention to the operation
and management status of the Company as well as
any significant development of the Company, so as
to facilitate the profit growth of the Company and to
dutifully protect the interests of all Shareholders and the
Company. In addition, the Supervisory Board will further
consolidate resources for supervision so as to enhance
our management, helping and ensuring the realization of
the Company’s targets for all works in 2015.
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By Order of the Supervisory Board EEEEE T
QUAN Huagiang EER
Chairman of the Supervisory Board EFeTE

Beijing, the PRC, March 29, 2015 FEER - 201593 H29H
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. SUN Bai (%)

Mr. SUN, aged 57, was appointed as the chairman and
an executive Director of the Company on April 19, 2013,
and the party secretary of the Communist Party of China
committee (“CPC Committee”) (2 Z £ ) on February
18, 2013. He has more than 30 years of management
experience. From November 1980 to January 1994, he
worked in Changchun Testing Machine Institution (& &
ABMIFITAT). Mr. SUN joined Zhonggong Electrical and
Mechanical Development Corporation (FF T # & 2 & 42 A
A]) in January 1994 and then served as its general manager
from May 1994 to June 1999. He worked as the general
manager of China North Industrial Equipment Corporation (#
H4b 75 T2 & EL A R]), which changed its name to China
North Industrial Equipment Co. Ltd. (PB4t TEEER
[RA7R]), from June 1999 to August 2005. He joined China
National Complete Engineering Corporation (FEIfKE T4
R A7) (“CNCEC”), which is an enterprise established in the
PRC and wholly-owned by China National Machinery Industry
Corporation (FE# g TEEEHR A7) (“SINOMACH”),
as its general manager in August 2005 and also served as
its chairman of the board from December 2011. On March
14, 2013, Mr. SUN has resigned as the general manager of
CNCEC. Mr. SUN obtained a master degree of economics
from Jilin University (& #& X £) in 1993. He is a senior

economist.
Mr. ZHANG Chun (&%)

Mr. ZHANG, aged 46, is currently an executive Director
and the president of the Company, and was appointed on
March 16, 2012. He has more than 20 years of management
experience. In July 1991, he joined China National
Electric Equipment Corporation (FEE TR #EHHE R F]), the
predecessor of China National Electric Engineering Co., Ltd.
(FFEE SN TIEARAR]) (“CNEEC”), as a sales representative
and worked in that company until August 1993. Mr. ZHANG
then joined our Company, and held various positions from
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August 1993 to May 2002, including sales representative,
project manager, representative and chief representative of
the Representative Office of our Company in Bangladesh.
After returning to China, Mr. ZHANG joined China National
Machinery & Equipment Corporation Group (FP Bl # 4 2
((2[®)) A &)), the predecessor of SINOMACH, in May 2002 as
the director of the department of operational management.
Mr. ZHANG later became the director of the department of
engineering and served at that position until August 2011.
Mr. ZHANG was the vice president of our Company from
August 2011 until March 2012. Currently, Mr. ZHANG is also
the chairman of CNEEC. In 1991, Mr. ZHANG graduated
from Tsinghua University (&% X22) with a bachelor’s degree
in thermal engineering. Mr. ZHANG is a senior engineer.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. WANG Zhian (£8%)

Mr. WANG, aged 64, is currently a non-executive Director
of the Company, and was appointed on January 13, 2011.
He has over 30 years of experience in the electricity and
mechanical engineering industries. From January 1977 to
June 1999, Mr. WANG served at China Machinery Industry
Third Installation Engineering Corporation (FEI#i T ¥ 5=
ZH T2 7)), which was a subsidiary of China Machinery
Industry Installation Corporation (77 B8 # 4 T 2 27 2 422 &))
and held various positions at the same company, including
technician, engineer, manager of the engineering department,
vice manager and manager.

From June 1999 to June 2001, Mr. WANG was promoted
to vice general manager and then general manager of China
Machinery Industry Installation Corporation. Subsequently,
in June 2001, China Machinery Industry Installation
Corporation changed its name to China CMIIC Engineering
& Construction Corporation (FFEI# i T2 ERERNT), a
subsidiary of SINOMACH, and Mr. WANG served as the
general manager of that company until September 2010.
Mr. WANG has been a director of China Perfect Machinery
Industry Corp., Ltd. (FEUEE#M TR MHERAQF), a
subsidiary of SINOMACH, since September 2010 and was
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a director of China Power Engineering Co., Ltd. (P& T2
&1 BBR A R]), a subsidiary of SINOMACH, from December
2010 to November 2011. In 1976, Mr. WANG completed his
studies in electric machinery and apparatus and graduated
from Xi’an Jiaotong University (7% 22 EAEE). Mr. WANG is
a professorial engineer.

Mr. YU Benli (R432)

Mr. YU, aged 61, is currently a non-executive Director of the
Company, and was appointed on February 20, 2014. He
has more than 30 years of experience in machinery industry.
From June 1977 to December 1979, Mr. YU served at The
People’s Bank of China, Nanjing Branch. From December
1979 to October 1983, he served at Jiangsu Machinery
Equipment Import & Export Corporation (7T &k 4 & & i
i 0 A 7)), a subsidiary of the Company. From October
1983 to January 1988, Mr. YU served at Sino American
Machinery Corporation (3Bl Z = #45GFR A 7)), a subsidiary
of the Company and was stationed in the United States.
From January 1988 to April 2013, he served at SUMEC
Group Corporation (L#k#RFEELEE N 7)), a subsidiary of
SINOMACH and the predecessors of which are Jiangsu
Machinery Equipment Import & Export Corporation (i &R
%453 H 072 3)) and China Jiangsu Machinery Equipment
Import & Export Corporation (F %I &R 2B H D £ E
AA]). He held a number of positions including assistant to
general manager, deputy general manager, general manager
and chairman. Currently, Mr. YU is also the chairman of
China Perfect Machinery Industry Corp., Ltd. (5P B8 254
TERMHABRAF]), a subsidiary of SINOMACH, chairman
of China Machine Tool Sales and Technology Services
Co., Ltd. (FEIHIRHE BEMTRE AR AF]), a subsidiary
of SINOMACH and director of China National Automotive
Industry International Corporation (REIRE T XK AES
R 2 7A]) (“CNAICO”), a subsidiary of SINOMACH. Mr. YU has
resigned as the chairman of China Machine Tool Sales and
Technology Services Co., Ltd. ({f BI#R 858 BT RS B IR
A2 7]), a subsidiary of SINOMACH, in February 2014. Mr. YU
graduated from Nanjing Jinling Vocational University (5% M
SEB % AE) with a degree in business operation. He is a
senior international business specialist.
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Mr. ZHANG Fusheng (5Rf&4%)

Mr. ZHANG, aged 62, is currently a non-executive Director
of the Company, and was appointed on February 20, 2014.
He has more than 30 years of experience in equipment
manufacturing industry. He began his career with Zhejiang
Automotive Industrial Corporation (# /L& /3 8 T 2% 1 7))
in July 1980 and was promoted to assistant manager in
August 1986. In April 1988, Mr. ZHANG was appointed
as deputy county magistrate of Zhejiang Province Yongjia
County People’s Government (#7114 7k 328 A REUF). From
May 1990 to August 1998, he held the positions of deputy
general manager and general manager of China Automotive
Industrial Import & Export Zhejiang Branch (FFEI58E T %
#EHOWTIAR]), a subsidiary of SINOMACH. From August
1998 to February 2012, he was the general manager of
China Automotive Import & Export Corporation (F1 55
#EHO4 2 F]), a subsidiary of SINOMACH. Since February
2012, Mr. ZHANG has been the chairman of CNAICO, a
subsidiary of SINOMACH. Mr. ZHANG has been a director
of CNEEC, a subsidiary of SINOMACH since November 2,
2011 and a director of China National Complete Engineering
Corporation, a subsidiary of SINOMACH since December 29,
2011. In 2000, Mr. ZHANG graduated from Wuhan University
of Technology (EZIE T K&) with a degree in business
administration. Mr. ZHANG is a professional senior engineer.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. LIU Li (2/9)

Mr. LIU, aged 59, is currently an independent non-executive
Director of the Company, and was appointed on January
13, 2011. He was a teacher at the department of physics,
the Beijing Institute of Iron and Steel (ItRMEEFE) from
September 1984 to January 1986. From January 1986 to
date, Mr. LIU has been holding various teaching positions
at the Guanghua School of Management (J¢# & E£7),
and its predecessor, the department of economics of the
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school of economics and management (475 E3 [ 4 75 & 18
), Peking University, including lecturer, associate professor,
professor, supervisor for doctoral students, the director of
the finance department and a director of the MBA program
at the Guanghua School of Management, Peking University.
Mr. LIU is also a deputy director of the Research Center of
Finance & Securities at Peking University.

Currently, Mr. LIU is an independent non-executive director
of Metallurgical Corporation of China Ltd. (FEBUA& R T
&1 BBR A R]), a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 1618), and the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (stock code: 601618); and an independent
director of Bohai Ferry Co. Ltd. (3 /& & E R D B R 2
Al), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(stock code: 603167) and an independent director of
Langfang Development Co., Ltd. (BIERKMDER AR,
a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock
code: 600149), and Beijing Oil HBP Group (¥ h=1§ %
R AR AT]), a company listed on Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (stock code: 002554). Mr. LIU has resigned as an
independent director of Bohai Ferry Co. Ltd. ()% % &A% D
AR A7) in March 2014. On October 27, 2014, Mr. LIU has
been appointed as independent non-executive director of
Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. (3BIRITAXHD AR A A,
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 3328).

In 1982, Mr. LIU graduated from Peking University with a
bachelor’s degree in physics, and in 1984 with a master’s
degree in physics respectively. Mr. LIU is also a member of
the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants (non-
practising).
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Ms. LIU Hongyu (B4 5)

Ms. LIU, aged 51, is currently an independent non-
executive Director of the Company and was appointed
on January 13, 2011. From July 1985 to May 1988, she
served as an officer at the financial management office of
the People’s Bank of China Sichuan branch (FU)I|& AR
£277). From May 1988 to April 1993, Ms. LIU served as a
legal consultant for the Agricultural Bank of China (Beijing
Branch) and from April 1993 to April 2004, she was the
managing partner at Beijing Tongda Law Offices (it = [A
ERMMEFT). In 2004, as a result of the merger between
Beijing Tongda Law Offices and Jincheng Law Firm (£
2RI EFT), Ms. LIU became a senior partner, attorney at
law of the merged firm, Beijing Jincheng & Tongda Law Firm
b REWFZERRMEHFT). From April 2005 to June 2011,
Ms. LIU served as an independent director for Founder
Technology Group Corporation (7 IERIEZEB KD BRE QD
Al), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(stock code: 600601). From June 2009 to June 2012, Ms.
LIU served as an independent director for Chongqging Three
Gorges Water Conservancy and Electric Power Co., Ltd.
(EE=ZBOKFEN (£E) RHBRATF), a company listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600116).
Currently, Ms. LIU is an independent director of Chongqging
International Enterprise Investment Co., Ltd. (EEEHKE
ERERMD AR DA, now renamed as CRED-Chongshi
Real Estate Corporation Limited (FEEZMERMD AR A
7)) and a company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(stock code: 000736) and Lanpec Technologies Limited,
a company listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock
code: 601798), and an external supervisor of the Bank of
Beijing Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (stock code: 601169). On June 10,2013, Ms, LIU
has been appointed as independent non-executive director
of Gome Electrical Appliances Holding Limited (B35 2542 %
BRAT]), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 00493).
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In 1985, Ms. LIU graduated from Southwest University of
Politics and Law (FAFEBUEAZ) with a bachelor’'s degree
in law, as well as from the Graduate School of the Chinese
Academy of Social Sciences (FF Bt & RIERFITAERR) in
economic law in 1998. Ms. LIU also obtained an EMBA
degree from the Guanghua School of Management, Peking
University in 2003.

Mr. FANG Yongzhong (57K &)

Mr. FANG, aged 63, is currently an independent non-
executive Director of our Company, and was appointed
on July 29, 2011. In September 1971, he joined the
construction machinery factory of the Shenyang Railway
Bureau (EFZEE B TH#EMM). Mr. FANG then joined the
engineering department of the Shenyang Railway Bureau (&
[5853% 5285 TH2EE) and held a number of positions within
the bureau including technician, assistant engineer, engineer,
vice section chief, section chief, vice departmental director
and departmental director between February 1977 and
August 1994,

Mr. FANG was appointed as a vice director of the Shenyang
sub-bureau of the Shenyang Railway Bureau in August 1994
and between August 1994 and December 1999, he was
also general manager of Shenyang Engineering Corporation
of the Shenyang Railway Bureau. From December 1999 to
December 2003, Mr. FANG served at Shenyang Railway
Engineering Construction Group Co., Ltd. (EFFEK T2
EREER AR as the chairman of the board and general
manager. From December 2003 to March 2008, Mr. FANG
held various positions at China Railway No.9 Group Co.,
Ltd. (F#ENBEEBFRAR]) including director, vice general
manager and vice chairman of the board of directors. From
March 2008 to December 2012, Mr. FANG was also an
external director of China Railway Science & Industry Group
(FPFHEBTEEARQA) (“CRSIG”, China Railway No. 5
Engineering Group Co., Ltd. (FE R B (£E) R QA a)
(“China Railway No.5 Bureau”), China Overseas Engineering
Group Co., Ltd. (FEIBSNTRRBREFEAR]) (“COVEC”) and
China Railway & Airport Construction Group Corporation
(FEFPEMEEREZREEBR A A) (“CACCC”) and is a
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supervisor and the chairman of the supervisory board of
China Railway Construction and Engineering Group (9P
ETEBEAMRAT) (“CRCEG”). These five companies are
subsidiaries of China Railway Group Limited (1 B/ &% 5
BRA 7)), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 00390) and the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (stock code: 601390).

As an external director, Mr. FANG participates in board
meetings of CRSIG, China Railway No.5 Bureau,
COVEC and CACCC, representing the interests of
the respective shareholder, China Railway Group
Limited. However, Mr. FANG is not involved in the day
to day management of CRSIG, China Railway No.5
Bureau, COVEC and CACCC. As a supervisor and
the chairman of the supervisory board of CRCEG,
Mr. Fang participates in meetings of the supervisory board
and the board of directors of CRCEG, representing the
interests of the shareholder, China Railway Group Limited.
However, Mr. FANG is not involved in the day to day
management of CRCEG.

Mr. FANG completed his studies in railway engineering (L2
i@ T HE) and graduated from the Shanghai Railway
Institute (= /& # & £ B7) in 1977, and also obtained an
EMBA in decision-making management from International
East-West University (3 BERAAABREEE S
in December 1995. Mr FANG is a senior engineer and a
registered national first class architect.

Mr. WU Tak Lung (RE#)

Mr. WU, aged 49, is currently an independent non-executive
Director of the Company, and was appointed on February
20, 2014. He is a member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member of Hong Kong
Securities Institute and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, a fellow member of the Taxation Institute
of Hong Kong and the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries. Mr. WU was awarded the bachelor degree of
Accounting by the Hong Kong Baptist University and the
master degree of business administration (MBA) jointly by the
University of Manchester and the University of Wales.
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Mr. WU had worked in an international accounting firm,
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, for five years, and was then
employed by several listed and private companies in Hong
Kong as head of corporate finance and executive director. Mr.
WU currently served as an independent non-executive director
of Aupu Group Holding Company, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 0477), Beijing
Media Corporation Limited, a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1000), First Tractor
Company Limited, a company listed on both the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 00038), and the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (stock code: 601038). Moreover, he was an
independent non-executive director of China Water Industry
Group Limited (stock code: 1129) in three years, which is a
Company listed on the Stock Exchange.

On March 4, 2014, Mr. WU has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of Sinomax Group
Limited (B¢#5£EAR AR, a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1418). On July
22, 2014, Mr. WU has resigned as an independent non-
executive director of Valuetronics Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the Singapore Exchange.

Mr. Wu is currently a member of Jiangsu People’s Political
Consultative Committee, member of the Council and
the Court of Hong Kong Baptist University, the honorary
chairman of the North Kwai Chung Scout and the vice
president of Hongkong-Guangdong Youth Exchange
Promotion Association.

SUPERVISORS
Mr. QUAN Huagiang (2 #£34)

Mr. QUAN, aged 44, is currently a Supervisor of the
Company, and was appointed on January 13, 2011. He
worked in the finance department of Beijing Yanshan
Petrochemical Corporation (1t & #%& LU AR T A &) from
August 1991 to July 1994. From July 1994 to October 1997,
Mr. QUAN was initially employed as an accountant and then

China Machinery Engineering Corporation

FEEMRE IRROERAT

V.

REACGH —RBIFZEENTTIEE) » B3
=R GEAITIIERS - HERES
% T RFAARRIARTE - EEER
BXERPTES - RAERABRES
EERAERAR (BRXFAERLETHA
Al B RSR - 0477) LS EERG
BRAR (BRFAEREMHAR - K
AR5 © 1000) ~ B — MR AR MDA R
A A) (R BB AT E MR (AR ASE -
00038) X FBEEFRX ST (RER
% : 601038) EMHIAE]) &Y% 7 IEH
TEE o I RGN =F NIRRT
ETARIFBIKESEEBR AR (K
57 1129) EABIUIEITES »

R2014F3 48 - RELEZT A
REERETRRAEHEEEGRA A
(BRI 1418) 2B IEWMITE
£ o A2014F7A22H - REAFT
BIBETIERAER AR (—KAFM
BRBGAEMZAR) BYIERITE
$ °

REEBRERIHEBIHEZE - BER
TRERNEEHRZAEGERE  LEBE
EREERUANBETERIRRES
BIER -

s
BEBALE

BHRE BF4ME BAARAE
£ R2011F1A1BHERT - &
FE19914F8 A 199447 A M £ 48 )
MILARETI AR MBE TIE £
1904783 1997108 M & %&
AR EAPREAE DO ARG



Directors, Supervisors, Senior Management and Employees

EE B s EEAERESR

in May 1995, he became manager of the finance department
of Universal Import and Export Company (FF#38 B H 0
AR ER) until October 1997. Mr. QUAN was appointed
by China National Machinery Import & Export Corporation
(“CMC”) (FEI#E T D& E) as finance manager for the
CMC Ukraine Office in October 1997 and worked there until
January 1999, and then was appointed as manager of the
finance department of CMC General Electrical Parts Import
and Export Company (/1% & 2 {43 ' O A 7)) by CMC
until May 2001. In May 2001, Mr. QUAN was appointed
by China General Technology Group (71 B3 A £ fi7 & E)
as general manager of the finance department of China
International Advertising Corporation (F BREE QT
817536 and subsequently was appointed as manager of
the funds management department of the general finance
department of China General Technology Group in May
2004.

From March 2005 to December 2006, Mr. QUAN served
at Sinomach Finance Co., Ltd. (A#EI#EBREELT) as
a vice general manager. From September 2010 to August
2011, Mr. QUAN was the chairman of the Supervisory Board
of China Automobile Trading Co., Ltd. (FE#O/5EZ 5
BBRAF]). Mr. QUAN has been serving as the head of the
internal audit inspection department of SINOMACH from
December 2006 to present. Mr. QUAN has also been serving
as the chairman of the Supervisory Board of the Company
since November 2008. Currently, Mr. QUAN is a member of
the Supervisory Board of Sinomach Automobile Co., Ltd.
(R 5B AR A A]), a company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (stock code: 600335).

In 1991, Mr. QUAN graduated from the Jiangxi Institute of
Finance and Economics (T7FAE4£E36%) with a bachelor’s
degree in accounting. Mr. QUAN is a senior accountant.

Mr. QIAN Xiangdong (£ [6 %)

Mr. QIAN, aged 46, a senior accountant, is a supervisor of
the Company, and was appointed on January 13, 2011.
He joined the Education Department of the Ministry of
Machinery Industry in June 1997. From September 1998
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to August 2006, Mr. QIAN held various positions, including
officer, vice manager, vice chief accountant and vice general
manager at China National Harvester Machinery Corporation
(7P B8 Y #E #E 1 422 B]), a subsidiary of SINOMACH. From
September 2006 to September 2008, Mr. QIAN served as an
financial controller of the Tianjin Design & Research Institute
of Electric Drive (R)ZEBREE)RFIFHICFT), a subsidiary of
SINOMACH. Since 2008, Mr. QIAN has been serving as a
vice general manager and chief financial officer of China
United.

Mr. BAI Ming (& 8)

Mr. BAI, aged 47, is currently a supervisor of the Company
and was appointed on January 7, 2011. In March 1992,
Mr. BAIl joined the Company and was employed as an
accountant at the finance department of the Company until
December 1999. From December 1999 to September 2005,
he was employed as an accountant at CMEC International
Engineering Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company. Mr. BAI
was a vice general manager of the project auditing division
of the Company from September 2005 to May 2007. He
was the director of the project auditing division of the audit
department of the Company from May 2007 to September
2009 and has been a vice general manager of the audit
department of the Company since September 2009. Mr. BAI
graduated from the Beijing Institute of Machinery Industry (1t
FHA T2 E67) in 1991, majoring in industrial accounting
and is a tax accountant, an international accountant and a
certified enterprise risk manager.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. JIN Chunsheng (7 &%)

Mr. JIN, aged 58, is a vice president of our Company
and is in charge of International Engineering Contracting
Business. Mr. JIN has over 30 years of experience in the
machinery and equipment industry and has held various
positions within our Company. Mr. JIN joined our Company
in February 1982, and he worked as a sales representative
from February 1982 to August 1986. During such period,
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Mr. JIN also studied English for almost one year at the
Tianjin Institute of Foreign Languages (K& 4N 5 £ 7).
From August 1986 to August 1989, Mr. JIN was assigned
by our Company to work as a project manager of American
Machinery. After returning to China in August 1989, Mr. JIN
was appointed as director of the department responsible for
the export of complete sets of equipment until June 1999,
and was subsequently promoted to a vice general manager
of CMEC International Engineering until November 2001. Mr.
JIN was a vice general manager of China Machinery-building
International Corporation (F Bl i ¥ 4N 5 1T & VB4R A 7))
from November 2001 to December 2004 and was appointed
as a vice president of our Company in December 2004.
Currently, Mr. JIN is the president of CNEEC. In 1982, Mr.
JIN obtained his bachelor’s degree in hydraulic machinery
from Gansu University of Technology (H& L2 AZ). Mr. JIN
is a professorial engineer.

Mr. ZHANG Jianguo (FRZEE)

Mr. ZHANG, aged 54, is a vice president of our Company
and is in charge of our Company’s trade and other business.
Prior to joining our Company, Mr. ZHANG was a lecturer at
Peking University (At AE) from July 1987 to May 1991,
In May 1991, Mr. ZHANG joined our Company and he was
appointed as a vice general manager of the department of
human resources and education of our Company in June
1993. Mr. ZHANG was subsequently promoted as a vice
director of the general office of our Company and held that
position from December 1993 to January 1998. In 1998,
Mr. ZHANG was appointed as a vice general manager of
CMEC Tendering, and was promoted to the general manager
thereof in July 2001 and held that position until June 2007.
In March 2005, Mr. ZHANG was also appointed as an
assistant president of our Company. Mr. ZHANG has been a
vice president of our Company since May 2006. Mr. ZHANG
is a senior economist and graduated from Peking University
with a master’s degree in history in 1987.
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Mr. ZHOU Yamin (B R)

Mr. ZHOU, aged 51, is the chief financial officer, secretary
to the Board and joint company secretary of our Company.
He has more than 30 years of management experience. Mr.
ZHOU took various positions in China Machinery Industry
Installation Company ( Bl # # T % % % 4 2 7)) from
October 1983 to June 2001, including bookkeeper of the
finance department, accountant, vice departmental director
of the finance department and manager of the finance
department. From June 2001 to February 2002, Mr. ZHOU
served as deputy chief accountant and manager of the
department of financial assets for China CMIIC Engineering &
Construction Corporation. From February 2002 to December
2004, Mr. ZHOU was appointed as the chief accountant
of China CMIIC Engineering & Construction Corporation
and from December 2004 to July 2011, he served as vice
general manager and chief financial officer for China CMIIC
Engineering & Construction Corporation. In July 2011, Mr.
ZHOU joined our Company and was appointed as the chief
financial officer of the Company. He has been serving as the
secretary to the Board and joint company secretary of our
Company since June 26, 2014. Mr. ZHOU graduated from
Beijing Technology and Business University and the Open
University of China (AtRTERSZMpREEERAL) with
a bachelor’s degree in management in July 2004, majoring
in accounting. Mr. ZHOU is a senior accountant, a member
of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants (non-
practising), an international certified practicing accountant
and a senior international finance manager.

Mr. WANG Tianyi (£ X E)

Mr. WANG, aged 54, is currently vice president of our
Company (appointed in January 2014) and secretary of the
discipline inspection committee (appointed in December
2013). He is responsible for the general management of
the Company. Mr. WANG has over 30 years of experience
in corporate and financial management. Mr. WANG joined
our Company in January 2014. Before joining our Company,
during the period from October 1980 to August 1988,
Mr. WANG served at the business division of the finance
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department under the Ministry of First Machinery Industry
and the auditing division directly under the auditing bureau
of the National Machinery Industry Committee. From August
1988 to April 1993, Mr. WANG served as the deputy director
of the office of the auditing bureau of National Audit Office
in the Ministry of Mechanical and Electronic Industry and the
chief of the general division of such auditing bureau. From
April 1993 to May 1998, Mr. WANG served as the chief of
the auditing division directly under the auditing bureau of
National Audit Office in MMI. Thereafter, Mr. WANG served
as the deputy general manager of the auditing department,
the deputy general manager of the financial department
and the chief of the first financial division, the general
manager of the financial department and the director of
asset financial department in China National Machinery and
Equipment (Group) Company during the period from May
1998 to October 2003. During the period from October 2003
to December 2010, Mr. WANG served as deputy general
manager, financial controller and secretary of the discipline
inspection committee of China National Electric Equipment
Corporation. During the period from December 2010 to
January 2014, Mr. WANG served as deputy general managet,
financial controller and secretary of the discipline inspection
committee of China National Electric Engineering Co., Ltd..
Mr. WANG graduated from the Correspondence Teaching
College of Renmin University of China majoring in industrial
accounting in 1987. Mr. WANG is a senior accountant.

Ms. WANG Hong (E£4I)

Ms. WANG, aged 52, is currently vice president of our
Company (appointed in January 2014). She is responsible
for international engineering contracting business. Ms.
WANG has over 30 years of experience in power engineering
contracting field. Ms. WANG joined our Company in June
2006. Before joining our Company, during the period from
January 1984 to January 1987, Ms. WANG served as project
manager of machinery research institute of Ministry of
Machinery. From January 1987 to January 1991, Ms. WANG
served as project manager of China Automatic Control
System Corporation (4 B B )1k 1= §| K % & 2 7). From
January 1991 to January 2006, Ms. WANG served as project
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manager, an assistant to general manager and deputy
general manager of the second engineering department,
general manager of the fourth engineering department
and deputy general manager of China Machinery-Building
International Corporation. From June 2006 to May 2010,
Ms. WANG served as deputy general manager and general
manager of the third business department of the Company,
as well as general manager of the third engineering business
department of the Company, and was promoted to an
assistant to the president of the Company in October 2011.
Ms. WANG has also served as general manager of CMEC
International Engineering Co., Ltd. since January 2012. Ms.
WANG graduated from the Jilin University of Technology
majoring in computer in 1984. Ms. WANG is an engineering
and technical expert entitled to the special allowance of the
State Council.

Mr. LI Jingkai (Z= )

Mr. LI, aged 45, is currently vice president of our Company
(appointed in January 2014). He is responsible for
international engineering contracting business. Mr. LI joined
our Company in August 1991. Mr. LI has over 20 years of
experience in power engineering contracting field. From
August 1991 to April 2001, Mr. LI has been holding various
positions at our storage and transportation department,
engineering department, the office of power station project
in Pakistan, including salesman, commercial representative,
on-site general representative and chief representative of the
Representative Office. During the period from April 2001 to
May 2010, Mr. LI served as deputy general manager of the
first engineering department, deputy general manager and
general manager of the second international engineering
department under the first engineering department and
deputy general manager of the first engineering business
department of our Company, and was promoted and
worked as general manager of the first engineering business
department in August 2007. Mr. LI has served as an
assistant to the president and general manager of the first
engineering business department of our Company since May
2010. Mr. LI graduated from Beijing Institute of Technology
majoring in automatic control in 1991. Mr. LI is a senior
engineer.
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VL.

Ms. Al Wei (X &)

Ms. Al, aged 45, is currently vice president of our Company
(appointed in November 2014). She is responsible for our
Company’s import and export trading businesses. Ms. Al
has over 20 years of experience in the management of
trading businesses. Ms. Al joined our Company in July 1991.
During the period from January 1992 to January 1998,
Ms. Al served at CMEC Machine Tool Co., Ltd. (FF:&#FR
TABREMLAR]). From January 1998 to August 2005,
Ms. Al served as manager of the third division of CMEC
International Trading Co., Ltd., and she was promoted and
worked as deputy general manager from September 2005
to May 2007. Thereafter, Ms. Al was appointed as general
manager of CMEC General Machinery Import & Export Co.,
Ltd. and served at that position until October 2013. Ms. Al
was promoted and worked as an assistant to the president
of our Company in May 2010 and was appointed as deputy
general manager of China Perfect Machinery Industry Corp.,
Ltd. (P BIEEE T8 H B R A F]) from October 2013 to
November 2014. Ms. Al graduated from Peking University
majoring in economics and management in 1991. Ms. Al is a
senior international business specialist.
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EMPLOYEES VI. E&
As at December 31, 2014, the Group had 2,892 employees R2014F12HA31H KR £ @ &£ A&
in total. The following table sets forth the number of 2,802% &8 o T&REIILTFEBEEE
employees according to different job functions: STHEBEE ¢
Number of
employees
EE®A
Business Staff ES YN 2,564
International Engineering Contracting Business BIPR T2 B 375 1,869
Trading Business EEES 525
Other Businesses HAih %% 170
Management, finance and administration I - BIEMITIER 292
Others Hith 36
Total #at 2,892
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The following tables set forth the Group’s staff structure by

geographical location, academic qualification, designation

and age, respectively:

Analysis of the Group’s staff by geographical location

TROBEHFRMIBLAE - 2F - B
MRFREIDHAEES T2E

TR E & 71 A EEE T 57

No. Geographical location Number of staff Percentage
weE HENE ETIHHE Aot
1 China Fh 2,554 88.3%
2 Asia (excluding China and Turkey) Tl ChEERE R 98 3.4%
THH)
3 Africa FEM 134 4.6%
4 Europe (including Turkey) BoM (BELZEHE) 43 1.5%
5 North America JEEM 3 0.1%
6 South America EE 58 2.0%
7 Oceania KAEM 2 0.1%
Total a5t 2,892 100%
Analysis of the Group’s staff by academic qualification 1ZEFEE 5 AR EE S T 7T
No. Academic qualification Number of staff Percentage
wa 2R BIgH Aot
Postgraduate or above e e 728 25.2%
2 Undergraduate B4 B 1,658 57.3%
3 College diploma or below ZRISAT 506 17.5%
Total &t 2,892 100%
Analysis of the Group’s staff by designation 1BTEE 7 AR EE S T 547
No. Designation Number of staff Percentage
wmee AR ETIgH Aok
1 Senior Grade = 543 18.8%
2 Intermediate Grade FRAR 718 24.8%
3 Junior Grade and below BT 1,631 56.4%
Total &% 2,892 100%

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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Analysis of the Group’s staff by age

BEHE D) A EEE T W

No. Age Number of staff Percentage
wiE  FER BIgH B
1 56 years old and above 5657 M A 77 2.7%
2 46-55 years old 46 E555% 541 18.7%
3 36-45 years old 362 455% 462 15.9%
4 35 years old and below 35 B AT 1,812 62.7%

Total &% 2,892 100%
1. Staff Incentives & & E

In 2014, the Company further improved performance
management system, formulated overall reform
plan for optimization of business department’s
positions, performance and salary, and completed the
preliminary draft of the “Measures for Performance and
Remuneration of Senior Management of the Company
and Principles of Subsidiaries (R AlE &+~ FRAF &
B A B AN B & 3R 4 0X)”, which would be further
perfected upon the determination of related national
policies; improved three-level training system of the
Company and completed the standardization of the
overseas on-site practice of university students; further
standardized revenue management of each business
division; initially developed the “Assessment Measures
for Comprehensive Budget Management (ZEEEEIE
EZPE)”, “Measures for Overseas Human Resources
(BINANEREE L) and “Assessment Measures for
Investment Business (X & #£1§E Zi1%)”, etc.

The Company will establish diversified career
development channels in the future, especially focus on
building development channels for core business staff.
Meanwhile, the Company will establish the retirement
schemes, and therefore ensure both the development
channels and retirement schemes are in place, in order
for employees to share development opportunities and
reform results. The Company develops a more rational,
open and scientific employment system by constantly
consolidating the fruits of talents introduction and
enhancing the exchanges between the cadre and the
talents.
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Staff Remuneration

For the year ended December 31, 2014, the Group
incurred staff costs of approximately RMB1,329.3
million. Staff’s remuneration comprises of basic
salary and performance salary. The performance
salary is determined according to the assessment of
performance of the whole staff.

Staff Training

We provide systematic and effective training for our
employees. We provide sustainable and specific
education training for our senior management, middle
management as well as technical and operational staff
with a view to improving the quality and ability of our
staff at different levels.

To regulate the management of staff training, the
Company has formulated comprehensive measures for
administering employees’ education and training, which
effectively promote the establishment of the Company’s
education training system. The Company focuses
on the training needs of the senior management,
middle management, technical and operational staff
as well as the development needs of the Company
when formulating and implementing education training
programmes. The Company aims to implement
a diversified training system for the staff so as to
encourage the staff to participate in training.

The Company will strengthen to train young cadre in
the future and establish different levels of cadre, which
lays the foundation for the sustainable development
of the Company. The Company will also improve
three-level talents training system among overseas,
domestic institutions and the Company to ensure the
comprehensive coverage of senior management of the
Company, mid-level staff and every ordinary staff in the
training system.

Guarantee of Staff Rights

The Group strictly complies with the relevant PRC laws
and regulations and makes contributions to various
pension contribution plans, medical insurance plans,
unemployment insurance plans, maternity insurance
plans and personal injury insurance plans.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the shareholders of China Machinery Engineering Corporation
(Established in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Machinery Engineering Corporation (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 189 to 334,
which comprise the consolidated and company statements of
financial position as at December 31, 2014, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(the “IASB”) and the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

BYZBARE

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at December 31, 2014, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with IFRSs and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

March 29, 2015

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

BHEER

Year ended December 31, 2014 o £ ZE20144E12 831 B IEEE

2014 2013
2014%F 20134
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Kt AR T T ARET T
REVENUE WA 5 23,007,745 21,426,272
Cost of sales SHER A (19,257,365)  (17,683,814)
Gross profit EF 3,750,380 3,742,458
Other revenue HAip g A 5 14,845 12,350
Other income/(expenses), net HEM A () F58 5 (93,360) 353,476
Selling and distribution expenses HE kDAY (1,115,853) (1,157,660)
Administrative expenses TBAE (533,551) (556,996)
Other operating income/(expenses) B A (F) 48,541 (65,476)
PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS g 6 2,071,002 2,328,152
Finance income BRI A 6 717,685 737,865
Finance expenses B 6 (50,610) (401,713)
Net finance income WU A F5E 6 667,075 336,152
Share of profits less losses of: JE A5 LA TS % F s B 48
An associate iR /N - (199)
A joint venture &R 67 -
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION R AIER 2,738,144 2,664,105
Income tax FriSHi 10 (641,909) (703,864)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FR=RF 2,096,235 1,960,241
Attributable to: BER
Owners of the parent BRRER A 11 2,096,918 1,959,257
Non-controlling interests AR = (683) 984
2,096,235 1,960,241
EARNINGS PER SHARE SRER
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY BRAREEEREEA
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT BE{hERER
Basic and diluted (RMB) BEAXR#E (AR¥T) 13 51% 475
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BHtEeRER

Year ended December 31, 2014 o #{Z=2014FE12 31 H IFEE

2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFTT AEET T

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FR=F 2,096,235 1,960,241
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hfttima s
Other comprehensive income not to be RRBEBEENHEE

reclassified into profit or loss in BEmiHEALRE K

subsequent period
Remeasurement of defined benefit BT ERTE M EERS

obligations (11,420) 21,710
Other comprehensive income to be REEREET D EEEEN

reclassified into profit or loss HE AR e W

in subsequent period
Changes in fair value of an available-for- AHEHEREARBEEY

sale investment (105) -
Exchange differences on translation of RE G INHT B A 7/ B 53R

financial statements of EAMER Z%

overseas subsidiaries (4,725) (6,965)
Total comprehensive income for the year FRAGA N 2,079,985 1,974,986
Attributable to: FER

Owners of the parent [SYNCIEZFSN 2,079,740 1,974,823

Non-controlling interests VTR 245 163

2,079,985 1,974,986

Details of the dividend payable and proposed for the year are BREAFEREMBKERBREE ZFBR
disclosed in note 12 to the financial statements. B 53R R M s 123 55 o

1 90 China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B Ot BRI &R

December 31, 2014 e 2014512 B31H

2014 2013
20144 20134
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k=3 AR¥FT ARETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BE k& 14 701,689 485,012
Investment properties REYHE 15 10,337 14,163
Prepaid land lease payments TR T A ERRIE 16 1,745,088 1,788,109
Intangible assets EBEREEE 17 8,746 7,919
Investment in an associate NN LEOE Y - 215
Investment in a joint venture RELENKTE 19 50,067 =
Trade and other receivables B 5 K E b e GIE 20 70,375 53,382
Amounts due from contract FEW A R % P RIR
customers 21 2,698,467 3,201,943
Deferred tax assets RIETIAE B 26 244,384 154,577
Other non-current assets HEIERBEEE 28 246,778 343,944
Total non-current assets FREBEEHEEE 5,775,931 6,049,264
CURRENT ASSETS mENEE
Inventories FE 20 259,979 212,735
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk E b EERIE 22 6,179,073 4,894,653
Amounts due from contracts FEW & R % = 508
customers 21 2,745,274 2,372,575
Restricted deposits IR 175 23 300,235 251,435
Time deposits with original maturity JREA 2 HA B AR B = (8 A &Y
over three months TEBAE R 23 4,170,349 3,622,336
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEFEY 23 17,792,501 14,550,166
Total current assets mEBEEAE 31,447,411 25,903,900
CURRENT LIABILITIES nBEE
Borrowings BE 25 205,742 234,307
Receipts in advance TEWFRIB 9,170,168 7,021,664
Trade and other payables B 5 RE MBS RIE 24 13,764,067 12,227,087
Defined benefit obligations REW SRS 27 29,960 30,870
Tax payable FES AR IE 309,762 276,013
Total current liabilities REBEEEE 23,479,699 19,789,941
NET CURRENT ASSETS MENEE R 7,967,712 6,113,959
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EELABERABAEE
LIABILITIES 13,743,643 12,163,223
Continued/...
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

CRRE T

December 31, 2014 ¢ 201412 A31H

2014 2013
20145 20134
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

Hiat AREFT AEET T

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEABERARBERS

LIABILITIES 13,743,643 12,163,223
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FkRBAE
Borrowings BE 25 359,789 79,637
Trade and other payables B 5 N H A ER 5B 24 2,178 1,705
Defined benefit obligations HREWEET 27 327,650 325,820
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBAE 438 =
Total non-current liabilities FRnBEEHETE 690,055 407,162
Net assets BEE 13,053,588 11,756,061
EQUITY R
Issued capital B EITAE AR 29 4,125,700 4,125,700
Reserves e 30 8,909,782 7,613,925
Total equity attributable to BRAREE AELERATE

owners of the parent 13,035,482 11,739,625
Non-controlling interests FERER 18,106 16,436
Total equity SRR 13,053,588 11,756,061

Director Sun Bai Director Zhang Chun
EE #MH BE RE

1 92 China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

B EEEE X

Year ended December 31, 2014 o £ ZE2014E12 831 HILEE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BARERAER
Statutory Exchange Non-
Issued  Capital  surplus fluctuation Retained controlling Total
capital  reserve  reserve  reserve profits ~ Sub-total interests equity
BEfT EEBH EX
RE  BAGE NEE  RBRE REER Nt FERER BREAE
RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ANEBTT \RETT ARETT AREFT AREFT ARETT AEEFT AREFT
(note 29)  (note 30)
(Wi#29)  (Wits30)
At January 1, 2014 #2014E151H 4,125,700 3,307,149 510,168 11,273 3,785,335 11,739,625 16,436 11,756,061
Profit for the year EREA = - - - 2,096,918 2,096,918 (683) 2,096,235
Other comprehensive income for ENAfiRa N
the year
Exchange differences on translation JM&¥RE 7 E =8
of foreign operations - - - (5,653) - (5,653) 928 (4,725)
Re-measurement gains on defined 3 e S amat BlaLARIE -
benefit plans, net of tax N - - - - (11,4200 (11,420 - (11,420)
Changes in fair value of an ELERERAEED
avallable-for-sale investment - (105) - - - (105) - (105)
Total comprehensive income for ENGANEER
the year - (105) - (5,653) 2,085,498 2,079,740 245 2,079,985
Capital contribution from —BHEERRRMEREN
a non-controlling shareholder - - - - - - 1,750 1,750
Dividends paid to shareholders of 1 FAA AR MRS
the Company - - - - (783,883) (783,883) - (783,889)
Profit appropriation to reserves BRZRENRR - - 191,194 - (191,194 - - -
Dividends paid to non-controling S FHBAREERKE
shareholders of subsidiaries iofi&) - - - - - - (325) (325)
At December 31, 2014 #2014512A31H 4,125,700 3,307,044 701,362 5,620 4,895,756 13,035,482 18,106 13,053,588
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BOtRES R

Year ended December 31, 2014 o #{Z=2014FE12 31 H IFEE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BARERAER
Statutory  Exchange Non-
Issued  Capital surplus ~ fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
capital  reserve reserve reserve profits ~ Sub-total interests equity
BR1fT EERE Ej
R EARE e RERE  REER Nt FRRER  BRAB
RMB000  AMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000
ANEETT ARBTT AREFT AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETr AREFT
Note (note 29)  (note 30)
W (WE29) (W)
At January 1, 2013 R2013E151R 4018,000 2,895,423 316,090 1747 2673411 9,920,341 (2918) 9917428
Proft for the year EREN - - - - 1,969257 1959257 94 1,960,241
Other comprehensive income EREfEFaNE
for the year
Exchange difierences on translation & 8501
of foreign operations LERER - - - (6,144) - (6,144) (821) (6,965)
Re-measurement gains on defined e EsiHEIED
benefit plans, net of tax Efiraha
HHR - - - - A0 2,710 - A0
Total comprefensive income EniRNEER
fo the year - - - bl 1980967 1974828 63 1,974986
Dividends paid to shareholders HFAARRE
of the Company fIRE - - - - (674965  (674965) - (674969
Issue of shares Bk 28 107,700 411,726 - - - 519,426 - 519,426
Proft appropriation to reserves BEEREN R - - %078 - (194078) - - -
Disposal of an interest in a subsidiay BE—FHEA
with loss n control RiEs  WkE
Pl - - - - - - 1985 19375
Dividends paid to non-controling [ FHEAFZHER
shareholders of subsidiaries ELE - - - - - - (184) (184
At December 31, 2013 R2013E12A31A 4,125,700 3,307,149 510,168 11,2713 3,785,335 11,739,625 16,436 11,756,061

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

EHEERER

Year ended December 31, 2014 o £ ZE2014E12 831 HILEE

2014 2013
2014% 20134
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Kzt AEB¥ T AR Fr
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REKLETHHNRESRE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax: R A A& A - 2,738,144 2,664,105
Adjustments for: FHEIFR ¢
Finance costs B T& AR AN 5,955 7,279
Foreign exchange differences, net PE 5 = RS RE 17,382 130,542
Share of profits and losses of e B & A TR A & B
an associate - 199
Share of profits and losses of EliEE &R almsl & EiE
a joint venture (67) -
Interest income A B WA 6(a) (520,024) (471,731)
Loss on disposal of items of property, REYX¥ - HE&LZEEEE
plant and equipment FOEEPS 5 5,282 2,016
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary BEE —RWNBARMKES 5 - (175,649)
Dividend income % B A 5 (10,031) (9,907)
Net loss/(gains) on foreign currency R ERHNE & [B) R ) 2= 3 HR
forward exchange contracts and s/ (18%k) F5E
interest rate swaps 9 152,118 (178,056)
Net gains on disposal of an & IR B AN F
unquoted equity security W 25558 5 = (2,165)
Depreciation e 6(c) 36,758 38,865
Amortisation 5 6(c) 45,363 42,169
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment CRERR), REEE
losses 6(c) (49,091) 64,874
Provision for foreseeable losses on A RBFIERT B E
amounts due from contract customers 6(c) - 53,971
2,421,789 2,166,512
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FE (Em),md (47,244) 12,996
Decrease in amounts due from B A R% = RIBR S
contract customers 135,210 1,671,800
(Increase)/decrease in trade and B 5 REAFEWFIE
other receivables ($hn) (1,371,697) 855,877
Increase/(decrease) in receipts in FEW R IEE I, G d)
advance 2,148,504 (5,688,746)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 N E b FE A 5RIEIE AN 1,520,938 1,403,586
Increase/(decrease) in defined benefit 257 F U a5 3 75 hN
obligations @ CRid) 920 (18,800)
Cash generated from operations LETEBNIRESRA 4,808,420 403,225
Income tax paid BTSN (697,576) (903,149)
Net cash flows from/(used in) mESREELE S (AR) &
operating activities REREFH 4,110,844 (499,924)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BHRERER

Year ended December 31, 2014 o #{Z=2014FE12 31 H IFEE

2014 2013
20144 20134
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HtaE AR#FT AREF T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REREZBHRSRE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received EHFHE 520,024 482,514
Dividends received BUAE & 10,031 9,907
Purchases of items of property, BEYE  BERZEEE
plant and equipment (295,568) (91,480)
Purchases of available-for-sale BEHEERE
investments (188) -
Proceeds from disposal of items of REBWE  BENMEE
property, plant and equipment I8 B W13 5008 8,196 1,723
Proceeds from disposal of an RE BB p’i%‘%fﬂ’]
unquoted equity security FTi5#78 105,400 17,479
Proceeds from settlement of forward HEHEIRBINES R K
exchange contracts and interest F 242 iR BT 1S 5008
rate swaps 13,682 23,912
Additions of prepaid land lease REBEMN LA
payments - (152,763)
Additions of other intangible assets REEMEREE (5,233) (2,586)
Acquisition of an unquoted equity Uit B JE 57 3 A AN 5
security = (105,400)
Investments in a joint venture HEENRBENIKE (50,000) -
Placing of restricted deposits 15 HUSE IR 17 3K (299,640) (305,007)
Proceeds from redemption of HE 0] 52 [R 17 3R AT 15 5018
restricted deposits 250,840 500,923
Placing of non-pledged W R A B HA A R

time deposits with original maturity

of over three months when acquired
Proceeds from redemption of

non-pledged time

deposits with original maturity

of over three months when acquired

Net cash flows from/(used in)
investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issue of shares

Proceeds from borrowings

Repayment of borrowings

Capital contribution from a
non-controlling shareholder

Dividends paid

Dividends paid to non-controlling
shareholders

Interest paid

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
FEIRMREIRRAOERA S

=B A &y R HiAE K

U s By B [ SR 0 B H B R A8
= A A EERERER
PS3RIA

REFHEE(FA) B
R nEFR

REREZHNRERE
BT TS TR IR
tEEMSFRIA

BEEE
—HBIFEBRBERNEARRA

EREE
E1‘J‘3H Hxﬁx%fﬂ’]ﬂxg

ERHE

(51,852,206)

(65,671,698)

51,304,193 58,521,441
(290,469) 3,228,965

= 519,426

653,425 211,471
(401,860) (180,248)
1,750 —
(783,883) (674,965)
(276) (158)
(5,955) (7,437)




Notes

2014
20145
RMB’000

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

EHEERER

Year ended December 31, 2014 o £ ZE2014E12 831 HILEE

2013
20134
RMB’000

HiiE AREFT ARETT

Net cash flows used in financing BESEEFTANRE S RE

activities R (536,799) (131,911)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND ReRASEEYHEMFHE

CASH EQUIVALENTS 3,283,576 2,597,130
Cash and cash equivalents at FUNRe RBEEFEY

beginning of year 14,550,166 12,089,395
Effect of foreign exchange rate RSB 2 F

changes, net (41,241) (136,359)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRONRERBESEEY
AT END OF YEAR 23 17,792,501 14,550,166

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH HeRESEEVREIN
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances RS NIRTTAER 22,263,085 18,423,937
Pledged bank balances BIRMRITES (300,235) (251,435)
Time deposits with original maturity [REG 2 HA B BB =18 H &Y

of over three months TEHIF R (4,170,349) (3,622,336)

Cash and cash equivalents as stated  R&REXRFIIRES KL
in the statement of cash flows WEEEY 23 17,792,501 14,550,166
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Statement of Financial Position

B IR R

December 31 2014 ¢ 2014412 HA31H

2014 2013
20144 20134
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Kzt AREFT ARETF T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB A& 14 364,846 286,751
Investment properties B 15 14,244 15,224
Prepaid land lease payments FENEERIE 16 1,418,901 1,453,115
Intangible assets BEEE 17 4,877 4,863
Investment in subsidiaries RIE R RHIRE 18 1,978,252 1,959,665
Investment in an associate REEE QAR E - 215
Investment in a joint venture REEDEMIEE 19 50,067 =
Trade and other receivables 2 5 & E b fE W FRIE 22 - 50,186
Amounts due from contract A RRFKRIE
customers 21 2,671,413 3,136,275
Deferred tax assets IR IEE B 26 166,701 97,847
Other non-current assets HEMIEREEE 28 237,203 342,407
Total non-current assets FRBEELTE 6,906,504 7,346,548
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Inventories FE 20 4,009 5,361
Trade and other receivables B 5 I H th fE R IE 22 6,788,859 3,766,502
Amounts due from contract WA REPHE
customers 21 2,415,020 2,059,414
Restricted deposits SR B 23 160,728 244 153
Time deposits with original maturity ~— FRIAZIEI B HR:E =185 &
over three months TE B 23 3,804,775 3,491,951
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEEEY 23 14,026,206 12,907,621
Total current assets MBEEAT 27,199,597 22,475,002
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Borrowings BE 25 72,204 69,810
Receipts in advance TE W RRIE 8,064,925 6,435,093
Trade and other payables B 5 R E b ESFRIE 24 12,378,050 10,780,400
Defined benefit obligations RE M ETS 27 23,170 23,950
Tax payable FEBT IR 251,361 226,735
Total current liabilities REEEERE 20,789,710 17,535,988

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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Statement of Financial Position

B F5IR R

December 31 2014 » 201412 H31H

2014 2013
20144 20134
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

Wit ARE T ARET T

NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFRE 6,409,887 4,939,014

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT ¥ E#ERABAERES

LIABILITIES 13,316,391 12,285,562
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE

Borrowings BE 25 918 72,858
Trade and other payables B 5 Rk E A FER IR 24 - 1,705
Defined benefit obligations HEMRETE 27 241,570 243,200
Total non-current liabilities FRBEEHETE 242,488 317,763
Net assets FEE 13,073,903 11,967,799
EQUITY B

Issued capital B BT 29 4,125,700 4,125,700
Reserves {1 30 8,948,203 7,842,099
Total equity ERRE 13,073,903 11,967,799

Director Sun Bai Director Zhang Chun
BE #MH BE RE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BT EE SRR M AL

December 31, 2014 e 201412 A31H

200

CORPORATE INFORMATION

China Machinery Engineering Corporation (the “Company”) is
a joint stock company with limited liability incorporated in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). The registered office
of the Company is located at No. 178 Guang’anmenwai Street,
Beijing, PRC.

The Company was established on January 18, 2011 as part
of the reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) of China National
Machinery & Equipment Import & Export Corporation (the
“Predecessor”), a state-owned enterprise. The Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) are mainly engaged
in international construction business and trading business.

Prior to the Reorganisation and establishment of the Company,
the core business of the Group was controlled and operated by
the Predecessor. The Predecessor was wholly owned by China
National Machinery Industry Corporation (“SINOMACH?”, H
i T2 EE AR AF). Pursuant to the Reorganisation, the
Predecessor transferred its core business together with related
assets and liabilities to the Company. Upon establishment, the
Company had a total of 3,300 million issued ordinary shares,
with a par value of RMB1.00 each. The Company issued to
SINOMACH 3,267 million shares, or 99% of the total issued
shares, in exchange for the above transfer of business and
assets and liabilities from the Predecessor. The Company also
issued 33 million shares, or 1% of the total issued shares, to
China United Engineering Corporation (“China United”, H BB
& T #2), a wholly-owned subsidiary of SINOMACH for a cash
consolidation of RMB46,930,900.

On December 21, 2012, the Company became listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“HKSE”). The Company issued 718,000,000 H shares at
HKD5.40 each.by initial public offering(“IPO”) to investors
in Hong Kong and overseas. Based on the IPO, a total of
71,800,000 domestic state-owned shares of RMB1.00 each
owned by SINOMACH and China United in aggregate were
converted into H shares on a one-for-one basis and transferred
to the National Council for Social Security Fund of the PRC
(“NSSF”).

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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Notes to the Financial Statements

CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

On January 2, 2013, the over-allotment option granted by the
Company was fully exercised, thereby, the Company issued
and allotted an aggregate of 107,700,000 H shares at HKD5.40
each. Accordingly, a total of 10,770,000 domestic state-owned
shares of RMB1.00 each owned by SINOMACH and China
United were converted into H shares on a one-for-one basis
and transferred to the NSSF. As at December 31, 2014, a total
of 908,270,000 H shares were listed on HKSE.

In the opinion of the directors, the holding company and
the ultimate holding company of the Company, which was
established in the People’s Republic of China.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”),
which comprise all standards and interpretations approved
by the International Accounting Standards Board (the
“IASB”). These financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance relating to the preparation of financial
statements, which for this financial year and the comparative
period continue to be those of the predecessor Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 32), in accordance with transitional and
saving arrangements for part 9 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), “Accounts and Audit”, which are set out
in Sections 76 to 87 of Schedule 11 to that Ordinance. The
financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for derivative financial instruments
and available-for-sale investments which have been measured
at fair value. These financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

1.
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED) 2.1 wEIEE (&)

Basis of consolidation mEEE

202

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended December
31, 2014. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All
intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control described in
the accounting policy for subsidiaries below. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii)
the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs and new
interpretation for the first time for the current year’s financial
statements.

IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and Investment Entities
IAS 27 Amendments

IAS 32 Amendments Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

IAS 36 Amendments Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets

IAS 39 Amendments Novation of
Derivatives and Continuation of
Hedge Accounting

[FRIC 21 Levies
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 BT HERBSERIKE (&)
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

IFRS 2 Amendment included in  Definition of Vesting Condition’ BIPR B1 7% H  2E Bl [GEBIEIHHIRE]
Annual Improvements Fo5 (B3I -
2010-2012 Cycle MA2010FF2012%
B FE
IFRS 3 Amendment included in  Accounting for Eilldipy s il [REEHFRE
Annual Improvements Contingent Consideration in a 35 (BEIX) - HENEEE]
2010-2012 Cycle Business Combination’ MA2010E22012%F
BRI EEK#E
IFRS 13 Amendment included in ~ Short-term Gl el (RS HER
Annual Improvements Receivables and Payables F135, (BFIA) - ElI7E]
2010-2012 Cycle MA2010F22012%F
BHRFES#E
IFRS 1 Amendment included in ~ Meaning of BIR B 7%5 H  2E B [ BT i 22
Annual Improvements Effective IFRSs F15 (BFIK) - 5tz
2011-2013 Cycle MA2011E 220135
B FEK#
L Effective from July 1, 2014 L R201457 A1 BRRAR
The adoption of the revised IFRSs and new interpretation have SR BB B 15 i B B R ¥ 2
had no significant financial effect on these financial statements. BWEBZEMBRREEEANTB
20
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2.3 e RER A B H7 5T R A 7T B B
M| ELEAUREE D ARM
B #7 % BB R E

2.3 NEW AND REVISED IFRSs AND NEW
DISCLOSRUE REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE
HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE NOT
YET ADOPTED

AEBEYW RN ZFM B RERARER A
T ERAE M R A A HTR] AR IERT

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these

financial statements.

IAS1 Amendments
IFRS 9
IFRS 10 and IAS 28

Amendments

IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and
IAS 28 Amendments

IFRS 11 Amendments
IFRS 14

IFRS 15

IAS 16 and IAS 38

Amendments

|IAS 16 and IAS 41
Amendments

IAS 19 Amendments
|AS 27 Amendments

Annual Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle
Annual Improvements
2011-2013 Cycle
Annual Improvements
2012-2014 Cycle

Disclosure Initiative®

Financial Instruments*

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint

Venture?

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception?

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interest in
Joint Operations?
Regulatory Deferral Accounts®

Revenue from Contracts with Customers®
Clarification of Acceptable Methods of

Depreciation and Amortisation®

Agriculture: Bearer Plants?

Defined Benefit Plans:Employee
Contributions’

Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements?

Amendments to a number of IFRSs!

Amendments to a number of IFRSs!

Amendments to a number of IFRSs?

B 5 E &R o
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2.3 NEW AND REVISED IFRSs AND NEW 2.3 B AR RT R RS E] B BR

206

DISCLOSRUE REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE
HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE NOT
YET ADOPTED (CONTINUED)

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014

MB|ELEAUREEDQARM
MR ERE (&)

L R2014F7A1R K 2 B ABNEE

AR AR

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016 2 R2016F1A1RKZBRABMNEE
AR AR

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017 8 R2017F1ATHSZRAKRNEE
AR AR

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018

9 Effective for an entity that first adopts IFRSs for its annual
financial statements beginning on or after January 1, 2016 and
therefore is not applicable to the Group.

In addition, the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)
will affect the presentation and disclosure of certain information
in the consolidated financial statements for the year ending
December 31, 2015. The Group is in the process of making
an assessment of the impact of these changes.

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee).

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Subsidiaries (Continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statement of profit or loss to the extent of dividends received
and receivable. The Company’s investments in subsidiaries
that are not classified as held for sale in accordance with
IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHHEBE (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued) REZEARRAELENIRE (F)
The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures are AEERBERRRAELENRE
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at DIRAEREE  BRASEEERN
the Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of FEEREMBEBELES T BR
accounting, less any impairment losses. PRI ER ©

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar WE ST REFEEAS B &
accounting policies that may exist. TEHFEEFHEE -

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other REEFEHERAT REEDEMNIK
comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures is BrEERAMEGERES BFTAS
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and HERRREFEMEE REE o It
consolidated other comprehensive income, respectively. In Gh o MR E AT A E D ENER
addition, when there has been a change recognised directly EERRLBEEY  AASESRE
in the equity of the associate or joint venture, the Group HEmEHRERELB(EMNESD
recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the (MR ) o B2 & B B E B A\ 3k
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains GEPE BN MEERRER
and losses resulting from transactions between the Group W g N B 18 18 DA A 5= B pA Beg & R B 3%
and its associates or joint ventures are eliminated to the BEPERIRE R T LA - MW
extent of the Group’s investments in the associates or joint AEREBEERMEZREEREBENRE
ventures, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of BIBR AN - WiiEHE L A A& &R
an impairment of the asset transferred. Goodwill arising from EEXRNEET ARS BRI S A F %k
the acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included as BEDEREN—FBH o

part of the Group’s investments in associates or joint ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment WA E AR EE ARG E
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is HIRE (R2ZA) - BN gEHtE
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be REBER  ZREBEBLREER
accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases, AR EFMTBEMBRAT « ALY
upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint BERNRMNEAZENSIHEEDRE
control over the joint venture, the Group measures and WEEZEHE  AEEgREALE
recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any ATEREREMFHRIRE - BiE QR
difference between the carrying amount of the associate or FEERENRKREEALE KR
joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control THIERMERMEEFSREERDE
and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds FriSsRIBH A A B2 FrEREER
from disposal is recognised in profit or loss. B NER °

208 China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

The results of associates and joint ventures are included in
the Company’s statement of profit or loss to the extent of
dividends received and receivable. The Company’s investments
in associates and joint ventures are treated as non-current
assets and are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture is
classified as held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance
with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the
event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHHEBE (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued) E¥BEHREE (&)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the MEBESHIBERET  LAEERN
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition A ERZANKEARANAREE
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in ErE - MEEMNERIEREEZRT
profit or loss. TR o

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer U BE 5 i E R () S B E B IR Uk
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent HEN AR ERR B L ATS
consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial HEEEXEEAEBRRBEZE £
instrument and within the scope of IAS 39 is measured at fair EI9EE AR A EHEIZR AR EE
value with changes in fair value either recognised in profit or 2 ERAAEEZFHNEZANNIEAER
loss or as a change to other comprehensive income. If the EEKEN B R - Wk BHE
contingent consideration is not within the scope of IAS 39, it is TEREERE S ERFEIRBER
measured in accordance with the appropriate IFRS. Contingent B iR 15 & /Y B B B 1% ok & 2E Bl 5t
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured and B 0B ARESNIBHETNER
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity. B HEeBrETERmTARK-
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of HEYFTEKATE NEEZEY
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount B EEREENEREE AL E
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of SC B A B 1R U BB T A% 2N HE 25 9 1 4R
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree over N EERE HEBER#RRFEE
the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If LFiEREEEZBHNESE - (NE(BHE
the sum of this consideration and other items is lower than HEh1E B ESEERTWEFEEN
the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, ARE - ZEBREFTHEERIE
after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on mNERAZEEE WS -

bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less RUIAHER % - BB RK AR EMR R
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for FORERBERE c BEASFIERE
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes AR BEESHZEANBERNERER
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be REESURBER - A2 EAR
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of EITRH - NEBR12A318 # 17
goodwill as at December 31. For the purpose of impairment EENFERERG - BETRER
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, o AEBEHMBANEESKE
from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s A RE I EETEHIRE HFEED
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that BRI SPEFNAEE SRS ESL
are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination, BluskBHeEFELARN - TER
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group SEEMEEREBERESAENEEZ
are assigned to those units or groups of units. ZEAkEMAAR o
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured
based on the relative value of the operation disposed of and
the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, derivative
financial instruments and equity investments at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market
for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability
is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.
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POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Fair value measurement (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at
the end of each reporting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, construction contract assets, financial assets
and investment properties), the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair
value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in
those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an
asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such
an impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of
the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the
relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHHEBE (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Related parties B
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: ERIATFFE A TEM - BJR &
RNEE B B
(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s (a) MZF BT ALSZALTHR
family and that person FETERCE + B AT
(i)  has control or joint control over the Group; (i) FEHSERERAEE
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or iy HAKBBERTEN : 3k
(i) is a member of the key management personnel of (i) AAEEXAEEE QAN
the Group or of a parent of the Group; FEFEEKE ;
or B9
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions (b) W#Z75 BFE TIERNGRENE
applies: i
()  the entity and the Group are members of the same () ZEBHEASEBR 5B
group; :0)p4=WNCIE
(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other iy TRASEEMNKEEAQT
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary HEERTF (RS —HE
of the other entity); HEAAE -~ fEBARSER
Ll=PNGIDIR
(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the (i) ZEBHEAEEHER—F
same third party; ZHMAERNT
(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the ivy ERBARE=-ZFEBHNEER
other entity is an associate of the third entity; A ME—BBARZE=S
Fole0) NG
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FTESHBEBE (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Related parties (Continued) BBt (8)
(b) (Continued) (b) (&)

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the (v) BERAARKENEARE lﬁ
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity A E S THEA*'J
related to the Group; and the sponsoring employers R BERL At AR S ﬁWm
of the post-employment benefit plan; FErEl 2 éﬁﬂfgf

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (vi) EfEZ(a )Fﬁ%&“%ﬂ/\i?? il 3%
person identified in (a); and HEE

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence (vii) ﬁ’\\( JFFBAATHERE
over the entity or is a member of the key management FENIEZERE (3
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity). ;AE BRSRAR) FE2ERE

[BRCE °

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation M BERSEUARTE
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in PRIEEETIEI - W% BERFHER
progress, are stated at cost (or valuation) less accumulated AN (SEFE) B R FHTE RAER R 5T
depreciation and any impairment losses. When an item of WEEEIE - 2 —EHME  BEK
property, plant and equipment is classified as held for sale or REEMDEABEHFELRE BHEK
when it is part of a disposal group classified as held for sale, 2N *B?%?%E@F%E’JJ‘EEQ\HAE’]—*B %)
it is not depreciated and is accounted for in accordance with CEBANEWRER ST BRE
IFRS 5. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment ﬁg,ﬁ\'J ESSRALR o W% - KB RFEE
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs BERABREEBABRFEEEEZRE
of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for RERENEERR RSN ENE
its intended use. BEEAGRAR o
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POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

ME - BERRBURFTE (&

ME BEMRRBRERERELN
HERREFHAX  —BRRELHRE
FAABRER RS ERRENER
T RERBIRAX ABEREE -
EREERAL - W% - BER&RE
CERRDAEHES - RINEERE
R FMy /AT EERFH 2 @5
BEWHERRITE

o7 8 T3 DA ELARORAE 1 5 F R0 6
SME - BE RR A E HR A
EAMGEE UM SEANES
ERMT -

Buildings 3.8% t0 5.72% BT 3.8%%5.72%
Office and other equipment 19.0% to 19.5% MAEREMEHE  19.0%F19.5%
Motor vehicles 11.88% B 11.88%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on
related borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating lease for
a property which would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or
for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties
are measured at cost including transaction costs both at initial
recognition and subsequent to initial recognition.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.
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POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash-generating
unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised. The useful
life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed
annually to determine whether the indefinite life assessment
continues to be supportable. If not, the change in the useful
life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Software

Purchased software is stated at cost less any impairment
losses and is amortised on the straight-line basis over the
estimated useful life of 2 to 5 years.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or
loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will
generate future economic benefits, the availability of resources
to complete the project and the ability to measure reliably the
expenditure during the development. Product development
expenditure which does not meet these criteria is expensed
when incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included in
non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to the statement of profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group
is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of
any incentives received from the lessor are charged to the
statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial investments, as
appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially,
they are measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, except
in the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through
profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by

regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on

their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as effective

hedging instruments as defined by IAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with positive net
changes in fair value presented as other income and gains and
negative net changes in fair value presented as finance costs in
the statement of profit or loss. These net fair value changes do
not include any dividends or interest earned on these financial
assets, which are recognised in accordance with the policies

set out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria in IAS 39 are satisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for
as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their
economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to
those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not held
for trading or designated as at fair value through profit or loss.
These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or
loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in
the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash
flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification
of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss
category.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in other income
and gains in the statement of profit or loss.
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POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and
debt securities. Equity investments classified as available for
sale are those which are neither classified as held for trading
nor designated as at fair value through profit or loss. Debt
securities in this category are those which are intended to be
held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold in
response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in
market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised
gains or losses recognised as other comprehensive income
in the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve until
the investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative
gain or loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss
in other income, or until the investment is determined to be
impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from
the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve to the
statement of profit or loss in other gains or losses. Interest and
dividends earned whilst holding the available-for-sale financial
investments are reported as interest income and dividend
income, respectively and are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss as other income in accordance with the policies
set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that investment
or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates within the range
cannot be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair
value, such investments are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell
its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are
still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is
unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets,
the Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets if
management has the ability and intention to hold the assets
for the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale
category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any
previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised
in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining
life of the investment using the effective interest rate. Any
difference between the new amortised cost and the maturity
amount is also amortised over the remaining life of the asset
using the effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently
determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity
is reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHHEBE (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued) BERREMEE (F)

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows o AESEEEZEAEWIMZELERN
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the RHEEREMNEN  ARE
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third (8] 28 ERBEBRELES
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either —ENBAT  ERBEERNE
(a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks HFAELNEREBEESRENE
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither f: R@ASECHEZBEE
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and B 48 R 50 0 R\ Az (Bl = 3k (b) AN
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the SEYEEERNRBZBEEER
asset. AEBHER KRBT - BEEEZ

TR & EE RO TR I -

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash fis 7 55 B 3 2 HL W ER 2 TB B E P15 3R
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through CREMNEFNNECTLENLZHE 2
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained TEEELGREZBEERERENE
the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has Bk ER UARHEE EXREENW
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and EEENREZEEENBARITHR
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Bz K2 [] g Ko N7 f% 68 238 2% TH & = HY 45 6
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the - AEESEAEEFELEZIE
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the BERRIRTEERRAR - RZIB
Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred AT REBTHEREEEE 28
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that REENMBBEEENRRBRASEBEIR
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained. BN BB ELEGE -
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over AEBEUNEREAFESIREESR
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original EZCEZEEENNZBEEEZR
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of FHERAEEAETEFEXN 2&S
consideration that the Group could be required to repay. REMEZREET=E -

224 China Machinery Engineering Corporation
REIRMREIRRAERA S



Notes to the Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for
an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or
not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues
to be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment
of impairment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHHEBE (&)

226

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present
value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use
of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues to be
accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using
the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for
the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance are written
off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and
all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the
Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced
by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to other expenses in the
statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried
at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured,
or on a derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled
by delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for
a similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets
are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses
at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is
impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment
and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment
loss previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, is
removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in
the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

24 FESTTHERE (&)

EREERME (F)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued) A EZE/MRE (&)

In the case of equity investments classified as available MR EREH S ERIHELE - AIF
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant or BRERPREZBREZARBEANR
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below I RAKEEREKAE - [ KIE] TY
its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of HERNIEEZREBKRAMEE -
the investment and “prolonged” against the period in which [RE] BIMEENEHRA A EERE
the fair value has been below its original cost. Where there is R 7 B AN 2 B B i 514 o i i BB (B
evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as R BIREEE R REE K AN
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair RARBEZ =B RZERESLAEE
value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously mEkNERZERBEBETZ)

recognised in the statement of profit or loss — is removed from Hi R & a5l - W IB R
other comprehensive income and recognised in the statement RenBAAHHE ZRANTER 2R

BEEBETERRERER  HARE
ZIEMEHMBRERERENEMES
Was PR

of profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity instruments
classified as available for sale are not reversed through the
statement of profit or loss. Increases in their fair value after
impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive

228

income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to which

the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, or loans

and borrowings.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable

transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, bills payable, derivative financial instruments and

interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial liabilities (Continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This
category includes derivative financial instruments entered into
by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments
in hedge relationships as defined by IAS 39. Separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss
recognised in the statement of profit or loss does not include
any interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria in IAS 39 are satisfied.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the effective interest rate amortisation process.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHHEBE (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities (Continued) TREE (&)

Loans and borrowings (Continued) BEXMREER (&)

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any S AR R BT N WS = I8 (e 4T s 2k
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that HERBERFEDA LR —BHH
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective BRSKARTTE - BEF =8 HT
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the ABRERNPBERNA -

statement of profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts BBIERER

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those RARBELNTBERE N TIEEE
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse BB AN ERIRER T B GEHREE
the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor HAZRIE - MRS NFE AN RIE
fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the LRmEARBRNEBLRZEL - B
terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract is SR A D9 TR A it (B Bt B 3
recognised initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for HEREEZEEBOR KA EITHE
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance % HRRBEBE RYIBRERE K
of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group RAEUATMER 2R BT EM 5
measures the financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) EREH: (\WNREBRASREE
the amount of the best estimate of the expenditure required to BFERY ZREMBSSE 0 i)W
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period; IRTER < SRR (WER) REt#E -

and (i) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities RIEBIASRAE

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under REEIETHEEEERSKEUESE
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires. W - DR B B ARIERER -

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another IR B 2w B & AR — REA A ER
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the AEEEMNEBEMNR  IREEE
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such BRRIELEAREE] - LEEBAIEE]
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of AR R AR IEFER AR B B R R
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and FAE AEEREEMNEERIES
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is HRHER o

recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as
forward currency contracts and interest rate swaps, to hedge
its foreign currency risk and interest rate risk, respectively.
Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at
fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives
are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as
liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to the statement of profit or loss.

Current versus non-current classification

Derivative instruments that are not designated as effective
hedging instruments are classified as current or non-current or
separated into current and non-current portions based on an
assessment of the facts and circumstances (i.e., the underlying
contracted cash flows).

e Where the Group expects to hold a derivative as an
economic hedge (and does not apply hedge accounting)
for a period beyond 12 months after the end of the
reporting period, the derivative is classified as non-current
(or separated into current and non-current portions)
consistently with the classification of the underlying item.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHHEBE (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Derivative financial instruments (Continued) TTEEMTE (&

Current versus non-current classification (Continued) B EIE B 7 R (4E)

e  Embedded derivatives that are not closely related to the o HMISXNIWIFHIME 2 [T
host contract are classified consistently with the cash ATETAEDEFEHNZEER
flows of the host contract. E—HHHE -

e  Derivative instruments that are designated as, and are e BEARARBHREHAIAZITE
effective hedging instruments, are classified consistently THETEEBEHAEE 2D E—
with the classification of the underlying hedged item. The BOME - pTAETEERAELT
derivative instruments are separated into current portions NS HARBDED KIER
and non-current portions only if a reliable allocation can gEfy o
be made.

Inventories 7E
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable FEZKA R ZEIRFE (ARESE
value. Cost is determined on the specific identification of RAE) DIER o AR A BB A ERE
cost basis and, in the case of work in progress and finished EET - R AN GBKASTE
goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour and an BEEME  BEESIRIREE LI
appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is BEREEER - ] B FEIRENE
based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to B8R 78 B % (& P 2 A AT &K
be incurred to completion and disposal. RETE o
Cash and cash equivalents REREESEEY
For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, REMHRERERMS BEkBAS
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and EFEYEEFERe REHFR - U
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that FEBMBERSERERNIEE  ZF&
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject BErERERAENEENESBE
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short BEEERERRIIER  WREBAK=
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less ERAWEH  HAERBHAKERILE
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an RAKBERSERE —FHHRITESL ©
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash MHBARAEME BehkReEE

and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, MBERETZBHAFEER S KR

including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, TER (BREHEFEARMEER €
which are not restricted as to use. BEUMEE) -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

BT EE SRR M AL

December 31, 2014 e 201412 A31H

24 FESTTHERE (&)

i

HABEEHEBRBER CXEX
HE) RARAEFEFERTH A
BEES - AR RE  HELARER
SEFTARETRSE

HITRMFEEX - AR EESD
BRRRFEREEEEBH AKX L
RS HRIRME o B B R E
EEITRRERE - JIEM S E MR
ABEK -

Frie®t

ST eREMRARELERE - BEE
mOMERIR B B PTG BN 18 55 SN HE
R Twmed R HMES RS E#E
RiEzm AR ©

AREEAGFHEO SR BEEEME
BEREXNREHRE RMARC KBUE
EBE (KRR  XEBAKEE
BHEBERNRABERERER - %8
HERBERKRERN FTHREE RN
THETE -

EEFAEABBEERNRERREE
REBEOHAEEREBEMH B R
MBREE 2 RAPT A B R EE B
B e

Annual Report 2014
2014 F 3}

233




Notes to the Financial Statements

BT EE SRR M AL

December 31, 2014 e 201412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHHEBE (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Income tax (Continued) B (&)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary BRUATIBE RN  BRERIEEERAE

differences, except: FEERF B = RE T DARERR ¢

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable

EIREMIARAFEK A TRFERRE
BRI HREBEHNIINEE
FRE MRXZKATTES
FHE A SR ERBUR N EE - &

SRERKBAR BEQRARE
ERAINKREEHENERRE R

EREME - FROFRLE R ZEN
By ) AT DAY 1) S B B 2 RE T RE T
SR R REE o

future.

AR TR ERE - ARIARAR
BE AR ANIESBERREES IR
BE  MHEABRBARERERT R
MAT M AZ SR M E R Z5 - Al
ARABIBEERFRARIEEE T K
the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses SHAMR - BRIE -

can be utilised, except:

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences,

234

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset
to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which
it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to
a deferred income account and is released to the statement of
profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset
by equal annual instalments or deducted from the carrying
amount of the asset and released to the statement of profit or
loss by way of a reduced depreciation charge.
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POLICIES (CONTINUED)

LN+

Revenue recognition

236

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@)

from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

from construction contracts, on the percentage of
completion basis, as further explained in the accounting
policy for “Construction contracts” below;

from the rendering of services, on the percentage of
completion basis, as further explained in the accounting
policy for “Contracts for services” below;

rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms;

interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life
of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset; and

dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Construction contracts

Contract revenue comprises the agreed contract amount
and appropriate amounts from variation orders, claims and
incentive payments. Contract costs incurred comprise direct
materials, the costs of subcontracting, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of variable and fixed construction
overheads.

Revenue from fixed price construction contracts is recognised
on the percentage of completion method, measured by
reference to the proportion of costs incurred to date to the
estimated total cost of the relevant contract.

Revenue from cost plus construction contracts is recognised
on the percentage of completion method, by reference to the
recoverable costs incurred during the period plus the related
fee earned, measured by the proportion of costs incurred to
date to the estimated total cost of the relevant contract.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are
anticipated by management. Where contract costs incurred
to date plus recognised profits less recognised losses exceed
progress billings, the surplus is treated as an amount due from
contract customers. Where progress billings exceed contract
costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised
losses, the surplus is treated as an amount due to contract
customers.

Contracts for services

Contract revenue on the rendering of services comprises the
agreed contract amount. Costs of rendering services comprise
labour and other costs of personnel directly engaged in
providing the services and attributable overheads.
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POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Contracts for services (Continued)

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised based
on the percentage of completion of the transaction, provided
that the revenue, the costs incurred and the estimated costs
to completion can be measured reliably. The percentage of
completion is established by reference to the costs incurred
to date as compared to the total costs to be incurred under
the transaction. Where the outcome of a contract cannot be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent that
the expenses incurred are eligible to be recovered.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are
anticipated by management.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits
less recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus
is treated as an amount due from contract customers. Where
progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to date plus
recognised profits less recognised losses, the surplus is
treated as an amount due to contract customers.

Employee benefits
Pension scheme

The Group contributes on a monthly basis to various defined
contribution retirement schemes organised by the relevant
municipal and provincial governments in the PRC. The
municipal and provincial governments undertake to assume
the retirement benefits payable to all existing and future
retired employees under these plans and the Group has no
further obligations for post-retirement benefits beyond the
contributions made. The contributions to the schemes are
recognised as and when incurred.

The Group implements a pension annuity plan, pursuant to
which the Group pays contributions to the plan regularly
and the Group has no further obligation thereto once the
required contributions have been made. The contributions
are recognised as employee benefit expenses when incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Employee benefits (Continued)
Pension scheme (Continued)

In addition, the Group also pays supplemental pension
subsidies to employees retired before January 1, 2010. Such
supplemental pension subsidies mainly comprised monthly
cash payment to the retirees for life as determined by the
Group upon their respective retirement and subject to cost
of living adjustments. The supplemental pension subsidies
scheme is an unfunded scheme. As detailed in note 27 below,
these defined benefit obligations recognised were assessed
using the projected unit credit actuarial valuation method; the
cost of providing such subsidies is charged to the statement
of profit or loss so as to spread the service cost over the
average lives of such former employees, in accordance with
the actuarial reports which contained full valuations of the
plans for each of the relevant accounting periods.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined
by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using
interest rates of government securities which have maturity
approximating to the terms of the related pension liability.

Re-measurements arising from experience adjustments and
changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised immediately
in the consolidated statements of financial position with a
corresponding debit or credit to other comprehensive income
in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Net interest calculated by applying the discount rate to the net
defined liability or asset. The Group recognises the following
changes in the net defined obligation under finance expenses
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss by function:

e service costs comprising current service costs, past-
service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-

routine settlements.

e et interest expense or income.
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POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a
separate allocation of retained profits within the equity section
of the statement of financial position, until they have been
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. When
these dividends have been approved by the shareholders and
declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and declared.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is
the Company’s functional and presentation currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in profit or loss with the exception of
monetary items that are designated as part of the hedge
of the Group’s net investment of a foreign operation. These
are recognised in other comprehensive income until the net
investment is disposed of, at which time the cumulative
amount is reclassified to profit or loss. Tax charges and credits
attributable to exchange differences on those monetary items
are also recorded in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value
was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a
non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with
the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the
item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss, respectively).
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POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than RMB. As at the end of the reporting
period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
into the presentation currency of the Company at the exchange
rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their
statements of profit or loss are translated into RMB at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation
and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated
at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
which arise throughout the year are translated into RMB at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
could require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Percentage of completion of construction work

The Group recognises revenue according to the percentage of
completion of individual contracts for construction work, which
requires estimation to be made by management. The stage
of completion is estimated by reference to the actual costs
incurred over the total budgeted costs, and the corresponding
contract revenue is also estimated by management. Due to
the nature of the activity is completed usually full into different
accounting periods. Hence, the Group reviews and revises the
estimates of both contract revenue and contract costs in the
budget prepared for each contract as the contract progresses.
Where the actual contract revenue is less than estimated or
actual contract costs are more than estimated, a foreseeable
loss may arise.

3.
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JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)
Judgements (Continued)

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the
Group considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by the Group.
Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation and another portion that is held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions
could not be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property basis
to determine whether ancillary services are so significant that
a property does not qualify as an investment property.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Deferred income tax

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised as management considers it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
The realisation of the deferred tax assets mainly depends
on whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future. In cases where
the actual future profits generated are less than expected, a
material reversal of deferred tax assets may arise which will
be recognised in profit or loss in the period in which such a
reversal takes place.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets as at December
31, 2014 was RMB244,384,000 (December 31, 2018:
RMB154,577,000). More details are given in note 26.

Impairment of trade and bills receivables

The Group maintains an allowance for the estimated loss
arising from the inability of its customers to make the required
payments. The Group makes its estimates based on the
ageing of its trade and bill receivable balances, customers’
creditworthiness, and historical write-off experience. If the
financial condition of its customers will deteriorate such that
the actual impairment loss might be higher than expected, the
Group would be required to revise the basis for making the
allowance and its future results would be affected.

The carrying amount of trade and bills receivables as at
December 31, 2014 was RMB3,878,484,000 (December 31,
2013: RMB2,359,180,000). More details are given in note 22.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and has
three reportable operating segments as follows:

(@) Construction contracts: this segment mainly undertakes
engineering, procurement and construction (“EPC”)
contracting business of overseas infrastructure-related
construction projects (including hydropower, thermal
power or other engineering projects) in various countries.

(b) Trading business: this segment mainly engages in the
business of importing and/or exporting various machinery,
electrical and instrumental products for domestic and
overseas customers.

(c) Other businesses: this segment mainly engages in
providing export-import agency services, exhibition
services, design services, tendering agency services and
logistics services.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resources allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit/loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit/
loss before tax. The adjusted profit/loss before tax is measured
consistently with the Group’s profit before tax except that
shares of profits less losses of an associate and a joint venture,
interest income from bank deposits, finance costs related to
defined benefit plan, dividend income, fair value gains/losses
from the Group’s financial instruments as well as head office
and corporate income/expenses are excluded from such
measurement.

Segment assets exclude investments in an associate and a
joint venture, prepaid land lease payments, intangible assets,
deferred tax assets, time deposits, cash and cash equivalents,
equity investments at fair value through profit or loss, derivative
financial instruments and other unallocated head office and
corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group
basis.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, BREDIER (&)

(CONTINUED)

SHRETRERTRRSEY - R
BiR - EIEBIE B SRR kSR
BROLAE LI EREEEEN
EEHAEE -

Segment liabilities exclude defined benefit obligations, tax
payable, deferred tax liabilities and other unallocated head
office and corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed
on a group basis.

ENRENHEERERD2ERE =
THEMRAZEE  RERMER

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference
to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the

then prevailing market prices. IR 5 o
(a) Segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities (a) PIHEE - EEREE
BZ20145% Construction Trading Other
Year ended December 31, 2014 12831B ILEE contracts business businesses Total
BESE B25% HitnEH &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFT ARBEFT AREFT
Segment revenue: DU
Sales to external customers HETINIRE 15,460,842 6,442,938 1,103,965 23,007,745
Intersegment sales DEREIA - 92,509 469,901 562,410
Reportable segment revenue EESESE 0N 15,460,842 6,535,447 1,573,866 23,570,155
Reportable segment profit AR E D HERF 2,135,902 101,333 143,620 2,380,855
Finance income g7 N 192,348 5,313 - 197,661
Finance expenses PR 2,384 2,216 1,355 5,955
Depreciation and amortization EREE - - - -
Provision/(reversal of provision) of REBERE/
impairment losses (BfaRm)
- Trade and other receivables -85 REMENGE (118,594) 58,886 14,550 (45,158)
- Amounts due from ~ERAREFZAE
contract customers (4,433) - - (4,433)
Reportable segment assets AHESIDEE 12,139,043 2,407,238 955,169 15,501,450
- Capital expenditure —BAMHY - - = =
Reportable segment liabilities AHREIHEE 20,607,119 2,675,310 3,763,442 27,045,871
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

4. BRETHESR (&)

() 7H*E BEERER (H)

(a) Segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities

(Continued)
HZE2013512A Construction Trading Other
Year ended December 31, 2013 S1HLEEE contracts business  businesses Total
BEAR B 5%% HA 7% &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT AREFTT AREFT
Segment revenue: DEUA
Sales to external customers HETINIEP 15,385,648 4,907,806 1,132,818 21,426,272
Intersegment sales D EBRUA - 265,705 426,583 692,288
Reportable segment revenue AHREDTUA 15,385,648 5,173,511 1,559,401 22,118,560
Reportable segment profit A3 & 226 A 2,116,699 2,791 121,112 2,240,602
Finance income p I ON 266,134 - - 266,134
Finance expenses BBEY 4,109 3,170 - 7,279
Depreciation and amortisation IE L - - 1,158 1,158
Provision/(reversal provision) of REEERE
impairment losses (BEEm)
— Trade and other receivables —B 5 REMEKGIE 43,640 4,591 11,167 59,398
— Amounts due from — WA REFHIE
contract customers 5,476 - - 5,476
- Foreseeable losses on —#EAREER
construction contracts 53,971 - - 53,971
Reportable segment assets AREDHEE 8,309,516 1,997,682 799,250 11,106,448
- Capital expenditure —EAXAZ - = = =
Reportable segment liabilities ARESHEE 16,502,262 2,335,193 804,247 19,641,702

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

4. REIHWEH (&)

(b) AMED LA ~ BF

(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue,

profit/loss, assets and liabilities

B -EEREBENERER

2014 2013
201445 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Revenue: WA
Reportable segment revenue Al RE D EULA 23,570,155 22,118,560
Elimination of inter-segment revenue 73 H A UL A 8 (562,410) (692,288)
23,007,745 21,426,272
Profit: Al
Reportable segment profit A & 7 & s A 2,380,855 2,240,602
Share of profits less losses of FE (Bt 8 X &) I RUET 18
an associate - (199)
Share of profits less losses of JEMh & &b mFRE R
a joint venture 67 -
Dividend income A& B A 10,031 9,907
Other income/(expenses), net HaA (Ax) F8 (2,174) 172,441
Other operating income/(expenses) Hpe g A~ (FAX) 550 (602)
Interest income from bank deposits QEQEETTTTAE’W'J SEUON 520,024 471,731
Interest cost recognised in respect of W% E W E AR R ET B FERR B
defined benefit retirement plans F B A (14,590) (13,540)
Foreign exchange gains/(losses), net N e () F58 (74,498) (136,359)
Depreciation and amortisation e R 5 (82,121) (79,876)
Profit before tax B F BT % A 2,738,144 2,664,105
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, BREDIER (&)

(CONTINUED)

(b) AIEMEDIBA ~ BF
B -BEEREBENEER (F)

(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue,
profit/loss, assets and liabilities (Continued)

2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#F T AREFT
Assets: BE

Reportable segment assets Al RE D EEE 15,501,450 11,106,448
Elimination of inter-segment receivables 4> & & & Y 3k IE 1K 5 (3,565,795) (635,266)
11,935,655 10,471,182
Restricted deposits PRSI 300,235 251,435

Time deposits with original maturity [RIEIHA BB =8 H &y
over three months T HTER 4,170,349 3,622,336
Cash and cash equivalents e LBEESEEY 17,792,501 14,550,166
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB M RE 701,689 485,012
Prepaid land lease payments TEfS LA EFIR 1,745,088 1,776,129
Intangible assets | EE 8,746 7,919
Interest in a joint venture REEPFENER 50,067 =

Interest in an associate REEE N TR REES = 215

Deferred tax assets BRI EE 244,384 154,577
Other non-current assets HiIERBEE 246,778 343,944
Other unallocated assets Hi R DEEE 27,850 290,249
37,223,342 31,953,164
Liabilities: =R
Reportable segment liabilities AREDEAE 27,045,871 19,641,702
Elimination of inter-segment payables 7 EB [ A5 SR IR 4 8 (3,565,795) (635,266)
23,480,076 19,006,436
Defined benefit obligations FHEMmETE 357,610 356,690
Tax payable FEfIFIR 309,762 276,013
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE 438 _
Other unallocated liabilities HEi Ao EaE 21,868 557,964
24,169,754 20,197,103
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, BREDIER (&)
(CONTINUED)

(c) HEEFHER

(c) Geographical information

Revenue from external customers REIMEBEFEFHUA 2014 2013
20144 20134

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR#FT AREF T

Mainland China FR B K e 4,355,685 2,555,267
The Republic of Iraq P 72 HL 0 3,827,660 2,486,528
Venezuela = Nimhr 2,397,419 2,414,504
Equatorial Guinea TRBAE N 1,009,526 1,089,825
Sri Lanka HEBR 947,410 994,791
Angola e 915,501 920,578
The Republic of Congo fl SR 0 B4 825,612 883,468
United States EE 782,114 388,120
Argentina Pl AR 3£ 670,152 182
Belarus B & Hr 660,196 1,581,366
Others HAh 6,616,470 8,111,643
23,007,745 21,426,272

The revenue information above is based on the locations

of the customers.

A EWABR TIRE PS5 o

Specified non-current assets BEERBEE 2014 2013
20144 20134

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT ARETF T

Mainland China EICTPNES 2,457,553 2,275,754
Others HAfth 8,307 19,449
2,465,860 2,295,203

LA EIERBNE EE R THIRE EFTE i
HED  TEESRTARELERE
and deferred tax assets. BEE °

The non-current asset information above is based on the
locations of the assets and excludes financial instruments
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REFWBER (#)
(CONTINUED)
(d) Information about major customers (d) FEXEEZFHNEHR
Revenues generated from two customers derived from BUE20145F12A31H L FE - &
the construction contracts segment which individually BREGRNMEBEFMEELN
amounted to more than 10% of the Group’s revenue for the WA B & A R #3,437,057,000
year ended December 31, 2014 were RMB3,437,057,000 JT #12,361,634,0007T (20134 :
and RMB2,361,634,000, respectively (2013: Nil). &) ZEEEAREEWRAN10%A
J: o
5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WA > Htl A R WKz
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the WA AR B ERE  55F A
net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns BREERESHHNEEERERF
and trade discounts; an appropriate proportion of contract B R2ESREGEERYKA - FiEHt
revenue of construction contracts; the value of services RBEEARE R RERIREDED
rendered; and gross rental income received and receivable HE WAL -

from investment properties during the year.
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

(CONTINUED)

An analysis of revenue, other revenue and other income/

(expenses), net is as follows:

WA~ Htt AR W (&)

REBAWA - E AU A K E bt
A/ () FEAFTMT -

2014 2013
20145 20134
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BtaE AR¥FrT AREFT
Revenue ON
Construction contracts 2iEAR 15,460,842 15,385,648
Trading business EEEY 6,442,938 4,907,806
Others H ity (1) 1,103,965 1,132,818
23,007,745 21,426,272
Other revenue Hug A
Dividend income from unquoted FEM AR AN FE S IR B
equity securities 10,031 9,907
Government grants TR #e8 B 4,814 2,443
14,845 12,350
Other income/(expenses), net Hhle A~ (BAxX) B
Net losses on disposal of items of BEME  BER
property, plant and equipment RAETE B M E 1 F R (5,282) (2,016)
Net gain on disposal of an B B IEm AR E R
unguoted equity security Wz 588 - 2,165
Net gain on disposal of an interest in R E — KB R A
a subsidiary with loss in control e ws MW as 5 RE
I Sk A1 e - 175,649
Net gains/(losses) on foreign currency  =EJINEA B R Fl| =
forward exchange contracts and HER K
interest rate swaps (E518) F58 (152,118) 178,056
Others HAh 64,040 (378)
(93,360) 353,476
Note: izt -

(1)  Other revenue mainly represents revenue from the provision
of export-import agency services, tendering agency services,
exhibition services, design services and logistics services.

(1) EMAZEHEEMEDORER
% BEREOERY - RERD - Rt
RS 2 D RIS B U
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. BR¥ADER
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ AEEZBRF AN F S 05 (Gh
(crediting): A)
(a) Finance income and finance expenses (a) B AR EITEE X
2014 2013
20144 20134
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

K1zt AREFT ARETT

Finance income on receivables MR F SR IER

from customers B TSI 197,661 266,134
Interest income B U A 520,024 471,731
Finance income B A 717,685 737,865
Interest cost recognised in L AR E W = 75

respect of defined benefit HERHF SRR

obligations 27 14,590 13,540
Interest expenses on borrowings ARAFRNTBEEE

wholly repayable within five years WEERNFERXZ 7 5,655 7,073
Interest expenses on other HMEBEMNH SR

borrowings 7 300 206
Foreign exchange losses, net SNBE [E5 18 FH 58 17,382 368,383
Bank charges and others IR1TEBR M EAM 12,683 12,511
Finance expenses B 2 50,610 401,713
Net finance income recognised RIBEFERH

in profit or loss g ONE R 667,075 336,152
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (CONTINUED) 6. BRBIRNER (&)
(b) Staff costs (b) EIRKA
2014 2013
20144 20134
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

H1it ARETFT ARETT

Salaries, wages and other benefits #i& * L& M EMiEH 1,230,078 1,087,404
Contributions to defined R ERFGR KT BB HERK

contribution retirement plans 94,262 92,443
Expenses recognised in respect of i 5 iE 4@ AR KT &

defined benefit retirement plans R E 5 27 4,950 430

1,329,290 1,180,277

(c) Other items (c) HMEHE
2014 2013
20144 20134
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

Bt ARETFT ARETT

Amortisation B
- Prepaid land lease payments — BNHEERIE 16 41,858 39,843
- Intangible assets —EREE 17 3,505 2,326
45,363 42,169
Depreciation e
— Property, plant and equipment  — #1% - HE &R 14 34,829 37,983
— Investment properties — B 15 1,929 882
36,758 38,865
Impairment losses/(reversal of WIEEE,CRERR)
impairment) on
— Trade and other receivables — B 5 RH MR 22 (45,158) 59,398
— Other non-current assets — HiIEmBEE 500 =
- Amounts due from contract — A REF EYGRIE
customers 21 (4,433) 5,476
(49,091) 64,874
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (CONTINUED) 6. K#Ht

(c) Other items (Continued)

AIE N ()

(c) Hfte®E (&)

2014 2013
20144 20134
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Kt AR¥TF T ARETF T
Operating lease charges KEHEE A
— Lease of properties —HEYHE 25,509 25,067
— Lease of other assets —HEEMEE 1,562 1,635
27,071 26,702
Auditors’ remuneration ST RD 37 B
— Audit services — BT IRTE 3,132 5,902
- Tax services — MR = 16
— Other services — E b AR% 3,000 3,000
6,132 8,918
Provision for foreseeable losses ZiEARIFETEERE
on construction contracts - 53,971
Rental income from investment REREMFENHEERA
properties
— Gross rental —Efe 18,297 20,284
- Direct outgoings —BETH (2,218) (3,519)
— Net rental — 2% 16,079 16,765
Cost of inventories FERZA 6,140,847 4,451,323
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7. INTEREST EXPENSES ON BORROWINGS 7. BENFEAX
An analysis of interest expenses on borrowings is as follows: BEMNMERZ ST
Group REE
2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT ARET T

Interest on bank loans and overdrafts HARAFARNBHEED
wholly repayable within five years RITERRBEZFE 5,655 7,073
Interest on other loans H M ERFE 300 206
5,955 7,279
8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EENITHEARITM
REMUNERATION
Group REM
2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARBEF T
Fees b2 1,113 1,052
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e /$ﬁ£&,\%ﬂﬁ 2,070 2,004
Performance related bonuses BAZE IR BN R TEA 2,481 2,898
Pension scheme contributions ?Eﬁ(%?r%ﬂﬁ%%’( 126 138

5,790 6,092
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EERITHEARETN (&)
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

(a) Executive directors, non-executive directors (@) FTESE - FATEERITH
and the chief executive R
Salaries,
allowances Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses contributions remuneration
o EZER EREBHEN  BHREHE
EA ENFls A 3 HMast

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ABRTR  ARBFT  ARRTZ  AREFT  ARETZ

2014 20145
Executive directors: g7ER:
Mr. Sun Bai i - 501 1,145 40 1,686
Mr. Zhang Chun (note (1)) RERE (HH1) - 501 1,145 40 1,686
Ms. Li Taifang (note (2) FARRL (W) - 109 191 6 306
- 1,111 2,481 86 3,678
Non-executive directors: FRTES
Mr. Wang Zhian TRREE 75 38 - - 113
Mr. Zhang Fusheng (note (3)) REELE (HiH3) 70 29 - - 99
Mr. Yu Benli (note (4)) RAREE (i) 70 28 - = 98
Mr. Pan Chongyi (note (5)) BREEE (W) 8 4 - - 12
223 99 - - 322
Independent non-executive directors:  BUIFFRTEES -
Mr. Liu Li 2 hksE 220 - - - 220
Ms. Liu Hongyu AFat 220 - - - 220
Mr. Fang Yongzhong FKBEE 220 - - - 220
Mr. Wu Delong (note (6)) REERE (We) 193 - - - 193
Mr. Chan Kin Ho (note (7)) REREE (Wi7) 37 - - - 37
890 - - - 890
Supervisors: g
Mr. Quan Huagjang PERTE - - - - -
Mr. Qian Xiangdong BRREE - - - - -
Mr. Bai Ming Af%AE - 860 - 40 900
- 860 - 40 900
1,113 2,070 2,481 126 5,790

258 China Machinery Engineering Corporation
PEREREIREROERAT



Notes to the Financial Statements

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

(a) Executive directors, non-executive directors
and the chief executive (Continued)

Notes:

(1

@)

Mr. Zhang Chun is the chief executive of the Company.

Ms. Li Taifang’s appointment as the vice chairman of the
Company was ceased effective on February 20, 2014.

Mr. Zhang Fusheng was appointed as non-executive
director of the Company on February 20, 2014.

Mr. Yu Benli was appointed as non-executive director of
the Company on February 20, 2014.

Mr. Pan Chongyi’s appointment as non-executive director of
the Company was ceased effective on February 20, 2014.

Mr. Wu Delong was appointed as independent
non-executive director of the Company on February 20,
2014.

Mr. Chan Kin Ho’s appointment as independent non-
executive director of the Company was ceased effective
on February 20, 2014.

BT EE SRR M AL

December 31, 2014 e 201412 A31H

8. EERITHARTM (&)

(a) #1T

B FUTESRTH

mE ()

(1)

@)

RFRERARRITHAAE, °

FAFEREERAARBEE
BZEER2014F2 A20B & 1E -

3R 48 & %k A R201452 A 20H
ERERRRBFATES o

A A48 5L £ R201452H20R
EZEARNDRIIENITES -

BREREERARRIIERIT
T E M E ER20145F2820H
BRAE ©

R 1= B2 5L £ R2014%2H20H
EZEAARNRBYIENITE
$o

BREREEEARNDBIE I
MITE BN Z ER2014F2A°
20B 4RI °
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EERITHARTM (&)
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)
(a) Executive directors, non-executive directors (a) HITESE > FHTEBERITH
and the chief executive (Continued) M (48)
Salaries,
allowances  Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions  remuneration
e 2k HRRANN  RAEHE ‘
2H EMfles Al 3 Az

RMB'000  AMB'000  AMB'000  AMB'000  AMB'000
ARETE _ ARRTL _ARETL _ARETT  ARETT

2013 2013%
Executive directors: HTES:
Mr. Sun Bai (note (1)) BmEE (W) - 209 426 16 651
Mr. Yang Wansheng (note (1)) GEBLE (1H1) - 209 426 14 649
Ms. Li Taifang ERFLL = 501 1,023 36 1,560
Mr. Zhang Chun RFEE - 501 1,023 36 1,560
- 1,420 2,898 102 4,420
Non-executive directors: FHiTEE:
Mr. Pan Chongyi BEEAE 50 32 - - 82
Mr. Wang Zhian TARRE 50 32 - - 82
100 64 - - 164
Independent non-executive directors; BV JEH{TES :
Mr. Liu Li 2 nxsE 238 = — — 238
Ms. Liu Hongyu AIFL+ 238 - - - 238
Mr. Fang Yongzhong HKBEE 238 - - - 238
Mr. Chan Kin Ho REREE 238 - - - 238
952 - - - 952
Supervisors: B
Mr. Quan Huagiang REREL = = = = -
Mr. Qian Xiangdong BRREE - - - _ _
Mr. Bai Ming RA%AE = 520 - 36 556
= 520 = 36 556
1,062 2,004 2,898 138 6,092
Note (1): Mr. Yang Wansheng was retired from his position as Biat(1) - 8B EER20135F4 819
the chairman and executive director of the Company HRERAREFERPITE
on April 19, 2013. Mr.Sun Bai was appointed as the = o FAREAER2013F4 A
chairman and executive director of the Company on 19 BEZERARBIER
April 19, 2013. FRHPITES -
There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief i W;_ ﬁﬁ%%@ijffﬁé@ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁ
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during BMEE ALk -
the year.
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9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. AfUREHMES
The five highest paid employees during the year included one FAN ANGEaTHNEERE —BE
director (Mr. Sun Bai) and the chief executive (Mr. Zhang Chun) E(BALE) RITHAE (RZE
(2013: one director (Mr. Sun Bai) and the chief executive (Mr. H) (201835 : —BEF (FME &)
Zhang Chun)), details of whose remuneration are set out in RABER (RZEEE))  BRENH
note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the IS E A LT sEs - FANREIEES
remaining three (2013: three) highest paid employees who MMIETTIARE B ER T =& (20134 -
are neither a director nor chief executive of the Company are =%) e EENTFMEFBOT ¢
as follows:
Group AEE
2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT ARET T

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind #He BB NREDHE 1,278 1,278
Performance related bonuses AR IBHMFRIEAL 2,920 2,608
Pension scheme contributions BINEFT IR 120 108

4,318 3,994
The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest SINEA TS ENIEES R IEITE AR
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following HESHMES AT -

band is as follows:

Number of employees

EEAH
2014 2013
20145 20134
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/ L%
2,000,000 7T 3 3
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10. INCOME TAX 10. FTB %

262

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the
statutory enterprise income tax rate of 25% is applied to the
Group for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013,
except for one subsidiary of the Group which was entitled
to the preferential tax rate of 15% (2013: 15%) because it is
recognised as high and new technology enterprise by the local
governments in the PRC.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2013: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising
in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits assessable
elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing
in the countries (or jurisdictions) in which the Group operates.

BEPERBEERER  A58H
R # £20144F 20136 12H318 1t
FEERANEAELEMSHMER
25% - MEAREEHN—RKE A 7 E
FEE BN RE AE T RimEEm
EHEZ H15% (20134 : 15%) K&
BRE o

FEENBRIAFRAERTBELED
fl &1 FE AR B )it F1)4%216.5% (20134 -
16.5%) HIT R IBHE o 7O HE b [ 1)
ERBABE IR AN RE L EMENE
R(KEERER) WERRRFTER
15 o

2014 2013

20144 20134

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T AREF T

Current income tax — Mainland China BNER 5 8% — rh B K Pae 720,870 702,121
Current income tax — Hong Kong BVERFRIS R — B 927 232
Current income tax — Others BNEAFTS L — HAth 9,919 25,551
Deferred income tax EREFTSHR (89,807) (24,040)
Total tax charge for the year FEMIAX HBEE 641,909 703,864

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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10. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

11.

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax at the statutory rates for the countries (or jurisdictions) in
which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are
domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rates are as

BT EE SRR M AL

December 31, 2014 e 201412 A31H

10. FRi8% (&)

BARE REKZ M B A B A
B (helEERE) MAERERAEZ
B T A A8 A 2 TR R S IR B IR
MERFFE 2 BIBF EERINT

follows:

2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#F T AR F T
Profit before tax B A5 B A 2,738,144 2,664,105
Tax at the statutory tax rate BAEMEFTHENTIE 684,536 665,929
Lower tax rate(s) for specific provinces BEEMhEM S E BTN
or enacted by local authority BIEH = (1,047) (23)
Income not subject to tax B R A (17) (2,351)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR B 2 6,735 24,979
Tax losses utilised from previous periods {5 FR 3@ 1F BARS B0 B 1B /&5 18 (8,179) -
Deductible temporary differences REER A0
not recognised ERERR = 14,375
Utilisation of deductible temporary &) FH 38 1 HAfE AT 440
differences from previous period R EEE (33,869) =
Others EAh (6,250) 955
Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate BEAEEEBRMRETERN
MBS 641,909 703,864

The share of tax attributable to associates and joint ventures
amounting to nil (2013: (RMB50,000)) and RMB17,000 (2013:
nil), respectively, is included in “share of profits and losses of
joint ventures and associates” in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss.

B ERAT RAERERES A
£ (20134 : A R#50,00070) & A
R #17,0007T (20134 : ) - 2 &t
AGHEBEER [EHEECERBE
NA)E A REER] A -

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
PARENT

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the parent
for the year ended December 31, 2014 includes a profit of
RMB1,894,996,000 (2013: RMB1,940,781,000) which has
been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company
(note 30(b)).

1. RERF QA RERNEF

H 20145128318 It F E 57 B
REQARBRENEGHEHEEER
AAE B BIRER ARG AR
1,894,996,0007T (20134 : A R #
1,940,781,0007tT) (HI3E30(b)) °
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BT EE SRR M AL

December 31, 2014 e 201412 A31H

12. DIVIDENDS 12. KB
2014 2013
20145 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARETFr
Proposed final dividend of RMB0.2033 R R HARR B R T am A%
(2013: RMBO0.19) per ordinary share AR ¥0.20337T (20134 :

AR®0.197T)

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 13.
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

The calculation of basic earnings per share amount is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent, and the weighted average number of
4,125,700,000 (20183: 4,125,405,000) ordinary shares. The
calculation of basic earnings per share is based on:

838,755 783,883

BRIRWAFERB B BAEARRAK
RREERRBFAS LHE -

BERBATEBERESEREA
HERER

BEREABFDIEFRNEBRT QA
TIPS T A AR & TSR A N
¥ 15 84,125,700,0000% (20134 :
4,125,405,0000%) 5t & - GIREAR A
MEETERT -

2014 2013
2014%F 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFTT ARET T

Earnings 2R
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders — 5t& &I E A E I Fr A A
of the parent, used in the basic earnings BRI AR L EER
per share calculation FEB AR5 T 2,096,918 1,959,257
Number of shares
gy 4=
2014 2013
2014% 20134
Thousands Thousands
shares shares
T TR
Shares gl
Weighted average number of ordinary HESGREARBTFABL
shares in issue during the year used in FERDBITEEIEE
the basic earnings per share calculation NOHE S 15 & 4,125,700 4,125,405

264 China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

BT EE SRR M AL

December 31, 2014 e 201412 A31H

14. Y% - BERRHE

Group REE
Office
Motor and other  Construction
Buildings vehicles  equipment  In progress Total
WAR
BT HE HfkdE TREIR Bt
RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
AREFT ARETFT AREFr AREFrn AREFT
Cost: B
At January 1, 2013 ®2013%1A1H 467,359 106,821 60,511 60,099 694,790
Additions NE - 10,213 11,494 66,340 88,047
Disposals BE (6,955) (4,710) (6,445) - (18,110)
Exchange adjustments B 5 5% (2,987) (3,409) (351) - (6,741)
At December 31, 2013 #®2013%F12H31H 457,417 108,921 65,209 126,439 757,986
At January 1, 2014 R2014F1 418 457,417 108,921 65,209 126,439 757,986
Additions NE 87,810 6,195 9,254 163,853 267,112
Disposals RE (26,099) (6,836) (8,930) - (41,865)
At December 31, 2014 2014128318 519,128 108,280 65,533 290,292 983,233
Accumulated depreciation: EE
At January 1, 2013 20131 /18 (167,928) (49,453) (33,204) - (250,585)
Charge for the year FAXH (18,226) (11,899 (7,864) - (37,983)
Written back on disposals RERRED 4,690 4,252 6,057 - 14,999
Exchange adjustments B 5 5% 217) 719 93 - 595
At December 31, 2013 #2013 12H31H (181,681) (56,375) (34,918) - (272,974)
At January 1, 2014 R2014F1 418 (181,681) (56,375) (34,918) - (272,974)
Charge for the year FRZH (17,323) (9,506) (8,000) - (34,829)
Written back on disposals RERAED 14,414 3,786 8,059 - 26,259
At December 31, 2014 201446128318 (184,590) (62,095) (34,859) - (281,544)
Net book value: BREFE
At December 31, 2013 R2013%F12A31H 275,736 52,546 30,291 126,439 485,012
At December 31, 2014 R2014%12H31H 334,538 46,185 30,674 290,292 701,689
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y13 - BMERRE (&)

266

(CONTINUED)
Company PiN/NE|
Office
Motor and other  Construction
Buildings vehicles  equipment  In progress Total
WAR
BT HE HEMRE EEIR Bt
RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
ANRETT AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETFT
Cost: B
At January 1, 2013 R2013%F1 418 338,260 46,213 27,543 31,012 443,028
Additions NE = 2,951 4,003 6,995 13,949
Disposals RE = (913) (2,634) - (3,547)
At December 31, 2013 R2013%F12A31H 338260 48,251 28,912 38,007 453,430
At January 1, 2014 #2014F1 18 338,260 48,251 28,912 38,007 453,430
Additions NS 52,574 1,852 5,233 40,895 100,554
Disposals RE - (2,563) (4,518) - (7,081)
At December 31, 2014 R2014%12A31H 390,834 47,540 29,627 78,902 546,903
Accumulated depreciation: e
At January 1, 2013 7201341818 (113,872)  (22,961) (11,515) - (148,348)
Charge for the year FALH (14,224) (3,943) (3,535) = (21,702)
Written back on disposals REEREM - 867 2,504 - 3,371
At December 31, 2013 R2013F12H31H (128,096) (26,037) (12,546) - (166,679)
At January 1, 2014 R2014%E1 818 (128,096) (26,037) (12,546) - (166,679)
Charge for the year ERNTH (14,501) (8,717) (3,825) - (22,043)
Written back on disposals RERED - 2,435 4,230 - 6,665
At December 31, 2014 H2014%128318 (142,597)  (27,319)  (12,141) - (182,057)
Net book value: BETERME :
At December 31, 2013 R2013%F12F31H 210,164 22,214 16,366 38,007 286,751
At December 31, 2014 R2014%12A318 248,37 20,221 17,486 78,902 364,846

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

BT EE SRR M AL

December 31, 2014 e 201412 A31H

14. Y% - BERRE (&)

The Group The Company
AEHE b N/N|
2014 2013 2014 2013
201445 20134 20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT ARETT ARMFT ARETTT

Outside Hong Kong BB LASN

- Long term leases —REHE 39,873 41,519 38,828 40,145

— Medium-term leases —FHRE 228,340 194,973 152,940 142,195

- Freehold — KA FERE 66,325 39,244 56,469 27,824
334,538 275,736 248,237 210,164

As at December 31, 2014, certain of the Group’s borrowings
were secured by certain of the Group’s buildings with
an aggregate net book value of RMB4,333,000 (2013:
RMB4,698,000).

As at December 31, 2014, the Group was in the process of
applying for the ownership certificates for certain buildings.
The aggregate carrying value of such properties of the Group
was RMB22,952,000 (2013: RMB45,973,000). The directors
are of the opinion that the Group is entitled to lawfully occupy
or use these buildings.

2014128318 » AEBETEER
R B AR 48 5HE B A KR #54,333,0007T
(20135 : AR ¥54,698,0007T) M & T
BFIEEMA -

R2014F12A31H  "EEIEEASA
TFEFHRFNEEEE - AEENZE
MERNREAEAARE22,952,0007T
(20134 : AR¥545,973,0007T) - 25
RE - AEEBEGEAEASFERALE
BF o
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. REWE
The Group The Company
r&H KA F
2014 2013 2014 2013
20144 20134 201445 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRETFT AREFTT AREFT ARKFT
Cost: AN :
At the beginning of the year TAEA) 26,623 27,538 21,244 21,244
Disposals RE (3,265) (865) - -
Exchange adjustments PE 5 A% - (50) - =
At the end of the year MRER 23,358 26,623 21,244 21,244
Accumulated depreciation: Zii7E :
At the beginning of the year REL] (12,460) (11,827) (6,020) (5,041)
Charge for the year FAZH (1,929) (882) (980) (979)
Written back on disposals EEEED 1,368 237 = =
Exchange adjustments RIS = 12 = -
At the end of the year RER (13,021) (12,460) (7,000) (6,020)
Net book value: BEEEE 10,337 14,163 14,244 15,224
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BT EE SRR M AL

December 31, 2014 e 201412 A31H

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 15. REWE (&)

REMEHNREFEINAT :

The analysis of net book value of investment properties is as

follows:
The Group The Company
£33 AR
2014 2013 2014 2013
20144 20134 20145 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AREFTT AREFT ARKFT
In Hong Kong REB
— Medium-term leases — REEE 1,197 1,213 = =
Outside Hong Kong BB LAGN
- Medium-term leases —RHEE 9,140 12,950 14,244 15,224
10,337 14,163 14,244 15,224

According to the property valuation reports issued on March
17, 2015 by Savills Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited,
a firm of independent qualified valuer in Hong Kong, using
term and reversion method, the fair value as at December 31,
2014 of the Group’s and the Company’s investment properties,
including land use rights, which are classified in “Prepaid
land lease payments” (note 16), were RMB136,154,000
(2013: RMB134,650,000, based on property valuation report
issued by Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and
Advisory Limited, using term and reversion method) and
RMB101,000,000 (2013: RMB79,526,000, based on property
valuation report issued by Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate
Appraisal and Advisory Limited, using term and reversion
method), respectively.

The Group leases out investment properties under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to
5 years, with an option to renew the lease after expiry date
at which time all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases
includes contingent rentals.

R HR 5 — K T &0 4 Hi ik (B | 5 22
BRAR (BEBMBILAEWKGERM
EHFT) A F B RIEHER2015F3
R17REZE LMY EERSE - 12014
F12A318 - A5 EBE kA QA /&%
EME(PEEIERIEN LA
ERIE] (MiFE16) By L b E A #E) &
NARED B A ARKE136,154,0007T
(20134 : AR#134,650,0007T ' 1R
BT ET G RERABR AR
FATHREREZRENYEMGER
%) & A K ¥101,000,0007t (2013
F: AR¥79,526,0007T * RIFMHE
BITRETERBRABERARRABSF
HRIEFEZRENYEGHERS)

AEBUREHETALEREY
¥ HEVIE—RRP1EF - 28
HRAEEMREFRABERDBRT
BEE MHESTHEHAESE -
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 15. REWE (#F)
Fair value hierarchy AREER
The following table sets forth the fair value of the investment TRINTBEANBEERFTEMNARE
properties of the Group as at December 31, 2014 in BR2014F12 A1 BN EMER
accordance with the hierarchy of fair value measurement: B :
Fair value as at Fair value as at
December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Significant Significant
unobservable unobservable
inputs (Level 3) inputs (Level 3)
120145 20134
12A31BHN A RE 12A31EMARE
EXTABE BANAHE
B ABUIE (E34%) BWABE (£38)
Recurring fair value measurement for: & EHEA R EEE - RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#F T AREFT
Commercial properties EEZZES 136,154 134,650
All of the Group’s investment properties are commercial NEBRETEIR B BREEWE -
properties.
Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the KEMEFRREETERTZEGER
key inputs to the valuation of investment properties: ASUEB T ¢
Valuation techniques Significant unobservable inputs
HERE BATAERE AR
Term and Reversion Unit rental (RMB/sg.m./day)
FHNES HABE (ARBT, XK X)
Term yield
FHERE
Reversionary yield
ERERE
Under income approach, term and reversion approach in BEWSE  CERSFHRESE
particular, the rental income derived from the existing tenancies BAEAARNNES W AERZYEE
with due allowance for the reversionary potential of the BB N B S W EIRE AR F LS
property is capitalised at the capitalisation rate. The estimated AL o (HEHFAS B NS BTN EE
total net leased income is capitalised over the remaining term YN R FE A Y X FE B A E 1 T 1B B 3R
of land use rights of the property at an appropriate market yield RN AT T AREFEEANF
expected by investors for the type of properties. PABE AL o
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16. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

BT EE SRR M AL

December 31, 2014 e 201412 A31H

16. AT LA EZHE

The Group The Company
AEH ¥iNN|
2014 2013 2014 2013
20144 20134 20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRETFT ANREFT AREFT AREFT
Cost: AN :
At the beginning of the year — R4 1,895,005 1,894,201 1,545,392 1,545,392
Addition NE - 804 - -
Disposals BE (1,675) - - -
At the end of the year TER 1,893,330 1,895,005 1,545,392 1,545,392
Accumulated amortisation: Ziti#sy :
At the beginning of the year A4 (106,896) (67,053) (92,277) (58,085)
Charge for the year FREZH (41,858) (39,843) (34,214) (34,192)
Written back on disposals Bz B & [0 512 = = =
At the end of the year RER (148,242)  (106,896)  (126,491) (92,277)
Net book value: BRMEEE - 1,745,088 1,788,109 1,418,901 1,453,115

The leasehold land is situated in Mainland China and is held

under a long term lease.

HELWURPBEARE  IREFH

MAFE -
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December 31, 2014 e 201412 A31H

17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. Hft B EE
The Group The Company
AEHE ADFE
2014 2013 2014 2013
20145 20134 20145 20134

RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000
AREFT ARETT AR®TrT ARETT

Cost: 2%

At the beginning of the year — R4 11,531 11,248 7,109 6,948
Additions NE 4,332 2,586 2,778 2,464
Disposals RE = (2,303) - (2,303)
At the end of the year RER 15,863 11,531 9,887 7,109

Accumulated amortisation: ZitifE :

At the beginning of the year — R4 (3,612) (3,589) (2,246) (2,508)
Charge for the year FAZ M (3,505) (2,326) (2,764) (2,041)
Disposals RE - 2,303 - 2,303
At the end of the year RER (7,117) (3,612) (5,010) (2,246)
Net book value: BREEE : 8,746 7,919 4,877 4,863
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December 31, 2014 e 201412 A31H

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18. BB AT HRE

2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF T ARETFT
Unlisted shares, at cost JE ETHIRD - IR 1,983,293 1,964,706
Impairment RIE (5,041) (5,041)
1,978,252 1,959,665
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: FEMBRRNFMAERAT -
Nominal value of
Place and date issued ordinary/  Percentage of
of incorporation/ registered  equity attributable Nature of PRC
Name registration share capital  to the Company  Principal activities Incorporated company
HARAL/ BRAEER/ RRAFEL
£ MR A A EREAEE READL TERH PEZRAIATME
Direct Indirect
B  BE
1 CMEC International The PRC RMB50,000,000  100% - Construction Limited liability company
Engineering Co., Ltd. September 9, 1997 contracting and trading
REETRAREAAR el ARE BIAERES BREFAR
199749 A9H 50,000,0007
2 China Everbest Development Hong Kong SAR HKD22,136,400  100% - Trading and security =
International Limited August 12, 1988 investment
ERERRERAR BERATHE 22,136,400%TC BAREFRE
19888 R 12A
3 China Machinery & Equipment Hong Kong SAR HKD25,115,970 100% - Trading -
(HK) Company Limited September 20, 1983
hEERREEEERAT BN ATHE 25,115,970 T g%
19839 420
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December 31, 2014 e 201412 A31H

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

18. BB A RAMKRE (&)

(CONTINUED)
Nominal value of
Place and date issued ordinary/  Percentage of
of incorporation/ registered  equity attributable Nature of PRC
Name registration share capital  to the Company  Principal activities incorporated company
L,/ ERTERR/ KRFEL
£18 ML ER A A ERRAEE READL IEXR PEERAIATME
Direct Indirect
B BE
4 GMEG Engineering Machinery ~ The PRC RMB20,000,000  100% - Trading Limited liability company
Import & Export Co., Ltd. January 9, 1995
PRTRERELDERETAR TE ARE g5 AREEAR
199541 A9H 20,000,0007¢
5  CMEC Comtrans International ~ The PRC RMB20,000,000  100% - Transportation agency Limited liability company
Co., Ltd. March 5, 1997
hRERAKERRE e N LT AREEAR
AREALH 199743 A5H 20,000,0007
6 Ausino Pty. Ltd. Australia AUD3,974,486  92.95% - Wholesale and retail of -
September 13, 1984 machinery equipment
RANERERAARLA BARE 3,974,486 %7 92.95% - BERGHEREE
198459138
7 Shanghai International The PRC RMB10,820,000  100% - Transportation agency Limited liability company
Transportation Co., Ltd. January 30, 1996
hREE LERREREE HE ARE  100% - ERAE AREERA
BRAR 199641 A30H 10,820,0007T
8  Shenzhen CMEC Industry The PRC RMB9,200,000  100% - Storage and property Limited liability company
Corporation Limited March 18, 1992 service
AP RERARAA ke ARE  100% - BRERDERS AREEAR
199234 18A 9,200,0007C
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December 31, 2014 e 201412 A31H

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18. BB ARINIKRE (&)

(CONTINUED)
Nominal value of
Place and date issued ordinary/  Percentage of
of incorporation/ registered equity attributable Nature of PRC
Name registration share capital  to the Company  Principal activities incorporated company
EMEL/ BRTEER/ NG 4
£ EfitE R A H EMBRAEE BRAED TERHK PEZREIATHE
Direct Indirect
EE  BE
9  CMEC International Trading The PRC RMB8,000,000  100% - Trading Limited liability company
Co., Ltd. January 16, 1995
hRERESAREALA  TE AR g5 AREERE
1995417168 8,000,0007t
10 CMEC Machinery & Electric The PRC RMB20,000,000  100% - Trading Limited liability company
Equipment Import & Export  January 16, 1995
PR BEL N BRAR i AE# 85 ARRALT
199541 A 16H 20,000,0007t
11 CMEC International Exhibition ~ The PRC RMB10,000,000  100% - Exhibition services Limited liability company
Co., Ltd. January 9, 1995
BERERREERAMAT HHE AR RER BREFAT
199551 H9H 10,000,0007T
12 CMEC Beijing Property The PRC RMB5,000,000  100% - Property management  Limited liability company
Development Co., Ltd. January 15, 1985 and rental
AR BEL D i AR NEEBRAE AREERA
IRWEEREREMLART  1985F1A158 5,000,0007
13 CMEC General Machinery The PRC RMB6,000,000  100% - Trading Limited liability company
Import & Export Co., Ltd. January 9, 1995
RBRRREL D i AE# g5 AREEAR
BREEAH 199541 A9H 6,000,0007T

Annual Report 2014
2014 FE 5

275




Notes to the Financial Statements

BT EE SRR M AL

December 31, 2014 e 201412 A31H

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

18. BB A RAMKRE (&)

(CONTINUED)
Nominal value of
Place and date issued ordinary/  Percentage of
of incorporation/ registered equity attributable Nature of PRC
Name registration share capital  to the Company  Principal activities incorporated company
AL/ BRTZER/ KARER
£ EfiE R A H EMBRAEE BRED TERHE PERRRIATME
Direct Indirect
EE B
14 China Machinery and The PRC RMB5,000,000  100% - Tendering for Limited liability company
Equipment International April 29, 1996 construction
Tendering Co., Ltd. contracts
hREARBRAREALA  TE ARH BESRAR ARAERH
199644 4298 5,000,000t
15 China Machinery Industrial The PRC RMB75,000,000  100% - Trading Limited liability company
Products Co., Ltd. February 6, 2002
PREETIERR HhE AE% g5 AREALT
BREEAF 200242 A6H 75,000,0007T
16 CMEC Petrochemical-General ~ The PRC RMB5,000,000  100% - Trading Limited liability company
Machinery Co., Ltd. January 16, 1995
mRACERERAR] hE AR g9 ARELRA
199514168 5,000,0007T
17 China Machinery International ~ The PRC RMB116,220,000  100% - Engineering design, Limited liability company
Engineering Design & October 5, 1993 contracting and
Research Institute Co., Ltd. supervision
BB TREHER hE AR TR ABREE  AREFAF
AREARA 1993510458 116,220,007
18 China-East Resources Import & The PRC RMB20,000,000  100% - Construction contracting  Limited liability company
Export Co., Ltd. July 22, 1993 and trading
hERRELOAREARR  TE AEE KEIZBRES ARAERH
199347 228 20,000,0007T
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

BT EE SRR M AL

December 31, 2014 e 201412 A31H

18. BB A RAMNKRE (&)

(CONTINUED)
Nominal value of
Place and date issued ordinary/  Percentage of
of incorporation/ registered  equity attributable Nature of PRC
Name registration share capital ~ to the Company  Principal activities incorporated company
AL,/ BRTERR/ KRFELR
£ MR A H ERBAEE READL TERH PEZRRIATME
Direct Indirect
B BE
19 China National Machinery & The PRC RMB19,562,000  100% - Trading Limited liability company
Equipment Import & February 20, 1987
Export (Suzhou) Co., Ltd.
R (B M) BHREELD el AE® g% ARELLA
EREFAT 198742208 19,562,0007
20 Shanghai Zhong Jing Import & ~ The PRC RMB3,500,000  100% - Trading Limited liability company
Export Corporation December 21, 1995
EREELNERETAA el ARE g% BREFAR
1995%12821A 3,500,000t
21 China National Machinery & The PRC RMB11,500,000  100% - Trading Limited liability company
Equipment Import & April 9, 1987
Export (Wuxi) Co., Ltd.
i (B5) BHREELD hE ARE g5 AREERA
EREEAT 198744 A9A 11,500,0007C
22 Sino American Machinery United States of USD1,918476  100% - Trading -
Corporation America (‘USA”)
August 22, 1983
REEXERAARAT FH2ARE ([XE])  1,918476%T g5
198358 R228
23 Euro M.E.C. Import & Germany DEM100,000  100% - Trading -
Export GmbH March 9, 1990
BERELAARAA (ki 100,0002E 5% g%

199043 A9H
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Bt 35 ER AR Y R

December 31, 2014 e 201412 A31H

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

18. BB A RAMKRE (&)

(CONTINUED)
Nominal value of
Place and date issued ordinary/  Percentage of
of incorporation/ registered  equity attributable Nature of PRC
Name registration share capital  to the Company  Principal activities incorporated company
L,/ ERTERR/ KRFEL
£18 ML ER A A ERRAEE READL IEXR PEERAIATME
Direct Indirect
B BE
24 CMEC Japan Co., Ltd. Japan JPY50,000,000 80% - Trading -
CMECH A 84 April 2, 1986
A& 50,000,000H g5
198654 A2H
25 Henan Machinery & The PRC RMB4,180,000 67% - Trading Limited liability company
Electric Import & April 17, 1997
Export Co., Ltd.
MEREELOBREEAT el AE® ] FREERE
19974 R178 4,180,000t
26 CMIC International Exhibition The PRC RMB1,000,000 90% - Exhibition services Limited liability company
Co., Ltd. May 17, 1995
hEEREEARAA Gl AR RERH AREERA
199565R17H 1,000,000
27 CMIC Enmei Co., Ltd. Japan JPY26,000,000 7% - Trading Limited liability company
CMICH#thst &t May 13, 1994
A% 26,000,008 g5 ARAERA
1994€5R13A
28 CMEC International Economic & ~ The PRC RMB500,000  100% - Legal consultancy Limited liability company
The PRC Legal Advisors September 24, 1993
(Beijing) Inc.
BER (1) BREE hE ARE ReiE ARAERA
ERBAERREAT 1993594248 500,0007C
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

BT EE SRR M AL

December 31, 2014 e 201412 A31H

18. BB A RAMNKRE (&)

(CONTINUED)
Nominal value of
Place and date issued ordinary/  Percentage of
of incorporation/ registered  equity attributable Nature of PRC
Name registration share capital ~ to the Company  Principal activities incorporated company
AL,/ BRTERR/ KRFELR
£ MR A H ERBAEE READL TERH PEZRRIATME
Direct Indirect
B BE
29 China National Machinery & The PRC RMB5,460,000 55% - Trading Limited liability company
Equipment Import & February 21, 2001
Export (Fujian) Co., Ltd.
BROIEAREELOERAT & AR 5,460,007 g% ARELLA
200128218
30 China National Machinery & The PRC RMB5,000,000 51% - Trading Limited liability company
Equipment Import & November 30, 2007
Export (Hubei) Co., Ltd.
REEMRARBE G AR %5,000,0007 g% ARELAA
HAARAR 2007%11A30R
31 CMEC Senegal S.A. Senegal XOF10,000,000  100% - Construction contracting -
hERHREELN2NT April 20, 2009
ENNBRAERAT EM A 10,000,00073E %58 LA
200964 A208
32 CMEC Engineering, C.A. Venezuela VEF200,000 99.90%  0.10%  Construction contracting -
BERZRRLIRAR March 11, 2011
ZNHHL 200,000 2K H A A
201143A118
33  CMEC Nigeria Development Nigeria NGN20,000,000  100% - Construction contracting -
Limited March 25, 2011
EERREELDRAAT ERHE 20,000,005 AL
ERHEERERAR 2011434250
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BT EE SRR M AL

December 31, 2014 e 201412 A31H

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

18. BB A RAMKRE (&)

(CONTINUED)
Nominal value of
Place and date issued ordinary/  Percentage of
of incorporation/ registered  equity attributable Nature of PRC
Name registration share capital  to the Company  Principal activities incorporated company
RERL/ BRAEER/
£ Ab%RAS ZREAEE ARFEGEGZASN TERH PERRRIATME
Direct Indirect
B  BE
34 China Machinery Engineering Argentina ARS429,000 90% 10%  Construction contracting -
Argentina S.A. July 30, 2012
HERRREIRMRERL  FEE 429,001 % BI%E
BRAR] 2012%7H308
35 China Power Construction The PRC RMBS5,000,000 50% - Engineering design Limited liability company
Engineering Consulting January 11, 1993
Central Southern Corporation
MEENRRIRHEATAE HE ARE Tkt BREAAT
BRAR] 1993514118 5,000,007
36 China Machinery Engineering Namibia NAD20,000  100% - Construction contracting -
Corporation Namibia June 11, 2013
(Proprietary) Limited
HERAREIRRAERAR  AKLE 20,000 BIAE
WAL BERRALF 201356A11A WRLET
37 China Machinery Engineering Papua New Guinea USD50,000  100% - Construction contracting -
Corporation (PNG) Limited January 22, 2014
TEERREIRRNERLE EhTHEAT 50,000% 7 LA
EREHERNGARELAR 2014515228
38 Sinland Development PTE Ltd.  Singapore USD1,000,000  100% - Construction contracting -
BHERARAA July 22, 2014
IR 1,000,000%7 AR
2014%7A228

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.
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BT EE SRR M AL

December 31, 2014 e 201412 A31H

19. INVESTMENTS IN A JOINT VENTURE 10. e ENRE

Group Company
RE AT

2014 2013 2014 20183
20144 20134 20145 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR FT AREFT ARB¥FrT AR%FrT
Share of net assets EEEERE 50,067 - 50,067 -
Provision for impairment RERE = = = =
50,067 = 50,067 =

Particulars of the joint venture are as follows FEAEENFABROT ¢
Percentage of
ownership
interest, voting

Particulars of Place and date power and
Name issued shares held of registration profit sharing  Principal activity
frEERR -
REBRERN
£ FEEERTRAFE AR AH AMAEDE  TEEHR
China National Guo Lian Development Registered capital of The PRC 50%  Engineering design
New Energy (Wuxi) Co., Ltd RMB200,000,000 and paid up November 4, 2014
capital of RMB100,000,000
BRI R ERARAR A A 5 A R #200,000,00070 & L 50% IE%:
E48 AR ARH100,000,0007C 2014F11 A48
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December 31, 2014 e 201412 A31H

19. INVESTMENTS IN A JOINT VENTURE 19. HEELENRE (F)
(CONTINUED)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial TRINTEETCENTHBERBEE
information of the joint venture:

2014

2014%F

RMB’000

AR¥F

Current assets MENEE 54,890
Non-current assets ERBEE 82,074
Current liabilities MBAE (35,480)
Non-current liabilities FnBEE (1,349)
Net assets BEFRE 100,135
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REE AL 50%
Group’s share of net assets of the joint venture AEBEELEECENEEFHR 50,067
Revenue 1N 239
Expenses 53 (59)
Profit before tax B Bt A ) 180
Tax HIE (46)
Profit after tax Briiig s Al 134
Other comprehensive income H 4R e Was -
Total comprehensive income RE W BER 134
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEB G RELLO 50%
Group’s share of profit of the joint venture AEBREEESDENRT 67
Share of total comprehensive income JEML ARG Wz B R 67

282 China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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BT EE SRR M AL

December 31, 2014 e 201412 A31H

20. INVENTORIES 20. 7€
Group Company
rEE b N/NE|
2014 2013 2014 2013
2014 20134 20144 20134

RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000
AREFT ARETT AR®TrT ARETT

Goods in transit TEAEE 21 4,265 - 3,714

Entrusted processing EEMIYE
materials 145,682 15,745 - 1,647
Finished goods SURK 108,208 178,796 4,009 =
Others EAb 6,068 13,929 - =
259,979 212,735 4,009 5,361
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BT EE SRR M AL

December 31, 2014 e 201412 A31H

21. AMOUNTS DUE FROM CONTRACT 21. ENERIEFRE
CUSTOMERS
Group Company
rEE PN
2014 2013 2014 2013
20144 20185 20145 20134

RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARETRT ARETT ARBFR AKETT

Gross amounts due from WA REFEHIALATE
contract customers
— Current portion — REED 2,745,274 2,372,575 2,415,020 2,059,414
— Non-current portion — JEMmENEB D 2,698,467 3,201,943 2,671,413 3,136,275
5,443,741 5,574,518 5,086,433 5,195,689
Contract costs incurred LS BEEEARKAR
plus recognised profits less 112 5% TR E
recognised losses to date TR E R 67,045,389 61,086,026 62,187,067 57,234,187
Less: Progress billings o EEFIE 61,601,648 55,511,508 57,100,634 52,038,498
5,443,741 5,574,518 5,086,433 5,195,689
The movements in provision for impairment of amounts due JEWE P FIERBEREEBEEZ T

from customers are as follows:

Group Company
rEE PN
2014 2013 2014 2013
20144 20135 20145 20134F

RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000
ARBTFRT ARETT ARETR ARETTL

At January 1 M AR 236,690 177,243 259,524 200,077
Impairment losses recognised B AN EEE 103,174 59,447 76,213 59,447

Transfer out to trade and BHEEFR
other reveivables ot pE U FE (149,486) - (149,486) -
Impairment losses reversed EEDMRESE (107,607) = (107,607) =
82,771 236,690 78,644 259,524

284 China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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21. AMOUNTS DUE FROM CONTRACT

CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED)

BT EE SRR M AL

December 31, 2014 e 201412 A31H

21. EREREFFE (&)

The amounts due from related parties of the Company included
in the amounts due from contract customers are analysed as
follows, which are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed

terms of repayment:

JE WL AR 1~ B B Bt

FE GFARKA

REFPRE) MAT RERER
EER  REYEEEERD

Group Company
REME ¥ /NG
2014 2013 2014 2013
201445 20134F 201445 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFT ARB¥Fr ARETFT
Subsidiaries RIE=NG] - - - 22,834
22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. ES R HMEWRKIE
Group Company
FEE PN
2014 2013 2014 2013
20145 2013% 20145 20134
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
WiE AREFT ANREFT ARETFn ARSFr
Bills receivable B =5 43,576 33,471 - -
Trade receivables 2 WA 4,378,251 2,787,009 2,585,228 1,601,661
Less: Allowance for o RIS
doubtful debts b) (543,343) (461,300) (273,287) (214,478)
Trade and bills receivables B ZREBGIA R
EWER (a) 3,878,484 2,359,180 2,311,941 1,387,183
Advances to suppliers HEFTEMNR 1,011,211 1,234,748 479,067 692,462
Other receivables H b U I8 1,175,610 1,112,450 3,940,191 1,269,398
Derivative financial instruments 7448 T A - 142,332 - 118,165
Others Hit 246,266 156,655 59,857 352,631
Less: Allowance for o RIRE S
doubtful debts (b) (62,123) (57,330) (2,197) (3,151)
1,359,753 1,354,107 3,997,851 1,737,043
Portion classified as DERIERBEE
non-current assets R 5 (70,375) (53,382) - (50,186)
Current portion RBHH ()f) 6,179,073 4,894,653 6,788,859 3,766,502
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BT EE SRR M AL

December 31, 2014 e 201412 A31H

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. EF R HEMBWRE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Ageing analysis (a) BRERD T
An ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables as BEEZAE  RRERRNE
at the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice 5 W& WU I Je i W32 95 A 4 B %
date and net of provisions, is as follows: HERRER ST -
Group Company
TEE AT
2014 2013 2014 2013
20144 20134 201445 20134

RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARETRE AREBTT ARMFT ARETT

Within 3 months 3@ B AR 1,938,313 1,306,468 940,002 839,830
3 months to 6 months 31E A =61E A 511,708 218,537 145,788 80,262
6 months to 1 year 61 B =14 554,783 301,757 526,875 149,204
Over 1 year 16 E 873,680 532,418 699,276 317,887

3,878,484 2,359,180 2,311,941 1,387,183

There are no unified standard credit terms granted to MIEBEFERESEBNER
customers of construction business and trading business. WEERSG—2EEEH KT
The credit terms granted to customers of construction HEIFARBEBEFNEERTIR
business are negotiated individually on a case-by-case ERERZERBLIGE - WES
basis and set forth in the relevant contracts. The credit REBERAN - BTEZHEK
terms granted to customers of trading business are EPMNEER—RONA=2/E
normally about three to six months. The bills receivable A BKREE—MNET AR
are generally due within 180 days from the date of 180 AEHl - AEBKEE
issuance. The Group’s credit policy is set out in note BERE R 5E36(a) ©

36(a).
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BT EE SRR M AL

December 31, 2014 e 201412 A31H

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. EZ RHEHMEWRIER (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Impairment of trade and other receivables (b) ESRHMERKERE
The movements in provision for impairment of trade B 5 FE WK IA K E b 8 IR R TEDRL
receivables and other receivables are as follows: BERENEBNT :
Group Company
rEE KAF
2014 2013 2014 2013
2014 20134 20145 20134

RMB’000  RMB'000
ARBTFRT ARETT

RMB’000  RMB'000
ARBFT ARETT

At January 1 »1A18 518,630 466,104 217,629 219,489
Impairment losses recognised B R A R{EEE 150,411 59,398 98,555 43,641
Transfer in from amounts due #E# & EWA [

from contract customers CYSE /=] 149,486 - 149,486 -
Impairment losses reversed 2 B &I 5 EEE (195,570) = (190,186) =
Amount written off WA AR B A £ 58

as uncollectible (17,491) (6,872) - (45,501)

605,466 518,630 275,484 217,629
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BT EE SRR M AL

December 31, 2014 e 201412 A31H

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Impairment of trade and other receivables
(Continued)

As at December 31, 2014, the Group’s trade
and bills receivable of RMB1,572,775,000 (2013:
RMB844,877,000) and the Company’s trade and
bills receivables of RMB1,324,642,000 (2013:
RMB534,429,000) were individually determined to
be impaired. The individually impaired receivables
related to debtors that were in financial difficulties,
and management assessed that only a portion of the
receivables is expected to be recovered. Consequently, as
at December 31, 2014, specific allowances for doubtful
debts of RMB449,947,000 (2013: RMB461,300,000)
and RMB273,287,000 (2013: RMB214,478,000) were
recognised by the Group and the Company, respectively.

As at December 31, 2014, the Group’s other receivables
of RMB82,108,000 (2013: RMB85,292,000) and the
Company’s other receivables of RMB2,197,000 (2013:
RMB3,452,000) were individually determined to be
impaired. The individually impaired receivables related to
debtors that were in financial difficulties and management
assessed that only a portion of the receivables is expected
to be recovered. Consequently, as at December 31, 2014,
specific allowances for doubtful debts of RMB57,630,000
(2013: RMB57,330,000) and RMB2,197,000 (2013:
RMB3,151,000) were recognised by the Group and the
Company, respectively.
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(b) BEZRHMEWKERE (&)

R2014F12831H ' A& B &
BEoRBFAEBEREREEAR
#1,572,775,0007T (20134 :
A R #844,877,0007T) & A& A
AME 5 EWHIEREREE
A R #1,324,642,0007T (2013
F . A R #534,429,00070) #
&R & E AR AE - 855 E K FE
Wiz 5k T8 B B IE B A B A R B B
EHHFLREFTHNEFABR &
BEEANTG  BHEE X5
HY RE UL SRIE AT AL - It - AN
S B EARAR2014F12H31
HERFERRBEINAAR
#5449,947,0007T (20134 : A
R #461,300,0007T) & A R #
273,287,0007T (20134 : A K
#214,478,0007T) °

R2014F12831H - AEEH
H i W I8 A R #682,108,000
7L (20134 = A R %85,292,000
TT) RN B A H Ath fE YR IE A
R ®2,197,0007T (20134 : A
K #3,452,0007T) # & 5l &= &
REAE o B RIR (A A B WK IR R
EREERMBRENEBEAR
W BEERULE  EHES
— BB Y e U R IE AT LA Uk ] e
bt - NEERARRRN20145F12
A1 AR ERKEED B A
A R #57,630,0007T (20134 :
AR #57,330,0007T) M AR
2,197,0007C (20134 : A R #&
3,151,0007T) °
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. EF R HEMBWRE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Trade and bills receivables that are not impaired (c) RBENESEWRIEREIW
R
The ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables MARBBENARHEBERRENE
that are not individually nor collectively considered to be 2 FEWGRIE & FE R B /I BR i
impaired is as follows: war :
Group Company
rEE b YN
2014 2013 2014 20183
201445 20134 20144 20134

RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000
ARBFT ARETT AREBTH ARETTL

Neither past due nor impaired MEAREHBINRREE 1,369,427 1,681,820 1,260,851 884,445
Less than 3 months past due #EASE B AR - 135,350 - 104,689
3 months to 6 months past due  #HI3{E A =61E A - 46,517 - 37,151
More than 6 months past due @ HA6ME A A £ - 26,491 - 4,210
More than 1 year past due BHEFLA | 28,494 85,425 - 36,737

1,397,921 1,975,603 1,260,851 1,067,232

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate BRL 7 160 HA 73 AR Rk (B 7O 8 L T B
to a large number of diversified customers for whom there MY EE R NS R SITE
was no recent history of default. BEFEHEH -

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate 360 HA (B 30 AR R (E A JE Uk R IB B %
to a number of independent customers that have a good BEIRFAR BEEALE
track record with the Group. Based on past experience, BEERIFMAERS - BIZAR
the management believes that no impairment allowance K BERNEEESUEEARE
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has 1t B 5% F A& R TI R /= Al B 2k
not been a significant change in credit quality and the b WEEEREHERZEZLS
balances are still considered fully recoverable. SRERBE R o
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Bt 35 ER AR Y R

December 31, 2014 e 201412 A31H

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. EF R HEMBWRE (&)

(CONTINUED)

(d) The amounts due from related parties of the Group (d) BRAEEBEFHE GIAR
included in the trade and other receivables are analysed 2 REMERGIE) ST -
as follows:

Group Company
rEE RAF
2014 2013 2014 20183
201445 20134 201445 20134

RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000
ARBTFT ARETT ARETR ARETTL

SINOMACH B - 10,159 - -
Fellow subsidiaries EESENE 19,638 22,029 = =
Subsidiaries EREENG - - 3,139,919 897,262
These balances are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and SERBAEER T EXR
repayable on similar credit terms to those offered to the AR AEBEERFERERN
major customers of the Group. EEHER -

(e) As at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, none (e) M2014%F12H31H Kk2013F12A
of the Group’s borrowings were secured by the Group’s 310 - AREMEEERAARKE
trade receivables. B E 5 EIGRIEIE R -
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BT EE SRR M AL

December 31, 2014 e 201412 A31H

PLEDGED DEPOSITS

23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

23.

ReRASEEUREERE

=h
FA

Group Company
N AT
2014 2013 2014 2013
20145 20134 20144 20135
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AE® T AREFrT AR®TrT AREFT
Cash and bank balances BERBESZEY 22,263,085 18,423,937 17,991,709 16,643,725
Less: Pledged deposits W BEAER 300,235 251,435 160,728 244,153
Less: Non-pledged time deposits i : WEEERE|HE A=1F
with original maturity of A R EIEARTE 5
over three months e
when acquired 4,170,349 3,622,336 3,804,775 3,491,951
Cash and cash equivalents R BMRRAREAEHRE
in the statements of financial mMERNRE R
position and in the consolidated BEEEBY
statement of cash flows 17,792,501 14,550,166 14,026,206 12,907,621
Cash and bank balances and PATSIE BN RE R
time deposits denominated in: BITHEBIAR TR :
- RMB - AR 15,296,349 14,288,576 13,657,447 12,786,268
- USD = 3,440,435 1,214,061 3,113,377 1,082,174
- ARS R 2,257,275 - - -
- HKD — B 745,412 2,162,823 727,229 2,090,973
- XAF — hIEERD 258,006 377,972 258,006 377,972
- EUR — BT 151,556 202,632 139,960 180,279
- Other currencies —Hip B 114,052 177,878 95,690 126,059
22,263,085 18,423,937 17,991,709 16,643,725
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Bt 35 ER AR Y R

December 31, 2014 e 201412 A31H

23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
PLEDGED DEPOSITS (CONTINUED)

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through

banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made
for varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
and earn interest at the respective short term time deposit
rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits are deposited

with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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BT EE SRR M AL

December 31, 2014 e 201412 A31H

24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 24. B R EHMENTRIE
Group Company
KEH KAF
2014 2013 2014 2013
20145 20134 2014% 20135

RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBBTR ARETT ARETT ARETT

Bills payable EREE 43,338 60,494 = =
Trade payables B SRR 12,346,341 10,712,413 11,220,892 9,620,192

12,389,679 10,772,907 11,220,892 9,620,192

Accrued salaries, fExtE 4 « TERER

wages and benefits 691,513 655,507 603,916 583,861
Other taxes payable H A E 125,244 90,161 106,713 63,816
Other payables Hib etz 530,061 703,908 417,045 507,957
Derivative financial instruments eI A 29,748 6,279 29,484 6,279

LT A = 30 - _

Other financial instruments

\|

13,766,245 12,228,792 12,378,050 10,782,105

Less: Portion classified as B ABERTBEENES
current liabilities 13,764,067 12,227,087 12,378,050 10,780,400
Non-current portion EREI D 2,178 1,705 - 1,705

Annual Report 2014
2014 FE 5 293



Notes to the Financial Statements

BT EE SRR M AL
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24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 24. B RHEMBNRE ()
(CONTINUED)
An ageing analysis of the bills payable and trade payables as BIEZZAH KNREHARNENE
at the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, BREZENFRENRRTEOT
is as follows:
Group Company
rEE RAF
2014 2013 2014 2013
20144 20134 2014 20134

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000
ARBBTR ARETT AREFTRT ARETT

Within 3 months 3fE A LAA 3,886,171 4,707,016 3,509,660 4,292,096
3 months to 6 months 31E A =618 A 1,323,633 761,383 1,068,282 606,596
6 months to 1 year 6EAR1E 3,168,021 534,083 2,798,920 255,111
Over 1 year k= 4,011,854 4,770,425 3,844,030 4,466,389

12,389,679 10,772,907 11,220,892 9,620,192

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are usually BORNRIERARE  BERBED
paid within the agreed period, usually due within 180 days. MR B #RER180M E H] o FE T
The bills payable are generally due within 180 days from the SEERBENETABHBI1808 AL
date of issuance. HA o
The amounts due to related parties of the Group included in ERAREE @ KA GTABSE
trade payables are analysed as follows, which are unsecured, NHRIE) 2T ZERBLREE
interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment: R~ B E R
Group Company
rEE b YN
2014 2013 2014 2013
20145 20134 20145 20134

RMB000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000
ARETR ARETT AREFTRT ARETT

Fellow subsidiaries EEIEPNG! 1,086,503 553,658 1,084,616 553,638
Subsidiaries =G| = = 175,734 160,309
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25. BORROWINGS 25. &
2014 2013
2014F 2013F
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate(%) Maturity RMB’000 rate(%) Maturity RMB’000
EBFIE%) BHA AREFE  EEFEY gLz} ANEETFT
Group rEE
Current e
Short term bank loans: BHBTER
- Unsecured - BER 3.15-6.33 2015 4,325 5.39-6.72 2014 16,933
20155 20145
- Secured - BER 5.6 2015 129,213 3.26-6.60 2014 145,650
20155 20146
Current portion of REBBTERH
long term bank loans: RHH -
- Secured - BER 2.33 2015 72,204 1.80-2.41 2014 71724
2015% 20145
205,742 234,307
Non-current ERE
Long term bank loans: RERTER
- Unsecured - BER 1.25-6.15 2016-2022 106,031 1.25 2015-2022 2,733
20165220225 2015F E2002F
- Secured - BER 2.33-2.35 2016 253,758 1.80-2.41 2016 76,904
20165 20165
359,789 79,637

565,531 313,944
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25. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 25. 58 (&)

2014 2013
2014F 2013F
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate(%) Maturity RMB’000 rate(%) Maturity RMB’000
ERAE%) BEA AREFT EEFIE%) FgA ANBEFT
Company VO
Current ik}
Current portion of long REBTERY
term bank loans: e
- Secured -HER 2.33 2015 72,204 2.41 2014 69,810
2015F 2014F
72,204 69,810
Non-current E ik
Long term bank loans: REBIER
- Secured - BER 2.33 2016 918 2.4 2016 72,858
20165F 20165
918 72,858
73,122 142,668
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25. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

BT EE SRR M AL

December 31, 2014 e 201412 A31H

25. (&8 (&)

Bank loans repayable EEZERITER
Group Company
rEH PN
2014 2013 2014 2013
20145 2013% 20145 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ANREFT ARB¥Fr AREFT
Analysed into: IR
Within one year —ER 205,742 234,307 72,204 69,810
In the second year EoF 256,204 73,728 918 71,943
In the third to fifth years, F=FFERF
inclusive (BHERERSE) 100,000 3,959 - 915
Above five years RAEE 3,585 1,950 - =
565,531 313,944 73,122 142,668
Note: Hrat -
(@) As at December 31, 2014, certain borrowings of RMB25,000,000 (@) M20145F12R318 HETHEEAR

(December 31, 2013: RMB14,500,000) were secured by the
Group’s property, plant and equipment (note 14).

25,000,000t (20134125318
AR ¥14,500,00070) HAEE B Y
¥  BERIEEAER (HE14) -

, & o
(o) Asat December 31, 2014, certain borrowings of RMB252,839,482.22 (b) #M2014F12A81H - EFTREEAR

(December 31, 2013: Nil) were guaranteed by the Company and

China Export & Credit Insurance Corporation.

#0252 839,482.227T (20134124
318 : &) AAQABARPREHOEH
REE A RIMEER -

(c) As at December 31, 2014, certain borrowings of RMB173,122,050 () M2014F12R31H EFTEEAR

(December 31, 2013: RMB148,628,000) were secured by the

Group'’s restricted deposits.

#173,122,0507T (2013412 A 31
H: AR#148,628,0007T) B A&
B 2R TR EAIEA -

(d) As at December 31, 2014, certain borrowings of RMB4,213,125.52 (d) M2014F12R318 EFTEEAR

(December 31, 2013: RMB131,150,000) were secured by

outward documentary bill.

#4,213,125,527T (2013412 A 31
H: AR#¥131,150,0007T) A O
& (E AR -
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26. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

26. EEERIBEE

Surplus on
Provision for revaluation of
impairment  Construction  Provisions ~ Changesin  non-current
Group of assets  contracts and accruals fair value assets Others Total
BER FhREEE
AEE EERERRE  BESR Eit&R  DAERD EftBE it it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ABRTE  ARETE  AREFr  ARETT  ARETL  AREFT  ARETR
At January 1, 2014 2014461 A1 157,291 41,135 136,714 (34,013) (147,172) 622 154,577
Deferred tax credited! RERPFA /(N B
(charged) to profit or loss BERE 5,756 35,157 9,129 41,450 (1,214) (4n) 89,807
At December 31, 2014 R2014E12A318 163,047 76,292 145,843 7431 (148,386) 151 244,384
At January 1, 2013 201351418 150,037 105 124,281 4,523 (148,963) 564 130,537
Deferred tax credited/ RBEFEA /(N &
(charged) to profit or loss EEsE 7,254 41,080 12,433 (38,536) 1,791 68 24,040
At December 31, 2013 201312318 157,291 41,135 136,714 (34,013) (147172) 622 164,577
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26. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (CONTINUED) 26. ELEHIBEEE (48)
Surplus on
Provision for revaluation of

impairment Construction ~ Provisions  Changesin  non-current

Company of assets contracts and accruals fair value assets Others Total
B FREEE
A0H BENERRE  BEGE Ei&R  AMEED EftRH 2 it

RMB'000  RMB’'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ABRTR  ARRFT  ARBFT  ARRFT  AREFr  ARETr  ARRTZ

At January 1, 2014 R201451 A1 97,431 41,135 134,424 (21,91) (147,172) - 97,847
Deferred tax credited/ REBEFFA /() &

(charged) to profit or loss EEHR (8,899) 35,157 8,468 35,342 (1,214) - 68,854
At December 31, 2014 R2014%12 4318 88,532 76,292 142,892 7,31 (148,386) - 166,701
At January 1, 2013 R2013%1R1A 96,527 105 115,671 4,523 (148,969) - 67,863
Deferred tax credited/ REEPFA /() &

(charged) to profit or loss RREHE 904 41,030 18,753 (32,494 1791 - 29,984
At December 31, 2013 R2013%12A318 97,431 41,135 134,424 (27,971) (147,172) - 97,847
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26. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (CONTINUED) 26. EEMIBEE (&)
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of ARS8 B ERIEERIEEE !

the following items:

Group Company
A%H AR
2014 2013 2014 2013
2014F 20134 20144 2013%F

RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARETT AREFTn ARETT

Tax losses MIBER 70,019 102,735 - -
Deductible temporary differences of EiEA R AT
construction contracts T =R - 135,476 - =
Other deductible temporary differences Hia SR E58 36,049 53,869 - -
106,068 292,080 - =
There are no income tax consequences attaching to the ZR A &) [A) H AR SRR 25 AR B0 SR P S
payment of dividends by the company to its shareholders. TREABATE -
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27. DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 27. REWERH
The Group’s obligations in respect of defined benefit retirement REBRHERARRZERTE W= R
plans at the end of the reporting period were computed by REtEIARENETRBE IS ERME
an independent actuary, Towers Watson, whose actuaries are EEN (ZRARBEMAERBE R
members of the Society of Actuaries of the United States of K8 ) KRB EMERDEE -

America, using the projected unit credit method.

(a) The provisions for defined benefit obligations recognised (@) MBS R AR R E W
in the statements of financial position are shown as BEBREIRAT
follows:
Group Company
r5E b
2014 2013 2014 2013
20145 20135 2014F 2013%F

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AEETT ARETT ARETT

Retirement and other BRREMBETRESE
supplemental benefit obligations 357,610 356,690 264,740 267,150
Less: Portion classified as W D BEAREY
current liabilities BENIHD 29,960 30,870 23,170 23,950
Non-current portion EREHLH 327,650 325,820 241,570 243,200
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27. DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 27. REW R EK (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) The movements in present value of defined benefit b) RTEWEEIFIREZEBHUWT :

obligations are as follows:

Group Company
b 3L /N
2014 2013 2014 2013
20145 20134 2014% 2013%F

RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000
ARBTFRL ARETT AREFTR ARETT

At the beginning of year REA] 356,690 397,200 267,150 301,560
Interest costs on benefit obligations 45 & 25 75 89 F| S B 24X 14,590 13,540 10,860 10,070
Past service costs PATE BRTS B AR 4,950 430 4,570 -
Benefits paid during the year FAME 27 (30,040) (32,770) (22,850) (24,890)
Re-measurement losses/(gains) REMERA WA
recognised in other REVEHTE
comprehensive income BB/ () 11,420 21,710) 5,010 (19,590
At the end of the year RER 357,610 356,690 264,740 267,150
(c) The net expenses recognised in profit or loss in respect of () AKBEAQATREBE=ARZE
the provisions for defined benefit obligations of the Group W 2 25 75 88 4 1 T R B0 B S5 R
and the Company are as follows: LU
Group Company
r5E ¥ NG|
2014 2013 2014 2013
2014F 2013%F 2014F 2013%F

RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000
ARETR ARETT AREFT ARETT

Interest cost on benefit obligations 7381 75 5 5z A HERE

recognised in finance expense U s 3= TS RO SR AR 14,590 13,540 10,860 10,070

Past service cost recognised RITBFAS NHERE
in administrative expenses PATE AR5 B 2 4,950 430 4,570 =
19,540 13,970 15,430 10,070
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27. DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

(CONTINUED)

27.

(d) The principal actuarial assumptions used in valuing the
provisions for defined benefit obligations as at the end of

BT EE SRR M AL

December 31, 2014 e 201412 A31H

REWRZRY (&)

(d) 1t & 120145 20134 K /) &
FEWBESBEMERNEDZE

2014 and 2013 are as follows: HERFHOT
2014 2013
20145 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETF T AREFT
Discount rates IR =E 3.75% 4.50%
Cost of living adjustment for civil BERIKA B AR AT E
retirees & retirees 3.00% 3.00%
Cost of living adjustment for BEBEEKAAZE
beneficiaries 0.00% 0.00%
Medical cost increase rate BR R Ak AN 18 K R 8.00% 8.00%
Cost of living adjustment and RAIRIKA R
allowance for early retirees AR AR TR K B 4.50% 4.50%
Cost of social insurance contribution — $ZRTER A B 1 1R
and housing fund contribution BEREFEATES
adjustment for early retirees FAS 2 10.00% 10.00%

(e) A one percentage point change in the assumed rate of

) BRBERKABLAKAFEIE

increase in cost of living adjustment for civil retirees and REREH—EarHNTEN
retirees would have the following effects: ™
Increase/ 2014 20183
(decrease) in rate 20145 20134
BR=E RMB’000 RMB’000
tH/(TFH) AR¥EFT ARKFT
Increase in effect on the R E W E B
defined benefit obligations = 1% 23,640 23,670
Decrease in effect on the BIR S el G 31:0
defined benefit obligations FEFD (1%) (20,750) (20,810)

A one percentage point change in other assumptions
would not have significant impact on net defined benefit

obligation.

HfpBRRAZE —HE 2K
EHRERSERHFRENEKN

2.4
= °
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27. DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 27. REW =K (HF)
(CONTINUED)
() Expected contributions to be made in the future years out () RIRFE RN E W =275 & E
of the defined benefit obligations are as follows: SNETTEMTEHRRAS BT ¢
2014 2013
2014% 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT AEET T

Within the next 12 months REA2(E A A 30,000 30,980
Between 1 and 2 years 1524 27,690 28,720
Between 2 and 5 years 2FE 54 81,300 84,920
Between 5 and 10 years 52104 117,340 124,610
Over 10 years 109 A £ 259,420 289,170
Total expected payments TEHA AR sR 515,750 558,400
The average duration of the defined benefit obligation R ERREREREREHTH
at the end of the reporting period is 10.5 years (2013: ABIA10.54 (20134 : 11.06F) »
11.0 years).
28. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 28. HiERBEE
The Group The Company
rEH EAF
2014 2013 2014 2013
20144 2013%F 201445 20134

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTE AEETT ARETET AEETT

Available-for-sale investments AHEERE
Listed equity investments, ERkERE -
at fair value BARE
Hong Kong o 2,190 1,674 — -
Shanghai ! 6,251 6,061 - -
8,441 7,735 - =
Unlisted equity investments, JEEmRIERE -
at cost BRA 238,337 230,809 237,203 237,007
Prepaid investment payment WA ZE - 105,400 = 105,400

246,778 343,944 237,203 342,407
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29. ISSUED CAPITAL 29. B ITRA
2014 2013
20145 20134

Ordinary share, issued and fully paid 2277 R &2 & & B

Domestic shares of RMB1.00 each BRARK1.00THAE R 3,217,430 3,217,430

H shares of RMB1.00 each FEARE1.007THIHAR 908,270 908,270

4,125,700 4,125,700

A summary of the transactions during the year in the RAFEBETRARNFE AR S0
Company’s issued share capital is as follows: K

2014 2013

2014% 20134

Issued capital Note RMB’000 RMB’000

ERITRA iz AB¥FT ARETFT

At January 1 M1 H1H 4,125,700 4,018,000

Issuance of shares by tERE AR 1T AR (D

an over-allotment option (1) = 107,700

At December 31 ®12A31H 4,125,700 4,125,700

Note (1): On December 21, 2012, the Company was listed on HKSE. Kiat(1) - M2012F12H8218 » AR AR

On January 2, 2013, the over-allotment option granted by BB £ o KM2013F1 A

the Company was being fully exercised and by which the 28 + ARRER LA B EE AL AR i

Company issued and allotted an aggregate of 107,700,000 EEREITE - Bt - AAF

H shares at HK$5.40 each for a cash consideration of LA G IR5.408 LB T REE#E S

HK$581,580,000 (equivalent to RMB519,426,000). $#£107,700,0008%HM + ] & 1K

{8 /581,580,000 7T (18 & R
AR#519,426,0007T) °
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30. RESERVES 30. f#&
(a) Group (a) &~&£E

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements REBRAFERBEFENR

therein for the current and prior years are presented in HeBELEEY RV BRKRE

the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 198 E194E A HEREERA

193 to 194 of the financial statements. 25l o

Capital reserve includes: BEREERIE

—  the contributions or distributions to shareholders; — BAREANEBERERHDIK

- share premium as the difference between the total — BhwE - BEETROE
amount of the par value of shares issued and the BEFEHEGAAREEMS
amount of the net proceeds received from the IPO; IR FRE B =%

—  the revaluation surplus resulting from state-owned - BECESHEANEGER
enterprises restructuring; and % R

—  the revaluation reserve resulting from available-for- — AP ESREEEANE
sale financial assets. IGEM o
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30. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

BT EE SRR M AL

December 31, 2014 e 201412 A31H

30. fitE ()
(b) &RAF

Attributable to owners of the parent

SINGE 2PN 2
Statutory
Share Capital surplus Retained Total
capital reserve reserve profits equity
EE
R& B B R ERAE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETT ARBETT ARBETT ARET7
At January 1, 2014 R20145181H 4,125,700 3,863,103 510,168 3,468,828 11,967,799
Profit for the year FEREF - - - 1,894,996 1,894,996
Other comprehensive ENEMERS R
income for the year - - - (5,009) (5,009)
Total comprehensive FREANGEE
income for the year - - - 1,889,987 1,889,987
Dividends paid to shareholders i F 72 FIRRHIAR 2
of the Company - - - (783,883) (783,883)
Profit appropriation to reserves B 2 F &R F - - 191,194 (191,194) -
At December 31, 2014 R2014E12831H 4,125,700 3,863,103 701,362 4,383,738 13,073,903
At January 1, 2013 201351 A1H 4,018,000 3,451,377 316,090 2,377,500 10,162,967
Profit for the year EREH = - - 1,940,781 1,940,781
Other comprehensive EREfERE s
income for the year - - - 19,590 19,590
Total comprehensive ENGARREE
income for the year - - - 1,960,371 1,960,371
Dividends paid to shareholders i PR TR R ML,
of the Company - - - (674,965) (674,965)
Issue of shares Ehlie) 107,700 411,726 - - 519,426
Profit appropriation to reserves  #E# % F{&HY i = - 194,078 (194,078) -
At December 31, 2013 R2013F12831H 4,125,700 3,863,103 510,168 3,468,828 11,967,799
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31. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 31. XBEAE
Legal contingencies EEIEEMH
The Company and certain subsidiaries of the Group are EEEXEBBES  ARAARAEHEH
defendants in certain lawsuits as well as the named parties in & THB AR AELFARFNHE
other proceedings arising in the normal course of business. REEMERRFOREEET - A
While the outcomes of such contingencies, lawsuits or other BRIREEELEHAEM - Fahsk
proceedings cannot be determined at present, the directors of HMERRFTHER  AARESEMN
the Company believe that any resulting liabilities will not have EEMBLSIBHNBETEHAREE
a material adverse impact on the financial position, liquidity, BRI - MBE SR EEEE
or operating results of the Group. EEBATFIFTE -
32. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 32. KEHELH
(a) As lessor (a) EAEBHEA
The Group leases its investment properties (note 15 to the AEERECEHELZHHEER
financial statements) under operating lease arrangements, ‘EWZE (MBHREMEIS) - &
with leases negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to 5 EMEAN F1E5F - HEBRNK—
years. The terms of the leases generally also require the BMEKRBEELIFRES RHTE
tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic AR E R EBAERS -
rent adjustments according to the then prevailing market
conditions.
At December 31, 2014, the Group and the Company M2014F12H31H © KN & B R
had total future minimum lease receivables under BEAPT AT EELEH
non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants falling EDHERHN AR RZEEE B
due as follows: R
Group Company
rEE AT
2014 2013 2014 2013
20144 20134 20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT AEB%®FrT AREFT
Within one year —FEPA 11,872 9,988 2,550 5,093
In the second to fifth years, BE_FEFEAF
inclusive (BEERME) 8,661 12,129 - 7,343

20,533 22117 2,550 12,436
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32. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 32. REHEELH (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) As lessee (b) fEREEA
The Group leases certain of its office properties and office AEBERELCEHELZHARE
equipment under operating lease arrangements. Leases THAEMERPDEE - 2F
for properties are negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to MENZERAN T —Z=RF o
5 years.
At December 31, 2014, the Group and the Company M2014F12H31H - N & B &
had total future minimum lease payments under RABRBBIARHESCEHES
non-cancellable operating leases falling due as follows: HEMNHARRZERS BTN
™ :
Group Company
rEE RAF
2014 2013 2014 20183
20144 20134 201445 20134

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AEETT ARETT AEETT

Within one year —F AR 14,886 12,493 14,585 6,653

In the second to fifth years, FE_FEFAEF
inclusive (BHERMRE) 16,442 6,415 15,901 711
31,328 18,908 30,486 7,364
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33. COMMITMENTS

33. KIE

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note
32(b) above, the Group and the Company had the following
capital commitments at the end of the reporting period:

B _E SCBTRES2(b) 7F st A A4S & HH &
Hh o REBRAABRBERREES
AN B A

Group Company
TEH AT
2014 2013 2014 2013
201445 20134 20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFT ARB¥Fr ARETFT
Contracted, but not provided for: EBEEMNEES T
Land and buildings T RIEF 800,001 310,055 395,648 53,735
Authorised, but not contracted for: B EERETL :
Land and buildings T RIEF 1,187,588 1,411,810 531,096 908,259
1,987,589 1,721,865 926,744 961,994
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 4. ABIRS

(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in (a) PBRak 0758k B A 20 5 ¥l A9
these financial statements, the Group had the following RN REBRFERNERES
transactions with related parties during the year: BHEITUATRS :

(b) In the opinion of the clients the transactions below were (b) BEFRA - THRGTIRAKHE

—REBBRETREASEERL
BRI 77 5 TE VIR TT

conducted in the ordinary course of business of the
Group and are in accordance with the terms agreed

between the Group and its related parties.:

2014 2013
20145 2013F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETFT
Receipt of engineering services and BEXRARTIIEAH)
products from TiERBRER
- Fellow subsidiaries GE NG 1,236,541 749,998
Receipt of integrated services from EXREN TR ARGE R
- Fellow subsidiaries GE NG 591 622
Provision of integrated services to | 3% AR bR A R
- Fellow subsidiaries - FAZEKBAR 19,333 16,274
- SINOMACH — B 585 7,713
Net deposit placed with RIS HRERFE
- Afellow subsidiary - —RXAZNBAR 725,243 501,160
Interest income received from A N5 7 R 7L E A
- A fellow subsidiary - —RAZHBAA 18,793 8,525
Lease expenses paid to IRF TS HNBEER
- A fellow subsidiary - —XAZHBAR - 318
Working capital received from RETIEARNEBES
- A fellow subsidiary - —ZAZHBAR - 26,268
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(c) Outstanding balances with related parties:

34. A AR 5 (&)

(c) FAEEITHOAEREREE

2014 2013
2014% 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETFT
Cash deposits placed with RIS HRBREER
- Afellow subsidiary - —RAZKHBARA 725,243 501,160
Trade and other receivables due from FYTIEFRE SR
Hi e
- SINOMACH — Bl - 10,159
- Fellow subsidiaries - RAKER A 19,638 22,029
Receipts in advance from B T 5I1% 7 W A MG
- SINOMACH — B - 47,541
— Fellow subsidiaries - AZMEAR 286 -
Trade and other payables due to RETHERNES R
HAER A
- SINOMACH — B 2,000 1,800
- Fellow subsidiaries =N 1,086,503 553,658
Payables in advance to R T MBAHE
- Fellow subsidiaries - RAKERA 7,226 -

Note:

Except for the balances of cash deposits placed with a fellow
subsidiary which accrue interest at relevant market rates, the

balances due from related parties are unsecured, interest-free

and have no fixed terms of repayment.

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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December 31, 2014 e 201412 A31H

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 34. (AR5 (&)

(d) Compensation of key management personnel of the (d) mEEEZZEEABNFH
Group:
2014 2013
201445 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AREFr
Short term employee benefits HEEEEF 15,458 13,384
Post-employment benefits BEE 2 12 A 446 3583
Total compensation paid to MEBEBABI
key management personnel FoE=a FEE 15,904 13,737
Further details of directors’ and the chief executive’s EENTRTHRAESFHMOE—
emoluments are included in note 8 to the financial SR BERR B TS RRMIFES o
statements.
() Commitments with related parties (e) BAEES &G
As at December 31, 2014, there was no significant M2014F12H31H » & & X
commitment with related parties. BB 77 ARG o
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 35. BERE T HNERm T A
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial FHeRTARNRSHARNERERER
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: 5 ¢
The Group REE
Available-
for-sale Loans and
financial assets receivables Total
AHEHE
tREE EBRREWRNE #st
December 31, 2014 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
2014F12831A8 ARHTT AREFTT ARE T
Other non-current assets HipIEme &= 246,778 - 246,778
Amounts due from contract W& R% P 1B
customers - 5,443,741 5,443,741
Financial assets included in STAE S R EA RN
trade and other receivables NeRmEE - 5,167,862 5,167,862
Restricted deposits SR HIFER - 300,235 300,235
Time deposits with original RIEE AR BE=EAKN
maturity over three months TEHITER - 4,170,349 4,170,349
Cash and cash equivalents HEeRESZEY - 17,792,501 17,792,501
246,778 32,874,688 33,121,466
Financial
liabilities at
fair value
through profit Financial
or loss - held liabilities at
for trading amortised cost Total
BARELER
BREN
cREE - RE R A
BEEE JIERMNEREE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT AREFT AREFT

Financial liabilities included in AR S REAM RN IR

trade and other payables MErEE - 12,919,740 12,919,740
Derivative financial instruments MTESMITA 29,748 - 29,748
Interest-bearing bank and FTESRITREMEE

other borrowings - 565,531 565,531

29,748 13,485,271 13,515,019

31 4 China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 35. RERETHWEMTIE (&)

(CONTINUED)
The Group (Continued) AEE (&)
Financial assets
at fair value
through profit Available-for-
or loss-held sale financial Loans and
for trading assets receivables Total
BRARELER
B#aTEN
CREE- e
HEEE CHEE EBFREYGE @zt
December 31, 2013 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
2013127318 AEEFT AEEFTT ANEEFIT AREFT
Other non-current assets Rt IRBEE . 238,544 105,400 343,944
Amounts due from contract customers A REFFIE - - 5,574,518 5,574,518
Financial assets included in RINC e
trade and other receivables HEREE 142,332 - 3,517,573 3,659,905
Restricted deposits TR - - 251,435 251,435
Time deposits with original maturity [RIA3|H A BB = AR
over three months EHEH - - 3,622,336 3,622,336
Cash and cash equivalents HeRREEEY - - 14,550,166 14,550,166
142,332 238,544 27,621,428 28,002,304
Financial
liabilities at
fair value
through profit Financial
or loss - held liabilities at
for trading amortised cost Total
BARENER
BRTEN
ERAE - TRE AR
RKEEE RN EE mEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ABETT AREFT AREFT
Financial liabilities included in STAE S REMEMNFRIE
trade and other payables Memas - 11,476,845 11,476,845
Derivative financial instruments MESWTA 6,279 - 6,279
Interest-bearing bank and STERITREMEE
other borrowings - 313,944 313,944
6,279 11,790,789 11,797,068
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 35. RERE T HNEMTIE (&)
(CONTINUED)
The Company b YN
Available-for-
sale financial Loans and
assets receivables Total
A E
cREE BIRREWRTE et
December 31, 2014 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
2014%12831H ARMF ARMFT AR¥FT
Other non-current assets HibIEmB & E 237,203 - 237,203
Amounts due from contract W& F% P 1B
customers - 5,086,433 5,086,433
Financial assets included in FTAE S R E AR
trade and other receivables NERMEE - 6,309,792 6,309,792
Restricted deposits RBRHER - 160,728 160,728
Time deposits with original RIAEIH BB B =& B A
maturity over three months TEHITER - 3,804,775 3,804,775
Cash and cash equivalents BeRREEEY - 14,026,206 14,026,206
237,203 29,387,934 29,625,137
Financial
liabilities at
fair value
through profit Financial
or loss - held liabilities at
for trading amortised cost Total
BARBELER
BRTEN
SRAE - REE R A
BFEEE JIRNEREE HEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT AREFT ARETT

Financial liabilities included in AR S REMERNZIE
trade and other payables NERaE - 11,637,937 11,637,937
Derivative financial instruments TSI A 29,484 - 29,484
Interest-bearing bank and SFERITREMEE
other borrowings - 73,122 73,122
29,484 11,711,059 11,740,543

31 6 China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(CONTINUED)

The Company (Continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements

Financial assets

BT EE SRR M AL

December 31, 2014 e 201412 A31H

35. ZERIEINERMT A (F)

QT (F)

at fair value
through profit ~ Available-for-
or loss-held sale financial Loans and
for trading assets receivables Total
BONBETER
Bt 26
PREE - AfitE
RHEEE CREE ERREWTE @it
December 31, 2013 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
2013F12A31H ANEETFT ARETFT ARETF ARETFT
Other non-current assets Hit3ERgEE - 237,007 105,400 342,407
Amounts due from contract customers  EUARZFZUE - - 5,195,689 5,195,689
Financial assets included in STAR S REM KA
trade and other receivables MEREE 118,165 - 2,955,875 3,074,040
Restricted deposits ZREER - - 244,153 244,153
Time deposits with original maturity RinB R BE=AAN
over three months THIRH - - 3,491,951 3,491,951
Cash and cash equivalents BekReZEY - - 12,907,621 12,907,621
118,165 237,007 24,900,689 25,255,861
Financial
liabilities at
fair value
through profit Financial
or loss - held liabilities at
for trading ~ amortised cost Total
BARBETER
BRTEN
EREE— TRE AR
RKIEEE JIENSRAR st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARKEFT AREFT ARKEFT
Financial liabilities included in HAEB S REMENEIA
trade and other payables Meras - 10,128,149 10,128,149
Derivative financial instruments MEESWMTA 6,279 = 6,279
Interest-bearing bank and FTESRITREMEE
other borrowings - 142,668 142,668
6,279 10,270,817 10,277,096
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 36. BEREERANE

VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks AEBWBFEBARPEBEAR

arises in the normal course of the Group’s business. B mBEcRR  FXRARREK
[Z\Bgz o

AEBEEBENZERRIARASE B
B 5% 5 B i) B 15 R B B EE EOR
NIEFEMOEMT -

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk (a) EAREB

318

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables and amounts due from contract
customers. Management has a credit policy in place and
the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

The Group primarily evaluates customers’ credit status and
their ability to guarantee payment through its establishment
of an appropriate business evaluation system. The Group
generally requires customers to settle progress billings
in accordance with contracted terms and other debts in
accordance with agreements. Credit terms may be granted
to customers, depending on credit assessment carried
out by management on an individual basis. Also, in order
to properly manage the credit risk on trade and other
receivables, the Group issued policies on the purchase of
export credit insurance. To protect against credit risk in
its trading business, the Group usually buy unified export
credit insurance from China Export & Credit Insurance
Corporation (“SINOSURE”) if needed.

The Group’s significant concentration of credit risk stems
from its significant trade and other receivables due from
individual customers.

As at December 31, 2014, 7% of the total trade and
other receivables were due from the Group’s largest
customer (2013: 9%) and 25% of the total trade and other
receivables were due from the five largest customers
(2018: 26%).

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other
receivables are set out in note 22 to the financial
statements.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 36. EKREERANE (&)

VALUES (CONTINUED)

(b) Liquidity risk (b) REBELREKE

The funding needs of the Company and its subsidiary
entities are raised and allocated by the Group. Fund
raising from external sources by subsidiary entities is
subject to approval by the Company. The Company and
its subsidiary entities manage cash flows according to
their own business approval processes. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements and its compliance with loan covenants, to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirement in the short
and longer terms.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group’s and the Company'’s financial liabilities, which are
based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if
floating, based on rates current at the end of the reporting
period) and the earliest date the Group and the Company
can be required to pay:

ARABIREMBEENESF K
MARBEEERNE - WEER
FANBRRERESEBIAR
BIRHLE - ARB R AN B ER
BRHBINEBERLREERE
RERE AKENEREEH
ERBRMRERNRBHESER
REBEZHNNERIEN - BIFR
HemrANR e RIEE
ZTRMBBNTENE SRR
B AmREEREREANR

TRALNHERRAEE R K
RAMERABENNGKRERH
R EEKBENZARAKTRRE
ME (LR A R R IKER
SHRRNBITNE (WRFE)
FENNEXN) KRAKE R
ARABEANFOZEED

Annual Report 2014
2014 F 3}

319




Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 35 ER AR Y R

December 31, 2014 e 201412 A31H

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 36. IEKREERAAE (&)
VALUES (CONTINUED)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REBEESR (&)
The Group KEE

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

BEAFRALRY
Within
1 year or 1to2 2t05 Over 5
on demand years years years Total
1L A

REREF 1226 285%  SHFNLE nE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ABRTT ARETRT ARETT ARRTT ARETZ

December 31, 2014 20145128318
Borrowings o 219,366 264,863 102,866 3,762 590,857
Trade and bills payables E5RMNFERERSZE 12,389,679 - - - 12,389,679
Other payables H i ERTIA 530,061 - - - 530,061
13,139,106 264,863 102,866 3,762 13,510,597
Interest rate swaps (net settled) TR H (BEed) 1,948 165 - - 2,113
Other derivative financial instruments HEiTA4mT A 264 - - - 264
Derivatives settled gross: BEEITETA -
Foreign currency forward RHNESH :
exchange contracts:
- Qutflow — i 1,305,136 513,719 660,284 - 2,479,138
- Inflow - A (1,332,961) (535,180)  (681,326) - (2,549,467)

320 China Machinery Engineering Corporation
PEREREIREROERAT



Notes to the Financial Statements

BT EE SRR M AL

December 31, 2014 e 201412 A31H

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 36. EREERAAE (&)
VALUES (CONTINUED)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REBEESR (&)
The Group (Continued) REE (&)

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

AaRATREER
Within
1 year or 1102 2105 Over 5
on demand years years years Total
1R
BREXEN 1525 28s%  BFLAE 2

RVMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  AMB'000
ANEBTTL ARETET ARETT ARETT ARETT

December 31, 2013 2013F12A31H
Borrowings e 241,463 73,828 4,141 2,020 321,452
Trade and bills payables BHRANTERERER 10,772,907 - - - 10,772,907
Other payables Hitn (3R 703,908 = - - 703,908
Other financial instruments HigmT A 30 - - - 30
11,718,308 73,828 4,141 2,020 11,798,297
Interest rate swaps (net settled) FIZEH (FagE) 4,580 1,706 11 - 6,297
Derivatives settled gross: BT EITAETA -
Foreign currency forward EEIMNESR
exchange contracts:
- QOutflow — R 5,582,799 1,364,971 1,559,991 - 8,507,761
- Inflow kA (5,655,226) (1,395,100) (1,610,720) - (8,661,046)
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 36. IEKREERAAE (&)
VALUES (CONTINUED)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REBEESR (&)
The Company PN

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

BEAFRALRY
Within
1 year or 1to2 2t05 Over 5
on demand years years years Total
1L A

REREF 1226 285%  SHFNLE nE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ABRTT ARETRT ARETT ARRTT ARETZ

December 31, 2014 20145128318
Borrowings EY- 73,067 919 - - 73,986
Trade and bills payables ZoOEMNFERENEZE 11,220,892 - - - 11,220,892
Other payables Hi 3R 417,045 - - - 417,045
11,711,004 919 - - 11,711,923
Interest rate swaps (net settled) FlZgH (FHEEE) 1,948 165 - - 2,113
Derivatives settled gross: BEHBENTETR
Foreign currency forward EHIMNESR
exchange contracts:
- Outflow — it 1,305,136 513,719 660,284 - 2,479,138
- Inflow —HRA (1,332,961)  (535,180)  (681,326) - (2,549,467)
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 36. EREERAAE (&)
VALUES (CONTINUED)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REBEESR (&)
The Company (Continued) RAF (&)

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

AaRATREER
Within
1 year or 1102 2105 Over 5
on demand years years years Total
1R
BREXEN 1525 28s%  BFLAE 2

RVMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  AMB'000
ANEBTTL ARETET ARETT ARETT ARETT

December 31, 2013 2013F12A31H
Borrowings BE 72,127 72,546 916 - 145,589
Trade and bills payables BHRNTERENEE 9,620,192 = = - 9,620,192
Other payables Hit (3R 507,957 = = - 507,957
10,200,276 72,546 916 - 10,273,738
Interest rate swaps (net settled) Mkl (FELEE) 4,580 1,706 11 = 6,297
Derivatives settled gross: BEEITETA
Foreign currency forward EEIMNESR
exchange contracts:
- QOutflow — i 5,379,463 1,071,607 1,035,632 - 7,486,702
- Inflow —RA (5,448,989) (1,095,190) (1,069,071) - (7,613,250)
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 36. IEAMEER A RE (F)
VALUES (CONTINUED)
(c) Interest rate risk (c) FI=E B
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from amounts REENFERREZRERE
due from contract customers, bank deposits and interest WERBRPFPRIEA - RITFH KRG
bearing borrowings. Deposits and borrowings issued at BEE o ZIZEFIFE K EE F &
variable rates and at fixed rates expose the Group to ERNFEREEESRFEREE
cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk HRReREMNEZREREALE
respectively. The Group regularly reviews and monitors the FER o  NEEBBTESH
mix of fixed and variable rate borrowings either through BERBENS RGERIBBET
the contractual terms of the interest-bearing financial iR E A E TS RERE
assets and liabilities or through the use of interest rate ERERZEFEHEELH -
swaps in order to manage its interest rate risks. VAE 28 H A1 2= @ gz o
(i) Interest rate profile (i) FIEER
The Group regularly review and monitor the mix AEEERAEEGTEEM
of the Group’s fixed and variable rate borrowings, BERBENE RGHR
only either through managing the contractual terms B A = 42 H R (50 R 0 AR
of interest-bearing financial assets and liabilities or af & BL R [ A RS H EF
through the use of interest rate swaps in order to B EBERLG - AEIE
manage the group’s interest rate risks. 2= [ fix o
The following table details the interest rate profile SR EALET R A ) &2
of the Group’s and the Company’s net instruments 2 AEBRAARIRRE
(interest-bearing financial assets less interest-bearing HRMWELR GtEERE
financial liabilities) at the end of the reporting period, after ERTESRAE) =
taking into account the effect of interest rate swaps: o
The Group The Company
5@ b NG|
2014 2013 2014 2013
20145 2013F 20144 20134

RMB000  RMB'000 ~ RMB000  RMB'000
ARRTR ARETT ARETR ARETRT

Net fixed rate instruments: BEEFZIEL :

Amounts due from contract FEWARR PR

customers 2,698,467 3,201,943 2,671,413 3,136,275
Bank deposits FATER 13,390,507 13,756,307 12,626,672 13,259,911
Less: Borrowings W EE 460,196 309,394 - 142,668

15,628,778 16,648,856 15,298,085 16,253,518

Net variable rate instruments: ESEFEIL
Bank deposits BITER 8,702,836 4,665,970 5,364,930 3,383,731
Less: Borrowings o EE 105,335 4,550 73,122 =

8,597,501 4,661,420 5,291,808 3,383,731

324 China Machinery Engineering Corporation
REIRMREIRRAERA S



Notes to the Financial Statements

BT EE SRR M AL

December 31, 2014 e 201412 A31H

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (CONTINUED)

36. EAMEERAAE (F)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)

(c) M=z (&)

(ii) Sensitivity analysis (ii)

At December 31, 2014, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest
rates of net variable rate instruments, with all other
variables held constant, would have increased/
decreased the Group’s profit after tax and retained
profits by approximately RMB64,481,000 (2013:
RMB35,303,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the end of the reporting period and had
been applied to the exposure to cash flow interest
rate risk for non-derivative financial instruments in
existence at the end of the reporting period.

The estimated 100 basis points increase or
decrease represents management’s assessment of
a reasonably possible change in interest rates over
the period until the end of the next annual reporting
period. The sensitivity analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2013.

(d) Currency risk

(i) Forecast transactions

The Group uses foreign currency forward exchange
contracts to hedge some of its currency risk in
respect of committed future sales transactions. At
December 31, 2014, the Group didn’t have foreign
currency forward exchange contracts hedging
against forecast transactions (2013: with a net fair
value of RMB57,846,000), recognised as derivative
financial instruments recorded in “trade and other
receivables”.

R2014F12H318 » F F
BANETEMAMEEeE E
%2/ TZ100EE M AT A
HmZSRHFTE - 5
BHAREE R BRT& RN &
RB&FDRIEM B L
A R #64,481,0007T (2013
& : AR#35,303,0007T) °

B 5 AT (B 2R )
B3 3 5 BRSSP
R T 2 T
TAEBRNE SR ENEM

& o
ZN

CERNGET RN
FREEBREHEET— M@
EEREDABEANAE
AL FIERB M1 o B
1547 8201 345 Ky A F 20
17 o

(d) E#E ks

(i)

ARAXEZ

RNEBMFARBPINES RE
HERBERBRRHEER S
HE S EERR - )R20145F
12A318 «+ REENE A
RTE ORI 5 8 iR B NE & A
(2013F : FRAREAAR
#57,846,0007T) © R A
LR [ 8 5 & H th & K
B RRSTESRM T A o
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2014 « 2014512 H31H

December 31,

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (CONTINUED)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Recognised assets and liabilities

Changes in the fair value of foreign currency
forward exchange contracts on monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in profit or loss (see note 6). The net fair
value of foreign currency forward exchange contracts
used by the Group on monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at December
31, 2014 was RMB(27,942,000), recognised as
derivative financial instruments recorded in “trade
payables” (2013: RMB84,486,000
recorded in “trade and other receivables”).

and other

In respect of other monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies, the Group ensures
that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level
by buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates
where necessary to address short-term imbalances.

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s and the Company’s profit after
tax and retained profits that would arise if foreign
exchange rates to which the Group has significant
exposure at the end of the reporting period had
changed at those dates, assuming all other risk
variables remained constant.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 36. EREERAAE (&)
VALUES (CONTINUED)

(d) Currency risk (Continued) (d) E#¥RE (&)
(iii) Sensitivity analysis (Continued) (iii) BEEESHT (4E)
The Group
TEE

2014 2013

20145 20134
Increase/ Increase/ Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease) in (decrease) (decrease) in
in foreign profit after tax in foreign profit after tax
exchange and retained exchange  and retained
rate profits rate profits
BEEF R Wt 188 A K
INEEBE =2 R BT SN BE 2% RE R
®i,ORd)  #&mOR) i Od) 8 ORd)
% RMB’000 % RMB’000
% AREFTT % ARETFT

2014 20144

uSD EVin 5 319,786 5 (86,552)
uSD ETT (5) (319,786) 5) 86,552
EUR BT 10 38,041 10 24,380
EUR LT (10) (38,041) (10) (24,380)
HKD BT 5 37,107 5 78,615
HKD BT (5) (37,107) 5) (78,615)
Others A 5 15,875 5 19,493
Others il (5) (15,875) 5) (19,493)
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BT EE SRR M AL

December 31, 2014 e 201412 A31H

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 36. BEKREERANE (&)

VALUES (CONTINUED)
(d) Currency risk (Continued) (d) E¥Ebs (&)

(iii) BEEESHT (4E)

(iiij) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

328

Results of the analysis presented in the above table
represent an aggregate of the instantaneous effects
on each of the Group entities’ profit after tax and
retained profits measured in the respective functional
currencies, translated into RMB at the exchange
rates ruling at the end of each reporting period for
presentation purpose.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change
in foreign exchange rates had been applied to
re-measure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk at the end of the reporting period, including
intercompany payables and receivables within the
Group which are denominated in currencies other
than the functional currencies of the lenders or the
borrowers. The analysis excludes differences that
would result from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations into the Group’s
presentation currency. The analysis is performed on
the same basis for 2013.

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BT EE SRR M AL

December 31, 2014 e 201412 A31H

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (CONTINUED)

36. EAMEERAAE (F)

(e) Fair values (e) 2AE

(i) Financial instruments carried at fair value

The following table presents the carrying value of
financial instruments measured at fair value at the
end of the reporting period across the three levels of
the fair value hierarchy defined in IFRS 7, Financial
Instruments: Disclosures, with the fair value of each
financial instrument categorised in its entirety based
on the lowest level of input that is significant to that
fair value measurement. The levels are defined as
follows:

The Group'’s financial instruments carried at fair value
as at December 31, 2014 and 2013 are measured
under level 1 or level 2.

(i) UAZBEIFRYZHT A

TREJNUAAEFENE
BT AR RE S RERREMT
BHRELERETR /T
H:BEIMAENAAE
ERN={EERNKAEE -
EEMITENAABETER
BHZAREBEFEMSEE
ENREELRBAZRE
BoBRERMOT

7N & E 20144 20134
12A31BEAREYERENE
BT EEIRE2MET=E o

2014 2013
20145 2013F
Fair value measurement using Fair value measurement using

RRATHEHOLAEHE RRNTHENL L EHE

Quoted prices  Significant Quoted prices Significant
inactive  observable in active observable
markets inputs markets inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) Total (Level 1) (Level 2) Total
RERMAN EATER RERTZE EATER
BE (F1R) BAE (%24) mr  BE(E1R) sAB(Ff) E25)
The Group RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
15H AREFR  ARETT  ARETT  AREFT  ARETr  AREFr
Assets BE
Avallable-for-sale investments ~ A/AEHERE 8,441 - 8,441 7,735 - 7,735
Derivative financial instruments — fT4 2RI E
~ Foreign currency forward - EHNEAR
exchange contracts - - - = 142,332 142,332
Liabilities B&
Derivative financial instruments 7448 TE
- Foreign currency forward - ZHEAR
exchange contracts - 21,678 21,678 - - -
- Interest rate swaps — R - 1,806 1,806 - 6,279 6,279
- Other derivative financial - HipfTEem
instruments I8 - 264 264 - - -
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Bt 35 ER AR Y R

December 31, 2014 e 201412 A31H

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 36. KEKREERAAE (&)
VALUES (CONTINUED)

(e) Fair values (Continued) (e) ARE (&)
(i) Financial instruments carried at fair value (i) HUAZEIRHE@ETA
(Continued) (#&)
2014 2013
20145 20138
Fair value measurement using Falr value measurement using
RENTHENALETE RANTEEN AL ER 2
Quoted prices Significant Quoted prices Significant
inactive  observable in active observable
markets inputs markets inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) Total (Level 1) (Level 2) Total
REBTEN  EAUEE WEBmAY  EXTRE
BE (F14) BAE (%28 ar  BE(F18) BAE(ER) it
The Company RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NG ARETE  AREFI  ARETR  AREFT AEETT ARKFR
Assets BE
Derivative financial instruments ~ $i£& R I A
- Foreign currency forward - RENESH
exchange contracts - - - = 118,165 118,165
Liabilities &f
Derivative financial instruments 7448 TE
- Foreign currency forward - REHNEAF
exchange contracts - 21,678 21,678 - - -
- Interest rate swaps ~ R - 1,806 1,806 - 6,279 6,279

330 China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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Notes to the Financial Statements

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (CONTINUED)

(e) Fair values (Continued)

(iij) Fair values of financial instruments carried at
other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments which were stated at cost or amortized
cost are not materially different from their fair values
as at December 31, 2013 and 2014 except the

BT EE SRR M AL

December 31, 2014 e 201412 A31H

36. KAMEERAAME (F)

(e)

DRME ()

(i) HFEBEAREIRYLHIT A
BAAE

MR2013F &20144F12 H31
H - REBZKASEEK
AFIEMNS R T ANKREE
BHEARBETESEAER

following: PATRBRSN
The Group The Company
TEH AT
2014 2013 2014 2013
20145 20135 2145 2013F
Book value Fair value* Book value  Fairvalue® Book value Fair value*  Book value  Fair value®
REE  ARE FEE MR REE AR SEE  DRE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ABBTE ARETT AGEFT ANRETT AREFL AREFZ AEETT ARHTZ
Amounts ue from EYARERHE
contract customers 5443741 5046659 5574518 5381350 5086433 4,689,351 5,195689 5,001,265
Long-term borrowings ~~ REIEE (431,993)  (411,146)  (151361)  (146,943) (73,122  (70,184)  (142,688) (138,250

The fair value of long-term borrowings as at December
31, 2014 and 2013 are measured under level 2.

The fair value of amounts due from contract
customers as at December 31, 2014 and 2013 are
measured under level 3.

* 20144 2013412 A31
BHRAEED L ERE?
BEtE -

* R2014F K2013%F12H
31EHKMERAE RZFHIE
DABEEFILE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 35 ER AR Y R

December 31, 2014 e 201412 A31H

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (CONTINUED)

(e) Fair values (Continued)

(iii) Estimation of fair values

(1)

@)

Receivables and borrowings

The fair value is estimated as the present value
of the future cash flows discounted at the market
interest rate at the end of the reporting period.

Derivatives

The Group enters into derivative financial
instruments with various counterparties,
principally financial institutions with AAA
credit ratings. Derivative financial instruments,
including forward currency contracts and
interest rate swaps,
techniques similar
pricing and swap models, using present value

are measured using
valuation to forward
calculations. The models incorporate various
market observable inputs including the credit
quality of counterparties, foreign exchange spot
and forward rates and interest rate curves. The
carrying amounts of forward currency contracts
and interest rate swaps are the same as their
fair values.

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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Notes to the Financial Statements

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (CONTINUED)

(f) Capital management

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. Gearing ratio is derived by dividing total borrowings
by total assets multiplied by 100%. In 2014, the Group’s
gearing ratio (total borrowings RMB565,531,000
divided by total assets RMB37,223,342,000) was 1.5%,
representing an increase of 50% as compared to 1%
(total borrowings RMB313,944,000 divided by total assets
RMB31,9583,164,000) as recorded in 2013, mainly due to
the increase in long-term borrowings.

37. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

(1) Dividends distribution

On March 29, 2015, the board of directors of the Company
resolved that RMB0.2033 per share is to be distributed to the
shareholders for 2014, subject to approval of the shareholders
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. The final dividend
proposed after the end of the reporting period has not been
recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting period.

BT EE SRR M AL

December 31, 2014 e 201412 A31H

36. IEAMEERARE (&)

(f)

EXEHE

AEENERELERAEEERE
e EREERDKEELER
LA & E 4858 B SR LA100% 15 H »
20145 « REBEMERL X (&
B % A\ R #565,531,0007T Bk
LA 42 & = A R #37,228,342,000
TT) A1.5% @ E2013EM1% (15
B %8 A K #313,944,0007T
LA 4B & = A R #31,953,164,000
JC) M IER50%  EER AR
R EAfEFRAEIE N o

37. HRER

(1)

IR B2 Tk

R201543H29H - K ARIES
ERFE014FERBRARE
0.2033 LA RIEH 9K @ 1A
FRENEERRAEFAS L8
o RMERRERZZREHR
HREMAREREARBERAE

& °
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BT EE SRR M AL

December 31, 2014 e 201412 A31H

37. SUBSEQUENT EVENT (CONTINUED) 37. Hi&=18 (&)
(2) Acquisition of 75% equity interest in Osmangazi (2) UWiEOsmangazi Elektrik Dagitim
Elektrik Dagitim A.S. (“OEDAS”) and Osmangazi AS. (OEDAS]) % Osmangazi
Elektrik Perakende Satis A.S. (“OEPSAS”) Elektrik Perakende Satis

A.S. (TOEPSAS ) 75%BR#&

On February 3, 2015, the Company entered into a share R2015%F2A3H » A AR EH—XK
purchase agreement with Dedeli Yatirim Insaat Taahhiit £ 4+ B E 55K 32 &9 A FlDedeli
Elektrik Dagitim Sanayi Ve Ticaret A.S., a joint stock Yatirim Insaat Taahhut Elektrik
company incorporated in Turkey, the individual sellers and Dagitim Sanayi Ve Ticaret A.S. »
the guarantor, pursuant to which the Company, together BAES RERAGTL —HORH
with GUOXIN International Investment Corporation Limited BEW= - Bt - ARRIER
(B #F R E AR A R]), will, indirectly through a Hong BB EBR A A A I
Kong joint venture company (including its subsidiaries) BB —REAEGENH (BEE
to be established, acquire 75% equity interest in each M@ A 7)) [ #E W BBOEDASH
of the OEDAS and the OEPSAS (the “Acquisition”) for OEPSASE B75%#) ik # (U i
an aggregate purchase price of US$384,603,597. The =I1H]) - B E (B R384,603,697
Acquisition presents an attractive opportunity for the EIr o ZWHEER AR AR
Company to invest in a sector expected to generate HEBRS| NHIEEEGHK - ER
stable cash flows supported by strong electricity demand R R AL 7B N 58 $) ) R kg
growth in a fast growing economy. In addition, the RO ET  EHEETERSE
power sector is one of the Company’s core industries ERBENHEERE B BN
and the Acquisition would allow the Company to further BEIRITEBARRRI IR EZLE
strengthen its capabilities in this sector while pursuing ¥2— ZWEFEBEERAR
diversified development along the industry value chain. E—IEERZITENE N -
For details, please refer to the announcement of the AR EZEXEEREPETS
Company published on the respective websites of the TLER - BEAFE  #H2HEAN
Stock Exchange and the Company on February 3, 2015. A A A2015%F2 A3H 7 RIFERE X
By March 29, 2015, the acquisition has not been closed. FIRARRHEUTIBHAE o B
As at the date of approval of these financial statements, 20153 H29H 2 5l * W iE =
the above acquisition has not been completed. HIWARTERK o Rz F SRR E

HERH  EREEEE AT

A o

38. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 38. HtEM R K

The financial statements were approved and authorised for B %53k R B R2015F3 20 EE =
issue by the board of directors on March 29, 2015. SHOE RIS o

334 China Machinery Engineering Corporation
REIRMREIRRAERA S



“AGM”

“Articles of
Association”

“Board”

“CG Code”

“China United”

“CMEC Comtrans”

“CMEC Expo”

“CMEC
International
Engineering”

the annual general meeting of the Company

the articles of association of the Company,
adopted on February 14, 2011 and as
amended from time to time

the board of Directors of the Company

the Corporate Governance Code set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

China United Engineering Corporation* (1
BlEt & TF27A 7)), an enterprise established
in the PRC on January 21, 1984 and a
wholly-owned subsidiary of SINOMACH, our
connected person and our Promoter who
holds 1.00% equity interest in our Company
as at the date of December 11, 2012

CMEC Comtrans International Co., Ltd.*
(PREEAKERRIBEREELAF), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company
established in the PRC on March 5, 1997
with limited liability

CMEC International Exhibition Co., Ltd.* (7§
KR ERREARETAT), awholly-owned
subsidiary of our Company established in the
PRC on January 9, 1995 with limited liability

CMEC International Engineering Co., Ltd.*
(PR EIRR T2 AR E EAR]), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of our Company established in
the PRC on September 9, 1997 with limited
liability

Glossary of Terms
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PR BEREEE R
EREEAR — KR
19973 A5H 7£ 1 B A%
YHBRETRR LA
AARZEK B AR

AERZREEEERRE
FRAE - —RKMHN19954
1A EF B E
BREMLAR TAKRA
Gll:sEX=40=PNG]

FHRERIEERETE
N A — K R19974F9
BORTEFR BRI A B R
BEEAR WAARRAR]
WEEMBERAR

Annual Report 2014
2014 FE 5

335



336

Glossary of Terms

an) B 3}

“CMEC
Machinery &
Electric”

“CMEC Tendering”

“Company”, “Our
Company” or
“CMEC”

»

“Companies Law

“Controlling
Shareholder”

“Core Sectors”

CMEC Machinery & Electric Equipment
Import & Export Co., Ltd.* (RER#EE H O
AR F]), a wholly-owned subsidiary of our
Company established in the PRC on January
16, 1995 with limited liability

China Machinery and Equipment International
Tendering Co., Ltd.* (FREBRHEEZERE
A7), a wholly-owned subsidiary of our
Company established in the PRC on April 29,
1996 with limited liability

China Machinery Engineering Corporation*®
(R IR B AR (D AR A7), a
company with limited liability incorporated in
the PRC on January 18, 2011, and except
where the context indicates otherwise,
includes (i) our predecessors and (i) with
respect to the period before our Company

joint stock

became the holding company of its present
subsidiaries, the business operated by it and
its present subsidiaries or (as the case may
be) their predecessors

Company Law in the PRC (% A R A1
‘A AE), adopted by the Standing Committee
of the National People’ Congress on October
27, 2005 and which became effective on
January 1, 2006, as amended, supplemented
or otherwise modified from time to time

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the
Listing Rules
the core sectors of our International
Engineering Contracting Business which are
the power sector, transportation sector and
telecommunications sector

China Machinery Engineering Corporation

FEMHREIRRAERAT

[oh R4 |

[P EHRR ]

A7 -
[ARAFE
sf [
e T A2 |

[RBEDA]

[ R BER

K-S E S

15

15

5

5

FREEELABRA
A — X M1995%1 A
168 £ 1 B A 32 89 B BR
BEERAR LARARRAF
HEENE AR

FERERBEEREE
N ﬂ ' *%%1996&4
H2oB EH BB B
BEMERAR XAAR
ANEENRB AR

B AR R TR AR
BRAA - —FKRK2011
F1A18H =+ B MK
SHIRDBERRAF B
FEXEZEMIE TA
BIE (VR M8V AT S K (i)
FEA R R RK B EL 3R B B
|=ERNEI N SR 2y /N : 8= )
HEms  HRERE
B A Al sk (FR 1B R M
E) HATF KB M ER

2ERARRERG BB
% B 2 2005510 A 27
B £ 4 37 7320064F1 A1
HAEBB R EARKLM
B R ELE (ETRHERT

I sk A H i 2 AE 20

BA L TRAFE T 8
%

BMEIR ITRRABE
BRZLITR REAN
BERITH - RBE®HTT
EREFBAITE



“developing
countries”

“Director(s)”

“Domestic Shares”

“ENR”

“EPC” or
“engineering,
procurement and
construction” or
“turnkey”

“Global Offering”

“Group”, “Our
Group”,
“we” or “us”

according to the World Bank, developing
countries can refer to the countries with
low- and middle-income economies, which
are those with a gross national income per
capita of less than US$12,275

the director(s) of the Company
ordinary shares in our capital, with a

nominal value of RMB1.00 each, which are
subscribed for and paid up in Renminbi

Engineering News-Record magazine, a
publication that provides news, analyses,
commentary and data about the global
construction industry and an independent
third party

a common form of contracting arrangement
whereby the contractor is commissioned by
the project owner to carry out such project
work as design, procurement, construction
and trial operations, or any combination of
the above, either through the contractor’s
own labor or by subcontracting part or all
of the project work, and be responsible for
the quality, safety, timely delivery and cost
of the project

The offering by the Company of 825,700,000
H Shares for subscription by the public in
Hong Kong and placing with professional
and institutional investors outside the United
Stated in December 2012

the Company and, except where the context
otherwise requires, all its subsidiaries

Glossary of Terms
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Glossary of Terms

an) B 3}

“H Share(s)”

“HK$”
“IFRS”

“independent third
party(ies)”

“INED(s)”

“International
Engineering
Contracting
Business”

“Ipsos”

overseas listed foreign shares in our
ordinary share capital with a nominal value
of RMB1.00 each, which are listed on the
Stock Exchange and subscribed for and

traded in HK$

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of the
Hong Kong Special Administration Region

International Financial Reporting Standards

person(s) or company(ies) which is (are)
independent of the directors, supervisors,
shareholder,
shareholder and the chief executive (such

controlling substantial
terms as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries or an
associate of any of them

the independent non-executive Director(s) of
our Company

the international engineering contracting
business conducted by our Group with a
primary focus on EPC projects

Ipsos Hong Kong Limited, an independent
third party, is part of Ipsos SA and it
conducts research on market profiles, market
size, share and segmentation analyses,
distribution and value analyses, competitor
tracking and corporate intelligence; it is
responsible for conducting a research on the
industry information included in this annual
report and providing the relevant data

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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“Ipsos Report

:;ISA”

AV

‘N

“Listing”

“Listing Date”

“Listing Rules”

“Model Code”

MW

“non-Core
Sectors”

a report prepared by Ipsos Hong Kong
Limited, an independent third party, on the
global infrastructure engineering industry
and international trading industry in general,
and the infrastructure engineering industry
and international trading industry in the
developing countries in particular, which was
commissioned by us and issued on March
20, 2014

the United States Iran Sanctions Act, as
amended (PL. 104-172, August 5, 1996)
(formerly the Iran and Libya Sanctions Act
of 1996)

unit of electric potential, kilovolt. 1kV = 1,000
volts

unit of energy, kilowatt. 1 kW = 1,000 watts

listing of our H Shares on the Stock Exchange

December 21, 2012

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, as amended from time to time

the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules

unit of energy, megawatt. 1 MW = 1,000
kW. The installed capacity of power plants
is generally expressed in MW

any sectors that do not fall within the Core
Sectors of our International Engineering
Contracting Business

Glossary of Terms
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Glossary of Terms

an) B 3}

“NSSF”

“OFAC”

“Other
Businesses”

“PRC"

“Prospectus”

“RMB”or
“Renminbi

“SFO"

“Share(s)”

“Shareholder(s)”

“SINOMACH”

National Council for Social Security Fund of
the PRC (FEARAFNE 2B SREES
BEER)

the Office of Foreign Assets Control of the
US Department of the Treasury

the other
our Group, other than the International

businesses conducted by

Engineering Contracting Business and the
Trading Business, which include, among
others, logistic services, exhibition services,
tendering agency services, export-import
agency services, design services and other
services

The People’s Republic of China

the prospectus of the Company dated
December 11, 2012

Renminbi yuan, the lawful currency of the
PRC

the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
as amended, supplemented or otherwise
modified from time to time

share(s) in the share capital of our Company,
with a nominal value of RMB1.00 each,
including our Domestic Shares and H Shares

holder(s) of our Share(s)

China National Machinery Industry
Corporation* (FEI#H TEEBEBR AR,
a state-owned enterprise established in
the PRC on May 21, 1988, our controlling
shareholder

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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“SINOMACH Group” SINOMACH and its subsidiaries, which

“Sinosure”

“Supervisor(s)”

“Supervisory Board”
“Stock Exchange”

]

“Trading Business’

“United States” or
HU .S'H

“US dollars” or

“US§’

u%u

*

excludes our Group

China Export & Credit Insurance Corporation
(PRI R{EAMRKRAAE]), a policy-oriented
insurance company specializing in export
credit in the PRC and an
independent third party

insurance

one (or all) of our Company’s supervisors

the supervisory board of our Company

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

the international and domestic trading
business conducted by our Group

the United States of America, its territories,
its possessions and all areas subject to its

jurisdiction

United States dollars, the lawful currency of
the United States

per cent. or percentage

Denotes English translation of the name of a Chinese company or

entity or vice versa and is provided for identification purposes only.
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Corporate Information

NCIE-F

LEGAL NAME OF THE COMPANY
REI R E TR D BR A

ENGLISH NAME OF THE COMPANY
China Machinery Engineering Corporation*
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. SUN Bai (Chairman)
Mr. ZHANG Chun (President)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. WANG Zhian
Mr. YU Benli
Mr. ZHANG Fusheng

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LIU Li

Ms. LIU Hongyu

Mr. FANG Yongzhong
Mr. WU Tak Lung

SUPERVISORS

Mr. QUAN Huagiang (Chairman)

(Shareholder representative supervisor)
Mr. QIAN Xiangdong (Shareholder representative supervisor)
Mr. BAlI Ming (Staff representative supervisor)

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. ZHOU Yamin
Ms. TSANG Fung Chu

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. ZHANG Chun
Mr. ZHOU Yamin

*  For Identification Purposes Only

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. LIU Li (Chairman)
Mr. WANG Zhian
Ms. LIU Hongyu

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. SUN Bai (Chairman)
Ms. LIU Hongyu
Mr. FANG Yongzhong

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. FANG Yongzhong (Chairman)
Mr. WANG Zhian
Mr. LIU Li

STRATEGY AND DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

Mr. SUN Bai (Chairman)
Mr. ZHANG Chun

Mr. YU Benli

Mr. LIU Li

OPERATION AND RISK MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE

Mr. ZHANG Chun (Chairman)
Mr. WANG Zhian

Mr. ZHANG Fusheng

Mr. FANG Yongzhong

AUDITORS

International Auditors
Ernst & Young

PRC Auditors
Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP (Special General Partnership)

PRINCIPAL BANKS

Bank of China Limited

The Export — Import Bank of China

CITIC Bank

China Merchants Bank (Beijing Branch)

Bank of Communication (Beijing Dongdan Sub-branch)

Corporate Information
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Corporate Information

NCIE-F

REGISTERED OFFICE AND HEAD OFFICE IN THE

PRC

No. 178 Guang’anmenwai Street
Beijing, PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG
KONG

Room 804, 8/F, Tower 1
South Sea Centre

75 Mody Road
Tsimshatsui East
Kowloon, Hong Kong

HONG KONG H SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISORS

As to Hong Kong Laws
Shearman & Sterling

As to PRC Laws
Tian Yuan Law Firm

STOCK CODE
01829
INVESTOR INQUIRIES

Investor Hotline: 86 10 6331 2262
Fax No: 86 10 6332 1086

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

www.cmec.com

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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